
  

 

  

  

  

  
 

 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  

  
 

 

  
 

 

  

   
 

 

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE 11/17/25 

LIST OF BOARD PACKET DOCUMENTS 

1. Transportation Committee Agenda for 11/17/25. 

2. Transportation Committee Draft Minutes for 9/8/25. 

3. Responses from County of Hawaii regarding public transit programs. 

4. United States Department of Transportation Final Rule – Ensuring 
Safe Accommodations for Air Travelers with Disabilities Using 
Wheelchairs – Delayed Enforcement [2025-18980] 

5. City and County of Honolulu Bill 54 (2025) CD1 - – Relating to Public 
Transit. 

6. City and County of Honolulu Auditor – Report on Skyline (rail) 
Operations. 

7. Responses from the City and County of Honolulu – Restroom at 
Skyline Stations. 

8. Federal Transit Administration ADA Complementary Paratransit 
Specialized Review of The City and County of Honolulu (2025). 

9. County of Kauai Press Release - Open Payments on Public Transit. 

10. United States Department of Transportation – Request for Comment; 
Crash Avoidance Warning System Human-Machine Interface 
Research. NHTSA-2024-0070. 

11. United States Department of Transportation – Request for Comment; 
National Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Formula Program Guidance. 
FHWA-2025-0010. 

12. Department of Justice Press Release – Uber Sued for Denying Rides 
to Passengers with Service Dogs, Wheelchairs. 

13. City and County of Honolulu, Charter Amendment Proposal No. 11 – 
Require the City to prioritize the expansion, repair, and improvement 
of sidewalks. 

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2025/09/30/2025-18980/ensuring-safe-accommodations-for-air-travelers-with-disabilities-using-wheelchairs
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2025/05/16/2025-08804/agency-information-collection-activities-submission-to-the-office-of-management-and-budget-for
https://public-inspection.federalregister.gov/2025-15370.pdf


      
    

DISABILITY AND COMMUNICATION ACCESS BOARD 

1010 Richards Street, Rm. 118 • Honolulu, Hawai’i 96813 

Ph. (808) 586-8121 (V) • Fax (808) 586-8129 • (808) 204-2466 (VP) 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

Disability and Communication Access Board 

Standing Committee on Transportation Meeting 

November 17, 2025 
11:00 a.m. 

AGENDA 

The Disability and Communication Access Board (DCAB) will be meeting remotely 
using interactive conference technology.  The public is welcome to participate as 
follows. 

Public In-Person Meeting Location 

Kamamalu Building 
1010 Richards Street, Room 118 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 

Participate Virtually via Zoom 

Click on the link below or copy and paste it into your browser window: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81959854300 and enter Meeting ID: 819 5985 4300. 

To join by phone 

Dial 1 669 900 6833 and enter Meeting ID:  819 5985 4300. 

One tap mobile: +1-669-900-6833,,,,81959854300# 

Public Testimony 

Oral testimony - Testimony or comments presented by members of the public during 
Committee meetings shall be limited to three minutes per agenda item. In compliance 
with the Americans with Disabilities Act, a reasonable amount of additional time shall be 
afforded to persons with a communication disability to present testimony or comments, 
if needed.  Any person who needs additional time to present testimony or comments is 
encouraged to contact the DCAB office in advance of the meeting.  This rule shall be 
placed at the beginning of all Committee meeting agendas.  Members of the public may 
present comment or testimony during Committee meetings on each agenda item. 
Public comment or testimony, if any, shall be presented on each agenda item before the 
Committee deliberates on the item.  After all public comment or testimony is presented, 
the Committee shall deliberate on the agenda item without further comment or 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81959854300
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81959854300


 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

testimony from the public unless further public comment or testimony is requested by 
the Committee. 

Written Testimony - To ensure the public as well as Committee members are able to 
review testimony prior to the meeting, we request written testimony be submitted 48 
hours prior to the scheduled meeting date and time. 

● By email to: dcab@doh.hawaii.gov 

● By U.S. Postal Mail: 
Kirby Shaw, Disability and Communication Access Board, 1010 Richards Street, 
Room 118, Honolulu, HI 96813 

● By facsimile to: (808) 586-8129 

AGENDA 

I. Call to Order 
Review Remote Meeting Procedures 

• This meeting is being recorded. 

• A quorum of Committee members is required to be visible on screen. 

• Raise hand to speak unless called upon. 

• Identify yourself before speaking. 

II. Roll Call/Introductions 

III. Written Public Testimonies Submitted - Review 

IV. Approval of Meeting Minutes of September 8, 2025 

V. Review of DCAB Legislative Position Statements for Transportation and Mobility 
Related Bills and Resolutions. 

• Support legislation in accordance with the DCAB guiding principles on 
public transit fixed route bus and paratransit service regulations 
relating to transportation services that impact people with disabilities, 
including fare and fare categories for paratransit service and for fixed 
route service. 

• Support legislation for additional seating and transit safety measures 
for persons with disabilities beyond the minimum requirements of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act. 

• Support updates to state statutes, administrative rules and policies to 
ensure disability access in air travel and related transportation 
services. 

• Support legislation authorizing the creation of a state level Airport 
Authority, including the creation of a formal disability committee to 
advise on programs, services, and policies at Hawaii State Airports. 

mailto:dcab@doh.hawaii.gov
mailto:dcab@doh.hawaii.gov


 

 

 

 

  

 

 
 

 

 

 
  

 

 

 

• Support testimony for the State Department of Transportation to 
create a disability committee to advise on programs, services, and 
policies at Hawaii State Airports. 

• Monitor legislation relating to pedestrian safety. 

• Support legislation to establish a rebate program for the purchase of 
electric mobility devices as defined in 28 CFR §35.104 and 28 CFR § 
36.104 comparable to other programs, such as the one provided for 
electric bicycles and mopeds. 

VI. Old Business 

A. City and County of Honolulu Bill 45 Relating to the City Transit System. The 
purpose of this bill is to update requirements pertaining to the City Transit 
System in order to promote public safety, system security, service quality, and 
multimodal transmit options – Update. 

B. Review of County of Hawaii Paratransit Service responses. 
(1) Hele-On Shared Ride Program (East Hawaii). 

(2) Hele-On Ka Ho’okele Rural Transportation Program. 

(3) Hele-On Kakoʻo paratransit services. 

C. Richards Street Bike Lane and Loading Zone – Update. 

D. United States Department of Transportation Final Rule – Ensuring Safe 
Accommodations for Air Travelers with Disabilities Using Wheelchairs – 
Delayed Enforcement [2025-18980] – Update 

VII. Standing Agenda Topics 

A. Public Transit and Paratransit 
1. City and County of Honolulu Bill 54 (2025) – Relating to Public Transit. 
2. City and County of Honolulu’s low income rate for fixed route and 

paratransit. 
3. City and County of Honolulu’s Taxi Voucher Program. 
4. City and County of Honolulu Auditor’s February 2025 Report on Rail 

(Skyline) Operations. 
5. Response from the City and County of Honolulu – Bathrooms at Rail 

(Skyline) Stations. 
6. Federal Transit Administration ADA Complementary Paratransit 

Specialized Review of The City and County of Honolulu (2025). 
7. Kauai County Press Release – Open Payments on Public Transit 

B. Streets and Highways 
1. United States Department of Transportation – Request for Comment; 

Crash Avoidance Warning System Human-Machine Interface 
Research. NHTSA-2024-0070. 

https://hnldoc.ehawaii.gov/hnldoc/measure/3353
https://www.heleonbus.hawaiicounty.gov/programs/hele-on-shared-ride-taxi-program
https://www.heleonbus.hawaiicounty.gov/programs/hele-on-ka-ho-okele-rural-door-to-door-service
https://www.heleonbus.hawaiicounty.gov/programs/hele-on-kako-o-paratransit-services
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2025/09/30/2025-18980/ensuring-safe-accommodations-for-air-travelers-with-disabilities-using-wheelchairs
https://hnldoc.ehawaii.gov/hnldoc/measure/3424
https://www.honolulu.gov/oca/wp-content/uploads/sites/39/2025/03/Audit-of-the-Skyline-Operations-Final-Report-1.pdf
https://www.honolulu.gov/oca/wp-content/uploads/sites/39/2025/03/Audit-of-the-Skyline-Operations-Final-Report-1.pdf
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2025/05/16/2025-08804/agency-information-collection-activities-submission-to-the-office-of-management-and-budget-for


 

 

 

 

 

2. United States Department of Transportation – Notice and Request for 
Comment; National Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Formula Program 
Guidance. FHWA-2025-0010. 

3.  Department of Justice Press Release – Uber Sued for Denying Rides 
to Passengers with Service Dogs, Wheelchairs. 

C. Pedestrian Mobility and Built Environment 

1.  City and County of Honolulu Charter Proposal – require the City to 
prioritize the expansion, repair, and improvement of sidewalks. 

D. Air Transportation/Airports - No Updates 

1.  Request for Department of Transportation to form an advisory 
committee for travelers with disabilities. 

E. Water Transportation and Harbors – No Updates 

F. Update from the DCAB Standing Committee on Parking 
1. Act 111 (SB 1008 HD1 CD1) - Relating to Parking. Authorizes the 

counties to adopt ordinances to enforce the accessible parking spaces 
reserved for persons with disabilities and electric vehicles. 

2. Act 112 (SB 1009 SD2 HD2 CD1) – Relating to Parking. Establishes a 
state reserved parking space enforcement fine for the unauthorized 
use of parking spaces reserved for persons with disabilities or electric 
vehicles.  Deposits fifty percent of all fines into the general fund and 
fifty percent into the Safe Routes to School Program Special Fund. 
Specifics that a fine shall not be imposed on a person who parks in a 
space designated and marked as reserved for electric vehicles if the 
electric vehicle charging system is visibly inoperable or broken. 

VIII. Open Forum: Public comment on issues not on the agenda for consideration on 
a future Committee agenda. 

IX. Next Meeting 

IX. Adjournment 

If you need an auxiliary aid/service or other accommodation due to a disability, contact 
Cindy Omura at (808) 586-8121 or dcab@doh.hawaii.gov as soon as possible. 
Requests made as early as possible have a greater likelihood of being fulfilled. 

Upon request, this notice is available in alternate/accessible formats. 

The agenda and meeting materials for this meeting are available for inspection at the 
DCAB office located at 1010 Richards Street, Room 118, Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 and 
on the DCAB website at: https://health.hawaii.gov/dcab/dcab-agendas-and-minutes/. 

https://public-inspection.federalregister.gov/2025-15370.pdf
https://www.capitol.hawaii.gov/session/measure_indiv.aspx?billtype=SB&billnumber=1008&year=2025
https://www.capitol.hawaii.gov/session/measure_indiv.aspx?billtype=SB&billnumber=1009&year=2025
mailto:dcab@doh.hawaii.gov
https://health.hawaii.gov/dcab/dcab-agendas-and-minutes/
https://health.hawaii.gov/dcab/dcab-agendas-and-minutes
mailto:dcab@doh.hawaii.gov


      
    

 

          

       

     

 

DISABILITY AND COMMUNICATION ACCESS BOARD 

1010 Richards Street, Rm. 118 • Honolulu, Hawai’i 96813 

Ph. (808) 586-8121 (V) • Fax (808) 586-8129 • (808) 204-2466 (VP) 

DRAFT MINUTES 
Standing Committee on Transportation Meeting 

Location: Virtual via Zoom and 1010 Richards Street, Room 118 
Date: September 8, 2025 
Time: 11:00 a.m. 

PRESENT: Violet Horvath, Chairperson; Gerald Ohta, Teri Spinola-Campbell, Charlotte 
Townsend, Board Members; Elizabeth Delovio, Bryan Mick, Kristine Pagano, 
Staff 

SIGN LANGUAGE 
INTERPRETERS: Denise Green and Ku Mei Kern 

REAL TIME 
CAPTIONERS: April Chandler and Kelly DeCamp 

I. Chairperson Violet Horvath called the meeting to order at 11:13 a.m. 

II. Committee members and staff introduced themselves. 

III. Chairperson Violet Horvath reported no written public testimony was submitted. 

IV. The Committee approved the July 7, 2025 meeting minutes (M/S/P 
Townsend/Ohta). 

V. Unfinished Business 

A. City and County of Honolulu Bill 45 Relating to the City Transit System. The 
purpose of this bill is to update requirements pertaining to the City Transit 
System in order to promote public safety, system security, service quality, 
and multimodal transmit options – Update. 

Staff reported the City and County of Honolulu’s Bill 45 (2025) Relating to 
Public Transit is yet to be scheduled for a second hearing. This bill would 
allow a rider to be denied transit service if the odor of their belongings 
interfered with other riders’ ability to utilize the transit service. DCAB was 
concerned this would be arbitrarily enforced by public transit operators and 
would lead to disability discrimination complaints. 

B. Review of County of Hawaii Paratransit Service responses. 
(1) Hele-On Shared Ride Program (East Hawaii). 
(2) Hele-On Ka Ho’okele Rural Transportation Program. 

The Committee reviewed a map of the Hawaii County paratransit’s 
service area. While the major population centers have coverage, large 

https://hnldoc.ehawaii.gov/hnldoc/measure/3353
https://www.heleonbus.hawaiicounty.gov/programs/hele-on-shared-ride-taxi-program
https://www.heleonbus.hawaiicounty.gov/programs/hele-on-ka-ho-okele-rural-door-to-door-service


 

    

    

         

 

       

areas of the island do not. These non-covered areas also serve as a 
barrier between the covered areas, for example someone could not use 
the paratransit system to go from Hilo to Kona. Committee member Teri 
Spinola-Campbell mentioned there are other programs that are run by 
agencies other than the County Transportation Department and may 
provide limited service in those non-covered areas. Staff also 
highlighted the County’s Hele-On Shared Ride Program which services 
Hilo. A person who is enrolled can schedule a taxi ride with a 
participating company, and the County will pay the first $15.80 per trip 
(equivalent to 4 miles), with the rider responsible to pay the balance of 
the rate. This program allows for same day rides and hopefully reduces 
demand on the paratransit system. The Committee also discussed the 
Hele-On Ka Ho‘okele Rural Transportation Service which services areas 
outside the paratransit service zone but is only available weekdays 
during business hours. Committee member Charlotte Townsend 
mentioned that a lot of the programs in Hawaii County use older 
vehicles where the lifts or ramps do not work. She does not think the 
island’s policymakers grasp how difficult it can be for a person with a 
mobility disability to get around Hawaii island when different areas are 
serviced by different programs, versus the more holistic approach on 
Oahu. 

She suggests DCAB send a letter to the various programs in Hawaii 
County urging them to communicate and coordinate, in an effort to 
enhance the experience of the program participants. 

Committee member Teri Spinola-Campbell advised contacting the 
Mayor’s Committee on People with Disabilities to ask what discussions 
they have had on this topic. 

C. State of Hawaii E-bike and electric moped rebate program. 
(1) House Bill 670 House Draft 1 

The Committee reviewed the State of Hawaii’s existing e-bike and 
electric moped rebate program. This is restricted to people who do not 
own a motor vehicle and are either students or participate in a low 
income assistance program. The Committee also reviewed House Bill 
670 House Draft 1 which would have added “adaptive electric bicycle” 
as an eligible device for a rebate. Staff suggested that perhaps mobility 
aid devices could also be added, as purchasing those can present a 
financial barrier to a person with a disability. If a bill is reintroduced next 
session, the Legislative Committee can submit testimony asking for that 
amendment. 

D. Richards Street Bike Lane and Loading Zone – Update. 

Staff reported that Executive Director Kirby Shaw received the consent of 
other agencies in the Kamamalu Building to request that the City and County 
of Honolulu’s Department of Transportation Services (DTS) remove the two 
(2) meter parking spaces fronting the building and turn the entire curb into a 
loading zone. DTS replied they will analyze the information about the usage 
rate and revenue collected from the meters before making a decision. 

https://hidot.hawaii.gov/hawaii-electric-bike-and-moped-rebate/
https://www.capitol.hawaii.gov/session/measure_indiv.aspx?billtype=HB&billnumber=670&year=2025


 
 

 

   

  

 

E. United States Department of Transportation Final Rule – Ensuring Safe 
Accommodations for Air Travelers with Disabilities Using Wheelchairs – 
Delayed Enforcement 2025-10250 – Update 

Staff reported that the United States Department of Transportation did not 
issue a second notice of delayed enforcement for their rule titled “Ensuring 
Safe Accommodations for Air Travelers with Disabilities Using Wheelchairs.” 
It is possible the rule will not be vigorously enforced by the current 
administration, but it is now an enforceable regulation. 

VI. Standing Agenda Topics 

A. Public Transit and Paratransit 

Bryan Mick summarized Bill 54 (2025) which proposes changes to the City 
and County of Honolulu’s public transit and paratransit fares. While the bill 
does not amend the low income fare for paratransit, staff had concerns on 
two (2) proposals to the fares for bus and rail: 1) elimination of the free fare 
for a personal care attendant (PCA) when they are providing service to a rider 
with a disability. The current version of the bill leaves intact a fare exemption 
for a PCA when the rider with the disability has a paratransit identification 
card. DTS has stated they would like to delete that as well. Staff testified any 
change to the policy would present a barrier for a person who relies on a 
PCA, and it should be left in its current form. 2) the new fare table collapses 
many categories into a new one called “reduced fare.” However, the 
definition of who falls into that category excludes Medicare card holders. 
Medicare card holders currently receive a reduced rate. DTS has stated this 
is an oversight, but the City Council has yet to correct this. 

The rest of the agenda was deferred due to time restraints. 

VII. The next meeting will be Monday, November 17, 2025, at 11:00 a.m. 

VIII. The meeting adjourned at 12:04 p.m. 

NOTE: All votes were unanimous unless otherwise noted. 

Respectfully submitted, 

BRYAN K. MICK 

https://www.regulations.gov/document/DOT-OST-2022-0144-1999


 
 

 
   

 
 

 
    

  
   

  
     

 
   

 
   

    
  

 

  

   
     

    
  

  
 

     
     

 

 
     

 
    

   
     
 

   
  

 

DCAB’s Transportation Committee is interested in learning more about the paratransit 
services available in Hawaii County. I was hoping you could help me find answer to 
some specific inquiries for the committee. 

Hele-On Shared Taxi Program 
1) Are there monthly or annual stats about how many rides were provided overall in 

this system. If so, are those stats broken down by provider? Yes, monthly and 
annual ridership is recorded for National Transit Data base purposes.  Stats are 
also segregated by each provider.  Is there a statistic on how many of the riders 
requested an accessible vehicle? No 

2) Do the providers supply the County with information on what percentage of their 
vehicles are accessible? Yes, each company has at least one ADA Vehicle as 
required per contract. 

3) Do the providers supply the County with information on the average age of their 
vehicles, especially the accessible vehicles? Yes, providers submit 
documentation of each vehicle annually, including additional or replacement 
vehicles throughout the year. 

4) Are there any statistics for how often a rider who requests an accessible vehicle 
is denied? No, however, if a provider is unable to provide service, they are 
required to contact another participating company or the County to 
accommodate. 

Hele-On Ka Hoʻokele Program 

1) Are all of the vehicles used in this program accessible? No. 
2) If a rider wanted to travel into a zone that is within the paratransit service area, 

would they be required to transfer? Does the operator help arrange the 
paratransit pick-up if so, or does the caller have to make a separate arraignment 
with paratransit? No, vehicle would take the rider to its requested destination 
unless it is out of the County’s service area. 

3) Are there any other programs which try and bridge the geographical gap between 
the areas served by fixed route/paratransit? Not currently. MTA is planning to 
establish Micro Transit Services within the next two years. 

Hele-On Kakoʻo paratransit service 
1) Can you provide more information on the flex program? Is this using fixed route 

buses or paratransit vehicles? The Flex program is open to the general public 
and not exclusive to individuals with disabilities.  The ADA accessible fixed route 
buses will flex up to 1 mile of route and riders are required to make a reservation 
at least one hour in advance. Flex services are offered on Route 301, 403, 60, 
75, and 12. 

Do you folks ever give public presentations on your programs? If so, would you be 
willing to zoom into a future committee meeting? We meet every other month. Yes, we 
would be willing to attend a committee meeting via Zoom. 



A"'"'"''"'°'? 
INFORMATION 

GPO 

Federal Register/ Vol. 90, No. 187 / Tuesday, September 30, 2025 / Rules and Regulations 46751 

approach procedure while below 1,000 
feet above the surface. 

Moreover, the Class E airspace 
extending upward from 700 feet above 
the surface is expanded to a 5-mile 
radius through all but the northwest 
portion to better contain arriving IFR 
aircraft operating below 1,500 feet and 
departing IFR aircraft until reaching 
1,200 feet above the surface. The 
northeast extension is realigned to the 
airport's 051° bearing and is expanded 
to more appropriately contain arriving 
IFR aircraft below 1,500 feet above the 
surface while executing the Area 
Navigation (RNAV) (Global Positioning 
System [GPS]) RWY 22 approach 
procedure. The southwest extension is 
reduced approximately 5 miles to better 
contain arriving IFR aircraft operating 
below 1,500 feet above the surface while 
executing the VOR RWY 4 or RNAV 
(GPS) RWY 4 approach procedures, 
departing IFR aircraft while executing 
the RNAV (GPS) RWY 13 or RNAV 
(GPS) RWY 33 departure procedures, 
and IFR aircraft ascending via the RNAV 
(GPS) RWY 22 missed approach 
procedure until reaching 1,200 feet 
above the surface. The northwest 
portion of the central radius is reduced 
in size to more appropriately contain 
IFR aircraft departing RWY 31 until 
reaching 1,200 feet above the surface. 

Furthermore, the Battle Mountain 
Class E airspace beginning at 1,200 feet 
above the surface is removed as it is 
redundant. The Battle Mountain and 
Rome Class E6 airspace areas provide 
sufficient containment of transitional 
operations. 

Finally, the administrative portion of 
the airport's legal description is 
updated. Reference to the Battle 
Mountain very high frequency 
omnidirectional range tactical air 
navigation (VORTAC) on line three of 
the Class E5 legal description is no 
longer needed and is removed. The 
airspace is now described using only the 
airport reference point. 

Regulatory Notices and Analyses 
The FAA has determined that this 

regulation only involves an established 
body of technical regulations for which 
frequent and routine amendments are 
necessary to keep them operationally 
current. It, therefore: (1) is not a 
"significant regulatory action" under 
Executive Order 12866; (2) is not a 
"significant rule" under DOT 
Regulatory Policies and Procedures (44 
FR 11034; February 26, 1979); and (3) 
does not warrant preparation of a 
regulatory evaluation as the anticipated 
impact is so minimal. Since this is a 
routine matter that only affects air traffic 
procedures and air navigation, it is 

certified that this rule, when 
promulgated, does not have a significant 
economic impact on a substantial 
number of small entities under the 
criteria of the Regulatory Flexibility Act. 

Environmental Review 

ANM NV E4 Battle Mountain, NV 
[Amended] 
Battle Mountain Airport, NV 

(Lat. 40°35'57" N, long. 116°52'28" W) 
That airspace extending upward from the 

surface within 2.9 miles southeast and 3.4 
miles northwest of the 221° bearing 

The FAA has determined that this extending from the airport's 4.4-mile radius 
to 10.4 miles southwest of the airport.

action qualifies for categorical exclusion * * * * * 
under the National Environmental 
Policy Act in accordance with FAA 
Order 1050.lG, FAA National 
Environmental Policy Act Implementing 
Procedures, paragraph B-2.5. This 

Paragraph 6005 Class E Airspace Areas 
Extending Upward From 700 Feet or More 
Above the Surface of the Earth . 

* * * * * 
airspace action is not expected to cause ANM NV E5 Battle Mountain, NV 
any potentially significant [Amended] 
environmental impacts, and no 
extraordinary circumstances exist that 
warrant preparation of an 
environmental assessment. 

List of Subjects in 14 CFR Part 71 

Airspace, Incorporation by reference, 
Navigation (air). 

The Amendment 

In consideration of the foregoing, the 
Federal Aviation Administration 
amends 14 CFR part 71 as follows: 

PART 71-DESIGNATION OF CLASS A, 
B, C, D, AND E AIRSPACE AREAS; AIR 
TRAFFIC SERVICE ROUTES; AND 
REPORTING POINTS 

■ 1. The authority citation for 14 CFR 
part 71 continues to read as follows: 

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 106(f), 106(g), 40103, 
40113, 40120; E.O. 10854, 24 FR 9565, 3 CFR, 
1959-1963 Comp., p. 389. 

§71.1 [Amended] 

■ 2. The incorporation by reference in 
14 CFR 71.1 of FAA Order JO 7400.llK, 
Airspace Designations and Reporting 
Points, dated August 4, 2025 and 
effective September 15, 2025, is 
amended as follows: 

Paragraph 6002 Airspace Areas Designated 
as Surface Area 

* * * * * 

ANM NV E2 Battle Mountain, NV 
[Amended] 
Battle Mountain Airport, NV 

(Lat. 40°35'57" N, long. 116°52'28" W) 
That airspace extending upward from the 

surface within a 4.4-mile radius of the airport 
and within 1.8 miles southeast and 1.9 miles 
northwest of the 228° bearing extending from 
the 4.4-mile radius to 4.5 miles southwest of 
the airport. 
* * * * * 

Paragraph 6004 Airspace Areas Designated 
as an Extension to a Class D or Class E 
Surface Area 

* * * * * 

Battle Mountain Airport, NV 
(Lat. 40°35'57" N, long. 116°52'28" W) 
That airspace extending upward from 700 

feet above the surface within a 5-mile radius 
of the airport, within 4. 9 miles northwest and 
1.9 miles southeast of the 051° bearing 
extending from the 5-mile radius to 11.1 
miles northeast of the airport, within 3.5 
miles southeast and 3.6 miles northwest of 
the 221°bearing extending from the 5-mile 
radius to 11.5 miles southwest of the airport, 
within 1.8 miles either side of the 319° 
bearing extending from the 5-mile radius to 
6.7 miles northwest of the airport, and within 
a 5.5-mile radius clockwise from the 319° 
bearing to the 349° bearing from the airport. 
* * * * * 

Issued in Des Moines, Washington, on 
September 25, 2025. 
B.G.Chew, 
Group Manager, Operations Support Group, 
Western Service Center. 
[FR Doc. 2025-18989 Filed 9-29-25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 4910-13-P 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Office of the Secretary 

14 CFR Part 382 

[Docket No. DOT-OST-2022-0144] 

RIN 2105-AF14 

Ensuring Safe Accommodations for Air 
Travelers With Disabilities Using 
Wheelchairs 

AGENCY: Office of the Secretary of 
Transportation (OST), U.S. Department 
of Transportation. 
ACTION: Notification of enforcement 
discretion. 

SUMMARY: This document announces 
that the U.S. Department of 
Transportation (DOT) is delaying 
enforcement of certain provisions of the 
final rule on "Ensuring Safe 
Accommodations for Air Travelers With 
Disabilities Using Wheelchairs" 
(Wheelchair Rule) while it engages in a 



46752 Federal Register/Vol. 90, No. 187 /Tuesday, September 30, 2025 /Rules and Regulations 

new rulemaking that will consider 
whether to modify those provisions. As 
described below, this exercise of 
enforcement discretion applies to 
provisions of the Wheelchair Rule 
related to airline liability for 
mishandled wheelchairs, refresher 
training frequency, pre-departure 
notifications, and fare difference 
reimbursements. This exercise of 
enforcement discretion is intended to 
remove the burden of complying with 
requirements under review by DOT and 
does not prejudge the outcome of the 
new rulemaking. This notice does not 
affect the enforcement of requirements 
in the Wheelchair Rule beyond the four 
identified provisions. 
DATES: As of September 30, 2025, 
enforcement of 14 CFR 382.125(e), 
382.130(a), 382.132, and 382.141(a)(6) 
contained in the Wheelchair Rule, 
published on December 17, 2024, at 89 
FR 102398, is delayed until December 
31, 2026. 
ADDRESSES: This notification of 
enforcement discretion, the notice of 
proposed rulemaking (NPRM), all 
comments received, the final rule, and 
all background material may be viewed 
online at www.regulations.gov using the 
docket number listed above. Electronic 
retrieval help and guidelines are 
available on the website. It is available 
24 hours each day, 365 days each year. 
An electronic copy of this document 
may also be downloaded from the Office 
of the Federal Register's website at 
www.federalregister.gov and the 
Government Publishing Office's website 
at www.Govinfo.gov. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Tori 
Ford, Vinh Nguyen, or Blane Workie, 
Office of Aviation Consumer Protection, 
U.S. Department of Transportation, 1200 
New Jersey Ave. SE, Washington, DC 
20590,202-366-9342(phone),202-
366-7152 (fax), victoria.ford@dot.gov, 
vinh.nguyen@dot.gov, or blane. workie@ 
dot.gov (email). 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: On 
December 17, 2024, DOT issued a final 
rule on "Ensuring Safe 
Accommodations for Air Travelers With 
Disabilities Using Wheelchairs" 
(Wheelchair Rule). See 89 FR 102398. 
The final rule, which included certain 
provisions required by the FAA 
Reauthorization Act of 2024 (2024 FAA 
Act), expanded existing airline 
obligations in 14 CFR part 382 regarding 
the treatment of air travelers with 
disabilities. More specifically, the final 
rule established new requirements in 
various areas such as training for airline 
personnel and contractors, assistance to 
passengers who use wheelchairs in 
embarking and disembarking from 

aircraft and moving within the terminal, 
and airlines' obligations should 
wheelchairs or scooters be mishandled. 
The final rule became effective on 
January 16, 2025; however, individual 
requirements in the final rule have 
varying implementation times, ranging 
from January 16, 2025 to June 17, 2026 
for training requirements. 

DOT previously announced that it 
would exercise its enforcement 
discretion and not enforce the 
Wheelchair Rule until March 20, 2025. 
See 90 FR 9953 (Feb. 20, 2025). DOT 
subsequently extended its enforcement 
discretion and announced it would not 
enforce the Wheelchair Rule until 
August 1, 2025. See 90 FR 24319 Uune 
10, 2025). DOT explained that 
additional time was needed for the 
officials appointed or designated by the 
President to review the Wheelchair Rule 
to ensure that it is consistent with the 
law, including the requirements of the 
2024 FAA Act, and Administration 
policies, and to consider the issues 
raised by a lawsuit. 

The Department has now initiated a 
new rulemaking titled "Airline 
Obligations to Accommodate Air 
Travelers with Disabilities Using 
Wheelchairs" (Wheelchair Rule 11).1 The 
2025 Spring Unified Agenda identifies 
four provisions of the Wheelchair Rule 
that will be among those considered in 
Wheelchair Rule II: (1) airlines' liability 
when passengers' wheelchairs or other 
assistive devices are not timely returned 
in the condition they were received; 2 

(2) frequency of required refresher 
training of airline employees and 
contractors; 3 (3) pre-departure 
notifications to passengers that check 
wheelchairs or scooters of their right to 
contact a Complaint Resolution Official 
and file a claim; 4 and (4) 
reimbursements of the difference 
between the fare on a flight a wheelchair 
or scooter user took, and the fare on a 
flight that the wheelchair or scooter user 
would have taken if his or her 
wheelchair or scooter had been able to 
fit on the flight. 5 

DOT has announced a target date of 
August 2026 for issuance of a notice of 
proposed rulemaking (NPRM) for 
Wheelchair Rule II.6 A typical comment 

1 Spring 2025 Unified Agenda of Regulatory and 
Deregulatory Actions, Department of 
Transportation, Airline Obligations to 
Accommodate Air Travelers with Disabilities Using 
Wheelchairs (RIN 2105-AF35) at https:/I 
www.reginfo.gov/public/do/eAgendaViewRule? 
publd=202504&RIN=2105-AF35. 

2 Codified at 14 CFR 382.130(a). 
3 Codified at 14 CFR 382.141(a)(6). 
4 Codified at 14 CFR 382.125(e). 
• Codified at 14 CFR 382.132. 
6 Spring 2025 Unified Agenda of Regulatory and 

Deregulatory Actions, Department of 

period for an NPRM is 60 days. DOT 
intends to carefully consider all 
comments received (including late 
comments to the extent practicable) 
before issuing a final rule, if 
appropriate. As such, DOT believes that 
the public interest would be best served 
by DOT exercising its discretion to 
temporarily pause enforcement of the 
four provisions identified above until a 
decision is made on whether to move 
forward with a final rule. The earliest 
date that DOT expects to make such 
determination is December 31, 2026. 
This notice of enforcement discretion 
does not affect the enforcement of 
requirements in the Wheelchair Rule 
beyond the four identified above. 

Issued in Washington, DC, under authority 
delegated in 49 CFR 1.27(a). 
Gregory D. Cote, 
Acting General Counsel. 
[FR Doc. 2025-18980 Filed 9-29-25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 491D-9X-P 

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission 

18 CFR Part 375 

[Docket No. RM25-13--000; Order No. 913] 

Delegation of Authority Regarding 
Electric Reliability Organization's 
Delegation Agreement and Rules or 
Rule Changes Filings 

AGENCY: Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission. 
ACTION: Final rule. 

SUMMARY: The Commission is issuing 
this final rule to transfer certain 
delegated authority from the Director of 
the Commission's Office of Energy 
Market Regulation to the Director of the 
Commission's Office of Electric 
Reliability, with respect to uncontested 
Electric Reliability Organization (ERO) 
or Regional Entity filings pertaining to 
ERO delegation agreements and ERO or 
Regional Entity rules or rule changes. 
DATES: This final rule is effective 
September 30, 2025. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Hampden T. Macbeth, Office of General 
Counsel, Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission, 888 First Street NE, 
Washington, DC 20426. (202) 502-8957. 
Hampden.Macbeth@ferc.gov. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

Transportation, Airline Obligations to 
Accommodate Air Travelers with Disabilities Using 
Wheelchairs (RIN 2105-AF35) at https:/I 
www.reginfo.gov/public/doleAgendaViewRule 
?publd=202504&RIN=2105-AF35. 



SUMMARY OF PROPOSED COMMITTEE DRAFT: 

Bill 54 (2025), CD1
RELATING TO PUBLIC TRANSIT. 

The PROPOSED CD2 makes the following amendments: 

A. In SECTION 2, which amends ROH Section 15B-2.1, amends the bill as follows: 

1. Amends subsection (b) by: 

a. Adding a 'senior citizen (Hawaii residents only)' passenger category 
to the fare structure table; 

b. Adding Medicare cardholders to the list of individuals eligible for 
reduced fares; and 

c. Clarifying which passengers are eligible for the reduced fare for 
different rides and passes. 

2. Deletes subsection (k), which removes personal care attendants from the 
exception to paying a fare for the city bus system and the city rail system. 
(As noted in D-639 (2025), this does not affect free fares for personal care 
attendants utilizing paratransit travel (TheHandi-Van), which is mandated 
by federal laws and covered under ROH § 15B-4.5(e).) Re-letters 
subsequent subsections. 

3. Amends now proposed subsection (l) (formerly subsection (n) in the CD1) 
to provide that the Department of Transportation Services (rather than the 
Director of Transportation Services) may establish a special single ride 
fare for transportation to and from the Daniel K. lnouye International 
Airport. 

4. Amends proposed subsection (m), to provide that the Department of 
Transportation Services (rather than the Director of Transportation 
Services) may establish a special events single ride fare for certain special 
events.  Clarifies that the special events single ride fare will be cash only 
and will be sold at $6.25 for all passenger categories under subsection (b). 

B. Makes miscellaneous technical and nonsubstantive amendments. 



F 

ORDINANCE ______________ HONOLULU CITY COUNCIL 
KE KANIHELA O KE KALANA O HONOLULU 

BILL 54 (2025), CD2 C I T Y  A N D  C O U N T Y  O F  H O N O L U L U  
PROPOSED

A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE 

RELATING TO PUBLIC TRANSIT. 

BE IT ORDAINED by the People of the City and County of Honolulu: 

SECTION 1.  Purpose. The purpose of this ordinance is to simplify, update, and 
amend certain sections of Chapter 15B, Revised Ordinances of Honolulu 2021 ("Public 
Transit"), as they pertain to the fare structure for the Multimodal Municipal 
Transportation System. 

SECTION 2. Section 15B-2.1, Revised Ordinances of Honolulu 2021, is 
amended to read as follows: 

"§ 15B-2.1  Fare structure. 

(a) For the purposes of this article, the following definitions apply unless the context 
clearly indicates or requires a different meaning. 

Adult. Any person over the age of 17 years who does not qualify as a "youth." 

Child. Any person five years of age or younger who is accompanied by a fare-
paying passenger, a city employee, or an employee of the transit management services 
contractor.  If not so accompanied, any person five years of age or younger is a "youth" 
for the purposes of this section. 

Individuals with Extremely Low Income. Any individual who qualifies for a fare 
plan under § 15B-2.10. 

Medicare Cardholder. Any person to whom a Medicare card has been issued, 
pursuant to Title II or Title XVIII of the Social Security Act, 42 USC § 401, et seq. and 42 
USC § 1395, et seq. 

Paratransit Eligibility ID Holder. A person with a card issued under § 15B-4.3. 

Person with a Disability [under § 15B-2.2]. A person with a temporary or 
permanent disability qualified for a fare plan under § 15B-2.2. 

Senior Citizen. A person 65 years of age or older with a programmed city 
payment card issued in accordance with § 15B-2.3. 

OCS2025-0779/9/24/2025 11:45 AM 1 

https://15B-2.10


F 

ORDINANCE ______________ HONOLULU CITY COUNCIL 
KE KANIHELA O KE KALANA O HONOLULU 

BILL 54 (2025), CD2 C I T Y  A N D  C O U N T Y  O F  H O N O L U L U  

A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE 

Service Day. The hours of operation of the city bus system and city rail system 
from 12:01 a.m. of one day to 2:59 a.m. the following day. 

Single Ride Fare. The required payment for a ride on the city bus system or the 
city rail system. 

Single Ride Fare - Special Event. The required payment for a ride on the city 
bus system or the city rail system for a special event as designated by the director. 

Student Transit Pass. A card, including a smart card, ticket, voucher, or similar 
document, distributed as approved by the department, that entitles a student holding the 
pass to ride on the city bus and rail system for the duration specified on the pass. 

Youth. A person six through 17 years of age, subject to the presentation of a 
valid identification card establishing the age of the person. "Youth" includes high school 
students 18 and 19 years of age with a valid high school identification card establishing 
the age of the student and the student's current enrollment, but excludes college, 
university, and vocational training students if over the age of 17. 

(b) Except as otherwise provided in this article, the following fares apply to every 
passenger using the city bus system and the city rail system, and every 
passenger riding the city bus system and the city rail system [shall] must pay the 
applicable fare set forth in this table: 

[FARE STRUCTURE TABLE 

Cash Fares Paid Using City Payment Card (CPC) Only 
Special
Event 

Passenger
Category 

Single Ride
Fare 

Single Ride with 
2.5-Hour Capped 

Fare with Free 
Transfers Between 

Bus, Rail, and 
Paratransit 

Systems 

Daily Pass or 
Maximum 

Capped Fare 

Monthly Pass 
or Maximum 
Capped Fare Annual Pass 

Single Ride Fare 
– Special Event 

Adult $3 $3 $7.50 $80 $880 $6.25 

Youth 
$1.50 $1.50 with 

programmed CPC 
$3.75 with 

programmed 
CPC 

$40 with 
programmed 

CPC 

$440 with 
programmed 

CPC 
$6.25 

OCS2025-0779/9/24/2025 11:45 AM 2 



F 

ORDINANCE ______________ HONOLULU CITY COUNCIL 
KE KANIHELA O KE KALANA O HONOLULU 

BILL 54 (2025), CD2 C I T Y  A N D  C O U N T Y  O F  H O N O L U L U  

A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE 

Cash Fares Paid Using City Payment Card (CPC) Only 
Special 
Event 

Passenger
Category 

Single Ride
Fare 

Single Ride with 
2.5-Hour Capped 

Fare with Free 
Transfers Between 

Bus, Rail, and 
Paratransit 

Systems 

Daily Pass or 
Maximum 

Capped Fare 

Monthly Pass 
or Maximum 
Capped Fare Annual Pass 

Single Ride Fare 
– Special Event 

Child $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Senior Citizen 
(Non-Hawaii $1.25 with $1.25 with $3 with Not applicable Not applicable $6.25 
Resident) valid CPC ID programmed CPC programmed 

CPC 

Senior Citizen $20 with $45 with 
(Hawaii $1.25 with $1.25 with $3 with programmed programmed $6.25 
Resident) valid CPC ID programmed CPC programmed 

CPC 
CPC CPC 

Person with a 
Disability 
Under § 15B-
2.2 (Non-
Hawaii 
Resident) 

$1.25 with 
valid CPC ID 

$1.25 with 
programmed CPC 

$3 with 
programmed 

CPC 

Not applicable Not applicable $6.25 

Person with a 
Disability 
Under § 15B-
2.2 (Hawaii 
Resident) 

$1.25 with 
valid CPC ID 

$1.25 with 
programmed CPC 

$3 with 
programmed 

CPC 

$20 with 
programmed 

CPC 

$45 with 
programmed 

CPC 

$6.25 

Medicare $1.25 with $1.25 with $3 with Not applicable Not applicable $6.25 
Cardholders valid Medicare programmed CPC programmed 
(Non-Hawaii Card ID CPC 
Resident) 

Medicare $1.25 with $1.25 with $3 with $20 with $45 with $6.25 
Cardholders valid Medicare programmed CPC programmed programmed programmed 
(Hawaii Card ID CPC CPC CPC 
Resident) 

Paratransit $2 with $6 with $35 with 
Eligibility ID $1.25 with $1.25 with programmed programmed programmed $6.25 
Holders valid 

paratransit ID 
programmed CPC CPC CPC CPC 

Personal Care 
Attendant 
(PCA) 

$0 when 
performing 

PCA service 
Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable $6.25] 

OCS2025-0779/9/24/2025 11:45 AM 3 



F 

ORDINANCE ______________ HONOLULU CITY COUNCIL 
KE KANIHELA O KE KALANA O HONOLULU 

BILL 54 (2025), CD2 C I T Y  A N D  C O U N T Y  O F  H O N O L U L U  

A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE 

FARE STRUCTURE TABLE 

Cash Fares Paid Using City Payment Card (CPC) Only 
Passenger
Category Single Ride 2-Hour Pass 24-Hour Pass Monthly Pass Annual Pass 

Fixed Route 
(TheBus and 
Skyline) 

Cash Fare 
Only (No 
Transfer) 

Capped Fare or 
Prepaid Pass 

Capped Fare or 
Prepaid Pass 

Capped Fare or 
Prepaid Pass 

Prepaid Pass 

Bus Only HOLO Card 
(CPC) 

HOLO Card 
(CPC) 

HOLO Card 
(CPC) 

HOLO Card 
(CPC) 

Adult $3.25 $3 $7.50 $90 $990 

Youth $1.75 $1.50 $3.75 $45 $495 

Senior Citizen 
(Hawaii 
Residents 
Only) 

$1.50 $1.25 $3.00 $20 $45 

Reduced Fare $1.75 $1.50 $3.75 Hawaii 
Residents Only 

$20 

Hawaii 
Residents Only 

$50 

The following passengers are eligible for the reduced fare for a single ride, the 
two-hour pass, and the 24-hour pass: senior citizens who are not Hawaii 
residents, persons with a disability, paratransit eligibility ID holders, Medicare 
cardholders, and individuals with extremely low income.  The following 
passengers are eligible for the reduced fare for the monthly pass and the annual 
pass: persons with a disability, paratransit eligibility ID holders, Medicare 
cardholders, and individuals with extremely low income; provided that the 
passenger is a resident of Hawaii. 

(c) The department may establish a program for the use of transit passes issued to 
individuals upon payment of the designated fare, which may be used for the 
duration specified on the pass.  The passes will be issued at various locations to 
be selected and advertised by the department.  The department, through the 
department of budget and fiscal services, may enter into contractual 
arrangements with any parties, private or public, when [such] the arrangements 
are deemed to be in the public interest for the sale and issuance of transit 
passes.  The council must be informed within 30 days of the city's entering into 
[any such] the arrangement. 

OCS2025-0779/9/24/2025 11:45 AM 4 



F 

ORDINANCE ______________ HONOLULU CITY COUNCIL 
KE KANIHELA O KE KALANA O HONOLULU 

BILL 54 (2025), CD2 C I T Y  A N D  C O U N T Y  O F  H O N O L U L U  

A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE 

(d) The department may allow a person to board a city transit system vehicle or 
enter a designated paid fare area without being charged a fare as part of a 
promotional offer or package made available by the city. 

(e) In the event of a strike or work stoppage that shuts down any portion of the 
multimodal municipal transportation system, the department may make fare 
adjustments as in the judgment of the department are warranted by the particular 
circumstances. 

(f) The department may establish a program for the issuance of college and 
university student, faculty, and staff transit passes.  [Such] The passes may be 
issued to students, faculty, and staff by a college or university and will be subject 
to terms to be agreed upon between the college or university and the 
department.  Students, faculty, and staff to whom the passes are issued [shall] 
must pay the fare negotiated rather than a fare established under subsection (b). 

(g) The department may establish a program for the issuance of student transit 
passes in accordance with § 15B-2.13.  The passes may be issued to students 
by a participating State department of education school and will be subject to 
terms to be agreed upon between the department and the State department of 
education.  The fare for students to whom the transit passes are issued must be 
paid by the State department of education at the fare negotiated rather than a 
fare established under subsection (b). 

(h) The department may establish a program for the issuance of free transit passes 
for city employees. 

(i) A child riding a city transit system vehicle for free may not occupy a seat to the 
exclusion of another passenger. 

(j) The department may establish a trainer pass program for persons who train 
persons with disabilities to use the city transit system. 

[(k) A personal care attendant accompanying a paratransit eligibility ID holder may 
not pay a fare when performing the service. 

(I)](k) The department may establish special reduced term passes for periods of seven 
days or less at fares provided in this subsection rather than a fare established 
under subsection (b). Reduced term passes will be valid for riders of all ages. 
The three-day pass [shall] will be sold at $20, and the seven-day pass will be 

OCS2025-0779/9/24/2025 11:45 AM 5 

https://15B-2.13


F 

ORDINANCE ______________ HONOLULU CITY COUNCIL 
KE KANIHELA O KE KALANA O HONOLULU 

BILL 54 (2025), CD2 C I T Y  A N D  C O U N T Y  O F  H O N O L U L U  

A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE 

sold at [$35.] $45. The three-day pass will be valid for 72 hours after the initial 
tap on a fare validator. The seven-day pass will be valid for 168 hours after the 
initial tap on a fare validator. 

(l) The department may establish a special single ride fare for transportation to and 
from the Daniel K. lnouye International Airport. 

(m) The department may establish a cash only special events single ride fare for 
special events such as concerts, athletic games, and other large community 
events where non-scheduled transit service is provided.  The special events 
single ride fare will be sold at $6.25 for all passenger categories under 
subsection (b)." 

SECTION 3. Section 15B-2.10, Revised Ordinances of Honolulu 2021, is 
amended to read as follows: 

"§15B-2.10 Transit fares for individuals with extremely low incomes. 

(a) Individuals who have received an eligibility letter from the Social Security 
Administration for benefits under the Supplemental Security Income program are 
eligible for the reduced transit fare upon the presentation of the Supplemental 
Security Income eligibility letter to the department. 

(b) Individuals whose household incomes meet the United States Department of 
Housing and Urban Development guidelines for households with extremely low 
income within the city for the applicable household size, may also qualify for the 
reduced transit fare through application to the department of community services. 
The department of community services shall be responsible for the intake and 
processing of applications, determination of eligibility, and communication of an 
applicant's eligibility to the department. 

(c) The director of community services shall determine the eligibility of the individual 
for the reduced transit fare established under this section upon review and 
verification of an application to qualify for the fare. The application form must be 
prescribed and furnished by the director of community services. The director of 
community services may require proof of age, total household income, and 
household size, and proof may include but will not be limited to true copies of 
personal income tax returns, bank statements, or other financial records. The 
director of community services may require authorization from the household to 
enable the director of community services to fully verify household income. The 

OCS2025-0779/9/24/2025 11:45 AM 6 

https://15B-2.10
https://15B-2.10


F 

ORDINANCE ______________ HONOLULU CITY COUNCIL 
KE KANIHELA O KE KALANA O HONOLULU 

BILL 54 (2025), CD2 C I T Y  A N D  C O U N T Y  O F  H O N O L U L U  

A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE 

director of community services shall determine whether an applicant qualifies for 
the reduced transit fare within 60 days of receipt of the completed application, 
and the decision of the director of community services will be final. The 
determination of eligibility will remain in effect for the period from the date of 
approval through the ending of the fiscal year on June 30. 

(d) Eligible individuals may receive a city payment card programmed with [fares as 
follows: 

(1) A single ride fare of $1.25; 

(2) A daily maximum capped fare of $3; 

(3) A monthly maximum capped fare of $20; and 

(4) A prepaid fare of $45. 

The reduced fares specified in this subsection are not applicable for rides on the 
city paratransit system or for the special events service.] reduced fares as 
specified in § 15B-2.1. The eligible individual must use the programmed city 
payment card to pay the reduced fare for rides on the city bus and city rail 
system; provided that the reduced fare is not applicable when fares for special 
event services are charged or for rides on the city paratransit system. 

(e) The department of community services may adopt rules in accordance with HRS 
Chapter 91 to implement this section. 

[(f) Availability of this program is limited to a city subsidy of $1,500,000 per fiscal 
year, unless additional appropriations of general funds or noncity funds are 
approved.]" 

SECTION 4.  Section 15B-4.5, Revised Ordinances of Honolulu 2021 ("Fare"), is 
amended by amending subsection (b) to read as follows: 

"(b) Single fare. 

(1) Any person issued a paratransit eligibility identification card under § 15B-
4.3 and any person accompanying the ADA paratransit eligible individual 
shall pay a fare of [$2.25] $2.50 per person per one-way passenger trip 
either in cash, by coupon, or by city payment card programmed for the 

OCS2025-0779/9/24/2025 11:45 AM 7 



F 

ORDINANCE ______________ HONOLULU CITY COUNCIL 
KE KANIHELA O KE KALANA O HONOLULU 

BILL 54 (2025), CD2 C I T Y  A N D  C O U N T Y  O F  H O N O L U L U  

A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE 

paratransit fare, except as provided in § 15B-2.6. Revenues from the fare 
will be deposited into the transportation fund. 

(2) There is established herein a paratransit fare program for individuals with 
extremely low incomes as follows: 

(A) Individuals who have received an eligibility letter from the Social 
Security Administration for benefits under the Supplemental 
Security Income program are eligible for the reduced paratransit 
fare upon the presentation of the Supplemental Security Income 
eligibility letter to the department. 

(B) Individuals whose household incomes meet the United States 
Department of Housing and Urban Development guidelines for 
households with extremely low income within the city for the 
applicable household size, may also qualify for the reduced 
paratransit fare through application to the department of community 
services as provided hereinbelow: 

(i) The department of community services shall be responsible 
for the intake and processing of applications, determination 
of eligibility, and communication of an applicant's eligibility to 
the department; 

(ii) The application form must be prescribed and furnished by 
the director of community services; 

(iii) The director of community services may require proof of age, 
total household income, and household size, and proof may 
include but is not limited to true copies of personal income 
tax returns, bank statements, or other financial records; 

(iv) The director of community services may require 
authorization from the household to enable the director to 
fully verify household income; 

(v) The director of community services shall determine whether 
an applicant qualifies for the reduced transit fare within 60 
days of receipt of the completed application, and the 

OCS2025-0779/9/24/2025 11:45 AM 8 



F 

ORDINANCE ______________ HONOLULU CITY COUNCIL 
KE KANIHELA O KE KALANA O HONOLULU 

BILL 54 (2025), CD2 C I T Y  A N D  C O U N T Y  O F  H O N O L U L U  

A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE 

decision of the director of community services will be final; 
and 

(vi) The determination of eligibility will remain in effect for the 
period of one year. 

(C) Eligible individuals [shall] will receive a city payment card 
programmed with a paratransit fare cap of $2 for a one-way trip. 

(D) The department of community services may adopt rules in 
accordance with HRS Chapter 91 and having the force and effect of 
law to implement the paratransit fare program established by this 
subsection. 

(3) Any person to whom a current paratransit eligibility identification card has 
been issued under § 15B-4.3 [shall] will pay a single ride fare in 
accordance with § 15B-2.1 to ride a [transit] city bus or the city rail system, 
either by using a programmed city payment card or, for the city bus 
system, payment may also be made in cash upon display to the bus 
operator of the paratransit eligibility identification card; except that the 
single ride fare must not apply when a special event fare is charged under 
§ 15B-2.1." 

SECTION 5.  Ordinance material to be repealed is bracketed and stricken. 
New material is underscored. When revising, compiling, or printing this ordinance for 
inclusion in the Revised Ordinances of Honolulu, the Revisor of Ordinances need not 
include the brackets, the material that has been bracketed and stricken, or the 
underscoring. 

OCS2025-0779/9/24/2025 11:45 AM 9 



F 

ORDINANCE ______________ HONOLULU CITY COUNCIL 
KE KANIHELA O KE KALANA O HONOLULU 

BILL 54 (2025), CD2 C I T Y  A N D  C O U N T Y  O F  H O N O L U L U  

A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE 

SECTION 6.  This ordinance takes effect on January 1, 2026. 

INTRODUCED BY: 

Tommy Waters (br) 

DATE OF INTRODUCTION: 

July 22, 2025 
Honolulu, Hawaiʻi Councilmembers 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

Deputy Corporation Counsel 

APPROVED this    day of      , 20 . 

RICK BLANGIARDI, Mayor 
City and County of Honolulu 

OCS2025-0779/9/24/2025 11:45 AM 10 



 

Report Title:
Public Transit; lslandwide Fare Structure; Individuals with Extremely Low Income; Fare 
Structure Table; Deeply Discounted Fares; Special Reduced Term Fares; Special 
Single Ride Fares; TheHandi-Van, TheBus, Skyline; HOLO Card or City Payment Card; 
Paratransit Eligibility Identification Card Fares; Department of Transportation Services 
("DTS"); Oahu Transit Services, Inc. ("OTS") 

Description:
Amends certain provisions of ROH Chapter 15B related to the fare structure for Oahu's 
Multimodal Municipal Transportation System. Repeals and replaces the Fare Structure 
Table to, among other things, increase prices charged for certain passenger categories; 
incentivize the use of the HOLO card over cash fares; establish a combined reduced 
fare category for the following passengers: Senior Citizens who are not Hawaiʻi 
residents, Persons with Disability, Paratransit Eligibility ID Holders, Medicare 
cardholders, and Individuals with Extremely Low Income (provided that the reduced fare 
for the monthly pass and the annual pass are only eligible to passengers who are 
Hawaiʻi residents). Increases the price of the special reduced term seven-day pass.  
Authorizes the DTS to establish a special single ride fare for transportation to and from 
the Daniel K. lnouye International Airport. Authorizes the DTS to establish a cash only 
special events single ride fare for certain special events. Amends the fare amounts for 
individuals with extremely low incomes and repeals the appropriation cap on the 
availability of the program for individuals with extremely low incomes.  Increases the 
one-way passenger trip fare for any person issued a paratransit eligibility identification 
card and any person accompanying the ADA paratransit eligible individual. Takes effect 
on January 1, 2026. 

The summary description of legislation appearing on this page is for informational 
purposes only and is not legislation or evidence of legislative intent. 

OCS2025-0779/9/24/2025 11:45 AM 



 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

Office of the City Auditor 

City and County of 
Honolulu 

State of Hawai`i 

Report to the Mayor 
and the 

City Council of Honolulu 

Audit of the Skyline 
Operations 

Report No. 25-02 (Revised) 
February 2025 



Chapter 3: Accessibility and Safety Concerns Surrounding Skyline Stations 

 

       

          

         

         
       

 

        
        

         
          

         
        

   

         
       

        
             

         
       

 

Chapter 3
Accessibility and Safety Concerns Surrounding 
Skyline Stations 

Skyline stations provide accessible rail cars that meet design 
standards; however, the surrounding areas present significant 
safety and usability concerns that undermine the accessibility 
goals of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and local 
pedestrian access guidelines. Furthermore, DTS is responsible 
for the multimodal movement of people and goods on roadways 
which includes riders getting to and from surrounding areas 
including bus stops, pickup areas, and crosswalks. Observations 
conducted at Skyline stations revealed a variety of hazards, 
including trip hazards, poor sanitation, and insufficient 
infrastructure for individuals with disabilities. These issues not 
only pose safety risks but also increase potential liabilities for the 
city. To ensure equitable and safe transit access, the department 
should address the gaps in compliance and infrastructure 
surrounding these stations. 

Accessibility
Challenges Around 
Skyline Stations 

The areas surrounding Skyline stations exhibit several physical 
and sanitary hazards that endanger pedestrians and undermine 
accessibility. Trip hazards such as potholes, broken pipes, and 
uneven walkways were observed at five of the nine stations 
evaluated. These obstructions could potentially violate ADA 
standards, which mandate smooth, firm, and stable surfaces for 
individuals with mobility impairments. In addition to structural 
issues, sanitation concerns were also prevalent. 

Skyline stations are required to be accessible to and usable by 
persons with disabilities. Federal and state laws require the rail 
stations to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act 
Accessibility Guidelines (ADAAG). 

The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990 (P.L. 101-
336) prohibits discrimination against qualified individuals with 
disabilities in transportation services offered by public entities 
under Title II of the ADA and private entities under Title III of 
the ADA. This prohibition applies regardless of whether an entity 
receives Federal funding and it extends to “fixed-route” and 
“demand-responsive” transportation service. The ADA sets forth 
general requirements for transportation providers. 

39 



 

 

TYPES 01F 
HAZARD01US 

P'rntrudrn 
Pipe-s/Pole 

Chapter 3: Accessibility and Safety Concerns Surrounding Skyline Stations 

Exhibit 3.1 
Types of Hazardous Surfaces 

Sources: Office of the City Auditor and ADA Guidelines 

41 



         

 

 

 

ualakll· Kerui 'a Hono u Hti"ac·iat ~a~ H lil\llilnl W l.iw.i l.i!.!H H lllw.1 

~~i 
in/~ 

par ing 
'ii 'II refa n/ ' n/ai Vi/a " 

~ee, 

Loat,ing V 'Ii 'ii 'If " " fl " " 2,(iile 

I e~ -s~op 'I/ 'I/ rt/a ,, ,, " 
.,, 

" " I En'llraM:e v •,I' 'ii .,, .,, 
"' " " ,J 

IEm~ocy 
Elim 

v 11' 1J .,, 1' " " v " 
I 1%.eeio>sl 

lilou e-,s 
'I/ 'I/ ,,, .,, .,, 11 ,, 

' " 
I EIWoiiWf 'I/ 'I/ 'II ,, ,, 11 ·v " " 
I Oril'ltlng 

~rniilll 
110 no JlOl'fle !)tin l}(lfle" 

,, l'!Qflt: " rion 

olfet 
Not Net 

ko ~ 
Nat 

Nill ND 
.allowfd ~llowed ·wed 

0 

Room t dal'lt attendant atttodal"lt attcend t attertlt I attend.1111 
att lttt!S. aC!OOS.S 

Atitornattd 
Fare v 

Ven g 

S'!Wiem 

I Sleriase ' 'II '!J l/ ,, ,, 1 y ,J I 
I Boarding 

!?la form 
'I/ 'I/ ~ 

.,, "ii ,, ., 
" ,J I 

P'tlb'.lic: _J ,tldr;!lr,e~ "' "' " " 
\:'Ill 

Chapter 3: Accessibility and Safety Concerns Surrounding Skyline Stations 

Honolulu rail stations are required to be accessible to and usable 
by persons with disabilities by the ADAAG. 

The table below evaluates each station’s compliance with ADA 
guidelines. 

Exhibit 3.2 
ADA Guideline Checklist for Skyline Stations 

Source: ADA and Office of the City Auditor 

42 



           

           
         

              
          

         
  

 

         

 

         

 

        

 

Chapter 3: Accessibility and Safety Concerns Surrounding Skyline Stations 

A detailed table can be found in Appendix C. Although we 
found that areas immediately surrounding the rail stations are 
problematic, the Skyline stations generally complied with ADA 
guidelines. According to DTS management, toilet rooms are 
available for use if a rider asks the station attendant. However, 
while conducting fieldwork at three stations, we asked the 
attendant for access to the toilet room but was told that it was not 
available. Furthermore, one attendant at a station stated that no 
restrooms were available for use at any of the Skyline stations. As 
a result, we were unable to evaluate ADA accessibility for toilet 
rooms at each station. 

In addition, Skyline stations were designed with the following 
ADA accommodations: 

•	 Concourse level that provides convenient access to 
boarding platforms and allows safe crossing over the 
streets below 

•	 Braille signage with tactile raised letters in large-print 

•	 Audio announcements 

•	 Texture changes and tactile platform edges at gate 
openings 

•	 Directional and informational signage 

•	 Universal symbols and signs with text labels 

43 



 

 

 

~cy pillar at rail platform with bra.iHe 

Signap,atptes with tactile wamlna;strips on 
• .aroum:1 

Chapter 3: Accessibility and Safety Concerns Surrounding Skyline Stations 

Exhibit 3.3 
ADA Signage and Accommodations at Skyline Stations and Railcars 

Source: Office of the City Auditor 

44 



            
         

         

          

          

        
        

  

        

         

         
           

        

 

Chapter 3: Accessibility and Safety Concerns Surrounding Skyline Stations 

Walking Hazards, 
Graffiti, and 
other Barriers 
Compromise
Safety and Rider
Experience 

We found that 5 of 9 rail stations we reviewed featured trip 
hazards and potholes or graffiti. State guidelines on pedestrian 
access to transit stations and other federal agencies state that 
facilities should be free from such barriers. DTS has not addressed 
mitigating these barriers and has not sufficiently engaged the 
disabled community to identify public barriers. As a result, public 
safety is diminished and the city’s liability risk is increased. 

In addition to ADA requirements, the State of Hawai‘i’s guidelines 
on Pedestrian Access to Transit provides a summary of current 
best practices and design guidelines related to enhancing 
pedestrian access to transit. As a best practice, facilities within 
the right-of-way, such as sidewalks and pedestrian push 
buttons, should comply with the proposed Public Rights-of-Way 
Guidelines (PROWAG). 

During observations, human feces were documented near a 
bus stop at one station, creating serious public health risks. 
Furthermore, graffiti was observed at three stations, contributing 
to an environment that feels unsafe and uninviting for users. 

We conducted walkthroughs of all nine Skyline stations currently 
in operation. During our walkthroughs, we evaluated the 
surrounding areas (100 yards around the perimeter) of each 
station for trip hazards, graffiti, and vagrancy. We took photos to 
document potential violations and took note of any other issues 
we encountered. Exhibit 3.4 below summarizes our observations. 

45 



 

   

 

           

 

Chapter 3: Accessibility and Safety Concerns Surrounding Skyline Stations 

Exhibit 3.4 
Skyline Station Surrounding Area Assessment 

Kualaka`i Keone'ae Honouliuli Hō`ae`ae Pouhala Hālaulani Waiawa Kalauao Hālawa 

Are walkways 
surrounding rail 

station even, free 
from trip hazards 

and potholes? 

Yes Yes Yes No No Yes No No No 

Are there vagrants 
or homeless 
individuals 

surrounding rail 
station? 

No No No No No No No No No 

Is there graffiti 
surrounding the rail 

station? 
No No No Yes No No No Yes Yes 

Source: Office of the City Auditor 

At 5 of the 9 stations, we observed walkway hazards. The 
following table of photos documents these observations. 

46 



 

  

Uneven surface .levels sidewalk Brei.en pi~ out:sfdeof ~on 
(H6'a.a•aa;· w.t Loch) • (H6'a.a'ae,,: West Loch} 

unevart surface IMI onsfdewatk ·uneven surtece lewt on skt81#81k a brofcen pc,te 
(Pcvhat.a. W'afpahu Transitcentefl (Pouhata:- W.fpahu Ttarmlt Center) 

• Pothole attd loose &ravel on sidewalk outside station Uneven cracted &tdewalk fKatau&o·Station) 
Ckalauao Station> 

Chapter 3: Accessibility and Safety Concerns Surrounding Skyline Stations 

Exhibit 3.5 
OCA Observation of Surrounding Areas of Skyline Stations: Walkway Hazards 

Source: Office of the City Auditor 47 



         

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

Chapter 3: Accessibility and Safety Concerns Surrounding Skyline Stations 

We did not observe any vagrancy or homelessness surrounding 
the stations on the day of our observation. However, we did 
observe human feces near one of the bus stops connected to the 
Skyline station. 

Exhibit 3.6 
Feces Near Bus Stop and Skyline Station 

Human Feces on sidewalk under station (Hō’ae’ae, West Loch) 
Source: Office of the City Auditor 

Because safety is a top priority for Skyline, the department should 
address	these	hazards.	The	failure	to	address	sidewalk	hazards	 
including potholes, broken pipes, and unsanitary conditions could 
have	consequences	for	the	city	including	legal	liability,	fines	and	 
penalties,	and	insurance	claims.	These	hazards	could	violate	a	 
combination of ADA regulations, pedestrian safety codes, and 
right-of-way	maintenance	standards,	all	of	which	are	aimed	at	 
ensuring the safety, accessibility, and usability of public spaces 
for everyone. To avoid any potential risks to the city should make 
improvements to areas around the stations and bus stops. 

According to DTS, the department is only responsible for 
design, maintenance, and amenities for Skyline rail stations. 
Responsibility for areas surrounding the rail stations are under 
other	city	and	state	jurisdictions.	While	we	acknowledge	 
DTS’	direct	responsibility	over	rail	stations,	nevertheless,	the	 
department	touts	its	multi-modal	transportation	system	that	 
requires riders to seamlessly, and safely, transfer between rail 
stations, bus stops, paratransit locations, and parking structures. 

48 



          
        

       

        
       

       
           

           

       

             

      

        

       

        

 

        

        
         

        
    

 

Chapter 3: Accessibility and Safety Concerns Surrounding Skyline Stations 

Lack of stakeholder 
engagement 

Disparities between station 
design and surrounding 
areas 

A critical factor contributing to these deficiencies is the lack 
of ongoing input from the disability and mobility-impaired 
community. While stakeholders were consulted during Skyline’s 
planning phase, advocacy groups have not been engaged for over 
two years. This absence of participation has limited opportunities 
to identify and address accessibility barriers during the post-
design and construction phases. Without consistent stakeholder 
input, the city risks overlooking key considerations that would 
ensure the usability and safety of the station environments. 

We interviewed representatives from two disability advocacy 
groups in Honolulu, Citizens for a Fair ADA Ride (CFADAR) and 
the Hawai’i Disability Rights Center, and found that the city did 
not include their participation or input for over two years. One 
group has not been able to participate or give input on behalf 
of the disability community since 2020. The other group has not 
been able to participate or give input since the planning phase of 
Skyline. Input from the disabled mobility-impaired community 
is important to ensure that public transportation is accessible, 
safe, and equitable for all users. It not only helps to identify and 
eliminate barriers, enhances safety, fosters inclusivity, and ensures 
compliance with legal standards, it also created an opportunity to 
include innovation and build trust with a key user group. Skyline 
should uphold a standard to provide transportation services that 
benefits everyone, regardless of their abilities. 

While the station interiors include essential ADA features—such 
as tactile Braille signage, audio announcements, and tactile 
platform edges—these accommodations are not extended to 
the surrounding areas. Sidewalks and pathways leading to the 
stations are often hazardous and non-compliant with ADA 
guidelines, creating accessibility gaps. This disparity between the 
accessible station design and unsafe surrounding infrastructure 
creates obstacles for users, particularly individuals with mobility 
impairments. 

As Constructed, 
the Pearl Highland
Waiawa Station 
Poses Pedestrian 
Risks 

We interviewed disability advocacy groups to identify any 
risk areas of accessibility using Skyline. One of the groups we 
interviewed, CFADAR, partnered with a mobility travel group 
who took a group of visually impaired individuals to ride 
Skyline. The group experienced difficulties navigating around the 
Waiawa Station and documented their experience. The group also 
identified suggested improvements for the issues encountered, as 
shown and stated below: 

49 



 

 

on me way from me Sktffon cowara Pean 
~ C9mar, fbao. wai'klWt)f W'U mJC 
~ even ro rhiit· faCflM wam,ng -1P .at t.M 

ramp; we did ftave cne ~ tJI our 
9R)U;p:.tallat~PfJfl'lt, 

~...,.~cans titocll:hl9.rtJe. 
sld9wa#lc - lfNrr"8 was no ot1rer':1oc::a!fcn• 

move tftem tpb:e :ouroi rile way . 

. A~ffie ranu>, Che~ i, ~ 
CO locate• 18ft tum to lfKI r-illHd ctGS5~ 

lhl,re.Js. no tacii. indkadan to do·,lfa; ffil:r 
~~INd•~ MIO.lsb#lnd 
.Of' bW YISlon.CO ~mey·.slN:,lrUkl}ust 
eafJffnue_,.~ anct ffW)'WDUld entirefy 
nvsstbe·~;,nd~uplnan.wsa-
wtwe ~ a,e not intended to 

nvel.. 

7acrlte dhcdM lmtk:atols (&Q. ~ 
tilftsJ ..a¢d.,. rietp,w ........ 

Chapter 3: Accessibility and Safety Concerns Surrounding Skyline Stations 

Exhibit 3.7 
Photos and Description of Issue Areas around Waiawa Pearl Highlands Station 

50 



 

Same~--·~~ at .. ~ I.wt ... 
~Who 1s dMI ~ O!llindwotdd MW no 
~ l'Oflle~~M~.A • 

~W()Uldbe~bul-------· 
• ~·NfhlHN!ft. •• 

Alhw msldnpflNI ht~afkir ltiiltJ•~ 
~ ... ~tctdbt:xlffl·d:tiwf•~ 

MW him,-, ~.MWI ID .. ilfl:fflg f p#llltNd 
• • ....... . 

A~ MN 1"1'n ~ on Md:t ~ 
wuuifJMherilpful. • 

Just to.flffd ~~llttla 
PolMi ,_,. rsa.Goagllt Maps·~ 
........ ~pain that~ 
musrwafk.roger .to ttlfl! ~ C9ltCWr 
~ ac:mss .ticlrffl ,,_~ 

w w w " 

Chapter 3: Accessibility and Safety Concerns Surrounding Skyline Stations 

51 



 

 

Om:ethe1"-"·""'8t:bed1CuafitSl1Nt dNt)' 
~~-.rno,e~ w-.e h 

(Jt(J(ir to rfi!Ch tnesldeol ..... blodt wfJerG 
P..tHlgllllnds~lllocatc. 

TIHiMfnl'Op(b, H'llfflS COlli',11~ 
~ MJich WMillpQtted to 1:111 an idUlf 

palttdltil:de~prNIJUIWN • 

ramawd tram ... ~-­
~ hOJ)l'ng Mat an(\'..,,,. ,,_..,or 

o,wte,:.salet)ttO("~Apennanant 
--mapal!he,~ .-.uta ~me.I 
~-~f<Jf"tm!prallffftime, 
~·widi~~..., 

(wftha~ atKI ~-tactflt~tionJ 
1h11 ht:htdltlocittQrk!MS:fO!aldfM 

w w " w " w w w w 

~ ~It.~ Me~ 
• wm,1aw rislanornon~· • 

0-~~.--mo.~• 
btdalb'k~fhatffiOllildJ.OAl!l\ltdad 
--~QtUIO:.lim,pfypu,.ft fftil~ 

~---f.Jril::e. ,.,_.N'O~ lf'9ll'!W)'" 

Sim/lattr:,11~ ~IID!ifnd: tlkt ~b0:11'. 
COUid ... Jemlstlnn IOt,.. itfcnrrildon MX. 

A~ fftaUs,,,.,,._~ 
~.~llae~U,.t~h 

dilltfbltt«fto~GfOCIPS r.4w~ 
ot.~Couni:ifO,tlN,~~ 

~oftlle·~·~~~ 
11':!0A wt,o.M'.9M1dMWl _.\ltfiQn.t,.,; .Glald,,~ 
of~.-~ .... ~. 

~·""-.,.llrthfatlid:low~t&,­
~~krrlN!...,,~d 
HumM~tDHSIDM'd:mol'~ 
~ to,m» WOUid~~ TIie 

~c:adde.rp/ilm1ftl!l! faalm'll!ldffM,~ 

~to--. .,.,.,lllndldaN;. ·~ 

Chapter 3: Accessibility and Safety Concerns Surrounding Skyline Stations 

Source: Sensory Travel 

52 



         
        

        
        

        
     

     

        

    

 

 

             
         

        
           

 

W~U>~.~UN!N'110!l$•pro-~. 
Mii!llk.~'#'or aDOU'l' .30 ~ ~ .....,.~ .af • 

-..-.d. 

Chapter 3: Accessibility and Safety Concerns Surrounding Skyline Stations 

On August 2, 2023, the O‘ahu Metropolitan Planning Organization 
Citizens Advisory Committee passed and adopted a resolution 
urging the Honolulu Authority for Rapid Transportation, 
the State Department of Transportation, and the City and 
County of Honolulu Department of Transportation Services 
to prioritize and expedite the installation of comprehensive 
pedestrian infrastructure at the Waiawa Pearl Highlands station 
at Kamehameha Highway, including a fully protected pedestrian 
crossing, in an effort to: 

• Prevent pedestrian fatalities and serious injuries 

• Address community concerns for the safety of all, 
including the blind and/or disabled 

• Encourage use of public transit by addressing the 
needs of pedestrians frequenting the rail station 

During our own observation, we observed the following at the 
Pearl Highland Waiawa Station. 

Exhibit 3.8 
OCA Observation of Waiawa Pearl Highlands Station 

Source: Office of the City Auditor 

As of March 2024, the city was awarded $19 million to build the 
Pearl Highland Waiawa Station Pedestrian Bridge. The project was 
not listed in Honolulu’s Capital Improvement Program Budget 
for FY 2025. The city should urgently complete the bridge and 
walkway improvements to ensure that Skyline riders at the station 
are safe and to decrease the risks of any pedestrian accidents 
occurring around the station involving Skyline riders who are 
going to and from surrounding areas. 

53 



        
         

         

          

  

       

     

      
      

 

Chapter 3: Accessibility and Safety Concerns Surrounding Skyline Stations 

According to DTS, regular work performed by DTS includes 
cleaning and clearing of paths, vegetation, and landscape, and 
fixing and improving paths including stairways, walkways, and 
ramps. While Skyline stations generally include design features to 
accommodate individuals with disabilities, the surrounding areas 
fall short of providing safe and accessible transit environments. 
We encourage DTS to ameliorate their routine work and 
coordinate with the necessary agencies to ensure the safe 
multimodal movement of people throughout their multimodal 
network. Addressing these challenges requires a combination of 
infrastructure improvements, consistent stakeholder engagement, 
and adherence to compliance standards. Proactive measures will 
enhance the safety, equity, and usability of the Skyline system, 
fulfilling the city’s commitment to accessible public transit for all. 

Recommendations DTS should: 

1. Prioritize repairs to sidewalks, potholes, and pipes, 
and implement regular maintenance to address 
hazards and ensure ADA compliance. 

2. Reestablish regular consultations with disability 
advocacy groups to ensure improvements meet 
mobility needs and enhance transit safety. 

3. Periodically evaluate station surroundings for ADA 
and Hawai‘i accessibility guidelines, using metrics 
to identify and address issues. 

4. Expedite construction of the Pearl Highland 
Waiawa Station pedestrian bridge to eliminate 
critical accessibility barriers. 

54 



Chapter 5: Conclusion and Recommendations 

   

 
 

   

 
 

 
 

 
  

 

 

  
 

 
 

 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Chapter 5
Conclusion and Recommendations 

Conclusion In	 the	 first	six	months	of	operation,	Skyline	achieved	a	99.2	percent	 
reliability rate. Despite this achievement, ridership has fallen short 
of	expectations.	Several	factors,	including	limited	service	area	 
coverage,	inadequate	operating	hours,	and	insufficient	integration	 
with	other	transportation	modes,	attributed	to	a	 44 percent	decline	 
in ridership from July 2023 to December 2023. Solo drivers have 
disproportionally shorter travel times than public transportation 
commuters.	In	our	review	of	peer	transit	systems,	Skyline’s	social	 
media	campaigns	have	been	less	effective.	As	a	result,	Skyline	 
missed opportunities for collaboration with local events and 
businesses.	In	our	survey	of	100	Skyline	riders, we found that 
although	the	 system received positive overall feedback, concerns 
regarding the need	for	extended	operating	hours,	limited	payment	 
options,	and	insufficient	station	amenities	persists.	 As	the	system	 
expands	and	 more stations are brought online, these challenges 
highlight the need for strategic changes to improve ridership and 
enhance the system’s	overall	performance.	 

While	Skyline	stations	meet	and	exceed	 ADA	guidelines	and	 
requirements,	surrounding	areas	present	significant	concerns	 
for	safety	and	usability.	We	observed	a	variety	of	impediments	 
including	trip	hazards,	poor	sanitation,	and	insufficient	 
infrastructure	for	disabled	individuals.	The	department’s	 
responsibilities are not limited to compliance on railcars and in 
stations, but also include the seamless multimodal movement 
of people and goods of surrounding areas including bus stops, 
pickup	areas,	and	crosswalks.	The	hazards	we	identified	in	this	 
report pose safety risks and increase potential liabilities for the 
city. Addressing the gaps in compliance and infrastructure is 
crucial to ensure equitable and safe transit access. 

Title	VI	of	the	Civil	Rights	 Act	of	1964	prohibits	discrimination	 
based	on	national	origin,	including	limited	English	proficiency,	 
in any federally funded program. The department is obligated 
to ensure equitable access for all individuals, but falls short in 
providing	comprehensive	multi-language	resources.	Unlike	 
TheBus	and	TheHandi-van,	DTS	did	not	include	multi-language	 
information	on	Skyline	when	changes	were	made	to	existing	 
bus	routes,	which	were	used	significantly	by	limited	English	 
proficiency	individuals.	As	a	result	of	not	having	multi-language	 
information and resources, barriers to riding Skyline increased 
and	those	individuals	may	have	difficulty	utilizing	Skyline. 

69 



  

        

         
       

       

 

         

        
      

        

      

       
     

        
       

       

       

 

Chapter 5: Conclusion and Recommendations

Recommendations DTS should: 

1. Offer service amenities similar to other jurisdictions and 
best practices to increase ridership and public satisfaction. 

2. Collaborate with events that can utilize Skyline and the 
city’s multimodal system, and coordinate with those 
already promoting Skyline to enhance public awareness 
through shared communication channels. 

3. Offer other methods of payment including payments 
via mobile phone or HOLO card app to address gaps in 
supply and demand of physical cards and increase rider 
experience. 

4. Expand social media efforts to target core and untapped 
demographics through tailored campaigns across various 
platforms to increase engagement. 

5. Conduct regular surveys to understand community needs, 
improve service equity, and demonstrate the value of 
public input. 

6. Develop and implement a system that meaningful access 
to persons that have Limited English Proficiency on 
Skyline including but not limited to: 

• Multi-language signage at stations and on trains 

• Multi-language accessibility on Skyline’s webpages 

• Multi-language resources for Skyline and intermodal 
connectivity with TheBus and TheHandi-van 

7. Prioritize repairs to sidewalks, potholes, and pipes, and 
implement regular maintenance to address hazards and 
ensure ADA compliance. 

8. Reestablish regular consultations with disability advocacy 
groups to ensure improvements meet mobility needs and 
enhance transit safety. 

9. Periodically evaluate station surroundings for ADA and 
Hawai’i accessibility guidelines, using metrics to identify 
and address issues. 

10. Expedite construction of the Pearl Highland Waiawa 
Station pedestrian bridge to eliminate critical accessibility 
barriers. 70 



 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  

 

Chapter 5: Conclusion and Recommendations 

Management
Response 

The	Department	of	Transportation	(DTS)	provided	a	written	 
response	to	a	draft	of	this	audit	report.	In	their	letter,	DTS	 
provided	general	comments	in	response	to	the	findings	and	 
recommendations.	We	are	 including the	following	response	to	two	 
of	the	department’s	comments. 

The department disagrees with our methodology that includes 
ridership	from	its	four	fare-free	days	in	July	2023	when	calculating	 
ridership,	stating	that	it	is	fundamentally	different	and	cannot	be	 
meaningfully compared with ridership from December 2023. The 
department does not consider the 44 percent ridership decrease as	 
a	credible	metric.	We	acknowledge	the	four	fare-free	days	 
and notate it in the report accordingly. However, we maintain 
the	inclusion	of	the	four-fare	free	days	in	our	ridership	review	 
is appropriate because our audit period was from July 2023 to 
December	2023	and	withholding	the	four	fare-free	days	from	 
our review would not provide a complete and accurate picture. 
Furthermore,	we	acknowledge	that	the	fare-free	days	were	 
effective	in	increasing	community	interest	and	ridership,	measures	 
that we recommend the department continue to pursue in order to 
meet its operational goals. 

The department disagrees that the site conditions depicted 
in	the	audit’s	accessibility	finding	are	under	DTS	control	or	 
management.	The	department	explains	that	they	do	not	have	 
control over all the surrounding areas around Skyline stations, 
but	to	the	extent	possible	they	strive	to	comply,	meet,	and	exceed	 
ADA	standards	and	guidelines.	While	we	understand	that	 
surrounding area jurisdiction may be in question, we stand by 
our	finding	as	DTS	is	responsible	for	the	multimodal	movement	 
of	people	and	goods	on	roadways	which	includes	riders	getting	 
to and from key access areas including bus stops, pickup areas, 
and crosswalks. The department should coordinate with other 
agencies, including the State, to ensure that Skyline and its 
stations, including surrounding areas, are fully accessible for all 
riders. 

We	also	made	technical,	non-substantive	amendments	to	the	 
report for purposes of accuracy, clarity, and style. A copy of 
management’s	full	response	can	be	found	on	page	 72. 

71 



 

IEPARTME!NiT OF TRA!NSPQR.TATllOJilJI SERVi CES 
KA "OIHAN'A tA~AW6 'OHUA 

CITY AND OOUNTY·OF HONOLULU 
711 K,QlrCUNJ !Dlll..EYMD, :!llllil'E 1!00 • H'1Kll.WJ, HAMlil 8 1 

Pll:xl,a: !Ill!!<) 7M'm6 , FU (e!l8j 7M-l:13!). WW;lll'a: ~p:n: 

RlCIU!LA'IIIGllliRD1 LROOERl!DfJON 
!!INC'ICII 

~ 11'00 

JCW '1". IDllcili 
l!JUtll'l'l!N:C'l-«1111 

~11!00 " 

Troy $him3$aki; Acting City .Auditor 
Offj0e of ltle City Audita-
10011 Kanakiai Bouls-vardl, Suite 2116 
Ka;polei, Hawai~ 967'07 

SUBJ -CT; Man~ent R~se to l:tB C!nrrt Report Audit of 
lhe Skylile OJ)erat~ , Rspcrt IN'o.. 2:5',.02; February 
2025 

On f d lhe Depmment of Traisporta,tim Services (OT'St lhvoo 11 , tolhan 
you for Uw q,polltl,l'lity to prow:te departmen cariments on lh.e .Audt of Sk~e Opwatioos1 

Re~ 2'5,,00, from February 20-25., DT-S nt'iil'i8wed lhis draft; andl provid • die folOl'ili1g ~~ 
comments in 18tPOf1$8t i> ttie repat 

11. Bidmtip 
The report ndes on P89" t5, 17, 28. aid 29 a d~ntase in ri~ d 77 per-cent ~en 
oomparin9 monthly rider_,., ffllXll1S frnm1 lhe fht month oflhe study (JtJy 2023) tQ the 
la3t mmth of the &rudry (December 2023'). S~1 openin9; coo,menoirQ !,\ith four days 
of flH fan!$ ariltl$$ Honokl u•s ir'ar1$it system1 ind.lding ~ne, Thdu:I, aid 1-1\andi-Van, 
was JJU]p0$8{uly designed to aUrad Int-time riders andl siJooessttlly brnught62,789 
~ to Sk}line.. DT-S W'a$ plea1[11ed to w-emme pa$$ena- aboardl Skylin:e1 on these 
l'l gh-ridentiip dl&ys to not only celebrate lhe cpening of O;Jr ral system, bUt aJso to 
e~ re$dertls to Skyline. As sudi Mt arll:icipa,ted huge, oomm ly il~t in1 0U'" 

opening of Sk)tine tl'lrougl,1 four fare-fl8e dl&l!S andl the r8SllJlt Wli$ u e-~l. 

1-tcM,veri oomparirg ridmh., d mg lhe rour fare-lree days in July 2023 Yiith ridership 
in December 2013 is an "aprjes to orangH"' me:1rio1 m.eaning a 00111i1p-arison1 betY.fin1 two 
things ltlat are f - damentalt!,: diliferent andl cannot be meaninefu 'I oompantdl 
dndty. O'ah1,11 ~dents oontilued toexperienm Skytin:e ta the i'st mrie lh~out 
the summer of 2023. DT-S; reoog ~ng the scope d yoor sturl:y W8$ a, y for tt'le first six 
months of operations ~ July and December d 2023, nde-$ an1 118 percent year­
t'NB"-year increase, in rid'er$tip men comparirg lleoemberof 2023 to December-of 
ID-24: 85;460 pas$1mg~ in1 DecembB' d 2023 oon-paredl to Ul0,9.M in Deatmbe" of 
202.•t Ttlis meiric is far mom indcatiite1 of ltle sy$tem1s cl11181'1t peffomnance e-muding1 
~ fare.he IJIBl'\'iee days. Simply put ttie 77 pero8flt rid'et$~ dme-ase in the awn 
is not a c;lredible metric when in.duding1 the faf8:al'r8e canpoosnt duig edl to slimu te 
in·· pubk interest in lhe new Skyti'le system" 

Chapter 5: Conclusion and Recommendations

72 



 

T!i'Oy Shimasa -,, Acil'ng City Aiudlfor 
Febru-a-ry 21 , 2025 
P:age2 

2. secyhpe, §pan 
Oii1 jXlge 15 of u, report, ' 1 • , ifed servk:e hcru • ." is attrfb red to th _ , :port"s sugg,es,ted 
rldefti ip, de oo and • ffiH a "need fur ext,erKMd operating iloure.. OTS ~9rees that 
inc11 _ ing .service, s-~ Ott Sky ·M wi I . • u1lt n, ·oore.a.l!;;ed lid8rnhip an OTS • as plans 
t.c1 extend ~rvtoe spail from ~oo, am t,o 10:30 pm d: ~y 1J,J)l)n: ilh . o_penmg1 o • the seoooo 
Skyilime eeg ent to Ka'lini in 2025., lhe e rM'l'rt scheduled - oof g time of Sk~l"ne, at 
7:00 pm daib' Is; based on e>!iisi ·fl9 afld hlst03'[~ data lnformed by• our Trn;,,eius, 
ridesl'$hij), DifS an:al~d data. ·from TheSus para II J ,opc:r.mng ccrridors sl\i'~ 1:11 Kapo1ei 
a di H~~ nd determined a si9rmicam: drop i_. ricklrst, p density fD:l lowing the 7:00 pm 
hour o all s_ervjce . Thereto.re, tile cu:n'f!nt so · ed led err_ tlm of Skyline al 7:00 pm I_ 
a promive ,ecoriomic d.ecisir;m to 1i.ttilize itanslt rundirlg ill fhe ost effic.ie:m: way posa • e .. 
M is also, , fiscally tre$po;n$ibfe position i 1ne lbeG't il"ltilresf of a11 laxp:a(!fel'$. Afte;r 
7:00 pm th .· oomdor pamlle ing SkyJine is slill aerv d by major TheBus R,OQ.J(e , 32, 40,, 
4,2:, 51 , srrid 53; adding eXilta SkyJlne. ssl'll'ice to Olis exislfng bl.ls, oolil'f.dcw would 6Mrea6$ 
,cos,ts exte:MIVB1¥ vdth li lUe irncrease in growing potential rid'erehlp. 

9. Seryl:ce oaa • ¥ 
DTS appreic:la:~s. 11:ie reoognnron of Sky. r,a's 99·.2. pemoent q:,;erat1i:r al ·performance 
rming • • ~ge 15,, and notes that Skyline p _ rfOfmad to a high 8tand~ld and aOhevedi a 
lt'!gher sucoess rate ltlan .any of ttte fflght (8) peer ra' $y:Sterns identilled In. ·Iha audit 

4. _s~-ylioe ,ccumparedJQJn.aus-py pears 
I Exhibit 2.5, .a'IJonal Comparis,on of Rall r~.!l' SyBtem Feature~ Of! page ~ OiS 
notBS ~h • t St<yl' - dQes, rovide access to key d1;;1s.uootlons ·,tdlui:iin, two, Unwerrsi )f of 
Hal V campuses al We&t O'ah1.1 ,and Leeward Commurlrt:Y College ai well .as 1!'!9gl al 
retaill es~nallo s; sl.Klll ,as, Perunige Center. OTS q estions whelher the report's, 

elusron of apeoiflc key de<eU • lions p ·ri:ca ly related to, lhe "a1rpoJ1, WaikM, UH 
Miini::;ca, a • d. dowrrtown Hor1oh111JJ" $11:oo x:I be incil.ildedl In ·lhf:s; -po:rt and aud o 
opetali _ - . Th . ava1taNe g1.1ideway and d~ aootrs of • &)'!item are fu11otiotii;, or 
planning, pdicy, co~nuotion 'fimelirles., ai'ild budg er Ulan tled w, DT'S operation· 
and OV!llrs~'h of the Y*m. T,o note, Skyi 1ne's: isec()rld seg em wi I s.ei\'l! k~y 
deslina'tilorrs, su:ch a,s Joint aa • Pea~ Haiibar-Hick:am and ·ihe Daniel, K lnoLqe 
lnlemat:ional ,. port, bm this ,curretl'llY pa~ ·tulme !Segment ltsou_~ no be oonamtecl 
as ia, ·ault ~a/Ins DTS,' ,operatiom1, • is ,Blmp y ot CQnslrucied • • cl ,oomrnlssioned :al 1 is 
~m , and i 1111ot: avai -t;te to DTS as part of ~r ~n!"il operaUo • s and maintena ee 
pu 1Lew, 

5. M,ri<etjng and Prom.crtloo.s 
On page, :26, ors appreciates the 8~ l)'Alle~gm nt that DTS pro , d ll!!lf.g oomrnl.!Jlitt/ 
events vmh s~n ·e ;aooe&S to lntrnauce ride s to lte s.~em. To the e•nt possib:I~. w:e 
·wi ,e~~ . .age Sky ·ne use for as. many eve.,ts, as appraprlate, .:dang Irie aL ·nment. For 
same on e~ eld!, we were w,able ·fo P!"OWde an ·adeq; at ·service spitJl ,di.r ·ns 
rta,~. au<fl period to m.ak,e tJ'he, system usable fo ·sped.fie eirerrts. Wiil,h o ·second 
openlf'flll, we· iniill be b~ Ki :aoco odate much lat_ 1rlps beyom:I the current 7:00 ptr1 
closl!re o.f Skylrrre. We we c:ome N\e oppcmul'li ,y to meet .. th tM audit -team to fe-!i_ Ii! 
:tIDw' we· can avofdl future "miasedl oppolit\.! 'ties t,o 1 • i:.rease def:Sh and up to • 26, 31 • 
,addtiona1 revenue." 

Chapter 5: Conclusion and Recommendations 

73 



 

 

Chapter 5: Conclusion and Recommendations

Troy Shimasaki, Acting City Auditor 
February 21, 2025 
Page 3 

6.ooSocial Mediaoo
DTS acknowledges ourosocial media presenceois smaller than peers documented inothisoo
report on page 33. We will strive to increase social media following with promoted
content, creative media,oand thoughtful and insightful posts. We note that we are aoo
Department of Transportation Services, as part of a City administration. Our rail peersoo
operate their social media as a focused platform specifically for the mode of rail. DTSoo
Will investigate the impact of having alternate social media accountsofor ouroo
transportationomodes. Additionally, all of the metropolitan areas areomore populated andoo
have older,owell-established rail services as their follower base. We anticipate growingoo
our social mediaopresence to a comparable level following our first six months of Skylineoo
operations.oo

7.ooAccessibility
DTS provides clarification that we do not have site control over allothe "surroundingo
areas" around Skylineostations,obut,oto theoextent possible, strive toocomply, meet, andoo
exceed ADAostandards and guidelines on and around alloof ourotransit services. Onoo
pageo39 in Exhibit 3.1, Types of Hazardous Surfaces, DTSonotes thatotheolabels on theoo
photos do not, for the most part, depict actual hazards. There are no "rocky surfaces,"oo
"protrudingopipes/poles," or "potholes" in the pictures as labeled. The "uneven surface"oo
indicated is also not part of the walking path, which appears to be broad, smooth, and
accessible. Onopage 45, in Exhibit 3.5, OCA Observation of Surrounding Areas of 
Skyline Stations: Walkway Hazards, none of the site conditionsodepicted areounder DTSoo
control or management. Many are on State rights-of-way; additionally, the "Unevenoo
crackedosidewalk" is erroneously attributed to Kalauao Pearl ridge Station instead of the
Halawa Aloha Stadium Station.oo

8.ooRecommendationsoo
DTS will review all recommendations provided in this report from the Office of the Cityoo
Auditor and strive towardsoimplementation and improvement of our Skyline operations.oo

DTS appreciates and respects the City Auditor's collaborative approachothroughout 
this audit process. Mahala nui for providing your insights and this opportunity to respond to this 
Report. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call me at (808) 768-8303. 

Veryt;jY yours,oo

t,.16v!A. 
J.oRoger Morton
Director Designateoo

APPROVED: 

/ Michael D. Formby, Managing Director Designate 
Office of the Managing Director 

74 



DTS appreciates�the concerns raised by the Disability and Communication Access Board 
(DCAB) regarding restroom access and related ADA compliance issues at Skyline stations.��
We offer the following response to clarify policy, compliance obligations, and steps��
forward.��

1.�Restroom Access and ADA Compliance��

It is important to note that the ADA does not require transit agencies to provide public��
restroom facilities at rail stations. Many�large commuter rail systems on the US continent 
—�including MBTA (Boston), Caltrain (San Francisco Bay Area), and Metra (Chicago)—do 
not offer public restrooms. Some other large agencies provide public restrooms only at key 
rail stations and transfer points.��

While Skyline is a relatively short line today, following the opening�of Segment 2 on October 
16, 2025, we will notify�riders of the availability of fully accessible public restrooms located 
at the Kalihi Transit Center at Middle Street, where facilities are open without the need for��
staff access. We note that publicly available restrooms are also available at the Airport. We 
will soon begin construction on the Kalauao Mobility Hub at Pearlridge which will include 
restrooms with open public access integrated with TheBus and other transportation 
modes.��

At all other Skyline stations, restrooms remain available for urgent or emergency situations.��
These restrooms are ADA compliant. Access is provided with the assistance of�a station 
attendant or security guard. To avoid misunderstandings, we will work with our contractor��
to reinstruct staff not to describe these facilities as�“not public,” but rather to emphasize 
their availability in urgent circumstances for riders.��

2.�Access for Individuals Who Are Blind or Low Vision��

The ADA does not require the installation of dedicated restroom call buttons. Each Skyline��
station is already equipped with information call boxes at entrances, which connect riders��
to our Skyline Operations Control Center (OCC) for assistance. These devices provide a��
consistent and uniform�means of access and are available to all passengers, including��
individuals with disabilities.��

3.�Fragrance Sensitivity��

The ADA does not prohibit the use of scented products. However, in recognition of the 
concerns raised, we will ask our operations�contractor to consider�the use of fragrance-free��



or low-scent cleaning and air-freshening products wherever possible,�and to discourage 
staff from adding personal scented supplies in restrooms. At this�time, we are not aware of 
a documented case where an individual with a�disability has filed a complaint�specific to 
Skyline restroom fragrance use. Nevertheless, we agree that prudent management 
includes reducing potential barriers, and we will continue to monitor this issue.��

4.�Moving Forward��

Our overall policy remains that restrooms at Skyline stations are available for urgent use by 
all passengers, including elderly passengers, persons with disabilities, and families��
traveling with small children. Station have been reminded and instructed that customer 
service must be a priority and that responses to restroom requests should be courteous��
and consistent with this policy. Following inauguration of the new service, we will 
determine whether the Kahauiki Kalihi Transit Center and the Lelepaua HNL Airport station��
provide sufficient restroom coverage to riders.�We are willing to discuss a special situation 
at the Āhua Lagoon Drive station which will be the temporary transfer point between major��
bus lines and Skyline. If there is significant demand for�restroom accommodation, we will 
consider the deployment of a restroom attendant at this station. It is not possible to 
provide a similar accommodation at all stations as this would result in an undue financial��
or administrative burden when other alternatives were available.��

We believe this approach balances ADA compliance, public service, and operational 
realities. We remain open to further dialogue with DCAB to ensure Skyline remains 
accessible and inclusive to all riders.��

Respectfully,��

Jon Y. Nouchi |�Deputy Director, Department�of Transportation 
Services�| City and County of Honolulu��
address�711 Kapiʻolani Boulevard, Suite 1600 |�city�Honolulu | 
state�Hawaii | zip�96813��
phone�808.768.8302 |�mobile�808.306.0649 |�email��

jnouchi@honolulu.gov��

mailto:jnouchi@honolulu.gov


U.S. Department 
of Transportation 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

The Office of Civil Rights 

ADA Complementary 
Paratransit 

Specialized Review 

Draft Report 

City and County of Honolulu, 
Department of Transportation Services 

October 2025 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

T
h

is
 p

a
g
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 in

te
n

tio
n

a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n

k
 to

 fa
c
ilita

te
 d

u
p

le
x
 p

rin
tin

g
 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

T
a

b
le

 o
f C

o
n

te
n

ts
 

I. E
x
e

c
u
tiv

e
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 .................................................................................................................1

 

II. G
e

n
e

ra
l In

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 ................................................................................................................2

 

III. J
u

ris
d
ic

tio
n

 a
n
d

 A
u
th

o
ritie

s
 ....................................................................................................4

 

IV
. P

u
rp

o
s
e

 a
n
d

 O
b

je
c
tiv

e
s

.........................................................................................................6
 

V
. In

tro
d
u

c
tio

n
 to

 C
ity

 a
n
d

 C
o
u

n
ty

 o
f H

o
n
o

lu
lu

, D
e

p
a

rtm
e

n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 .............8

 

V
I. S

c
o

p
e

 a
n

d
 M

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 ......................................................................................................1

0
 

V
II. R

e
p
o

rt F
o
rm

a
t ....................................................................................................................1

6
 

V
III. F

in
d
in

g
s

.............................................................................................................................1
7
 

1
. G

e
n
e

ra
l N

o
n
d

is
c
rim

in
a

tio
n

.................................................................................................1
8
 

2
. S

e
rv

ic
e

 R
e
fu

s
a
l D

u
e

 to
 R

id
e
r C

o
n
d

u
c
t...............................................................................2

0
 

3
. A

D
A

-R
e

la
te

d
 C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

...................................................................................................2
2
 

4
. S

e
rv

ic
e

 U
n
d

e
r C

o
n
tra

c
t .....................................................................................................2

3
 

5
. V

e
h
ic

le
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e
, A

c
q

u
is

itio
n
, a

n
d

 A
c
c
e

s
s
ib

ility
 ..........................................................2

4
 

6
. T

ra
n
s
p

o
rt o

f W
h

e
e
lc

h
a

ir U
s
e

rs
 ..........................................................................................2

8
 

7
. L

ift/R
a
m

p
 a

n
d

 S
e

c
u
re

m
e

n
t U

s
e

.........................................................................................3
0
 

8
. P

e
rs

o
n
n

e
l T

ra
in

in
g

 ............................................................................................................3
3
 

9
. S

e
rv

ic
e

 A
n

im
a

ls
.................................................................................................................3

4
 

1
0
. P

e
rs

o
n
a

l C
a

re
 A

tte
n
d

a
n

ts
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
p

a
n

io
n
s
 ....................................................................3

5
 

1
1
. R

e
a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 M
o

d
ific

a
tio

n
s

................................................................................................3
7
 

1
2
. A

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 In

fo
rm

a
tio

n
.....................................................................................................3

9
 

1
3
. O

rig
in

-to
-D

e
s
tin

a
tio

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 ...........................................................................................4
0
 

1
4
. S

e
rv

ic
e

 A
re

a
....................................................................................................................4

2
 

1
5
. H

o
u
rs

 a
n
d

 D
a

y
s
 o

f S
e

rv
ic

e
 ..............................................................................................4

4
 

1
6
. N

e
x
t-D

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
, R

e
s
e
rv

a
tio

n
s
, a

n
d

 N
e

g
o

tia
tin

g
 P

ic
k
u

p
 T

im
e
s
 .....................................4

5
 

1
7
. F

a
re

s
 ...............................................................................................................................4

7
 

1
8
. T

rip
 P

u
rp

o
s
e

 R
e

s
tric

tio
n
s
.................................................................................................4

8
 

1
9
. T

rip
 N

u
m

b
e
r R

e
s
tric

tio
n
s
 .................................................................................................4

9
 

2
0
. U

n
tim

e
ly

 P
ic

k
u

p
s
 a

n
d

 D
ro

p
-O

ffs
......................................................................................5

0
 

2
1
. T

rip
 D

e
n

ia
ls

 .....................................................................................................................5
1
 

2
2
. M

is
s
e

d
 T

rip
s
 ....................................................................................................................5

2
 

2
3
. T

rip
 L

e
n

g
th

s
.....................................................................................................................5

3
 

2
4
. O

th
e
r C

a
p
a

c
ity

 C
o

n
s
tra

in
ts

..............................................................................................5
5
 

2
5
. P

la
n
n

in
g

 to
 A

v
o

id
 C

a
p

a
c
ity

 C
o

n
s
tra

in
ts

 ...........................................................................5
7
 

2
6
. P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it E

lig
ib

ility
 S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 .......................................................................................5

8
 

2
7
. P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it E

lig
ib

ility
 D

e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
 C

o
n
s
id

e
ra

tio
n
s
 .........................................................6

0
 

2
8
. P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it E

lig
ib

ility
 D

e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
 P

ro
c
e
s
s

....................................................................6
2
 

2
9
. S

e
rv

ic
e

 fo
r V

is
ito

rs
...........................................................................................................6

5
 

3
0
. N

o
-S

h
o
w

 S
u

s
p
e

n
s
io

n
 P

o
lic

y
............................................................................................6

7
 

3
1
. M

o
n
ito

rin
g

 C
o

n
tra

c
te

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

.........................................................................................6
9
 

IX
. S

u
m

m
a

ry
 T

a
b

le
 o

f F
in

d
in

g
s
 .................................................................................................7

0
 

i 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

T
h

is
 p

a
g
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 in
te

n
tio

n
a

lly
 le

ft b
la

n
k
 to

 fa
c
ilita

te
 d

u
p

le
x
 p

rin
tin

g
 

ii 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

I. E
x
e
c

u
tiv

e
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 

O
b

je
c

tiv
e

 a
n

d
 M

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 

T
h
is

 re
p
o

rt re
v
ie

w
s
 th

e
 D

e
p
a

rtm
e

n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 o

f th
e

 C
ity

 a
n

d
 C

o
u
n

ty
 o

f 
H

o
n
o

lu
lu

’s (D
T

S
’s

) c
o

m
p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 in
 th

e
 H

o
n
o

lu
lu

, H
I a

re
a
. Its

 o
b
je

c
tiv

e
 is

 
to

 id
e
n

tify
 a

re
a
s
 w

h
e
re

 D
T

S
 is

 n
o
t m

e
e
tin

g
 its

 o
b
lig

a
tio

n
s
 u

n
d

e
r th

e
 A

m
e

ric
a

n
s
 w

ith
 D

is
a

b
ilitie

s
 

A
c
t o

f 1
9
9

0
 (A

D
A

) to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it a

s
 a

 c
o
m

p
le

m
e

n
t to

 its
 fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 tra
n
s
it. 

T
h
is

 s
p

e
c
ia

liz
e

d
 re

v
ie

w
 in

c
lu

d
e

d
 th

re
e

 s
ta

g
e

s
: 

1
. 

P
re

-s
ite

 v
is

it: c
o
m

p
ila

tio
n

 a
n
d

 re
v
ie

w
 o

f in
fo

rm
a
tio

n
 c

o
v
e
rin

g
 re

le
v
a
n

t re
g
u

la
to

ry
 

g
u
id

a
n

c
e
, p

o
lic

ie
s
, p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
, a

n
d

 d
o
c
u

m
e

n
ta

tio
n

 o
f p

a
s
t s

p
e
c
ia

liz
e

d
 re

v
ie

w
 re

p
o

rts
 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

, a
s
 w

e
ll a

s
 p

u
b

lic
ly

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 in
fo

rm
a

tio
n

. P
re

-s
ite

 v
is

it p
re

p
a
ra

tio
n

 a
ls

o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d

 in
te

rv
ie

w
s
 w

ith
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it rid

e
rs

 a
n
d

 lo
c
a

l a
d
v
o

c
a
c
y
 o

rg
a
n

iz
a

tio
n
s
 o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
. 

2
. 

O
n
-s

ite
 v

is
it: a re

v
ie

w
 te

a
m

’s
 o

b
s
e
rv

a
tio

n
s o

f h
o
w

 D
T

S
 h

a
n

d
le

s
 trip

 re
q
u
e

s
ts

, s
c
h

e
d

u
lin

g
 

a
n
d

 d
is

p
a
tc

h
in

g
, e

x
a
m

in
a
tio

n
s
 o

f e
lig

ib
ility

 a
p
p

lic
a

tio
n

s
 a

n
d

 re
la

te
d

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 (in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

a
p
p
e
a
l d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ta

tio
n

), a
n
d

 in
te

rv
ie

w
s
 w

ith
 D

T
S

 a
n
d
, w

h
e
re

 re
le

v
a
n
t, c

o
n
tra

c
to

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
e
e

s
. 

3
. 

P
o

s
t-s

ite
 v

is
it: a

n
a

ly
s
is

 a
n

d
 re

p
o
rtin

g
 u

s
in

g
 s

ite
 v

is
it d

a
ta

, a
n
d
 id

e
n

tific
a
tio

n
 o

f 
d

e
fic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 fo

u
n

d
 re

q
u

irin
g

 c
o

rre
c
tiv

e
 a

c
tio

n
s
. 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f F

in
d

in
g

s
 

D
T

S
 h

a
s
 th

e
 fo

llo
w

in
g

 d
e
fic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 th

a
t n

e
e

d
 to

 b
e

 a
d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 to

 b
rin

g
 its

 p
ro

g
ra

m
 in

to
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e

 w
ith

 4
9

 C
F

R
 P

a
rts

 2
7

, 3
7
, a

n
d
 3

8
. 

R
e
v
ie

w
 A

re
a
 

In
d

ic
a
to

r #
 

D
e
fic

ie
n

c
y
 D

e
s
c

rip
tio

n
 

G
e
n
e
ra

l N
o

n
d
is

c
rim

in
a
tio

n
 

1
.3

 
In

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t rid

e
r c

o
n
d

u
c
t s

u
s
p
e
n
s
io

n
 

p
o
lic

y
 d

e
fic

ie
n
c
y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
fu

s
a

l D
u

e
 to

 R
id

e
r 

C
o
n
d

u
c
t 

2
.1

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 s

u
s
p
e

n
s
io

n
 d

u
e
 to

 c
o
n
d
u
c
t 

d
e
fic

ie
n
c
y
 

V
e
h

ic
le

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e
, 

A
c
q
u
is

itio
n
, a

n
d

 A
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ility
 

5
.1

 
4
9
 C

F
R

 P
a
rt 3

8
 d

e
fic

ie
n
c
y
 

V
e
h

ic
le

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e
, 

A
c
q
u
is

itio
n
, a

n
d

 A
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ility
 

5
.6

 
N

e
w

 v
e
h

ic
le

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ility
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 

d
e
fic

ie
n
c
y
 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt o

f W
h

e
e

lc
h
a

ir U
s
e
rs

 
6
.1

 
W

e
ig

h
t/s

iz
e
 lim

ita
tio

n
s
 o

n
 w

h
e
e

lc
h
a

irs
 

P
a
ra

tra
n
s
it E

lig
ib

ility
 

D
e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
 C

o
n
s
id

e
ra

tio
n
s
 

2
7
.1

 
E

lig
ib

ility
 c

rite
ria

 d
e
fic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 

P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

e
 s

e
c
tio

n
 V

III. F
in

d
in

g
s
 fo

r a
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
 o

f a
ll s

ix
 d

e
fic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 fo

u
n

d
. U

n
le

s
s
 o

th
e
rw

is
e

 
s
ta

te
d
, D

T
S

 m
u

s
t a

d
d
re

s
s
 a

ll d
e
fic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 w

ith
in

 6
0

 d
a

y
s
 o

f re
c
e
ip

t o
f th

is
 fin

a
l re

p
o

rt. 

1
 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

II. G
e
n

e
ra

l In
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 

T
h
is

 c
h

a
p

te
r p

ro
v
id

e
s
 b

a
s
ic

 in
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
in

g
 th

is
 s

p
e
c
ia

liz
e

d
 re

v
ie

w
 o

f C
C

O
H

. 
In

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 o

n
 C

C
O

H
, th

e
 re

v
ie

w
 te

a
m

, a
n
d

 th
e

 d
a

te
s
 o

f th
e

 re
v
ie

w
 a

re
 p

re
s
e
n

te
d

 b
e
lo

w
. 

G
ra

n
t R

e
c
ip

ie
n

t: 
C

ity
 a

n
d

 C
o
u

n
ty

 o
f H

o
n

o
lu

lu
, D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n

t o
f 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

C
ity

/S
ta

te
: 

H
o
n

o
lu

lu
, H

I 

R
e

c
ip

ie
n

t ID
: 

1
7

0
3
 

E
x

e
c

u
tiv

e
 O

ffic
ia

l: 
R

o
g

e
r M

o
rto

n
 

O
n

-s
ite

 L
ia

is
o

n
: 

E
ile

e
n

 M
a

rk
 

R
e

p
o

rt P
re

p
a
re

d
 B

y
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
lla

b
o

ra
tiv

e
, In

c
. 

D
a

te
s

 o
f O

n
-s

ite
 V

is
it: 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 1
0

-1
4

, 2
0
2

5
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 T

e
a
m

 M
e
m

b
e

rs
: 

D
a
v
id

 C
h

ia
, P

a
tti M

o
n

a
h

a
n

, A
m

y
 B

le
d

s
o

e
 

2
 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

T
h

is
 p

a
g
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 in
te

n
tio

n
a

lly
 le

ft b
la

n
k
 to

 fa
c
ilita

te
 d

u
p

le
x
 p

rin
tin

g
 

3
 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

III. J
u

ris
d

ic
tio

n
 a

n
d

 A
u

th
o

ritie
s
 

P
u

b
lic

 e
n
titie

s
 th

a
t o

p
e

ra
te

 fix
e

d
 ro

u
te

 tra
n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 fo

r th
e

 g
e
n

e
ra

l p
u
b

lic
 a

re
 re

q
u

ire
d

 
b

y
 U

.S
. D

e
p
a

rtm
e

n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 (D
O

T
) re

g
u

la
tio

n
s
 im

p
le

m
e

n
tin

g
 th

e
 A

D
A

 to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 fo
r p

e
rs

o
n
s
 w

h
o
, b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 o
f th

e
ir d

is
a
b

ility
, a

re
 u

n
a

b
le

 to
 

in
d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

tly
 u

s
e

 th
e

 fix
e

d
 ro

u
te

 s
y
s
te

m
. T

h
e

s
e

 re
g
u

la
tio

n
s
 (4

9
 C

F
R

 P
a

rts
 2

7
, 3

7
, a

n
d
 3

8
) a

ls
o

 
in

c
lu

d
e

 e
lig

ib
ility

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
rite

ria
 th

a
t m

u
s
t b

e
 m

e
t. S

e
c
tio

n
 3

7
.1

3
5
(d

) o
f th

e
 

re
g
u

la
tio

n
s
 re

q
u

ire
d

 A
D

A
 c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 h

a
v
e

 m
e

t th
e
s
e

 c
rite

ria
 b

y
 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
6
, 1

9
9
7

. 

T
h
e

 F
e

d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 (F

T
A

) is
 re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 fo

r e
n
s
u

rin
g

 c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e

 w
ith

 th
e

 A
D

A
 

a
n
d

 th
e

 D
O

T
 re

g
u

la
tio

n
s
 im

p
le

m
e

n
tin

g
 th

e
 A

D
A

. 4
 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

T
h

is
 p

a
g
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n
 in

te
n

tio
n

a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n

k
 to

 fa
c
ilita

te
 d

u
p

le
x
 p

rin
tin

g
 

5
 



 
 

 
 

 

 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

IV
. P

u
rp

o
s

e
 a

n
d

 O
b

je
c
tiv

e
s
 

T
h
is

 s
e

c
tio

n
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e

s
 th

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

 a
n
d

 o
b
je

c
tiv

e
s
 o

f a
n

 A
D

A
 c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

s
p

e
c
ia

liz
e

d
 re

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 th
e

 re
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

P
u

rp
o

s
e
 

P
u

rs
u

a
n

t to
 4

9
 C

F
R

 §
§
2
7

.1
9

 a
n
d

 2
7
.1

2
3
, a

s
 p

a
rt o

f its
 o

v
e
rs

ig
h
t e

ffo
rts

, th
e

 F
T

A
, th

ro
u

g
h

 its
 

O
ffic

e
 o

f C
iv

il R
ig

h
ts

 (T
C

R
), c

o
n
d

u
c
ts

 p
e
rio

d
ic

 re
v
ie

w
s
 o

f fix
e

d
 ro

u
te

 tra
n
s
it a

n
d

 A
D

A
 

c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 o

p
e
ra

te
d

 b
y
 its

 re
c
ip

ie
n
ts

. C
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e

 w
ith

 a
ll a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

 
re

q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 o
f th

e
 A

D
A

 (4
2

 U
S

C
 1

2
1

0
1

-1
2
2

1
3
), in

c
lu

d
in

g D
O

T
’s

 A
D

A
 re

g
u
la

tio
n

s
 a

n
d
 th

e
 

g
e
n

e
ra

l s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
s
 o

f 4
9

 C
F

R
 P

a
rt 3

7
 S

u
b
p

a
rt G

, is
 a

 c
o

n
d

itio
n

 o
f e

lig
ib

ility
 fo

r re
c
e
iv

in
g

 
fe

d
e

ra
l fin

a
n

c
ia

l a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

. 

O
b

je
c

tiv
e

s
 

T
h
e
 p

rim
a
ry

 o
b
je

c
tiv

e
 o

f th
is

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

p
e
c
ia

liz
e

d
 re

v
ie

w
 is

 to
 id

e
n

tify
 a

re
a
s
 w

h
e
re

 a
 p

u
b

lic
 

o
p
e

ra
to

r o
f a

 fix
e

d
 ro

u
te

 tra
n
s
it s

y
s
te

m
 th

a
t re

c
e
iv

e
s
 F

T
A

 fu
n
d

in
g

 is
 n

o
t m

e
e

tin
g

 its
 o

b
lig

a
tio

n
s
 

u
n
d

e
r th

e
 A

D
A

 to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it a

s
 a

 c
o
m

p
le

m
e

n
t to

 its
 fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 tra
n
s
it. 

T
h
e

 re
v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 o
b
s
e
rv

e
d

 d
is

p
a
tc

h
, re

s
e
rv

a
tio

n
s
, a

n
d

 s
c
h

e
d

u
lin

g
 o

p
e

ra
tio

n
s
, a

n
d

 a
n
a

ly
z
e

d
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

ta
tis

tic
s
, s

e
rv

ic
e

 re
c
o
rd

s
, a

n
d

 o
p

e
ra

tin
g

 d
o

c
u
m

e
n
ts

. T
o

 v
e
rify

 th
e

 a
c
c
u
ra

c
y
 o

f th
e

 p
u
b

lic
 

o
p
e

ra
to

r’s
 re

p
o
rte

d in
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 a
n

d e
v
a
lu

a
te its

 m
e

th
o

d
o
lo

g
y
, th

e
 re

v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 a
ls

o
 c

o
n

d
u
c
te

d
 

its
 o

w
n

 in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t a

n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f s

a
m

p
le

 d
a

ta
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
d

u
c
te

d
 in

te
rv

ie
w

s
 w

ith
 d

riv
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff. In
 

a
d
d

itio
n
, F

T
A

 s
o

lic
ite

d
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 fro
m

 e
lig

ib
le

 rid
e
rs

 a
n
d

 fro
m

 lo
c
a
l d

is
a
b

ility
 o

rg
a

n
iz

a
tio

n
s
. 

T
h
is

 re
p
o

rt s
u

m
m

a
riz

e
s
 th

e
 fin

d
in

g
s
 o

f d
e
fic

ie
n
c
y
 id

e
n

tifie
d

 d
u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
. F

in
d
in

g
s
 o

f 
d

e
fic

ie
n
c
y
 re

q
u

ire
 c

o
rre

c
tiv

e
 a

c
tio

n
 a

n
d

 a
d

d
itio

n
a

l re
p
o
rtin

g
. A

 la
c
k
 o

f fin
d
in

g
s
 in

 a
 p

a
rtic

u
la

r 
re

v
ie

w
 a

re
a

 d
o
e

s
 n

o
t c

o
n

s
titu

te
 e

n
d

o
rs

e
m

e
n
t o

r a
p
p

ro
v
a

l o
f a

n
 a

g
e

n
c
y
’s s

p
e
c
ific

 p
o
lic

ie
s
, 

p
ro

c
e

d
u
re

s
, o

r o
p
e
ra

tio
n
s
; in

s
te

a
d

, it s
im

p
ly

 in
d
ic

a
te

s
 th

a
t n

o
 d

e
fic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 in

 th
e

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

e
re

 o
b
s
e
rv

e
d

 a
t th

e
 tim

e
 o

f th
e

 re
v
ie

w
. 6

 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

T
h

is
 p

a
g
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 in
te

n
tio

n
a

lly
 le

ft b
la

n
k
 to

 fa
c
ilita

te
 d

u
p

le
x
 p

rin
tin

g
 

7
 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

V
. In

tro
d

u
c

tio
n

 to
 C

ity
 a

n
d

 C
o

u
n

ty
 o

f H
o

n
o

lu
lu

, D
e

p
a
rtm

e
n

t 
o

f T
ra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

D
T

S
 o

f H
o

n
o

lu
lu

, H
I p

ro
v
id

e
s
 p

u
b

lic
 tra

n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 in

 th
e

 H
o

n
o

lu
lu

 a
re

a
, w

h
ic

h
 in

c
lu

d
e

s
 th

e
 

C
ity

 o
f H

o
n
o

lu
lu

 a
n
d
 th

e
 e

n
tire

 O
a

h
u

 Is
la

n
d

. D
T

S
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 b
u
s
 a

n
d

 A
D

A
 

c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

. D
T

S
 a

ls
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 S

k
y
lin

e
 ra

p
id

 ra
il s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
o

n
s
is

tin
g

 o
f 

o
n
e
 lin

e
 a

n
d

 n
in

e
 s

ta
tio

n
s
. T

h
e

 ra
il s

y
s
te

m
 is

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 to
 e

x
p
a

n
d

 to
 1

9
 s

ta
tio

n
s
 b

y
 2

0
3

1
. A

b
o
u

t 
1

,0
1

6
,5

0
8

 p
e
o

p
le

 liv
e

 in
 th

e
 D

T
S

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a
, w

h
ic

h
 c

o
v
e

rs
 a

b
o

u
t 2

7
7
 s

q
u
a

re
 m

ile
s
 (a

c
c
o
rd

in
g

 
to

 th
e

 F
Y

 2
0
2

3
 N

a
tio

n
a
l T

ra
n

s
it D

a
ta

b
a

s
e
). 

In
tro

d
u

c
tio

n
 to

 P
a

ra
tra

n
s

it S
e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 O
rg

a
n

iz
a

tio
n

a
l S

tru
c
tu

re
 

D
T

S
’s

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a e
n
c
o

m
p

a
s
s
e

s th
e Is

la
n
d

 o
f O

a
h
u
, w

h
ic

h
 c

o
m

p
ris

e
s m

o
s
t o

f th
e 

C
ity

 a
n
d

 C
o
u

n
ty

 o
f H

o
n
o

lu
lu

, H
I. S

e
rv

ic
e

 is
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 a

 fle
e
t o

f 2
1
9

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
 o

p
e

ra
te

d
 b

y
 

O
a

h
u

 T
ra

n
s
it S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (O

T
S

) u
n
d

e
r c

o
n
tra

c
t to

 D
T

S
. A

t th
e

 tim
e

 o
f th

e
 re

v
ie

w
, 1

0
,4

0
9

 e
lig

ib
le

 
p

a
s
s
e

n
g

e
rs

 (5
,5

0
1

 a
c
tiv

e
 u

s
e

rs
 d

u
rin

g
 th

e
 m

o
n
th

 o
f F

e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0
2

5
), w

e
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 w
ith

 a
 to

ta
l 

o
f 9

9
5
,7

5
5

 trip
s
 in

 F
Y

 2
0
2

4
 (J

u
ly

 2
0
2

3
-J

u
n
e

 2
0
2

4
). O

T
S

 is
 a

 p
riv

a
te

 n
o
n

p
ro

fit o
rg

a
n

iz
a

tio
n

 
w

h
o
s
e

 s
o

le
 a

c
tiv

ity
 is

 o
p
e

ra
tin

g
 b

o
th

 fix
e

d
 ro

u
te

 b
u

s
 (T

h
e

B
u

s
) a

n
d

 p
a
ra

tra
n

s
it (T

h
e

H
a

n
d

i-V
a

n
) 

fo
r D

T
S

. D
T

S
 a

ls
o

 c
o

n
tra

c
ts

 w
ith

 M
T

M
, In

c
. to

 c
o
n

d
u

c
t e

lig
ib

ility
 d

e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
 fo

r T
h
e

H
a

n
d

i-
V

a
n
. D

T
S

 a
ls

o
 c

o
n
tra

c
ts

 w
ith

 fiv
e

 lo
c
a

l a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 tra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 to
 th

e
ir re

s
p
e
c
tiv

e
 

c
lie

n
ts

 w
ith

 d
is

a
b
ilitie

s
 w

h
o

 w
o

u
ld

 o
th

e
rw

is
e

 u
tiliz

e
 T

h
e

H
a

n
d

i-V
a

n
 to

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

g
e

n
c
y
 d

a
y
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
s
. 

T
h
e

H
a

n
d

i-V
a

n
 s

e
rv

e
s
 th

e
 e

n
tire

 is
la

n
d

 o
f O

a
h
u

 a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 o

n
ly

 A
D

A
 c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 

p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 fo
r D

T
S

. 

8
 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

T
h

is
 p

a
g
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 in
te

n
tio

n
a

lly
 le

ft b
la

n
k
 to

 fa
c
ilita

te
 d

u
p

le
x
 p

rin
tin

g
 

9
 



 

             

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

V
I. S

c
o

p
e
 a

n
d

 M
e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 

T
h
e

 s
c
o

p
e

 o
f th

e
 re

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 th
e

 m
e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 e

m
p

lo
y
e
d

 b
y
 th

e
 re

v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 is
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 a

n
d

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 to

 h
e
lp

 F
T

A
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 w

h
e
th

e
r a

 p
u

b
lic

 o
p
e

ra
to

r o
f a

 fix
e

d
-ro

u
te

 tra
n
s
it is

 in
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e

 w
ith

 th
e

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it re

q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 u
n
d
e

r D
O

T
 A

D
A

 re
g
u

la
tio

n
s
. H

o
w

e
v
e
r, th

e
 

d
e
fic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 id

e
n

tifie
d

, a
n

d
 fin

d
in

g
s
 m

a
d
e

 in
 th

is
 re

p
o

rt a
re

 b
y
 n

e
c
e

s
s
ity

 lim
ite

d
 to

 th
e

 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 to
 a

n
d

 th
e

 o
b
s
e

rv
a

tio
n

s
 m

a
d
e

 b
y
 th

e
 re

v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 a
t th

e
 tim

e
 o

f th
e

 s
ite

 
v
is

it. A
s
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 e

a
rlie

r in
 th

is
 re

p
o

rt, a
 la

c
k
 o

f fin
d
in

g
s
 in

 a
 p

a
rtic

u
la

r re
v
ie

w
 a

re
a

 d
o
e

s
 n

o
t 

c
o

n
s
titu

te
 e

n
d

o
rs

e
m

e
n
t o

r a
p
p
ro

v
a
l o

f a
n

 a
g
e

n
c
y
’s

 s
p

e
c
ific

 p
o
lic

ie
s
, p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
 o

r o
p
e
ra

tio
n

s
; 

in
s
te

a
d

, it s
im

p
ly

 in
d
ic

a
te

s
 th

a
t n

o
 d

e
fic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 in

 th
e

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
e
re

 o
b

s
e
rv

e
d

 a
t th

e
 

tim
e

 o
f th

e
 re

v
ie

w
. 

T
h
e
 s

c
o

p
e

 o
f th

e
 re

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 th
e

 m
e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 e

m
p

lo
y
e
d

 b
y
 th

e
 re

v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 is
 d

e
s
c
rib

e
d

 in
 

g
re

a
te

r d
e
ta

il b
e
lo

w
. 

S
c

o
p

e
 

T
h
e

 re
v
ie

w
 fo

c
u
s
e

d
 o

n
 w

h
e
th

e
r th

e
 D

T
S

 A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 o
p

e
ra

te
s
 in

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
ith

 
th

e
 D

O
T

 A
D

A
 re

g
u

la
to

ry
 re

q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

. S
p

e
c
ific

a
lly

, th
e

 re
v
ie

w
 e

x
a
m

in
e
d

 D
T

S
’s s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a
, 

o
rig

in
-to

-d
e
s
tin

a
tio

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, re
s
p

o
n

s
e

 tim
e
, fa

re
s
, a

n
d

 h
o
u

rs
 a

n
d

 d
a
y
s
 o

f s
e

rv
ic

e
, a

s
 w

e
ll a

s
 its

 
p

o
lic

ie
s
, s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
 fo

r m
o

n
ito

rin
g

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
, in

c
lu

d
in

g
 b

u
t n

o
t lim

ite
d

 to
 

o
n
-tim

e
 p

e
rfo

rm
a

n
c
e
, o

n
-b

o
a

rd
 tra

v
e
l tim

e
, te

le
p
h
o

n
e

 h
o
ld

 tim
e

s
, a

n
d

 a
v
o

id
in

g
 trip

 d
e

n
ia

ls
 a

n
d

 
m

is
s
e

d
 trip

s
. 

O
v
e

ra
ll, th

e
 A

D
A

 c
o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

p
e
c
ia

liz
e

d
 re

v
ie

w
 in

c
lu

d
e

d
, b

u
t w

a
s
 n

o
t lim

ite
d

 to
, 

th
e

 fo
llo

w
in

g
 re

g
u

la
to

ry
 re

q
u

ire
m

e
n

ts
: 

• 
N

o
n
d

is
c
rim

in
a
tio

n
 (4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.5

, A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 D

) 

• 
R

e
a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 fo

r s
u

s
p
e

n
d

in
g

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 to

 e
lig

ib
le

 rid
e
rs

 d
u
e

 to
 rid

e
r c

o
n
d

u
c
t 

(4
9

 C
F

R
 §

§
3

7
.5

h
, 3

7
.3

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 D

) 

• 
N

o
-s

h
o
w

 s
u

s
p
e

n
s
io

n
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 (4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.1

2
5
) 

• 
C

o
m

p
la

in
t re

s
o
lu

tio
n

 (4
9

 C
F

R
 §

§
2

7
.1

2
1

(b
), a

n
d

 3
7

.1
7

) 

• 
M

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e

 o
f a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 fe

a
tu

re
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r s

e
rv

ic
e

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 (e
.g

., s
e

rv
ic

e
 

a
n
im

a
ls

) (4
9

 C
F

R
 §

§
3

7
.1

6
1
, 3

7
.1

6
3

, 3
7
.1

6
7
(e

)) 

• 
W

h
e

e
lc

h
a
irs

 a
n
d

 lift a
n
d

 s
e

c
u
re

m
e
n

t u
s
e

 (4
9

 C
F

R
 §

§
3

7
.1

6
5
, 3

7
.3

, 3
8
.2

3
) 

• 
T

ra
in

in
g

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 (4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7

.1
7

3
) 

• 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n
im

a
ls

 (4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7

.1
6

7
(d

)) 

• 
R

e
q
u

ire
m

e
n

t fo
r c

o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 (4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7
.1

2
1

) 

• 
R

e
a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 m
o

d
ific

a
tio

n
s
 (4

9
 C

F
R

 §
§
3

7
.1

6
9
, 2

7
.7

) 

• 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 u
n
d

e
r c

o
n
tra

c
t (4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3
7

.2
3
) (if a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

) a
n
d

 m
o

n
ito

rin
g

 s
u

b
re

c
ip

ie
n
ts

 a
n
d

 
c
o

n
tra

c
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 (4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7

.2
3

) 

• 
T

y
p
e

s
 o

f s
e
rv

ic
e

 (4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7
.1

2
9
) 

• 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 c
rite

ria
 fo

r A
D

A
 c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it (4

9
 C

F
R

 §
§
3

1
.1

3
3

, 3
7

.1
2

1
, 3

7
.2

5
, 

3
7
.1

2
9

, 3
7
.1

3
1
, 3

7
.3

5
) in

c
lu

d
in

g
: 

1
0

 



           

 

      

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

o
 

S
u

b
s
c
rip

tio
n

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 

o
 

O
rig

in
-to

-d
e

s
tin

a
tio

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

o
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

 

o
 

R
e

s
p
o

n
s
e

 tim
e

 

o
 

F
a
re

s
 

o
 

T
rip

 p
u
rp

o
s
e

 re
s
tric

tio
n
s
 

o
 

H
o

u
rs

 a
n
d

 d
a
y
s
 o

f s
e

rv
ic

e
 

o
 

N
e

x
t-d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, re
s
e
rv

a
tio

n
s
, a

n
d

 n
e
g

o
tia

tin
g

 p
ic

k
u

p
 tim

e
s
 

o
 

U
n

tim
e

ly
 p

ic
k
u

p
s
 a

n
d

 d
ro

p
-o

ffs
, m

is
s
e

d
 trip

s
, a

n
d

 trip
 le

n
g
th

s
 

o
 

T
rip

 d
e
n

ia
ls

 a
n
d

 n
o
-s

h
o
w

 s
u

s
p
e

n
s
io

n
 p

o
lic

y
 

o
 

C
a

p
a

c
ity

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
ts

 a
n
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 to
 a

v
o
id

 th
e
m

 

• 
A

D
A

 c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

ility
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 (e

.g
., e

lig
ib

ility
 d

e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

tio
n

s
) a

n
d

 d
e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 (4

9
 C

F
R

 §
§
3

7
.1

2
3

, 3
7
.1

2
5

, 3
7
.1

3
1

, 3
7
.1

3
7
, 

3
7
.1

6
7

), in
c
lu

d
in

g
: 

o
 

In
fo

rm
a
tio

n
 is

 m
a

d
e

 a
v
a

ila
b
le

 in
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 fo

rm
a

ts
 u

p
o

n
 re

q
u

e
s
t 

o
 

A
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 is
 m

a
d
e

 w
ith

in
 2

1
 d

a
y
s
 o

r p
re

s
u
m

p
tiv

e
 e

lig
ib

ility
 is

 g
ra

n
te

d
 p

e
n

d
in

g
 a

 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 

o
 

T
h
e

re
 is

 w
ritte

n
 n

o
tific

a
tio

n
 o

f a
ll d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

o
 

A
ll d

e
n

ia
ls

 o
r c

o
n
d

itio
n
a

l e
lig

ib
ility

 d
e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
s
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 in
 w

ritin
g

 w
ith

 
s
p

e
c
ific

 re
a
s
o

n
s
 fo

r th
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 

o
 

T
h
e

re
 is

 a
n

 a
d
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e
 a

p
p

e
a

ls
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 fo

r d
e
n

ia
ls

 a
n
d

 c
o

n
d

itio
n
a

l e
lig

ib
ility

 
d

e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
s
 

o
 

P
a

ra
tra

n
s
it p

la
n

 d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

• 
A

D
A

 c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 fo
r v

is
ito

rs
 (4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3
7

.1
2

7
) 

M
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
 

F
T

A
 T

C
R

 s
e

n
t a

 n
o
tific

a
tio

n
 le

tte
r to

 D
T

S
 o

n
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 6

, 2
0
2

4
 c

o
n
firm

in
g

 th
e

 d
a
te

s
 fo

r th
e

 
re

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 re
q
u

e
s
tin

g
 th

a
t in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 b

e
 s

e
n
t to

 th
e

 re
v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 in
 a

d
v
a

n
c
e

 o
f th

e
 o

n
-s

ite
 v

is
it 

(A
tta

c
h

m
e

n
t 1

) a
s
 w

e
ll a

s
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 to

 h
a
v
e

 a
v
a

ila
b
le

 o
n

-s
ite

. 

P
rio

r to
 th

e
 o

n
-s

ite
 v

is
it, th

e
 re

v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 fa
m

ilia
riz

e
d

 th
e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
 w

ith
 th

e
 A

D
A

 re
g
u

la
tio

n
s
; 

4
9
 C

F
R

 P
a

rts
 2

7
, 3

7
, a

n
d

 3
8
; th

e
 F

T
A

 C
irc

u
la

r 4
7

1
0

.1
; th

e
 c

o
n
tra

c
to

r’s
 m

a
n
u

a
l a

n
d

 o
th

e
r T

C
R

 
s
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
l re

s
o
u

rc
e

s
; a

s
 w

e
ll a

s
 th

e
 2

0
1

0
 A

D
A

 c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

p
e
c
ia

liz
e

d
 

re
v
ie

w
 re

p
o
rts

 to
 g

a
in

 a
n

 u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g

 o
f th

e
 k

e
y
 a

re
a

s
 o

f in
v
e
s
tig

a
tio

n
. T

h
e

 re
v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 a
ls

o
 

e
x
a
m

in
e
d

 th
e

 fo
llo

w
in

g
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
: 

• 
D

T
S

’s d
e
s
c
rip

tio
n

 o
f h

o
w

 its
 A

D
A

 c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 is
 s

tru
c
tu

re
d

; 
p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
; D

T
S

’s c
a

p
ita

l a
n
d

 o
p

e
ra

tin
g

 b
u
d

g
e

t a
n
d

 e
x
p
e

n
d

itu
re

 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 fo

r A
D

A
 c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 fo
r th

e
 th

re
e

 m
o

s
t re

c
e
n

t, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

u
rre

n
t, fis

c
a

l y
e

a
rs

; a
n
d
 th

e
 e

lig
ib

ility
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 re
la

te
d

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

tio
n

 

• 
D

T
S

’s s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 o

r g
o
a

ls
 fo

r o
n

-tim
e

 p
e
rfo

rm
a

n
c
e
, trip

 d
e
n

ia
ls

, m
is

s
e

d
 trip

s
, 

p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it trip

 le
n
g

th
, o

n
-tim

e
 p

e
rfo

rm
a

n
c
e
, a

n
d

 te
le

p
h

o
n

e
 h

o
ld

 tim
e

s
, w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 
c
o

n
ta

in
e
d

 in
 s

e
v
e
ra

l d
o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 s
e

n
t to

 F
T

A
 in

 re
s
p

o
n

s
e

 to
 th

e
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 6

, 2
0
2

4
 le

tte
r. 

1
1

 



 
 

            
 

 

 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

• 
D

T
S

’s p
a
s
t trie

n
n

ia
l re

v
ie

w
 re

p
o

rts
, s

p
e
c
ia

liz
e

d
 re

v
ie

w
 re

p
o

rts
, a

n
d

 c
o

rre
c
tiv

e
 a

c
tio

n
 

d
o
c
u

m
e

n
ta

tio
n

 

• 
A

D
A

 c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it-re

la
te

d
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 re
c
e
iv

e
d

 b
y
 T

C
R

 a
b
o

u
t D

T
S

 

• 
P

u
b
lic

 in
fo

rm
a
tio

n
 a

b
o

u
t D

T
S

 a
n
d

 its
 A

D
A

 c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

, in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

its
 w

e
b
s
ite

, n
e
w

s
 a

rtic
le

s
, e

tc
. 

• 
A

n
y
 re

le
v
a
n

t p
re

-s
ite

 v
is

it in
te

rv
ie

w
s
 

• 
A

n
y
 a

d
d

itio
n
a

l in
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 T
C

R
 h

a
d
 a

b
o

u
t D

T
S

 

A
s
 re

q
u

e
s
te

d
 b

y
 F

T
A

, D
T

S
 m

a
d
e

 a
d
d

itio
n
a

l in
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 a
v
a

ila
b
le

 d
u

rin
g

 th
e

 v
is

it, in
c
lu

d
in

g
 b

u
t 

n
o
t lim

ite
d

 to
: 

• 
T

rip
 d

a
ta

 (e
.g

., s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

a
ta

, in
c
lu

d
in

g
 th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r o

f trip
s
 re

q
u

e
s
te

d
; c

o
p
ie

s
 o

f 
c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 d

riv
e
r m

a
n
ife

s
ts

 fo
r re

c
e

n
t m

o
n
th

s
) 

• 
E

lig
ib

ility
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 

• 
P

e
rs

o
n

n
e
l re

c
o
rd

s
 

• 
V

e
h
ic

le
 re

p
o

rts
 a

n
d

 c
h

e
c
k
lis

ts
 

• 
P

e
rs

o
n

n
e
l tra

in
in

g
 c

u
rric

u
la

 

• 
A

D
A

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 s

u
b
m

itte
d

 to
 D

T
S

 re
la

te
d

 to
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
ts

, in
c
lu

d
in

g
 la

te
 p

ic
k
u

p
s
, 

trip
 d

e
n

ia
ls

, m
is

s
e

d
 trip

s
, trip

 le
n

g
th

, a
n
d

 te
le

p
h

o
n
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
; tra

n
s
p
o

rt o
f w

h
e

e
lc

h
a
ir 

u
s
e
rs

; tra
n
s
it a

g
e

n
c
y
 e

m
p

lo
y
e
e

 in
te

ra
c
tio

n
s
 w

ith
 rid

e
rs

; s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
im

a
ls

 

• 
P

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
 rid

e
rs

 fo
llo

w
 to

 file
 d

is
a

b
ility

-re
la

te
d

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 

• 
D

T
S

’s s
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 

• 
A

 v
e

h
ic

le
 fle

e
t ro

s
te

r 

T
h
e

 o
n
-s

ite
 re

v
ie

w
 o

f D
T

S
’s A

D
A

 c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
o
k
 p

la
c
e

 fro
m

 F
e
b

ru
a
ry

 
1

0
, 2

0
2

5
, to

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 1
4
, 2

0
2

5
. T

h
e

 re
v
ie

w
 b

e
g

a
n

 w
ith

 a
n

 o
p
e

n
in

g
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e

, h
e
ld

 a
t 9

 a
.m

., 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 1

0
, 2

0
2

5
, a

t th
e

 D
T

S
 o

ffic
e

s
 a

t 7
1
1

 K
a

p
io

la
n
i B

o
u
le

v
a
rd

, H
o

n
o

lu
lu

. T
h
e

 fo
llo

w
in

g
 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
tte

n
d

e
d

 th
e

 m
e

e
tin

g
: 

L
is

t o
f A

tte
n

d
e
e

s
 

L
a
s

t N
a

m
e

 
F

irs
t 

N
a

m
e

 
O

rg
a

n
iz

a
tio

n
 

E
m

a
il A

d
d

re
s

s
 

M
o

rto
n

 
R

o
g
e

r 
D

T
S

 
ro

g
e

rm
o

rto
n
@

h
o
n

o
lu

lu
.g

o
v
 

M
a

rk
 

E
ile

e
n

 
D

T
S

 
e

m
a

rk
@

h
o
n

o
lu

lu
.g

o
v
 

Is
h

iy
a

m
a

 
S

c
o

tt 
D

T
S

 
s
is

h
iy

a
m

a
@

h
o
n

o
lu

lu
.g

o
v
 

L
a
w

a
s
 

K
a

ris
h
a

 
D

T
S

 
k
la

w
a

s
@

h
o
n

o
lu

lu
.g

o
v
 

U
y
e

h
a

ra
 

S
k
y
 

D
T

S
 

s
u

y
e
h

a
ra

@
h

o
n

o
lu

lu
.g

o
v
 

N
o

u
c
h

i 
J
o

n
 

D
T

S
 

jn
o
u

c
h
i@

h
o
n

o
lu

lu
.g

o
v
 

C
o

e
h

lo
 

T
ra

c
ie

 
O

T
S

 
tra

c
ie

.c
o

e
lh

o
th

e
@

b
u
s
.o

rg
 

F
o
s
te

r 
K

a
p
o

n
o

 
O

T
S

 
fra

n
c
is

.fo
s
te

r@
th

e
b

u
s
.o

rg
 

L
e
m

a
o
to

 
J
e

n
n

y
 

O
T

S
 

je
n
n

y
.le

m
a

o
ta

@
th

e
b

u
s
.o

rg
 

1
2

 



    

 

  

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

L
a
s

t N
a

m
e

 
F

irs
t 

N
a

m
e

 
O

rg
a

n
iz

a
tio

n
 

E
m

a
il A

d
d

re
s

s
 

Y
u
 

R
o

b
e

rt 
O

T
S

 
ro

b
e

rt.y
u

@
th

e
b

u
s
.o

rg
 

D
e

C
a

ire
s
 

L
e
th

a
 

O
T

S
 

le
th

a
.d

e
c
a

ire
s
@

th
e
b

u
s
.o

rg
 

C
h

a
n

g
c
h

ie
n

 
A

m
y
 

F
T

A
 R

e
g
io

n
 9

 
a
m

y
.c

h
a
n

g
c
h

ie
n
@

d
o
t.g

o
v
 

V
o

s
g
u

e
ritc

h
ia

n
 

K
a

rin
 

F
T

A
 T

C
R

 
k
a

rin
.v

o
s
g
u

e
ritc

h
ia

n
@

d
o
t.g

o
v
 

P
o

lin
g

 
M

a
rc

 
F

T
A

 O
ffic

e
 o

f 
O

v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

m
a

rc
.p

o
lin

g
@

d
o
t.g

o
v
 

G
a

u
th

ie
r-

P
h

illip
s
 

S
te

p
h

a
n

ie
 

F
T

A
 T

C
R

 
s
te

p
h

a
n

ie
.g

a
u
th

ie
r-p

h
illip

s
@

d
o
t.g

o
v
 

L
e
w

is
 

M
o

n
iq

u
e

 
F

T
A

 
m

o
n
iq

u
e

.le
w

is
@

d
o
t.g

o
v
 

F
itz

h
u
g

h
 

E
d

u
a

rd
o

 
M

T
M

, In
c
. 

e
fitz

h
u

g
h
@

m
tm

-in
c
.n

e
t 

C
h

ia
 

D
a

v
id

 
T

h
e

 C
o
lla

b
o

ra
tiv

e
, In

c
. 

d
c
@

th
e
c
o

lla
b
o

ra
tiv

e
.c

o
m

 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 th

e
 o

p
e

n
in

g
 c

o
n

fe
re

n
c
e
, th

e
 re

v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 m
e

t w
ith

 D
T

S
 a

n
d

 O
T

S
 s

ta
ff to

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 th

e
 

in
fo

rm
a
tio

n
 s

e
n
t in

 a
d

v
a
n

c
e

 a
s
 w

e
ll a

s
 th

e
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 a

n
d

 m
a

te
ria

l th
a
t w

a
s
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 o
r 

n
e
e

d
e

d
 to

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 o
n
-s

ite
. T

h
e

 re
v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 a
ls

o
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e
d

 th
e

 p
la

n
 to

 c
o

n
d

u
c
t o

n
-s

ite
 

in
te

rv
ie

w
s
 d

u
rin

g
 th

e
 s

ite
 v

is
it. 

F
o
r th

e
 re

m
a

in
d
e

r o
f th

e
 s

ite
 v

is
it, th

e
 re

v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e
d

 re
v
ie

w
 a

re
a
s
 w

ith
 D

T
S

 a
n
d

 O
T

S
 

s
ta

ff a
n
d

 v
e

h
ic

le
 o

p
e
ra

to
rs

, o
b
s
e

rv
e

d
 p

ra
c
tic

e
s
, a

n
d

 g
a
th

e
re

d
 a

n
d

 a
n
a

ly
z
e
d

 in
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 fro
m

 
D

T
S

 a
n
d

 O
T

S
 in

 th
e

 re
le

v
a
n

t re
v
ie

w
 a

re
a
s
 to

 d
e
te

rm
in

e
 th

e
 fin

d
in

g
s
 in

c
lu

d
e

d
 in

 th
is

 re
p
o
rt. 

• 
T

h
e

 re
v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
 D

T
S

 p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 

• 
T

h
e

 re
v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
 th

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 in

 p
la

c
e

 a
t D

T
S

 to
 re

c
o
rd

 a
n
d

 re
s
p
o

n
d

 to
 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 o

n
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 1

2
 a

n
d

 1
3

 

• 
T

h
e

 re
v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 c
o

n
tin

u
e

d
 re

v
ie

w
in

g
 e

lig
ib

ility
 file

s
 a

n
d

 in
te

rv
ie

w
in

g
 M

T
M

 s
ta

ff o
n

 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 1

1
 a

n
d

 1
2

 s
ta

ff o
n

 th
e

 e
lig

ib
ility

 d
e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

• 
T

h
e
 re

v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 c
o

n
d

u
c
te

d
 o

b
s
e
rv

a
tio

n
s
 o

f th
e

 trip
 re

s
e
rv

a
tio

n
, s

c
h

e
d

u
lin

g
 a

n
d

 
d

is
p

a
tc

h
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e

s
 o

n
 F

e
b

ru
a
ry

 1
0
. T

h
e

 re
v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 m
e

t w
ith

 th
e

 O
T

S
 

re
s
e
rv

a
tio

n
is

t(s
) a

n
d

 s
c
h
e

d
u

le
r(s

) to
 d

is
c
u

s
s
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 u

s
e
d

 to
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 th
e

 fin
a
l d

riv
e
r 

m
a

n
ife

s
t a

n
d

 b
e
g

a
n

 e
x
a
m

in
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 d
riv

e
r m

a
n
ife

s
ts

 a
s
 a

 p
a

rt o
f v

e
rific

a
tio

n
 o

f 
D

T
S

’s o
n
-tim

e
 p

e
rfo

rm
a
n

c
e

 

• 
T

h
e

 re
v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 p
a
id

 p
a
rtic

u
la

r a
tte

n
tio

n
 to

 p
o
lic

ie
s
 re

g
a
rd

in
g

 trip
 re

s
e
rv

a
tio

n
s
 a

n
d

 
w

h
e
th

e
r D

T
S

 (th
ro

u
g

h
 O

T
S

 s
ta

ff) u
s
e
d

 a
n
y
 fo

rm
 o

f trip
 c

a
p
s
. In

 a
d
d

itio
n
, th

e
 re

v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 
re

s
e
a

rc
h

e
d

 w
h

e
th

e
r th

e
re

 a
p

p
e
a

re
d

 to
 b

e
 a

 p
a
tte

rn
 o

r p
ra

c
tic

e
 o

f d
e
n

y
in

g
 trip

 re
q
u

e
s
ts

. 
T

h
is

 p
o
rtio

n
 o

f th
e

 re
v
ie

w
 e

x
a
m

in
e
d

 th
e

 p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
 c

o
n
c
e

rn
in

g
 n

e
g

o
tia

tio
n

 
o

f re
q
u

e
s
te

d
 trip

 tim
e

s
 

• 
T

h
e
 re

v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 c
o

n
tin

u
e

d
 o

b
s
e

rv
in

g
 th

e
 re

s
e
rv

a
tio

n
s
 o

n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 1
1

 a
n
d

 d
is

p
a
tc

h
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 e
x
a
m

in
in

g
 o

n
-tim

e
 p

e
rfo

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 o

n
-b

o
a
rd

 tra
v
e
l tim

e
s
 o

n
 F

e
b

ru
a
ry

 
1
1
-1

3
. T

h
e

 re
v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 o

n
-b

o
a
rd

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it tra

v
e
l tim

e
s
 w

ith
 th

o
s
e

 o
n

 th
e

 
fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 tra
n
s
it, w

ith
 a

n
 e

m
p

h
a

s
is

 o
n

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it trip

s
 w

ith
 le

n
g

th
y
 tra

v
e

l tim
e
s
. D

T
S

 
s
ta

ff w
e
re

 in
te

rv
ie

w
e

d
 re

g
a
rd

in
g

 re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
, b

u
d

g
e

tin
g

, a
n
d

 s
ta

ffin
g

 o
n

 F
e
b

ru
a

ry
 1

2
 a

n
d

 

1
3

 



  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

    

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

1
3
. T

h
e

 O
T

S
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

r/d
is

p
a
tc

h
e
r w

a
s
 in

te
rv

ie
w

e
d

 o
n

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 1
2

 re
g
a

rd
in

g
 th

e
 

s
c
h

e
d

u
lin

g
 a

n
d

 d
is

p
a
tc

h
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 

• 
T

h
e

 re
v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 in
s
p
e

c
te

d
 tw

o
 D

T
S

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
 th

a
t re

p
re

s
e
n

te
d

 th
e

 tw
o

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 

v
e

h
ic

le
 ty

p
e
s
 u

s
e
d

 fo
r T

h
e

H
a

n
d

i-V
a

n
 to

 d
e
te

rm
in

e
 if th

e
y
 m

e
t th

e
 A

D
A

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n

ts
 fo

r 
a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ility
 

• 
T

h
e

 re
v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 in
te

rv
ie

w
e

d
 e

ig
h
t o

p
e
ra

to
rs

 (O
T

S
) o

n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 1
3
. T

e
a
m

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 
a

s
k
e
d

 a
b

o
u
t th

e o
p
e
ra

to
rs

’ tra
in

in
g
, th

e
ir p

a
s
s
e

n
g
e

r a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

 p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
, th

e
ir 

o
p
e

ra
tio

n
a

l p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
, a

n
d

 th
e

 D
T

S
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 

T
h
e

 re
v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 a
ls

o
 g

a
th

e
re

d
 a

n
d

 a
n

a
ly

z
e

d
 th

e
 fo

llo
w

in
g

 in
fo

rm
a
tio

n
: 

• 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 fro
m

 rid
e
rs

 a
n

d
 a

d
v
o

c
a
te

s
 o

f th
e

 d
is

a
b

ility
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ity

 th
ro

u
g

h
 n

in
e

 te
le

p
h

o
n

e
 

in
te

rv
ie

w
s
 c

o
n
d

u
c
te

d
 p

rio
r to

 th
e

 s
ite

 v
is

it, a
n
d

 th
ro

u
g

h
 a

 re
v
ie

w
 o

f c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

 a
n
d

 
c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 o

n
 file

 a
t F

T
A

 a
n
d

 D
T

S
 

• 
R

e
s
e
rv

a
tio

n
s
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 p
e

rfo
rm

a
n
c
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

• 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 re
p
o
rts

 p
re

p
a

re
d

 b
y
 D

T
S

 s
h

o
w

in
g

 th
e

 n
u
m

b
e
r o

f trip
s
 s

e
rv

e
d

 a
n
d

 th
e

 n
u
m

b
e
r o

f 
trip

s
 d

e
n

ie
d
, la

te
 p

ic
k
u

p
s
 a

n
d

 m
is

s
e

d
 trip

s
 fo

r th
e

 p
a
s
t th

re
e

 y
e

a
rs

 

• 
D

ire
c
t o

b
s
e
rv

a
tio

n
s
 o

f th
e

 h
a

n
d
lin

g
 o

f trip
s
 b

y
 re

v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 a
n
d

 in
te

rv
ie

w
s
 w

ith
 

D
T

S
 s

ta
ff a

b
o
u

t th
e

 a
b
ility

 to
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a
te

 trip
 re

q
u
e

s
ts

 

[F
o

r F
in

a
l R

e
p

o
rt O

n
ly

] 

[T
ra

n
s
it a

g
e

n
c
y
 a

b
b

re
v
ia

tio
n

] w
a

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 w
ith

 a
 d

ra
ft c

o
p
y
 o

f th
e

 re
p
o
rt fo

r re
v
ie

w
 fo

r fa
c
tu

a
l 

e
rro

rs
 a

n
d

 re
s
p
o

n
s
e

 o
n

 [D
a

te
]. A

 c
o

p
y
 o

f th
e

 c
o

rre
s
p
o

n
d

e
n

c
e

 re
c
e

iv
e

d
 fro

m
 [T

ra
n

s
it a

g
e

n
c
y
 

a
b
b

re
v
ia

tio
n
] o

n
 [D

a
te

 re
c
e

iv
e

d
] d

o
c
u
m

e
n
tin

g
 th

e
ir re

s
p

o
n

s
e

 to
 th

e
 d

ra
ft re

p
o
rt, is

 in
c
lu

d
e

d
 a

s
 

A
tta

c
h
m

e
n
t [X

]. 

1
4

 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

T
h

is
 p

a
g
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 in
te

n
tio

n
a

lly
 le

ft b
la

n
k
 to

 fa
c
ilita

te
 d

u
p

le
x
 p

rin
tin

g
 

1
5

 



 
 

 
 

 

C 

Q
u

e
s
tio

n
(s

) F
T

A
 c

o
n
tra

c
to

rs
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
 in

 o
rd

e
r to

 m
a

k
e

 a
 

d
e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
a

b
o

u
t

a
re

c
ip

ie
n
t
s
 a

d
h

e
re

n
c
e

to
th

e
 b

a
s
ic

 

re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
t. In

d
ic

a
to

rs
 id

e
n

tifie
d

 s
p

e
c
ific

 is
s
u

e
s
 th

a
t le

d
 to

 fin
d
in

g
s
 

o
f d

e
fic

ie
n
c
y
. 

S
p

e
c
ific

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
 o

n
 e

a
c
h

 fin
d
in

g
 o

f d
e
fic

ie
n
c
y
, w

h
ic

h
 in

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 

d
e
ta

ile
d

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
 o

n
 th

e
 fa

c
ts

 c
o

lle
c
te

d
 o

r o
b
s
e
rv

e
d

 d
u
rin

g
 th

e
 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 a
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 th

e
s
e

 fa
c
ts

 th
a
t s

u
p
p

o
rts

 th
e

 

c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f d
e
fic

ie
n
c
y
. 

U
n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

V
II. R

e
p

o
rt F

o
rm

a
t 

T
h
is

 re
p
o

rt in
c
lu

d
e

s
 fin

d
in

g
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 e

v
a

lu
a
tio

n
 c

rite
ria

 fo
r p

re
-s

ite
 v

is
it d

e
s
k
 re

v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d

 o
n
-

s
ite

 in
te

rv
ie

w
s
, re

c
o
rd

s
 re

v
ie

w
s
, a

n
d

 fie
ld

 o
b

s
e

rv
a

tio
n

s
. T

h
is

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

iz
e

d
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 to
 

e
v
a
lu

a
tio

n
 a

n
d

 re
p
o

rtin
g

 o
n

 fin
d
in

g
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e

 to
 s

u
p
p

o
rt e

a
c
h

 re
c
ip

ie
n
t b

e
in

g
 re

v
ie

w
e

d
 

b
y
 th

e
 s

a
m

e
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
. 

T
h
is

 re
p
o

rt is
 c

o
m

p
o
s
e

d
 o

f d
iffe

re
n
t s

e
c
tio

n
s
 th

a
t a

d
d

re
s
s
 e

a
c
h

 A
D

A
 c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

re
v
ie

w
 a

re
a
. E

a
c
h

 s
e

c
tio

n
 h

a
s
 a

 title
 (th

e
 re

v
ie

w
 a

re
a
), g

o
v
e
rn

in
g

 d
ire

c
tiv

e
s
, in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 o

f 
c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e

, fin
d
in

g
s
, a

n
d

 c
o

rre
c
tiv

e
 a

c
tio

n
s
. 

F
in

d
in

g
s
 R

e
p
o

rtin
g

 F
o
rm

a
t fo

r S
e

c
tio

n
 V

III. F
in

d
in

g
s
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 A

re
a

 
S

e
c
tio

n
 o

f th
e

 re
g
u

la
to

ry
 s

p
a
c
e

 re
le

v
a
n
t to

 th
e

 s
p
e

c
ia

liz
e

d
 re

v
ie

w
 to

 

b
e

 e
x
a
m

in
e
d

 to
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 w

h
e

th
e

r a
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t is

 o
r is

 n
o
t d

e
fic

ie
n
t. 

G
o

v
e
rn

in
g

 D
ire

c
tiv

e
(s

) 
C

ita
tio

n
s
 fro

m
 la

w
, re

g
u

la
tio

n
, m

a
s
te

r a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t, o

r o
th

e
r p

o
lic

y
 

th
a
t id

e
n

tifie
d

 th
e

 b
a
s
is

 o
f th

e
 re

q
u

ire
m

e
n
t a

n
d

 a
n
y
 d

e
fic

ie
n
c
ie

s
. 

In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f

C
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e

 

’ 

F
in

d
in

g
 

C
o

rre
c
tiv

e
 A

c
tio

n
(s

) 

a
n
d

 S
c
h

e
d

u
le

 

A
c
tio

n
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t m

u
s
t ta

k
e

 to
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 a

n
d

 d
e
m

o
n
s
tra

te
 it h

a
s
 

a
d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 e
a
c
h

 fin
d
in

g
 o

f d
e
fic

ie
n
c
y
, a

n
d

 th
e

 d
a
te

 

b
y
 w

h
ic

h
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t m

u
s
t a

d
d
re

s
s
 th

e
 c

o
rre

c
tiv

e
 a

c
tio

n
 (w

ith
in

 6
0

 

d
a
y
s
 u

n
le

s
s
 s

ta
te

d
 o

th
e
rw

is
e

). 

1
6

 



 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

V
III. F

in
d

in
g

s
 

T
h
is

 c
h

a
p

te
r d

e
ta

ils
 th

e
 fin

d
in

g
s
 o

f d
e
fic

ie
n
c
y
 fo

r e
a

c
h

 o
f th

e
 a

re
a
s
 p

e
rtin

e
n
t to

 th
e

 re
g
u

la
tio

n
s
 

fo
u
n

d
 in

 4
9

 C
F

R
 P

a
rts

 2
7

, 3
7
, a

n
d

 3
8
 o

u
tlin

e
d

 in
 th

e
 S

c
o

p
e

 a
n
d

 M
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g
y
 s

e
c
tio

n
 a

b
o

v
e
. 

F
o
r e

a
c
h

 a
re

a
, a

n
 o

v
e
rv

ie
w

 o
f th

e
 re

le
v
a
n

t re
g
u

la
tio

n
s
 a

n
d

 a
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
 o

f a
n
y
 fin

d
in

g
s
 o

f 
d

e
fic

ie
n
c
y
 in

 th
e C

C
O

H
 D

e
p
a

rtm
e
n

t o
f T

ra
n

s
p
o
rta

tio
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
’ p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 is
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 
b

e
lo

w
, w

ith
 c

o
rre

c
tiv

e
 a

c
tio

n
s
 a

n
d

 a
 tim

e
fra

m
e

 to
 c

o
rre

c
t d

e
fic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 fo

r e
a

c
h

 o
f th

e
 

re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 s
u

b
-re

q
u
ire

m
e

n
ts

 w
h

e
re

 n
e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
. 

F
in

d
in

g
s
 a

re
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d in

 te
rm

s o
f “a

 d
e
fic

ie
n
c
y
 w

a
s
 fo

u
n

d
” o

r “a
 d

e
fic

ie
n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
.” 

F
in

d
in

g
s
 o

f d
e
fic

ie
n
c
y
 d

e
n

o
te

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 o

r p
ra

c
tic

e
s
 fo

u
n

d
 to

 b
e

 n
o
t in

 c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e

 w
ith

 D
O

T
 A

D
A

 
re

g
u

la
tio

n
s
 o

r m
a

tte
rs

 fo
r w

h
ic

h
 F

T
A

 re
q
u

ire
s
 a

d
d

itio
n
a

l re
p
o

rtin
g

 to
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 w

h
e
th

e
r a

n
 A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e

 is
s
u
e

 e
x
is

ts
 d

u
rin

g
 th

e
 tim

e
 o

f th
is

 re
v
ie

w
. 

F
in

d
in

g
s
 o

f d
e
fic

ie
n
c
y
 re

q
u
ire

 c
o

rre
c
tiv

e
 a

c
tio

n
 a

n
d

 w
ill b

e
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d

 a
s
 a

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
t c

o
n
c
e

rn
in

g
 

th
e

 re
q
u

ire
d

 c
o
rre

c
tiv

e
 a

c
tio

n
 to

 re
s
o

lv
e

 th
e

 is
s
u

e
. 

1
7

 



 
 

 
 

 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

1
. G

e
n

e
ra

l N
o

n
d

is
c
rim

in
a
tio

n
 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.5

 N
o

n
d

is
c
rim

in
a
tio

n
 

(a
) N

o
 e

n
tity

 s
h

a
ll d

is
c
rim

in
a
te

 a
g

a
in

s
t a

n
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l w
ith

 a
 d

is
a

b
ility

 in
 c

o
n

n
e

c
tio

n
 w

ith
 th

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f tra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

(d
) A

n
 e

n
tity

 s
h

a
ll n

o
t im

p
o
s
e

 s
p

e
c
ia

l c
h

a
rg

e
s
, n

o
t a

u
th

o
riz

e
d

 b
y
 th

is
 p

a
rt, o

n
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 

d
is

a
b
ilitie

s
, in

c
lu

d
in

g
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

h
o

 u
s
e

 w
h

e
e

lc
h
a

irs
, fo

r p
ro

v
id

in
g

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 re

q
u

ire
d

 b
y
 

th
is

 p
a
rt o

r o
th

e
rw

is
e

 n
e
c
e

s
s
a
ry

 to
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a
te

 th
e
m

. 
(e

) A
n

 e
n
tity

 s
h

a
ll n

o
t re

q
u

ire
 th

a
t a

n
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l w
ith

 d
is

a
b
ilitie

s
 b

e
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a

n
ie

d
 b

y
 a

n
 

a
tte

n
d

a
n
t. 

(g
) A

n
 e

n
tity

 s
h

a
ll n

o
t re

fu
s
e

 to
 s

e
rv

e
 a

n
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l w
ith

 a
 d

is
a

b
ility

 o
r re

q
u

ire
 a

n
y
th

in
g

 c
o

n
tra

ry
 

to
 th

is
 p

a
rt b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 its
 in

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 c
o

m
p

a
n

y
 c

o
n
d

itio
n
s
 c

o
v
e
ra

g
e

 o
r ra

te
s
 o

n
 th

e
 a

b
s
e

n
c
e

 o
f 

in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
 o

r re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 c
o

n
tra

ry
 to

 th
is

 p
a
rt. 

(h
) It is

 n
o
t d

is
c
rim

in
a
tio

n
 u

n
d

e
r th

is
 p

a
rt fo

r a
n

 e
n
tity

 to
 re

fu
s
e

 to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 a

n
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a

l w
ith

 d
is

a
b
ilitie

s
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 th
a
t in

d
iv

id
u
a

l e
n
g

a
g

e
s
 in

 v
io

le
n
t, s

e
rio

u
s
ly

 d
is

ru
p
tiv

e
, o

r 
ille

g
a

l c
o

n
d

u
c
t, o

r re
p
re

s
e

n
ts

 a
 d

ire
c
t th

re
a
t to

 th
e

 h
e
a

lth
 o

r s
a
fe

ty
 o

f o
th

e
rs

. H
o

w
e

v
e
r, a

n
 

e
n
tity

 s
h

a
ll n

o
t re

fu
s
e

 to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 a

n
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l w
ith

 d
is

a
b
ilitie

s
 s

o
le

ly
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 th
e

 
in

d
iv

id
u
a

l's
 d

is
a

b
ility

 re
s
u

lts
 in

 a
p

p
e
a
ra

n
c
e

 o
r in

v
o

lu
n
ta

ry
 b

e
h

a
v
io

r th
a
t m

a
y
 o

ffe
n
d

, a
n
n

o
y
, 

o
r in

c
o
n

v
e
n

ie
n
c
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 o

f th
e

 e
n

tity
 o

r o
th

e
r p

e
rs

o
n
s
. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7
.5

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 D

 N
o

n
d

is
c
rim

in
a
tio

n
 

T
h
is

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 m
u

s
t a

ls
o

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 in

 lig
h
t o

f th
e

 fa
c
t th

a
t a

n
 e

n
tity

 m
a
y
 re

fu
s
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 to

 
s
o

m
e

o
n

e
 w

h
o

 e
n
g

a
g

e
s
 in

 v
io

le
n
t, s

e
rio

u
s
ly

 d
is

ru
p

tiv
e
, o

r ille
g
a

l c
o

n
d

u
c
t. If a

n
 e

n
tity

 m
a

y
 

le
g
itim

a
te

ly
 re

fu
s
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 to

 s
o

m
e

o
n

e
, it m

a
y
 c

o
n

d
itio

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 h

im
 o

n
 a

c
tio

n
s
 th

a
t w

o
u
ld

 
m

itig
a
te

 th
e

 p
ro

b
le

m
. T

h
e

 e
n

tity
 c

o
u
ld

 re
q
u

ire
 a

n
 a

tte
n
d

a
n
t a

s
 a

 c
o

n
d

itio
n

 o
f p

ro
v
id

in
g

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 it 

o
th

e
rw

is
e

 h
a

d
 th

e
 rig

h
t to

 re
fu

s
e
. 

1
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t re

fra
in

 fro
m

 im
p

o
s
in

g
 s

p
e
c
ia

l c
h

a
rg

e
s
 o

n
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

1
.2

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t re

fra
in

 fro
m

 re
q
u

irin
g

 th
a
t in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 

d
is

a
b
ilitie

s
 b

e
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n

ie
d

 b
y
 a

n
 a

tte
n
d

a
n
t?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

1
.3

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: A
re

 th
e re

c
ip

ie
n
t’s

 p
o
lic

ie
s
 re

g
a

rd
in

g rid
e
r c

o
n
d

u
c
t c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 fix
e

d
 ro

u
te

 a
n

d
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 fo

u
n
d

 w
ith

 D
O

T
 re

q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

1
8

 



 
 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

D
u

rin
g

 th
e

 d
e
s
k
 re

v
ie

w
, T

h
e

H
a

n
d

i-V
a

n R
id

e
r’s

 G
u

id
e

; th
e

 D
T

S
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it P

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 
P

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
, P

o
lic

y
 N

u
m

b
e
r 1

2
.0

3
, “S

e
rv

ic
e

 D
e
n

ia
l D

u
e

 to
 R

id
e
r M

is
c
o

n
d
u

c
t”; a

n
d

 o
n
lin

e
 

in
fo

rm
a
tio

n
 re

g
a

rd
in

g
 fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 u
s
e

 (H
o

w
 to

 R
id

e
) w

e
re

 e
x
a
m

in
e
d

. P
o

lic
ie

s
 re

g
a
rd

in
g

 
s
u

s
p
e

n
s
io

n
 o

f s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

n
 b

o
th

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it a

n
d

 fix
e
d

 ro
u
te

 b
u

s
 w

e
re

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
 w

ith
 D

T
S

 
m

a
n
a

g
e

rs
 d

u
rin

g
 th

e
 s

ite
 v

is
it. 

W
h

ile
 T

h
e

H
a

n
d

i-V
a

n
 rid

e
rs

 m
a

y
 b

e
 s

u
s
p
e

n
d
e

d
 fo

r m
is

c
o

n
d

u
c
t, D

T
S

 h
a
s
 n

o
 p

o
lic

y
 fo

r 
s
u

s
p
e

n
d

in
g

 fix
e

d
 ro

u
te

 rid
e
rs

, c
re

a
tin

g
 a

 p
ro

c
e

d
u
ra

l d
iffe

re
n
c
e

. A
t th

e
 tim

e
 o

f th
e

 s
ite

 v
is

it, D
T

S
 

h
a
d

 d
ra

fte
d

 a
 c

ity
 o

rd
in

a
n

c
e

 a
llo

w
in

g
 fo

r th
e

 s
u

s
p
e

n
s
io

n
 o

f fix
e

d
 ro

u
te

 rid
e
rs

, b
u
t it w

a
s
 n

o
t y

e
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
. 

C
o

rre
c

tiv
e

 A
c

tio
n

 a
n

d
 S

c
h

e
d

u
le

: W
ith

in
 1

2
0

 d
a

y
s
 o

f th
e

 is
s
u
a

n
c
e

 o
f th

e
 fin

a
l re

p
o
rt: 

T
h
e

 re
c
ip

ie
n
t m

u
s
t s

u
b
m

it to
 T

C
R

 a
 p

o
lic

y
 e

n
a

b
lin

g
 th

e
 s

u
s
p
e

n
s
io

n
 o

f fix
e

d
 ro

u
te

 rid
e
rs

 fo
r 

m
is

c
o

n
d

u
c
t a

n
d

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 th
a
t th

is
 p

o
lic

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 im
p

le
m

e
n
te

d
. 

1
.4

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t re

fra
in

 fro
m

 u
s
in

g
 in

s
u
ra

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 lia

b
ility

 
s
tip

u
la

tio
n

s
 a

s
 re

a
s
o

n
s
 to

 d
e

n
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

1
9

 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

2
. S

e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
fu

s
a
l D

u
e
 to

 R
id

e
r C

o
n

d
u

c
t 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.5

 N
o

n
d

is
c
rim

in
a
tio

n
 

(h
) It is

 n
o
t d

is
c
rim

in
a
tio

n
 u

n
d

e
r th

is
 p

a
rt fo

r a
n

 e
n
tity

 to
 re

fu
s
e

 to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 a

n
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a

l w
ith

 d
is

a
b
ilitie

s
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 th
a
t in

d
iv

id
u
a

l e
n
g

a
g

e
s
 in

 v
io

le
n
t, s

e
rio

u
s
ly

 d
is

ru
p
tiv

e
, o

r 
ille

g
a

l c
o

n
d

u
c
t, o

r re
p
re

s
e

n
ts

 a
 d

ire
c
t th

re
a
t to

 th
e

 h
e
a

lth
 o

r s
a
fe

ty
 o

f o
th

e
rs

. H
o

w
e

v
e
r, a

n
 

e
n
tity

 s
h

a
ll n

o
t re

fu
s
e

 to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 a

n
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l w
ith

 d
is

a
b
ilitie

s
 s

o
le

ly
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 th
e

 
in

d
iv

id
u
a

l’s
 d

is
a

b
ility

 re
s
u

lts
 in

 a
p

p
e
a
ra

n
c
e

 o
r in

v
o

lu
n
ta

ry
 b

e
h

a
v
io

r th
a
t m

a
y
 o

ffe
n
d

, a
n
n

o
y
, 

o
r in

c
o
n

v
e
n

ie
n
c
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 o

f th
e

 e
n

tity
 o

r o
th

e
r p

e
rs

o
n
s
. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7

.3
 A

p
p
e

n
d

ix
 D

 D
e

fin
itio

n
s
 

In
 d

e
te

rm
in

in
g

 w
h

e
th

e
r a

n
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l p
o
s
e

s
 a

 d
ire

c
t th

re
a
t to

 th
e

 h
e
a

lth
 o

r s
a

fe
ty

 o
f o

th
e
rs

, a
 

p
u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

 m
u

s
t m

a
k
e

 a
n

 in
d
iv

id
u
a

liz
e

d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t, b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 re

a
s
o

n
a
b

le
 ju

d
g
m

e
n
t th

a
t 

re
lie

s
 o

n
 c

u
rre

n
t m

e
d
ic

a
l k

n
o
w

le
d
g

e
 o

r o
n

 th
e

 b
e
s
t a

v
a
ila

b
le

 o
b
je

c
tiv

e
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
, to

 a
s
c
e

rta
in

: 
th

e
 n

a
tu

re
, d

u
ra

tio
n

, a
n
d

 s
e

v
e
rity

 o
f th

e
 ris

k
; th

e
 p

ro
b
a

b
ility

 th
a
t th

e
 p

o
te

n
tia

l in
ju

ry
 w

ill a
c
tu

a
lly

 
o

c
c
u
r; a

n
d

 w
h
e
th

e
r re

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 m
o

d
ific

a
tio

n
s
 o

f p
o

lic
ie

s
, p

ra
c
tic

e
s
, o

r p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 o

r th
e

 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f a

u
x
ilia

ry
 a

id
s
 o

r s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

ill m
itig

a
te

 th
e

 ris
k
. 

2
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t re

fu
s
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

n
ly

 in
 in

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 a
n

 
in

d
iv

id
u
a

l e
n
g

a
g

e
s
 in

 v
io

le
n
t, s

e
rio

u
s
ly

 d
is

ru
p
tiv

e
, o

r ille
g
a

l c
o

n
d

u
c
t, o

r re
p
re

s
e
n

ts
 a

 d
ire

c
t th

re
a
t 

to
 th

e
 h

e
a

lth
 o

r s
a
fe

ty
 o

f o
th

e
rs

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 fo

u
n
d

 w
ith

 D
O

T
 re

q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

D
u

rin
g

 th
e

 d
e
s
k
 re

v
ie

w
, T

h
e

H
a

n
d

i-V
a

n R
id

e
r’s

 G
u

id
e a

n
d

 T
h

e
H

a
n
d

i-V
a

n
 p

o
lic

y
 1

2
.0

3
 w

e
re

 
e

x
a
m

in
e
d

. R
id

e
r s

u
s
p
e

n
s
io

n
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 w

e
re

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
 w

ith
 O

T
S

 s
ta

ff d
u
rin

g
 th

e
 s

ite
 v

is
it, a

n
d

 a
 

s
a

m
p

le
 o

f s
u

s
p
e

n
s
io

n
 re

c
o

rd
s
 w

e
re

 re
v
ie

w
e

d
. 

T
h
e

 R
id

e
r’s

 G
u

id
e in

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 lis
t o

f p
ro

h
ib

ite
d

 b
e
h
a

v
io

rs
, n

o
t a

ll o
f w

h
ic

h
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a

rily
 ris

e
 to

 th
e

 
le

v
e
l o

f v
io

le
n
t, s

e
rio

u
s
ly

 d
is

ru
p
tiv

e
, o

r ille
g
a

l c
o

n
d

u
c
t, o

r re
p
re

s
e
n

t a
 d

ire
c
t th

re
a
t to

 th
e

 h
e
a

lth
 

o
r s

a
fe

ty
 o

f o
th

e
rs

 (e
.g

., e
a
tin

g
 o

r d
rin

k
in

g
, p

la
y
in

g
 a

n
 a

u
d

io
 d

e
v
ic

e
, ta

k
in

g
 u

p
 m

o
re

 th
a
n

 o
n
e

 
s
e

a
t, litte

rin
g
). T

h
e

 R
id

e
r’s

 G
u

id
e s

ta
te

s
 th

a
t rid

e
rs

 m
a
y
 b

e s
u

s
p
e

n
d

e
d fo

r u
p to 1

2 m
o

n
th

s
 fo

r 
v
io

la
tio

n
 o

f a
n
y
 H

a
n
d

i-V
a
n

 ru
le

s
 a

n
d

 re
g
u

la
tio

n
s
, o

r a
n
y
 o

th
e
r la

w
 o

r ru
le

 re
la

te
d

 to
 T

h
e

H
a

n
d

i-
V

a
n
. In

 p
ra

c
tic

e
, a

s
 n

o
te

d
 b

y
 s

ta
ff a

n
d

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e
d

 in
 th

e
 s

a
m

p
le

 o
f s

u
s
p
e

n
s
io

n
 re

c
o
rd

s
, O

T
S

 
w

o
rk

s
 w

ith
 rid

e
rs

 to
 re

s
o
lv

e
 b

e
h

a
v
io

r is
s
u

e
s
 w

h
e
n
e

v
e
r p

o
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 s
u

s
p

e
n

d
s
 rid

e
rs

 o
n
ly

 fo
r 

c
o

n
d

u
c
t th

a
t is

 v
io

le
n
t, s

e
rio

u
s
ly

 d
is

ru
p
tiv

e
, o

r ille
g
a

l, o
r re

p
re

s
e
n

ts
 a

 d
ire

c
t th

re
a
t to

 th
e

 h
e
a

lth
 

o
r s

a
fe

ty
 o

f o
th

e
rs

. 

C
o

rre
c

tiv
e

 A
c

tio
n

 a
n

d
 S

c
h

e
d

u
le

: W
ith

in
 6

0
 d

a
y
s
 o

f th
e

 is
s
u

a
n

c
e

 o
f th

e
 fin

a
l re

p
o

rt: 

T
h
e

 re
c
ip

ie
n
t m

u
s
t s

u
b
m

it to
 T

C
R

 a
 re

v
is

e
d

 T
h
e

H
a

n
d

i V
a

n R
id

e
r’s

 G
u

id
e th

a
t id

e
n

tifie
s th

e 
s
p

e
c
ific

 m
is

c
o

n
d
u

c
t fo

r w
h

ic
h

 a
 rid

e
r m

a
y
 b

e
 s

u
s
p
e

n
d

e
d

, in
c
lu

d
in

g
 o

n
ly

 b
e
h

a
v
io

r th
a
t is

 
v
io

le
n
t, s

e
rio

u
s
ly

 d
is

ru
p
tiv

e
, o

r ille
g
a

l, o
r re

p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
 d

ire
c
t th

re
a
t to

 th
e

 h
e

a
lth

 o
r s

a
fe

ty
 o

f 
o

th
e

rs
. 

2
0

 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

2
.2

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t (1

) c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

 th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 re

fu
s
a
l d

e
c
is

io
n

 to
 

th
e

 rid
e
r a

n
d

 in
fo

rm
 th

e
 rid

e
r o

f d
u
e

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
, a

n
d

 (2
) p

ro
v
id

e
 th

e
 rig

h
t to

 c
o
n

te
s
t a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

re
fu

s
a

l d
e
c
is

io
n
, c

o
rre

c
t th

e
 s

itu
a
tio

n
, a

n
d

 re
s
u
m

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

2
1

 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

3
. A

D
A

-R
e
la

te
d

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4
9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.1

7
 D

e
s
ig

n
a

tio
n

 o
f re

s
p
o

n
s
ib

le
 e

m
p

lo
y
e
e

 a
n

d
 a

d
o

p
tio

n
 o

f c
o
m

p
la

in
t p

ro
c
e

d
u
re

s
 

(a
) E

a
c
h

 p
u

b
lic

 o
r p

riv
a

te
 e

n
tity

 s
u

b
je

c
t to

 th
is

 p
a
rt s

h
a
ll d

e
s
ig

n
a

te
 a

t le
a
s
t o

n
e

 p
e

rs
o

n
 to

 
c
o

o
rd

in
a
te

 its
 e

ffo
rts

 to
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
ith

 th
is

 p
a
rt. 

(b
) A

d
o
p
tio

n
 o

f c
o
m

p
la

in
t p

ro
c
e

d
u
re

s
. A

n
 e

n
tity

 s
h
a

ll a
d
o

p
t p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 th

a
t in

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

a
p
p

ro
p

ria
te

 d
u
e

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 fo

r th
e

 p
ro

m
p
t a

n
d

 e
q
u

ita
b
le

 re
s
o
lu

tio
n

 o
f 

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 a

lle
g
in

g
 a

n
y
 a

c
tio

n
 p

ro
h
ib

ite
d

 b
y
 th

is
 p

a
rt a

n
d

 4
9

 C
F

R
 P

a
rts

 2
7

, 3
8

 a
n
d

 3
9
. T

h
e

 
p

ro
c
e

d
u
re

s
 s

h
a
ll m

e
e
t th

e
 fo

llo
w

in
g

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

: 
(1

) T
h

e p
ro

c
e
s
s fo

r filin
g a

 c
o

m
p

la
in

t…
m

u
s
t b

e s
u
ffic

ie
n
tly

 a
d
v
e

rtis
e

d to th
e

 p
u

b
lic

, s
u

c
h a

s 
o

n
 th

e
 e

n
tity

's
 W

e
b

 s
ite

. 
(2

) T
h

e
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 to

 a
n
d

 u
s
a

b
le

 b
y
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
. 

(3
) T

h
e

 e
n
tity

 m
u

s
t p

ro
m

p
tly

 c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

 its
 re

s
p

o
n

s
e

 to
 th

e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t a

lle
g
a

tio
n

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 its

 re
a
s
o

n
s
 fo

r th
e

 re
s
p
o

n
s
e
, to

 th
e

 c
o

m
p

la
in

a
n

t a
n
d

 m
u

s
t e

n
s
u
re

 th
a
t it h

a
s
 

d
o
c
u

m
e

n
te

d
 its

 re
s
p
o

n
s
e

. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

2
7
.1

2
1

 C
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e

 in
fo

rm
a
tio

n
 

(b
) C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 re
p
o
rts

. E
a

c
h

 re
c
ip

ie
n
t s

h
a
ll k

e
e
p

 o
n

 file
 fo

r o
n
e

 y
e

a
r a

ll c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 o

f 
n

o
n

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 re
c
e

iv
e

d
. A

 re
c
o

rd
 o

f a
ll s

u
c
h

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
, w

h
ic

h
 m

a
y
 b

e
 in

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

 fo
rm

, 
s
h

a
ll b

e
 k

e
p
t fo

r fiv
e

 y
e

a
rs

. 

3
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t (1

) d
e
s
ig

n
a

te
 a

t le
a
s
t o

n
e

 in
d
iv

id
u
a

l to
 

c
o

o
rd

in
a
te

 A
D

A
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
, (2

) s
u

ffic
ie

n
tly

 a
d
v
e

rtis
e

 to
 th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 h

o
w

 to
 file

 a
n

 A
D

A
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t, 

(3
) m

a
k
e

 th
e

 in
fo

rm
a
tio

n
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 in
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 fo

rm
a
ts

, (4
) h

a
v
e

 a
 m

e
th

o
d

 fo
r in

d
ic

a
tin

g
 

w
h

e
th

e
r a

 c
o
m

p
la

in
t is

 A
D

A
-re

la
te

d
, (5

) p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 p
ro

m
p

t re
s
p
o

n
s
e

 to
 th

e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
a
n

t, a
n
d

 (6
) 

d
o
c
u

m
e

n
t th

e
 re

s
p
o

n
s
e

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

3
.2

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t m

a
in

ta
in

 (1
) A

D
A

-re
la

te
d

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 fo

r a
t le

a
s
t 

o
n
e

 y
e

a
r, a

n
d

 (2
) a

 re
c
o

rd
 o

f a
ll A

D
A

-re
la

te
d

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 fo

r a
t le

a
s
t fiv

e
 y

e
a

rs
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

2
2

 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

4
. S

e
rv

ic
e
 U

n
d

e
r C

o
n

tra
c
t 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3
7

.2
3

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 u

n
d

e
r c

o
n
tra

c
t 

(a
) W

h
e

n
 a

 p
u

b
lic

 e
n
tity

 e
n
te

rs
 in

to
 a

 c
o

n
tra

c
tu

a
l o

r o
th

e
r a

rra
n
g

e
m

e
n
t (in

c
lu

d
in

g
, b

u
t n

o
t 

lim
ite

d
 to

, a
 g

ra
n
t, s

u
b
g
ra

n
t, o

r c
o

o
p

e
ra

tiv
e

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t) o

r re
la

tio
n

s
h
ip

 w
ith

 a
 p

riv
a

te
 e

n
tity

 
to

 o
p

e
ra

te
 fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 o
r d

e
m

a
n
d

 re
s
p
o

n
s
iv

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, th
e

 p
u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

 s
h

a
ll e

n
s
u

re
 th

a
t th

e
 

p
riv

a
te

 e
n
tity

 m
e

e
ts

 th
e

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n

ts
 o

f th
is

 p
a
rt th

a
t w

o
u
ld

 a
p

p
ly

 to
 th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

 if th
e

 
p
u

b
lic

 e
n
tity

 its
e

lf p
ro

v
id

e
d

 th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

(b
) A

 p
riv

a
te

 e
n
tity

 w
h

ic
h

 p
u

rc
h

a
s
e
s
 o

r le
a
s
e

s
 n

e
w

, u
s
e
d
, o

r re
m

a
n

u
fa

c
tu

re
d

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
, o

r 
re

m
a

n
u
fa

c
tu

re
s
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
, fo

r u
s
e
, o

r in
 c

o
n
te

m
p

la
tio

n
 o

f u
s
e
, in

 fix
e

d
 ro

u
te

 o
r d

e
m

a
n
d

 
re

s
p
o

n
s
iv

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
n

d
e
r c

o
n
tra

c
t o

r o
th

e
r a

rra
n
g
e

m
e

n
t o

r re
la

tio
n

s
h
ip

 w
ith

 a
 p

u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

, 
s
h

a
ll a

c
q
u

ire
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
 in

 a
ll s

itu
a
tio

n
s
 in

 w
h
ic

h
 th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

 its
e

lf w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
re

q
u

ire
d

 to
 d

o
 s

o
 b

y
 th

is
 p

a
rt. 

(c
) A

 p
u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

 w
h

ic
h

 e
n
te

rs
 in

to
 a

 c
o

n
tra

c
tu

a
l o

r o
th

e
r a

rra
n
g

e
m

e
n
t (in

c
lu

d
in

g
, b

u
t n

o
t 

lim
ite

d
 to

, a
 g

ra
n
t, s

u
b
g
ra

n
t, o

r c
o

o
p

e
ra

tiv
e

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t) o

r re
la

tio
n

s
h
ip

 w
ith

 a
 p

riv
a

te
 e

n
tity

 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

h
a

ll e
n
s
u

re
 th

a
t th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 o
f a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
 

o
p
e

ra
te

d
 b

y
 th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

 in
 its

 o
v
e

ra
ll fix

e
d

 ro
u

te
 o

r d
e
m

a
n
d

 re
s
p
o

n
s
iv

e
 fle

e
t is

 n
o
t 

d
im

in
is

h
e
d

 a
s
 a

 re
s
u
lt. 

(d
) A

 p
riv

a
te

 e
n
tity

 th
a
t p

ro
v
id

e
s
 fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 o
r d

e
m

a
n
d

 re
s
p
o

n
s
iv

e
 tra

n
s
p
o

rta
tio

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
n

d
e
r 

c
o

n
tra

c
t o

r o
th

e
r a

rra
n
g

e
m

e
n
t (in

c
lu

d
in

g
, b

u
t n

o
t lim

ite
d

 to
, a

 g
ra

n
t, s

u
b
g

ra
n

t, o
r 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

tiv
e

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t) w

ith
 a

n
o

th
e
r p

riv
a

te
 e

n
tity

 s
h

a
ll b

e
 g

o
v
e
rn

e
d
, fo

r p
u

rp
o

s
e

s
 o

f th
e

 
tra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 in
v
o

lv
e

d
, b

y
 th

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
s
 o

f th
is

 p
a
rt a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

 to
 th

e
 o

th
e
r e

n
tity

. 

4
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t h

a
v
e

 p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
 in

 p
la

c
e

 to
 m

o
n
ito

r p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 u
n

d
e
r c

o
n
tra

c
t fo

r c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

2
3

 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

5
. V

e
h

ic
le

 M
a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
, A

c
q

u
is

itio
n

, a
n

d
 A

c
c
e
s

s
ib

ility
 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

):
4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3
7

.1
6

1
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 o
f a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 fe

a
tu

re
s
: g

e
n

e
ra

l 
(a

) P
u

b
lic

 a
n
d

 p
riv

a
te

 e
n
titie

s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 tra
n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 s

h
a

ll m
a

in
ta

in
 in

 o
p
e

ra
tiv

e
 

c
o

n
d

itio
n

 th
o
s
e

 fe
a
tu

re
s
 o

f fa
c
ilitie

s
 a

n
d

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
 th

a
t a

re
 re

q
u

ire
d

 to
 m

a
k
e

 th
e

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
 a

n
d

 
fa

c
ilitie

s
 re

a
d

ily
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 to

 a
n

d
 u

s
a
b

le
 b

y
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
. T

h
e

s
e

 fe
a
tu

re
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e

, b
u
t a

re
 n

o
t lim

ite
d

 to
, lifts

 a
n
d

 o
th

e
r m

e
a
n
s
 o

f a
c
c
e
s
s
 to

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
, s

e
c
u
re

m
e

n
t 

d
e
v
ic

e
s
, e

le
v
a
to

rs
, s

ig
n
a
g

e
 a

n
d

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 to

 fa
c
ilita

te
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
tio

n
s
 w

ith
 p

e
rs

o
n
s
 w

ith
 

im
p

a
ire

d
 v

is
io

n
 o

r h
e
a
rin

g
. 

(b
) A

c
c
e

s
s
ib

ility
 fe

a
tu

re
s
 s

h
a
ll b

e
 re

p
a

ire
d

 p
ro

m
p

tly
 if th

e
y
 a

re
 d

a
m

a
g
e

d
 o

r o
u
t o

f o
rd

e
r. W

h
e

n
 

a
n

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ility
 fe

a
tu

re
 is

 o
u
t o

f o
rd

e
r, th

e
 e

n
tity

 s
h

a
ll ta

k
e

 re
a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 s
te

p
s
 to

 
a

c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

te
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
 w

h
o

 w
o
u

ld
 o

th
e
rw

is
e

 u
s
e

 th
e

 fe
a
tu

re
. 

(c
) T

h
is

 s
e

c
tio

n
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t p

ro
h

ib
it is

o
la

te
d

 o
r te

m
p
o

ra
ry

 in
te

rru
p
tio

n
s
 in

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 o
r a

c
c
e
s
s
 d

u
e

 to
 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 o
r re

p
a

irs
. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7

.1
6

7
 O

th
e
r s

e
rv

ic
e

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 
(e

) T
h

e
 e

n
tity

 s
h

a
ll e

n
s
u

re
 th

a
t v

e
h
ic

le
 o

p
e
ra

to
rs

 a
n
d

 o
th

e
r p

e
rs

o
n
n

e
l m

a
k
e

 u
s
e

 o
f a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

ility
-

re
la

te
d

 e
q
u

ip
m

e
n
t o

r fe
a
tu

re
s
 re

q
u

ire
d

 b
y
 P

a
rt 3

8
 o

f th
is

 title
. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7

.1
6

1
 A

p
p
e

n
d
ix

 D
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 o
f a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 fe

a
tu

re
s
: g

e
n

e
ra

l 
T

h
e

 ru
le

 p
o

in
ts

 o
u
t th

a
t te

m
p

o
ra

ry
 o

b
s
tru

c
tio

n
s
 o

r is
o

la
te

d
 in

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 o

f m
e
c
h

a
n

ic
a

l fa
ilu

re
 

w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t b
e c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d v
io

la
tio

n
s
 o

f th
e A

D
A

 o
r th

is
 ru

le
. R

e
p
a

irs
 m

u
s
t b

e m
a

d
e “p

ro
m

p
tly

.” 
T

h
e

 ru
le

 d
o

e
s
 n

o
t, a

n
d

 p
ro

b
a

b
ly

 c
o

u
ld

 n
o
t, s

ta
te

 a
 tim

e
 lim

it fo
r m

a
k
in

g
 p

a
rtic

u
la

r re
p
a

irs
, g

iv
e

n
 

th
e

 v
a
rie

ty
 o

f c
irc

u
m

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 in

v
o

lv
e

d
. H

o
w

e
v
e
r, re

p
a

irin
g

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 fe

a
tu

re
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 m

a
d
e

 a
 

h
ig

h
 p

rio
rity

. 
N

o
te

: s
e

e
 4

9
 C

F
R

 P
a

rt 3
8

 fo
r a

d
d

itio
n
a

l re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r b

u
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 v
a

n
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r v

e
h
ic

le
s
. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
8

.1
 P

u
rp

o
s
e

 
T

h
is

 p
a
rt p

ro
v
id

e
s
 m

in
im

u
m

 g
u
id

e
lin

e
s
 a

n
d

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n

ts
 fo

r a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

ility
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 in

 P
a

rt 3
7

 
o

f th
is

 title
 fo

r tra
n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
 re

q
u

ire
d

 to
 b

e
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 b

y
 th

e
 A

m
e
ric

a
n
s
 W

ith
 

D
is

a
b
ilitie

s
 A

c
t (A

D
A

) o
f 1

9
9

0
 (4

2
 U

.S
.C

. 1
2
0

1
 e

t s
e

q
.). 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
8

.2
1

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 

(a
) N

e
w

, u
s
e
d

 o
r re

m
a

n
u
fa

c
tu

re
d

 b
u
s
e
s
 a

n
d

 v
a

n
s
 (e

x
c
e
p
t o

v
e

r-th
e
-ro

a
d

 b
u

s
e
s
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 b

y
 

s
u

b
p

a
rt G

 o
f th

is
 p

a
rt), to

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 b

y
 re

g
u

la
tio

n
s
 in

 P
a
rt 3

7
 o

f th
is

 title
 

s
h

a
ll c

o
m

p
ly

 w
ith

 th
e

 a
p
p

lic
a

b
le

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
s
 o

f th
is

 s
u

b
p

a
rt. 

(b
) If p

o
rtio

n
s
 o

f th
e

 v
e

h
ic

le
 a

re
 m

o
d
ifie

d
 in

 a
 w

a
y
 th

a
t a

ffe
c
ts

 o
r c

o
u
ld

 a
ffe

c
t a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

ility
, e

a
c
h

 
s
u

c
h

 p
o
rtio

n
 s

h
a
ll c

o
m

p
ly

, to
 th

e
 e

x
te

n
t p

ra
c
tic

a
b

le
, w

ith
 th

e
 a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
s
 o

f th
is

 
s
u

b
p

a
rt. T

h
is

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 d
o

e
s
 n

o
t re

q
u

ire
 th

a
t in

a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 b

u
s
e

s
 b

e
 re

tro
fitte

d
 w

ith
 lifts

, 
ra

m
p

s
 o

r o
th

e
r b

o
a
rd

in
g

 d
e
v
ic

e
s
. 

N
o

te
: s

e
e

 4
9

 C
F

R
 P

a
rt 3

8
 fo

r a
d
d

itio
n
a

l re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r b

u
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 v
a

n
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r v

e
h
ic

le
s
. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7

.7
7

 
P

u
rc

h
a
s
e

 o
r le

a
s
e

 o
f n

e
w

 n
o
n

-ra
il v

e
h
ic

le
s
 b

y
 p

u
b

lic
 e

n
titie

s
 o

p
e

ra
tin

g
 a

 
d

e
m

a
n
d

 re
s
p
o

n
s
iv

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 fo

r th
e

 g
e
n

e
ra

l p
u
b

lic
. 

(a
) E

x
c
e

p
t a

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 in
 th

is
 s

e
c
tio

n
, a

 p
u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

 o
p
e

ra
tin

g
 a

 d
e
m

a
n
d

 re
s
p
o

n
s
iv

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 fo

r 
th

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

l p
u
b

lic
 m

a
k
in

g
 a

 s
o

lic
ita

tio
n

 a
fte

r A
u

g
u

s
t 2

5
, 1

9
9

0
, to

 p
u
rc

h
a
s
e

 o
r le

a
s
e

 a
 n

e
w

 
b

u
s
 o

r o
th

e
r n

e
w

 v
e

h
ic

le
 fo

r u
s
e

 o
n

 th
e

 s
y
s
te

m
, s

h
a
ll e

n
s
u

re
 th

a
t th

e
 v

e
h
ic

le
 is

 re
a
d

ily
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 to

 a
n
d

 u
s
a

b
le

 b
y
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
, in

c
lu

d
in

g
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

h
o

 u
s
e

 
w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
irs

. 

2
4

 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

(b
) If th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
, w

h
e
n

 v
ie

w
e

d
 in

 its
 e

n
tire

ty
, p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 le
v
e

l o
f s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 

d
is

a
b
ilitie

s
, in

c
lu

d
in

g
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

h
o

 u
s
e

 w
h

e
e

lc
h
a

irs
, e

q
u

iv
a

le
n
t to

 th
e

 le
v
e

l o
f s

e
rv

ic
e

 it 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 to

 in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 w

ith
o
u

t d
is

a
b
ilitie

s
, it m

a
y
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e

 n
e

w
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 th

a
t a

re
 n

o
t re

a
d

ily
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 to

 a
n
d

 u
s
a

b
le

 b
y
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
. 

(c
) F

o
r p

u
rp

o
s
e
s
 o

f th
is

 s
e

c
tio

n
, a

 d
e
m

a
n
d

 re
s
p
o

n
s
iv

e
 s

y
s
te

m
, w

h
e
n

 v
ie

w
e

d
 in

 its
 e

n
tire

ty
, s

h
a
ll 

b
e

 d
e
e

m
e

d
 to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 e

q
u

iv
a

le
n
t s

e
rv

ic
e

 if th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 to
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 

d
is

a
b
ilitie

s
, in

c
lu

d
in

g
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

h
o

 u
s
e

 w
h

e
e

lc
h
a

irs
, is

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 in
 th

e
 m

o
s
t in

te
g
ra

te
d

 
s
e

ttin
g

 a
p
p
ro

p
ria

te
 to

 th
e

 n
e
e

d
s
 o

f th
e

 in
d
iv

id
u
a

l a
n

d
 is

 e
q
u

iv
a

le
n
t to

 th
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 
o

th
e

r in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 re

s
p

e
c
t to

 th
e

 fo
llo

w
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
h

a
ra

c
te

ris
tic

s
: 

(1
) R

e
s
p
o
n

s
e

 tim
e
; 

(2
) F

a
re

s
; 

(3
) G

e
o
g
ra

p
h

ic
 a

re
a

 o
f s

e
rv

ic
e
; 

(4
) H

o
u
rs

 a
n

d
 d

a
y
s
 o

f s
e
rv

ic
e

; 
(5

) R
e

s
tric

tio
n
s
 o

r p
rio

ritie
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 trip

 p
u
rp

o
s
e
; 

(6
) A

v
a

ila
b
ility

 o
f in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 a

n
d

 re
s
e
rv

a
tio

n
s
 c

a
p

a
b

ility
; a

n
d

 
(7

) A
n
y
 c

o
n
s
tra

in
ts

 o
n

 c
a
p

a
c
ity

 o
r s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
v
a

ila
b
ility

. 

5
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t e

n
s
u

re
 th

a
t a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 m

e
e
t th

e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ility
 s

p
e
c
ific

a
tio

n
s
 o

f 4
9

 C
F

R
 P

a
rt 3

8
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 fo

u
n
d

 w
ith

 D
O

T
 re

q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

T
h
e

 re
v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 c
o

n
d

u
c
te

d
 in

s
p
e

c
tio

n
s
 o

f th
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
 u

s
e

d
 b

y
 D

T
S

 fo
r H

a
n
d

i-V
a

n
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
. T

h
e

 re
v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 u
s
e
d
 a

 v
e

h
ic

le
 A

c
c
e

s
s
ib

ility
 C

h
e
c
k
lis

t th
a
t in

c
lu

d
e

s
 th

e
 re

q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 
s
e

t fo
rth

 in
 4

9
 C

F
R

 P
a
rt 3

8
. T

h
e

 re
v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 in
s
p

e
c
te

d
 o

n
e

 v
e

h
ic

le
 fo

r e
a

c
h

 m
o

d
e

l ty
p

e
 in

 u
s
e

 
fo

r p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

. T
h

e
 re

v
ie

w
 te

a
m

 fo
u
n
d

 th
a

t m
o

d
e

l y
e

a
r 2

0
2

4
 F

o
rd

 T
ra

n
s
it V

a
n

 w
a

s
 n

o
t 

c
o

m
p

lia
n
t w

ith
 4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

8
.3

1
(c

). T
h
is

 s
p

e
c
ific

a
tio

n
 re

q
u

ire
s
 th

a
t: 

T
h
e

 v
e

h
ic

le
 d

o
o

rw
a
y
s
, in

c
lu

d
in

g
 d

o
o

rw
a
y
s
 in

 w
h
ic

h
 lifts

 o
r ra

m
p

s
 a

re
 in

s
ta

lle
d
, s

h
a
ll 

h
a
v
e

 o
u

ts
id

e
 lig

h
t(s

) w
h

ic
h

, w
h

e
n

 th
e

 d
o
o

r is
 o

p
e
n

, p
ro

v
id

e
 a

t le
a
s
t 1

 fo
o
t-c

a
n
d

le
 o

f 
illu

m
in

a
tio

n
 o

n
 th

e
 s

tre
e
t s

u
rfa

c
e

 fo
r a

 d
is

ta
n
c
e

 3
 fe

e
t (9

1
5

 m
m

) p
e
rp

e
n

d
ic

u
la

r to
 th

e
 

b
o
tto

m
 s

te
p

 tre
a
d

 o
r lift o

u
te

r e
d
g

e
. S

u
c
h

 lig
h
t(s

) s
h

a
ll b

e
 s

h
ie

ld
e
d

 to
 p

ro
te

c
t th

e
 e

y
e
s
 o

f 
e

n
te

rin
g

 a
n

d
 e

x
itin

g
 p

a
s
s
e

n
g

e
rs

. 

N
e

ith
e
r th

e
 fro

n
t p

a
s
s
e

n
g

e
r d

o
o
r (T

h
e

H
a

n
d

i-V
a

n
 u

s
e
s
 th

e
 fro

n
t p

a
s
s
e

n
g

e
r s

e
a
t fo

r H
a

n
d

i-V
a

n
 

rid
e
rs

) n
o
r th

e
 s

e
c
o
n

d
 s

id
e

 d
o
o

r h
a
d

 th
e

 re
q
u

ire
d

 lig
h
ts

. 

C
o

rre
c

tiv
e

 A
c

tio
n

 a
n

d
 S

c
h

e
d

u
le

: W
ith

in
 6

0
 d

a
y
s
 o

f th
e

 is
s
u

a
n

c
e

 o
f th

e
 fin

a
l re

p
o

rt. 

T
h
e

 re
c
ip

ie
n
t m

u
s
t s

u
b
m

it to
 T

C
R

 a
 p

la
n

 th
a
t p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

 o
f re

tro
fittin

g
 th

e
 2

0
2

4
 

F
o
rd

 T
ra

n
s
it V

a
n
s
 w

ith
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t d

o
o
rw

a
y
 lig

h
ts

. 

5
.2

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t e

n
s
u

re
 th

a
t th

e
re

 is
 a

 s
u
ffic

ie
n
t n

u
m

b
e
r o

f 
a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
 th

a
t m

e
e
t o

r e
x
c
e
e

d
 th

e
 re

q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 4

9
 C

F
R

 P
a

rt 3
8
?

 

2
5

 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

5
.3

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t e

n
s
u

re
 th

a
t v

e
h
ic

le
 o

p
e
ra

to
rs

 a
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
e
rs

o
n
n

e
l m

a
k
e

 u
s
e

 o
f a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

ility
-re

la
te

d
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t o
r fe

a
tu

re
s
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

5
.4

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t (1

) m
a

in
ta

in
 o

p
e
ra

tiv
e

 c
o

n
d

itio
n

 fe
a
tu

re
s
 th

a
t 

m
a

k
e

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
 re

a
d

ily
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 to

 a
n

d
 u

s
a
b

le
 b

y
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
, a

n
d

 (2
) p

ro
m

p
tly

 
re

p
a

ir s
u

c
h

 fe
a
tu

re
s
 if th

e
y
 a

re
 d

a
m

a
g
e

d
 o

r o
u
t o

f o
rd

e
r?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

5
.5

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t h

a
v
e

 a
 v

e
h
ic

le
 a

c
q

u
is

itio
n

 p
o

lic
y
 in

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e

 
w

ith
 4

9
 C

F
R

 S
e

c
tio

n
 3

7
 S

u
b
p

a
rts

 D
 a

n
d
/o

r E
 th

a
t re

q
u

ire
s
 th

a
t c

o
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ry

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

v
e

h
ic

le
s
 a

re
 re

a
d

ily
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 u
s
a

b
le

 b
y
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
, in

c
lu

d
in

g
 w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
ir 

u
s
e
rs

, a
n
d

 a
d
h

e
re

 to
 th

e
 re

q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 in
 4

9
 C

F
R

 P
a

rt 3
8
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

5
.6

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t e

n
s
u

re
 th

a
t th

e
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 a

c
q

u
ire

d
 fo

r 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 m
e

e
t th

e
 re

q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 4

9
 C

F
R

 S
e

c
tio

n
 3

7
 S

u
b
p

a
rts

 D
 

a
n
d

/o
r E

 a
n
d

 4
9

 C
F

R
 P

a
rt 3

8
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e
fic

ie
n
c
y
 w

a
s
 fo

u
n
d

 w
ith

 D
O

T
 re

q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

D
T

S
 a

n
d

 O
T

S
 s

ta
ff in

d
ic

a
te

d
 th

a
t D

T
S

 h
ire

d
 a

n
 o

u
ts

id
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
to

r to
 in

s
p
e

c
t v

e
h
ic

le
s
 p

rio
r to

 
th

e
ir a

c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

 a
n
d

 d
e

liv
e

ry
. H

o
w

e
v
e
r, th

e
s
e

 in
s
p

e
c
tio

n
s
 d

id
 n

o
t id

e
n
tify

 th
e

 fo
llo

w
in

g
 n

o
n

-
c
o

m
p

lia
n
t c

h
a
ra

c
te

ris
tic

 o
f th

e
 m

o
d
e

l y
e

a
r 2

0
2

4
 F

o
rd

 T
ra

n
s
it V

a
n
: 

T
h
e

 v
e

h
ic

le
 d

o
o

rw
a
y
s
, in

c
lu

d
in

g
 d

o
o

rw
a
y
s
 in

 w
h
ic

h
 lifts

 o
r ra

m
p

s
 a

re
 in

s
ta

lle
d
, s

h
a
ll 

h
a
v
e

 o
u

ts
id

e
 lig

h
t(s

) w
h

ic
h

, w
h

e
n

 th
e

 d
o
o

r is
 o

p
e
n

, p
ro

v
id

e
 a

t le
a
s
t 1

 fo
o
t-c

a
n
d

le
 o

f 
illu

m
in

a
tio

n
 o

n
 th

e
 s

tre
e
t s

u
rfa

c
e

 fo
r a

 d
is

ta
n
c
e

 3
 fe

e
t (9

1
5

 m
m

) p
e
rp

e
n

d
ic

u
la

r to
 th

e
 

b
o
tto

m
 s

te
p

 tre
a
d

 o
r lift o

u
te

r e
d
g

e
. S

u
c
h

 lig
h
t(s

) s
h

a
ll b

e
 s

h
ie

ld
e
d

 to
 p

ro
te

c
t th

e
 e

y
e
s
 o

f 
e

n
te

rin
g

 a
n

d
 e

x
itin

g
 p

a
s
s
e

n
g

e
rs

. (4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
8

.3
1
(c

)) 

N
e

ith
e
r th

e
 fro

n
t p

a
s
s
e

n
g

e
r d

o
o
r (T

h
e

H
a

n
d

i-V
a

n
 u

s
e
s
 th

e
 fro

n
t p

a
s
s
e

n
g

e
r s

e
a
t fo

r H
a

n
d

i-V
a

n
 

rid
e
rs

) n
o
r th

e
 s

e
c
o
n

d
 s

id
e

 d
o
o

r h
a
d

 th
e

 re
q
u

ire
d

 lig
h
ts

. 

2
6

 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

C
o

rre
c

tiv
e

 A
c

tio
n

 a
n

d
 S

c
h

e
d

u
le

: W
ith

in
 6

0
 d

a
y
s
 o

f th
e

 is
s
u

a
n

c
e

 o
f th

e
 fin

a
l re

p
o

rt: 

T
h
e

 re
c
ip

ie
n
t m

u
s
t s

u
b
m

it to
 T

C
R

 a
 re

v
is

e
d

 p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

 th
a
t s

e
ts

 fo
rth

 h
o

w
 its

 s
ta

ff o
r its

 
c
o

n
tra

c
to

r w
ill c

o
n
d

u
c
t fu

tu
re

 in
s
p
e

c
tio

n
s
 o

f v
e

h
ic

le
s
, p

a
rtic

u
la

rly
 fo

r th
e
ir c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
ith

 
P

a
rt 3

8
. T

h
e

 re
c
ip

ie
n
t m

u
s
t a

ls
o

 k
e

e
p

 re
c
o
rd

s
 o

f th
e

 v
e
rific

a
tio

n
 o

f c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e

 o
f v

e
h
ic

le
s
 

w
ith

 re
s
p
e

c
t to

 P
a
rt 3

8
 re

q
u
ire

m
e

n
ts

. 

5
.7

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: If th
e

 re
c
ip

ie
n
t u

s
e
s
 a

 m
ix

e
d

 fle
e
t, d

o
e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t e

n
s
u

re
 th

a
t 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 to
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
 w

h
e

n
 n

e
e

d
e

d
, re

g
a

rd
le

s
s
 o

f 
w

h
e
th

e
r o

r n
o
t th

e
 rid

e
r u

s
e
s
 a

 w
h
e

e
lc

h
a
ir?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

2
7

 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

6
. T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt o

f W
h

e
e
lc

h
a
ir U

s
e
rs

 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.3

 D
e

fin
itio

n
s
 

W
h

e
e
lc

h
a
ir m

e
a
n

s
 a

 m
o
b

ility
 a

id
 b

e
lo

n
g

in
g

 to
 a

n
y
 c

la
s
s
 o

f th
re

e
-

o
r m

o
re

-w
h

e
e

le
d

 d
e
v
ic

e
s
, 

u
s
a
b

le
 in

d
o

o
rs

, d
e
s
ig

n
e

d
 o

r m
o

d
ifie

d
 fo

r a
n
d

 u
s
e
d

 b
y
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 m

o
b
ility

 im
p

a
irm

e
n
ts

, 
w

h
e
th

e
r o

p
e
ra

te
d

 m
a

n
u

a
lly

 o
r p

o
w

e
re

d
. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7
.1

6
5

 L
ift a

n
d

 s
e

c
u
re

m
e

n
t u

s
e

 
(b

) E
x
c
e

p
t a

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 in
 th

is
 s

e
c
tio

n
, in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 u

s
in

g
 w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
irs

 s
h

a
ll b

e
 tra

n
s
p

o
rte

d
 in

 th
e

 
e

n
tity

's
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 o

r o
th

e
r c

o
n
v
e

y
a
n

c
e
s
. 

(1
) W

ith
 re

s
p
e
c
t to

 w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir/o

c
c
u
p

a
n
t c

o
m

b
in

a
tio

n
s
 th

a
t a

re
 la

rg
e
r o

r h
e
a

v
ie

r th
a
n

 th
o
s
e

 
to

 w
h
ic

h
 th

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 fo

r v
e

h
ic

le
s
 a

n
d

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t o

f 4
9

 C
F

R
 P

a
rt 3

8
 re

fe
r, th

e
 

e
n
tity

 m
u

s
t c

a
rry

 th
e

 w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir a

n
d

 o
c
c
u

p
a
n
t if th

e
 lift a

n
d

 v
e

h
ic

le
 c

a
n

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d
a
te

 
th

e
 w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
ir a

n
d

 o
c
c
u
p

a
n

t. T
h
e

 e
n
tity

 m
a

y
 d

e
c
lin

e
 to

 c
a
rry

 a
 w

h
e

e
lc

h
a
ir/o

c
c
u
p

a
n

t if 
th

e
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d

 w
e
ig

h
t e

x
c
e

e
d

s
 th

a
t o

f th
e

 lift s
p

e
c
ific

a
tio

n
s
 o

r if c
a

rria
g
e

 o
f th

e
 

w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir is

 d
e
m

o
n
s
tra

te
d

 to
 b

e
 in

c
o
n

s
is

te
n
t w

ith
 le

g
itim

a
te

 s
a

fe
ty

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n

ts
. 

(2
) T

h
e

 e
n
tity

 is
 n

o
t re

q
u

ire
d

 to
 p

e
rm

it [rid
e
rs

 w
h

o
 u

s
e
] w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
irs

 to
 rid

e
 in

 p
la

c
e
s
 o

th
e
r 

th
a
n

 d
e

s
ig

n
a
te

d
 s

e
c
u
re

m
e

n
t lo

c
a
tio

n
s
 in

 th
e

 v
e

h
ic

le
, w

h
e
re

 s
u

c
h

 lo
c
a
tio

n
s
 e

x
is

t. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7

.1
6

5
 A

p
p
e

n
d
ix

 D
 L

ift a
n
d

 s
e

c
u
re

m
e

n
t u

s
e

 
A

 lift c
o

n
fo

rm
in

g to
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 B

o
a
rd re

q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 h
a

s
 a

 p
la

tfo
rm

 m
e

a
s
u
rin

g a
t le

a
s
t 3

0
″ ×

 4
8
″, 

w
ith

 a
 d

e
s
ig

n
 lo

a
d

 o
f a

t le
a
s
t 6

0
0

 p
o
u

n
d

s
 (i.e

., c
a
p

a
b

le
 o

f liftin
g

 a
 w

h
e

e
lc

h
a

ir/o
c
c
u
p

a
n
t 

c
o

m
b

in
a
tio

n
 o

f u
p

 to
 6

0
0

 p
o
u

n
d

s
). W

o
rk

in
g

 p
a
rts

 u
p
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 th

e
 lift d

e
p

e
n
d

s
 fo

r s
u

p
p

o
rt o

f th
e

 
lo

a
d

, s
u

c
h

 a
s
 c

a
b
le

s
, p

u
lle

y
s
, a

n
d

 s
h

a
fts

, m
u

s
t h

a
v
e

 a
 s

a
fe

ty
 fa

c
to

r o
f a

t le
a
s
t s

ix
 tim

e
s
 th

e
 

d
e
s
ig

n
 lo

a
d

; n
o
n

w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
rts

 s
u

c
h

 a
s
 th

e
 p

la
tfo

rm
, fra

m
e
, a

n
d

 a
tta

c
h
m

e
n
t h

a
rd

w
a

re
, w

h
ic

h
 

w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t b
e

 e
x
p
e

c
te

d
 to

 w
e

a
r, m

u
s
t h

a
v
e

 a
 s

a
fe

ty
 fa

c
to

r o
f a

t le
a
s
t th

re
e

 tim
e

s
 th

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 

lo
a
d

. 

If a
 tra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
r h

a
s
 a

 v
e

h
ic

le
 a

n
d

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t th

a
t m

e
e
ts

 o
r e

x
c
e

e
d

s
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 

b
a
s
e

d
 o

n
 A

c
c
e

s
s
 B

o
a
rd

 g
u
id

e
lin

e
s
, a

n
d

 th
e

 v
e

h
ic

le
 a

n
d

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t c

a
n

 in
 fa

c
t s

a
fe

ly
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

te
 a

 g
iv

e
n

 w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir, th

e
n

 it is
 n

o
t a

p
p
ro

p
ria

te
, u

n
d

e
r d

is
a

b
ility

 n
o
n

d
is

c
rim

in
a
tio

n
 

la
w

, fo
r th

e
 tra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
r to

 re
fu

s
e

 to
 tra

n
s
p

o
rt th

e
 d

e
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 its
 u

s
e
r. T

ra
n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 m
u

s
t c

a
rry

 a
 w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
ir a

n
d

 its
 u

s
e
r, a

s
 lo

n
g

 a
s
 th

e
 lift c

a
n

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a
te

 th
e

 s
iz

e
 

a
n
d

 w
e
ig

h
t o

f th
e

 w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir a

n
d

 its
 u

s
e
r a

n
d

 th
e
re

 is
 s

p
a
c
e

 fo
r th

e
 w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
ir o

n
 th

e
 v

e
h

ic
le

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r, if in

 fa
c
t a

 lift o
r v

e
h
ic

le
 is

 u
n
a

b
le

 to
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d
a
te

 th
e

 w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir a

n
d

 its
 u

s
e

r, th
e

 
tra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
r is

 n
o
t re

q
u

ire
d

 to
 c

a
rry

 it. 

F
o
r e

x
a
m

p
le

, s
u

p
p

o
s
e

 th
a

t a
 b

u
s
 o

r p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it v

e
h

ic
le

 lift w
ill s

a
fe

ly
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

te
 a

n
 8

0
0

-
p

o
u

n
d

 w
h
e

e
lc

h
a
ir/p

a
s
s
e
n

g
e

r c
o
m

b
in

a
tio

n
, b

u
t n

o
t a

 c
o

m
b

in
a
tio

n
 e

x
c
e
e

d
in

g
 8

0
0

 p
o

u
n
d

s
 (i.e

., a
 

d
e
s
ig

n
 lo

a
d

 o
f 8

0
0

 lb
s
.). T

h
e

 lift is
 o

n
e

 th
a
t e

x
c
e
e
d

s
 th

e
 p

a
rt 3

8
 d

e
s
ig

n
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
, w

h
ic

h
 re

q
u

ire
s
 

lifts
 to

 b
e

 a
b
le

 to
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

te
 a

 6
0

0
-p

o
u

n
d

 w
h
e

e
lc

h
a
ir/p

a
s
s
e

n
g

e
r c

o
m

b
in

a
tio

n
. T

h
e

 
tra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
r c

o
u
ld

 lim
it u

s
e

 o
f th

a
t lift to

 a
 c

o
m

b
in

a
tio

n
 o

f 8
0
0

 p
o

u
n

d
s
 o

r le
s
s
. 

L
ik

e
w

is
e

, if a
 w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
ir o

r its
 a

tta
c
h
m

e
n
ts

 e
x
te

n
d

s
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 th
e

 3
0

 ×
 4

8
-in

c
h

 fo
o
tp

rin
t fo

u
n

d
 in

 
p

a
rt 3

8
's

 d
e
s
ig

n
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 b

u
t fits

 o
n
to

 th
e

 lift a
n
d

 in
to

 th
e

 w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir s

e
c
u

re
m

e
n
t a

re
a

 o
f th

e
 

v
e

h
ic

le
, th

e
 tra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
r w

o
u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 to
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a
te

 th
e

 w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir. H

o
w

e
v
e
r, if 

s
u

c
h

 a
 w

h
e

e
lc

h
a
ir w

a
s
 o

f a
 s

iz
e

 th
a
t w

o
u
ld

 b
lo

c
k
 a

n
 a

is
le

 a
n

d
 in

te
rfe

re
 w

ith
 th

e
 s

a
fe

 e
v
a
c
u

a
tio

n
 

o
f p

a
s
s
e

n
g

e
rs

 in
 a

n
 e

m
e
rg

e
n

c
y
, th

e
 o

p
e
ra

to
r c

o
u
ld

 d
e

n
y
 c

a
rria

g
e

 o
f th

a
t w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
ir b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 a

 
le

g
itim

a
te

 s
a
fe

ty
 re

q
u

ire
m

e
n
t. 

2
8

 



 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

6
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t re

fra
in

 fro
m

 s
e
ttin

g
 w

e
ig

h
t o

r s
iz

e
 lim

ita
tio

n
s
 fo

r 
w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
irs

 m
e

e
tin

g
 th

e
 d

e
fin

itio
n

 in
 4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3
7
.3

 a
n

d
 P

a
rt 3

8
 th

a
t u

n
d

e
rs

ta
te

 th
e

 a
c
tu

a
l 

c
a

p
a

c
itie

s
 o

f its
 fle

e
t?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e
fic

ie
n
c
y
 w

a
s
 fo

u
n
d

 w
ith

 D
O

T
 re

q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

T
h
e

H
a

n
d

i-V
a

n R
id

e
r’s

 G
u

id
e
, e

lig
ib

ility
 m

a
te

ria
ls

, a
n
d

 e
lig

ib
ility

 d
e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n le
tte

rs
 s

ta
te

 th
a
t 

T
h
e

H
a

n
d

i-V
a

n
 m

a
y
 tra

n
s
p

o
rt, a

t a
 m

in
im

u
m

, o
c
c
u
p

ie
d

 m
o

b
ility

 a
id

s
 w

e
ig

h
in

g
 u

p
 to

 6
0

0
 p

o
u

n
d

s
 

a
n
d

 m
e

a
s
u
rin

g
 3

0
 in

c
h
e

s
 in

 w
id

th
 a

n
d

 4
8

 in
c
h
e

s
 in

 le
n

g
th

, a
n
d

 th
a
t rid

e
rs

 m
a

y
 n

o
t b

e
 a

b
le

 to
 

u
s
e

 th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

ith
 m

o
b
ility

 a
id

s
 th

a
t e

x
c
e
e

d
 th

o
s
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
. In

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 d

u
rin

g
 th

e
 s

ite
 

re
v
ie

w
, D

T
S

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 its
 v

e
h
ic

le
 in

v
e

n
to

ry
 th

a
t s

h
o

w
s
 th

a
t th

e
 lift c

a
p
a

c
ity

 o
f a

p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 5

0
 

p
e
rc

e
n
t o

f th
e

 c
u
rre

n
t fle

e
t is

 8
0
0

 p
o
u

n
d

s
; th

e
 c

a
p

a
c
ity

 o
f th

e
 o

th
e
r a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 5

0
 p

e
rc

e
n
t is

 
1

,0
0

0
 p

o
u

n
d

s
 (o

n
e

 v
e

h
ic

le
 h

a
s
 a

 lift c
a

p
a

c
ity

 o
f 6

6
0

 p
o
u

n
d

s
). V

e
h
ic

le
 in

s
p
e

c
tio

n
s
 c

o
n
d

u
c
te

d
 

d
u
rin

g
 th

e
 s

ite
 v

is
it s

h
o

w
e

d
 th

a
t a

ll lifts
 a

n
d

 s
e

c
u
re

m
e

n
t a

re
a

s
 c

a
n

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

te
 a

 m
o

b
ility

 a
id

 
th

a
t m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 g

re
a
te

r th
a

n
 3

0
 in

c
h
e

s
 b

y
 4

8
 in

c
h
e
s
. 

C
o

rre
c

tiv
e

 A
c

tio
n

 a
n

d
 S

c
h

e
d

u
le

: W
ith

in
 6

0
 d

a
y
s
 o

f th
e

 is
s
u

a
n

c
e

 o
f th

e
 fin

a
l re

p
o

rt: 

T
h
e

 re
c
ip

ie
n
t m

u
s
t s

u
b
m

it to T
C

R
 a

 re
v
is

e
d R

id
e
r’s

 G
u

id
e a

n
d o

th
e
r m

a
te

ria
ls

 fo
r 

T
h
e

H
a

n
d

i-V
a

n
, in

c
lu

d
in

g
 e

lig
ib

ility
 m

a
te

ria
ls

 a
n
d

 s
a

m
p

le
 e

lig
ib

ility
 d

e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
 le

tte
rs

, th
a
t 

re
fle

c
t th

e
 a

c
tu

a
l w

e
ig

h
t a

n
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
 o

f w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
irs

 th
a
t its

 fle
e
t c

a
n

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d
a

te
. 

6
.2

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t re

fra
in

 fro
m

 p
la

c
in

g
 c

o
n
d

itio
n

s
 u

p
o

n
 th

e
 

tra
n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 o
f w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
irs

 th
a
t m

e
e
t th

e
 d

e
fin

itio
n

 in
 4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.3

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

2
9

 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

7
. L

ift/R
a

m
p

 a
n

d
 S

e
c

u
re

m
e

n
t U

s
e

 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4

9
 C

F
R

 
§

3
7
.1

6
5

 L
ift a

n
d

 s
e

c
u

re
m

e
n
t u

s
e

 
(b

) E
x
c
e

p
t a

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 in
 th

is
 s

e
c
tio

n
, in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 u

s
in

g
 w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
irs

 s
h

a
ll b

e
 tra

n
s
p

o
rte

d
 in

 th
e

 
e

n
tity

's
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 o

r o
th

e
r c

o
n
v
e

y
a
n

c
e
s
. 

(1
) W

ith
 re

s
p
e
c
t to

 w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir/o

c
c
u
p

a
n
t c

o
m

b
in

a
tio

n
s
 th

a
t a

re
 la

rg
e
r o

r h
e
a

v
ie

r th
a
n

 th
o
s
e

 
to

 w
h
ic

h
 th

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 fo

r v
e

h
ic

le
s
 a

n
d

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t o

f 4
9

 C
F

R
 P

a
rt 3

8
 re

fe
r, th

e
 

e
n
tity

 m
u

s
t c

a
rry

 th
e

 w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir a

n
d

 o
c
c
u

p
a
n
t if th

e
 lift a

n
d

 v
e

h
ic

le
 c

a
n

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d
a
te

 
th

e
 w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
ir a

n
d

 o
c
c
u
p

a
n

t. T
h
e

 e
n
tity

 m
a

y
 d

e
c
lin

e
 to

 c
a
rry

 a
 w

h
e

e
lc

h
a
ir/o

c
c
u
p

a
n

t if 
th

e
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d

 w
e
ig

h
t e

x
c
e

e
d

s
 th

a
t o

f th
e

 lift s
p

e
c
ific

a
tio

n
s
 o

r if c
a

rria
g
e

 o
f th

e
 

w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir is

 d
e
m

o
n
s
tra

te
d

 to
 b

e
 in

c
o
n

s
is

te
n
t w

ith
 le

g
itim

a
te

 s
a

fe
ty

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n

ts
. 

(2
) T

h
e

 e
n
tity

 is
 n

o
t re

q
u

ire
d

 to
 p

e
rm

it [rid
e
rs

 w
h

o
 u

s
e
] w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
irs

 to
 rid

e
 in

 p
la

c
e
s
 o

th
e
r 

th
a
n

 d
e

s
ig

n
a
te

d
 s

e
c
u
re

m
e

n
t lo

c
a
tio

n
s
 in

 th
e

 v
e

h
ic

le
, w

h
e
re

 s
u

c
h

 lo
c
a
tio

n
s
 e

x
is

t. 
(c

)(1
) F

o
r v

e
h
ic

le
s
 c

o
m

p
ly

in
g

 w
ith

 P
a

rt 3
8

 o
f th

is
 title

, th
e

 e
n
tity

 s
h

a
ll u

s
e

 th
e

 s
e

c
u

re
m

e
n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 to

 s
e
c
u

re
 w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
irs

 a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 in
 th

a
t p

a
rt. 

(2
) F

o
r o

th
e
r v

e
h
ic

le
s
 tra

n
s
p
o

rtin
g

 in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

h
o

 u
s
e

 w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
irs

, th
e

 e
n

tity
 s

h
a
ll p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
n
d

 u
s
e

 a
 s

e
c
u
re

m
e

n
t s

y
s
te

m
 to

 e
n

s
u
re

 th
a
t th

e
 w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
ir re

m
a

in
s
 w

ith
in

 th
e

 
s
e

c
u
re

m
e
n

t a
re

a
. 

(3
) T

h
e

 e
n
tity

 m
a

y
 re

q
u

ire
 th

a
t a

n
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l p
e
rm

it h
is

 o
r h

e
r w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
ir to

 b
e

 s
e

c
u
re

d
. 

(d
) T

h
e

 e
n
tity

 m
a

y
 n

o
t d

e
n

y
 tra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 to
 a

 w
h
e

e
lc

h
a
ir o

r its
 u

s
e

r o
n

 th
e

 g
ro

u
n

d
 th

a
t th

e
 

d
e
v
ic

e
 c

a
n

n
o
t b

e s
e

c
u
re

d
 o

r re
s
tra

in
e
d

 s
a

tis
fa

c
to

rily
 b

y
 th

e v
e

h
ic

le
’s

 s
e
c
u

re
m

e
n

t s
y
s
te

m
. 

(e
) T

h
e

 e
n
tity

 m
a

y
 re

c
o
m

m
e

n
d

 to
 a

 u
s
e
r o

f a
 w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
ir th

a
t th

e
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l tra
n
s
fe

r to
 a

 v
e

h
ic

le
 

s
e

a
t. T

h
e

 e
n
tity

 m
a
y
 n

o
t re

q
u

ire
 th

e
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l to
 tra

n
s
fe

r. 
(f) W

h
e

re n
e
c
e

s
s
a
ry

 o
r u

p
o
n

 re
q
u

e
s
t, th

e e
n
tity

’s
 p

e
rs

o
n
n

e
l s

h
a
ll a

s
s
is

t in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 w

ith
 

d
is

a
b
ilitie

s
 w

ith
 th

e
 u

s
e

 o
f s

e
c
u
re

m
e

n
t s

y
s
te

m
s
, ra

m
p

s
 a

n
d

 lifts
. If it is

 n
e
c
e

s
s
a
ry

 fo
r th

e
 

p
e
rs

o
n
n

e
l to

 le
a
v
e

 th
e
ir s

e
a
ts

 to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 th

is
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

, th
e
y
 s

h
a
ll d

o
 s

o
. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
8

.2
3

 M
o

b
ility

 a
id

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

ility
 

(a
) G

e
n
e
ra

l. A
ll v

e
h
ic

le
s
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 b

y
 th

is
 s

u
b
p

a
rt s

h
a
ll p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 le
v
e

l-c
h

a
n
g

e
 m

e
c
h
a

n
is

m
 o

r 
b

o
a

rd
in

g
 d

e
v
ic

e
 (e

.g
., lift o

r ra
m

p
) c

o
m

p
ly

in
g

 w
ith

 p
a

ra
g
ra

p
h

 (b
) o

r (c
) o

f th
is

 s
e

c
tio

n
 a

n
d

 
s
u

ffic
ie

n
t c

le
a
ra

n
c
e

s
 to

 p
e

rm
it a

 w
h
e

e
lc

h
a
ir o

r o
th

e
r m

o
b
ility

 a
id

 u
s
e
r to

 re
a

c
h

 a
 s

e
c
u

re
m

e
n
t 

lo
c
a
tio

n
. A

t le
a
s
t tw

o
 s

e
c
u

re
m

e
n
t lo

c
a
tio

n
s
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
ic

e
s
, c

o
m

p
ly

in
g

 w
ith

 p
a

ra
g

ra
p

h
 (d

) o
f 

th
is

 s
e

c
tio

n
, s

h
a
ll b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 o
n

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
 in

 e
x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 2
2

 fe
e
t in

 le
n

g
th

; a
t le

a
s
t o

n
e

 
s
e

c
u
re

m
e
n

t lo
c
a
tio

n
 a

n
d

 d
e
v
ic

e
, c

o
m

p
ly

in
g

 w
ith

 p
a

ra
g

ra
p

h
 (d

) o
f th

is
 s

e
c
tio

n
, s

h
a
ll b

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 o
n

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
 2

2
 fe

e
t in

 le
n

g
th

 o
r le

s
s
. 

(b
)(1

1
) B

o
a
rd

in
g

 d
ire

c
tio

n
. T

h
e

 lift s
h

a
ll p

e
rm

it b
o
th

 in
b

o
a

rd
 a

n
d

 o
u
tb

o
a

rd
 fa

c
in

g
 o

f w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir 

a
n
d

 m
o

b
ility

 a
id

 u
s
e
rs

. 
(d

)(7
) S

e
a
t b

e
lt a

n
d

 s
h

o
u
ld

e
r h

a
rn

e
s
s
. F

o
r e

a
c
h

 w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir o

r m
o

b
ility

 a
id

 s
e

c
u
re

m
e
n

t d
e
v
ic

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

, a
 p

a
s
s
e

n
g

e
r s

e
a
t b

e
lt a

n
d

 s
h

o
u

ld
e
r h

a
rn

e
s
s
, c

o
m

p
ly

in
g

 w
ith

 a
ll a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

 
p

ro
v
is

io
n
s
 o

f P
a

rt 5
7
1

 o
f th

is
 title

, s
h

a
ll a

ls
o

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 fo
r u

s
e

 b
y
 w

h
e

e
lc

h
a

ir o
r m

o
b
ility

 
a

id
 u

s
e

rs
. S

u
c
h

 s
e

a
t b

e
lts

 a
n
d

 s
h

o
u

ld
e
r h

a
rn

e
s
s
e
s
 s

h
a
ll n

o
t b

e
 u

s
e

d
 in

 lie
u

 o
f a

 d
e

v
ic

e
 

w
h

ic
h

 s
e

c
u

re
s
 th

e
 w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
ir o

r m
o
b

ility
 a

id
 its

e
lf. 

(g
) T

h
e

 e
n
tity

 s
h

a
ll p

e
rm

it in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
 w

h
o

 d
o

 n
o
t u

s
e

 w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
irs

, in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
ta

n
d

e
e

s
, to

 u
s
e a

 v
e

h
ic

le
’s

 lift o
r ra

m
p to e

n
te

r th
e

 v
e

h
ic

le
. P

ro
v
id

e
d

, th
a
t a

n e
n
tity is

 n
o
t 

re
q
u

ire
d

 to
 p

e
rm

it s
u

c
h

 in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 to

 u
s
e

 a
 lift M

o
d
e

l 1
4
1

 m
a

n
u
fa

c
tu

re
d

 b
y
 E

E
C

, In
c
. If th

e
 

e
n
tity

 c
h

o
o

s
e
s
 n

o
t to

 a
llo

w
 s

u
c
h

 in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 to

 u
s
e

 s
u

c
h

 a
 lift, it s

h
a
ll c

le
a
rly

 n
o
tify

 
c
o

n
s
u

m
e

rs
 o

f th
is

 fa
c
t b

y
 s

ig
n
a

g
e

 o
n

 th
e

 e
x
te

rio
r o

f th
e

 v
e

h
ic

le
 (a

d
ja

c
e

n
t to

 a
n

d
 o

f 
e

q
u

iv
a

le
n
t s

iz
e

 w
ith

 th
e

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ility
 s

y
m

b
o
l). 

3
0

 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

7
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t p

e
rm

it in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a
b

ilitie
s
 to

 b
o

a
rd

 
fa

c
in

g fo
rw

a
rd o

r re
a
rw

a
rd

 o
n

 th
e lift/ra

m
p a

c
c
o
rd

in
g to th

e rid
e
r’s p

re
fe

re
n
c
e

? 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

7
.2

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t a

llo
w

 in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
 to

 (1
) b

o
a
rd

 th
e

 
v
e

h
ic

le
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
ly

 fro
m

 th
e
ir w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
ir o

r o
th

e
r m

o
b
ility

 a
id

 d
e

v
ic

e
 w

h
e
n

 th
e

 o
c
c
u
p

ie
d

 w
e

ig
h
t 

o
f th

e
 d

e
v
ic

e
 e

x
c
e
e

d
s
 th

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 lo

a
d

 o
f th

e
 v

e
h

ic
le

 lift o
r ra

m
p
, a

n
d

 (2
) w

h
e
n

 u
s
in

g
 lifts

, b
o
a

rd
 

a
n
d

 a
lig

h
t fa

c
in

g
 in

w
a

rd
 o

r o
u
tw

a
rd

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

7
.3

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d
a
te

 rid
e
rs

 u
s
in

g
 o

th
e

r m
o

b
ility

 
d

e
v
ic

e
s
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e
fic

ie
n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

7
.4

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o th

e re
c
ip

ie
n
t’s

 p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 p
ra

c
tic

e
s
 p

e
rm

it in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 

d
is

a
b
ilitie

s
 w

h
o

 d
o

 n
o
t u

s
e

 w
h
e

e
lc

h
a
irs

 (i.e
., s

ta
n
d
e

e
s
) to

 u
s
e a v

e
h
ic

le
’s

 lift o
r ra

m
p to e

n
te

r th
e 

v
e

h
ic

le
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

7
.5

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t re

fra
in

 fro
m

 re
q
u

irin
g

 in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

h
o

 u
s
e

 
w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
irs

 to
 w

e
a
r a

 b
o
d

y
 b

e
lt o

r o
th

e
r d

e
v
ic

e
s
 a

s
 a

 c
o

n
d

itio
n

 o
f u

s
in

g
 lifts

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

7
.6

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t (1

) d
e
s
ig

n
a

te
 s

e
c
u
re

m
e

n
t a

re
a

s
 fo

r rid
e
rs

 u
s
in

g
 

w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
irs

, (2
) p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 s
e

c
u

re
m

e
n
t s

y
s
te

m
 th

a
t e

n
s
u
re

s
 th

e
 w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
ir re

m
a

in
s
 w

ith
in

 th
e

 
s
e

c
u
re

m
e
n

t a
re

a
, (3

) re
fra

in
 fro

m
 re

fu
s
in

g
 rid

e
rs

 w
h

o
s
e

 w
h
e

e
lc

h
a
irs

 c
a

n
n
o

t b
e

 s
e

c
u
re

d
 

s
a

tis
fa

c
to

rily
 b

y
 th

e
 s

e
c
u
re

m
e

n
t s

y
s
te

m
, (4

) p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 p
a

s
s
e

n
g

e
r s

e
a
t b

e
lt a

n
d

 s
h

o
u

ld
e
r h

a
rn

e
s
s
 

fo
r u

s
e

 b
y
 w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
ir o

r m
o

b
ility

 a
id

 u
s
e
rs

, a
n
d

 (5
) re

fra
in

 fro
m

 u
s
in

g
 s

e
a
t b

e
lts

 a
n
d

 s
h

o
u

ld
e
r 

h
a
rn

e
s
s
e

s
 w

h
e
n

 th
e

 w
h
e
e

lc
h

a
ir is

 n
o
t s

e
c
u
re

d
?

 3
1

 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

7
.7

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t re

fra
in

 fro
m

 re
q
u

irin
g

 w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir u

s
e
rs

 to
 

tra
n
s
fe

r to
 a

 v
e

h
ic

le
 s

e
a

t?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

7
.8

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t a

s
s
is

t in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a
b

ilitie
s
 w

ith
 th

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

s
e

c
u
re

m
e
n

t s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 ra
m

p
s
/lifts

 w
h

e
re

 n
e

c
e
s
s
a

ry
 o

r u
p
o

n
 re

q
u

e
s
t?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

7
.9

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: If th
e

 re
c
ip

ie
n
t u

s
e
s
 a

 m
ix

e
d

 fle
e
t, d

o
e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t h

a
v
e

 a
 

p
ro

c
e

d
u
re

 fo
r m

o
n
ito

rin
g

 d
is

p
a
tc

h
e
rs

 a
n
d

 e
n
s
u
rin

g
 th

a
t a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
 a

re
 d

is
p

a
tc

h
e
d

 to
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
 w

h
o

 re
q
u

ire
 th

e
m

, re
g
a
rd

le
s
s
 o

f w
h

e
th

e
r o

r n
o

t th
e

 rid
e
r u

s
e
s
 a

 
w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
ir?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

7
.1

0
 In

d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: If th
e re

c
ip

ie
n
t’s

 s
ta

te
 h

a
s
 a m

a
n
d
a

to
ry

 s
e

a
t b

e
lt la

w
, d

o
e

s th
e 

re
c
ip

ie
n
t h

a
v
e

 a
n

 e
x
e

m
p
tio

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
, c

o
n
s
is

te
n

t w
ith

 s
ta

te
 la

w
, fo

r in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
 

fo
r w

h
o
m

 s
e

a
t b

e
lts

 o
r s

h
o
u

ld
e
r h

a
rn

e
s
s
e

s
 p

o
s
e

 a
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
te

d
 h

e
a

lth
 h

a
z
a

rd
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

3
2

 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

8
. P

e
rs

o
n

n
e
l T

ra
in

in
g

 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4
9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.1

7
3

 T
ra

in
in

g
 re

q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 
E

a
c
h

 p
u
b

lic
 o

r p
riv

a
te

 e
n
tity

 w
h

ic
h

 o
p
e

ra
te

s
 a

 fix
e
d

 ro
u
te

 o
r d

e
m

a
n
d

 re
s
p
o
n

s
iv

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 s

h
a
ll 

e
n
s
u

re
 th

a
t p

e
rs

o
n
n

e
l a

re
 tra

in
e
d

 to
 p

ro
fic

ie
n
c
y
, a

s
 a

p
p

ro
p
ria

te
 to

 th
e
ir d

u
tie

s
, s

o
 th

a
t th

e
y
 

o
p
e

ra
te

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
 a

n
d

 e
q
u

ip
m

e
n

t s
a

fe
ly

 a
n
d

 p
ro

p
e

rly
 a

s
s
is

t a
n
d

 tre
a
t in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
 

w
h

o
 u

s
e

 th
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 in
 a

 re
s
p
e

c
tfu

l a
n
d

 c
o

u
rte

o
u

s
 w

a
y
, w

ith
 a

p
p
ro

p
ria

te
 a

tte
n
tio

n
 to

 th
e

 
d

iffe
re

n
c
e

 a
m

o
n
g

 in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
. 

8
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t tra

in
 p

e
rs

o
n
n

e
l, a

s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ria

te
 to

 th
e
ir d

u
tie

s
, to

 
(1

) o
p
e

ra
te

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
 a

n
d

 e
q
u

ip
m

e
n

t s
a

fe
ly

, (2
) s

e
c
u

re
 w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
irs

, (3
) a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d
a
te

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

a
n
im

a
ls

, (4
) p

ro
p

e
rly

 a
s
s
is

t in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
, a

n
d

 (5
) tre

a
t in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
 

w
ith

 re
s
p
e

c
t a

n
d

 c
o

u
rte

s
y
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

8
.2

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t m

o
n
ito

r its
 o

p
e
ra

tio
n

s
 fo

r c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e

 w
ith

 A
D

A
 

re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 to
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 th

e
 s

u
ffic

ie
n
c
y
 o

f its
 tra

in
in

g
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

3
3

 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

9
. S

e
rv

ic
e
 A

n
im

a
ls

 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4
9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.3

 D
e

fin
itio

n
s
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
im

a
l m

e
a
n

s
 a

n
y
 g

u
id

e
 d

o
g
, s

ig
n
a

l d
o
g
, o

r o
th

e
r a

n
im

a
l in

d
iv

id
u
a

lly
 tra

in
e
d

 to
 w

o
rk

 o
r 

p
e
rfo

rm
 ta

s
k
s
 fo

r a
n

 in
d
iv

id
u
a

l w
ith

 a
 d

is
a

b
ility

, in
c
lu

d
in

g
, b

u
t n

o
t lim

ite
d

 to
, g

u
id

in
g

 in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 

w
ith

 im
p

a
ire

d
 v

is
io

n
, a

le
rtin

g
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 im

p
a
ire

d
 h

e
a
rin

g
 to

 in
tru

d
e
rs

 o
r s

o
u
n

d
s
, p

ro
v
id

in
g

 
m

in
im

a
l p

ro
te

c
tio

n
 o

r re
s
c
u

e
 w

o
rk

, p
u
llin

g
 a

 w
h
e

e
lc

h
a
ir, o

r fe
tc

h
in

g
 d

ro
p
p

e
d

 ite
m

s
. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7
.1

6
7

 O
th

e
r s

e
rv

ic
e

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 
(d

) T
h

e
 e

n
tity

 s
h

a
ll p

e
rm

it s
e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

im
a

ls
 to

 a
c
c
o
m

p
a
n

y
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
 in

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
 

a
n
d

 fa
c
ilitie

s
. 

9
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t (1

) u
s
e

 th
e

 D
O

T
 d

e
fin

itio
n

 o
f s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

im
a

l a
n
d

 
re

fra
in

 fro
m

 lim
itin

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

im
a

ls
 to

 d
o

g
s
 o

r in
c
lu

d
in

g
 b

re
e

d
-s

p
e
c
ific

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
s
, a

n
d

 
(2

) re
fra

in
 fro

m
 im

p
o
s
in

g
 c

o
n
d

itio
n
s
 u

p
o

n
 th

e
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d
a
tio

n
 o

f s
e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

im
a

ls
 in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

id
e
n

tific
a
tio

n
 c

a
rd

s
 o

r c
e
rtific

a
tio

n
, le

a
s
h

e
s
, h

a
rn

e
s
s
e

s
, m

u
z
z
le

s
, o

r c
a

rrie
rs

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

3
4

 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

1
0
. P

e
rs

o
n

a
l C

a
re

 A
tte

n
d

a
n

ts
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
p

a
n

io
n

s
 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.1

2
3

 A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

ility
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 

(f) In
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n
y
in

g
 a

n
 A

D
A

 p
a
ra

tra
n

s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l s
h

a
ll b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

s
 

fo
llo

w
s
: 

(1
) O

n
e

 o
th

e
r in

d
iv

id
u
a

l a
c
c
o
m

p
a
n

y
in

g
 th

e
 A

D
A

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l s
h

a
ll b

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e

—
 

(i) If th
e

 A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l is
 tra

v
e
lin

g
 w

ith
 a

 p
e
rs

o
n
a

l c
a

re
 a

tte
n
d

a
n
t, th

e
 

e
n
tity

 s
h

a
ll p

ro
v
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 o

n
e

 o
th

e
r in

d
iv

id
u
a

l in
 a

d
d

itio
n

 to
 th

e
 a

tte
n
d
a

n
t w

h
o

 is
 

a
c
c
o
m

p
a
n

y
in

g
 th

e
 e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l; 
(ii) A

 fa
m

ily
 m

e
m

b
e
r o

r frie
n
d

 is
 re

g
a
rd

e
d

 a
s
 a

 p
e
rs

o
n

 a
c
c
o
m

p
a
n

y
in

g
 th

e
 e

lig
ib

le
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a

l, a
n
d

 n
o

t a
s
 a

 p
e

rs
o

n
a

l c
a
re

 a
tte

n
d

a
n
t, u

n
le

s
s
 th

e
 fa

m
ily

 m
e
m

b
e
r o

r frie
n
d

 
re

g
is

te
re

d
 is

 a
c
tin

g
 in

 th
e

 c
a

p
a

c
ity

 o
f a

 p
e
rs

o
n
a

l c
a

re
 a

tte
n
d

a
n
t; 

(2
) A

d
d
itio

n
a

l in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n

y
in

g
 th

e
 A

D
A

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l s
h

a
ll b

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e

, p
ro

v
id

e
d

 th
a
t s

p
a
c
e

 is
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 fo
r th

e
m

 o
n

 th
e

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it v

e
h
ic

le
 

c
a

rry
in

g
 th

e
 A

D
A

 p
a
ra

tra
n

s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l a
n

d
 th

a
t tra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 o
f th

e
 a

d
d

itio
n
a

l 
in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ill n
o
t re

s
u
lt in

 a
 d

e
n

ia
l o

f s
e

rv
ic

e
 to

 A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
; 

(3
) In o

rd
e
r to

 b
e c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

s ‘a
c
c
o
m

p
a
n
y
in

g
’ th

e e
lig

ib
le

 in
d

iv
id

u
a

l fo
r p

u
rp

o
s
e

s
 o

f th
is

 
p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h

 (f), th
e

 o
th

e
r in

d
iv

id
u
a

l(s
) s

h
a
ll h

a
v
e

 th
e

 s
a

m
e

 o
rig

in
 a

n
d

 d
e
s
tin

a
tio

n
 a

s
 th

e
 

e
lig

ib
le

 in
d

iv
id

u
a

l. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7
.1

2
5

 A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

ility
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 

(i) In
 a

p
p

lic
a

tio
n

s
 fo

r A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

ility
, th

e
 e

n
tity

 m
a

y
 re

q
u

ire
 th

e
 a

p
p

lic
a

n
t to

 
in

d
ic

a
te

 w
h

e
th

e
r o

r n
o
t h

e
 o

r s
h

e
 tra

v
e
ls

 w
ith

 a
 p

e
rs

o
n
a

l c
a

re
 a

tte
n
d

a
n
t. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7
.1

3
1

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 c

rite
ria

 fo
r c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

(c
)(3

) A
 p

e
rs

o
n
a

l c
a
re

 a
tte

n
d

a
n

t s
h

a
ll n

o
t b

e
 c

h
a
rg

e
d

 fo
r c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7
.5

 N
o

n
d

is
c
rim

in
a
tio

n
 

(e
) A

n
 e

n
tity

 s
h

a
ll n

o
t re

q
u

ire
 th

a
t a

n
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l w
ith

 d
is

a
b
ilitie

s
 b

e
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a

n
ie

d
 b

y
 a

n
 

a
tte

n
d

a
n
t. 

1
0
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t (1

) h
a
v
e

 a
n

 e
lig

ib
ility

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 th

a
t o

n
ly

 re
c
o

rd
s
 

w
h

e
th

e
r o

r n
o
t a

n
 e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l tra
v
e
ls

 w
ith

 a
 P

C
A

 (i.e
., th

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t in

c
lu

d
e

 
“a

p
p

ro
v
a

l” o
f th

e u
s
e o

f a P
C

A
, a

p
p
ro

v
e o

r re
q
u

ire a
 s

p
e

c
ific

 P
C

A
, o

r re
g
u

la
te

 in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

h
o 

m
a

y
 s

e
rv

e
 a

s
 a

 P
C

A
), (2

) a
llo

w
 re

c
ip

ie
n
ts

 w
h

o
 in

d
ic

a
te

 th
a
t th

e
y
 tra

v
e
l w

ith
 a

 P
C

A
 to

 tra
v
e
l w

ith
 

o
r w

ith
o
u
t a

 P
C

A
, (3

) h
a
v
e

 a
n

 e
lig

ib
ility

 p
ro

c
e

s
s th

a
t d

o
e

s n
o
t re

q
u

ire
 a rid

e
r’s

 P
C

A
 to p

ro
v
id

e 
a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

 w
ith

 b
o
a

rd
in

g
, d

is
e
m

b
a
rk

in
g
, o

r th
e

 tra
v
e

l p
ro

c
e

s
s
, a

n
d

 (4
) a

llo
w

 rid
e
rs

 u
s
in

g
 P

C
A

s
 

to
 b

e
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n

ie
d

 b
y
 d

iffe
re

n
t P

C
A

s
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

1
0
.2

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t (1

) a
llo

w
 a

t le
a
s
t o

n
e

 c
o
m

p
a
n

io
n

 to
 a

c
c
o

m
p

a
n
y
 

a
n

 e
lig

ib
le

 rid
e
r, in

c
lu

d
in

g
 w

h
e
n

 th
e

 e
lig

ib
le

 rid
e
r is

 tra
v
e
llin

g
 w

ith
 a

 P
C

A
, a

n
d

 (2
) p

e
rm

it a
n
 

e
lig

ib
le

 rid
e
r a

d
d

itio
n
a

l c
o

m
p

a
n

io
n
s
 o

n
 a

 s
p

a
c
e

-a
v
a

ila
b
le

 b
a

s
is

?
 

3
5

 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

1
0
.3

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t e

n
s
u
re

 th
a
t (1

) c
o
m

p
a
n

io
n

 rid
e
rs

 
a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n

y
in

g
 e

lig
ib

le
 rid

e
rs

 a
re

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 n
o

 m
o

re
 th

a
n

 th
e

 fa
re

 o
f th

e
 e

lig
ib

le
 rid

e
rs

 th
e
y
 a

re
 

a
c
c
o
m

p
a
n

y
in

g
, a

n
d

 (2
) P

C
A

s
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n
y
in

g
 e

lig
ib

le
 rid

e
rs

 a
re

 n
o
t c

h
a
rg

e
d

 a
 fa

re
 o

n
 A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e
?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

3
6

 



 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

1
1
. R

e
a
s
o

n
a
b

le
 M

o
d

ific
a
tio

n
s
 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.1

6
9

 P
ro

c
e
s
s
 to

 b
e

 u
s
e

d
 b

y
 p

u
b

lic
 e

n
titie

s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 d
e
s
ig

n
a

te
d

 p
u

b
lic

 
tra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 in
 c

o
n
s
id

e
rin

g
 re

q
u

e
s
ts

 fo
r re

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 m
o

d
ific

a
tio

n
 

(a
)(1

) A
 p

u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 d
e
s
ig

n
a

te
d

 p
u
b

lic
 tra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n
, in

 m
e

e
tin

g
 th

e
 re

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 
m

o
d
ific

a
tio

n
 re

q
u

ire
m

e
n
t o

f §
3
7

.5
(i)(3

) w
ith

 re
s
p
e
c
t to

 its
 fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

, d
e
m

a
n
d

 re
s
p
o

n
s
iv

e
, 

a
n
d

 c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

s
, s

h
a
ll re

s
p

o
n

d
 to

 re
q
u

e
s
ts

 fo
r re

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 
m

o
d
ific

a
tio

n
 to

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ra

c
tic

e
s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t w

ith
 th

is
 s

e
c
tio

n
. 

(2
) T

h
e

 p
u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

 s
h

a
ll m

a
k
e

 in
fo

rm
a
tio

n
 a

b
o

u
t h

o
w

 to
 c

o
n
ta

c
t th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

 to
 m

a
k
e

 
re

q
u

e
s
ts

 fo
r re

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 m
o

d
ific

a
tio

n
s
 re

a
d

ily
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 to
 th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 th

ro
u
g
h

 th
e

 s
a

m
e

 
m

e
a
n

s
 it u

s
e
s
 to

 in
fo

rm
 th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

b
o

u
t its

 p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 p
ra

c
tic

e
s
. 

(3
) T

h
is

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 s

h
a
ll b

e
 in

 o
p

e
ra

tio
n

 n
o

 la
te

r th
a
n

 J
u

ly
 1

3
, 2

0
1

5
. 

(b
) T

h
e

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 s

h
a
ll p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 m
e

a
n

s
, a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 to

 a
n
d

 u
s
a

b
le

 b
y
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
, 

to
 re

q
u

e
s
t a

 m
o

d
ific

a
tio

n in
 th

e e
n
tity

’s
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 p
ra

c
tic

e
s
 a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

 to its
 tra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

(1
) In

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 re

q
u

e
s
tin

g
 m

o
d
ific

a
tio

n
s
 s

h
a
ll d

e
s
c
rib

e
 w

h
a
t th

e
y
 n

e
e

d
 in

 o
rd

e
r to

 u
s
e

 th
e

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

(2
) In

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 re

q
u

e
s
tin

g
 m

o
d
ific

a
tio

n
s
 a

re
 n

o
t re

q
u

ire
d to u

s
e th

e te
rm

 ‘re
a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 
m

o
d
ific

a
tio

n
’ w

h
e
n

 m
a

k
in

g a
 re

q
u

e
s
t. 

(3
) W

h
e

n
e

v
e
r fe

a
s
ib

le
, re

q
u

e
s
ts

 fo
r m

o
d
ific

a
tio

n
s
 s

h
a
ll b

e
 m

a
d
e

 a
n

d
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 in
 

a
d
v
a

n
c
e

, b
e
fo

re
 th

e
 tra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
r is

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 th

e
 m

o
d

ifie
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

fo
r e

x
a
m

p
le

, d
u
rin

g
 th

e
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

ility
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
, th

ro
u

g
h

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r s
e

rv
ic

e
 

in
q
u

irie
s
, o

r th
ro

u
g

h th
e e

n
tity

’s
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

(4
) W

h
e

re
 a

 re
q
u

e
s
t fo

r m
o

d
ific

a
tio

n
 c

a
n
n

o
t p

ra
c
tic

a
b
ly

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 a
n
d

 d
e
te

rm
in

e
d

 in
 

a
d
v
a

n
c
e

 (e
.g

., b
e
c
a

u
s
e

 o
f a

 c
o

n
d

itio
n

 o
r b

a
rrie

r a
t th

e
 d

e
s
tin

a
tio

n
 o

f a
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it o

r 
fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 trip
 o

f w
h

ic
h

 th
e

 in
d
iv

id
u
a

l w
ith

 a
 d

is
a

b
ility

 w
a

s
 u

n
a

w
a

re
 u

n
til a

rriv
in

g
), 

o
p
e

ra
tin

g
 p

e
rs

o
n
n

e
l o

f th
e

 e
n

tity
 s

h
a
ll m

a
k
e

 a
 d

e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
 o

f w
h

e
th

e
r th

e
 m

o
d
ific

a
tio

n
 

s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 a
t th

e
 tim

e
 o

f th
e

 re
q
u

e
s
t. O

p
e

ra
tin

g
 p

e
rs

o
n
n

e
l m

a
y
 c

o
n
s
u

lt w
ith

 th
e

 
e

n
tity

’s
 m

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t b

e
fo

re
 m

a
k
in

g a d
e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n to g
ra

n
t o

r d
e
n

y th
e re

q
u

e
s
t. 

(c
) R

e
q
u

e
s
ts fo

r m
o

d
ific

a
tio

n o
f a

 p
u

b
lic

 e
n
tity

’s p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ra

c
tic

e
s
 m

a
y
 b

e d
e
n

ie
d o

n
ly

 o
n 

o
n
e

 o
r m

o
re

 o
f th

e
 fo

llo
w

in
g

 g
ro

u
n

d
s
: 

(1
) G

ra
n
tin

g th
e re

q
u

e
s
t w

o
u
ld

 fu
n
d

a
m

e
n
ta

lly
 a

lte
r th

e n
a
tu

re o
f th

e e
n
tity

’s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

p
ro

g
ra

m
s
, o

r a
c
tiv

itie
s
; 

(2
) G

ra
n
tin

g
 th

e
 re

q
u

e
s
t w

o
u
ld

 c
re

a
te

 a
 d

ire
c
t th

re
a
t to

 th
e

 h
e
a

lth
 o

r s
a
fe

ty
 o

f o
th

e
rs

; 
(3

) W
ith

o
u
t th

e
 re

q
u

e
s
te

d
 m

o
d
ific

a
tio

n
, th

e
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l w
ith

 a
 d

is
a

b
ility

 is
 a

b
le

 to
 fu

lly
 u

s
e

 th
e

 
e

n
tity

’s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
, p

ro
g
ra

m
s
, o

r a
c
tiv

itie
s
 fo

r th
e
ir in

te
n

d
e
d

 p
u
rp

o
s
e

. 
(d

) In
 d

e
te

rm
in

in
g

 w
h

e
th

e
r to

 g
ra

n
t a

 re
q
u

e
s
te

d
 m

o
d
ific

a
tio

n
, p

u
b

lic
 e

n
titie

s
 s

h
a

ll b
e

 g
u
id

e
d

 b
y
 

th
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
s
 o

f A
p

p
e

n
d
ix

 E
 to

 th
is

 p
a
rt. 

(e
) In

 a
n
y
 c

a
s
e

 in
 w

h
ic

h
 a

 p
u

b
lic

 e
n
tity

 d
e
n

ie
s
 a

 re
q
u

e
s
t fo

r a
 re

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 m
o

d
ific

a
tio

n
, th

e
 

e
n
tity

 s
h

a
ll ta

k
e
, to

 th
e

 m
a

x
im

u
m

 e
x
te

n
t p

o
s
s
ib

le
, a

n
y
 o

th
e
r a

c
tio

n
s
 (th

a
t w

o
u
ld

 n
o

t re
s
u
lt in

 
a

 d
ire

c
t th

re
a
t o

r fu
n
d

a
m

e
n
ta

l a
lte

ra
tio

n
) to

 e
n
s
u

re
 th

a
t th

e
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l w
ith

 a
 d

is
a

b
ility

 
re

c
e
iv

e
s
 th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 o

r b
e
n

e
fit p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 th

e
 e

n
tity

. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

2
7
.7

 D
is

c
rim

in
a

tio
n

 p
ro

h
ib

ite
d

 
(e

) R
e

a
s
o
n

a
b

le
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

tio
n

s
. A

 re
c
ip

ie
n
t s

h
a
ll m

a
k
e

 re
a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a
tio

n
s
 in

 
p

o
lic

ie
s
, p

ra
c
tic

e
s
, o

r p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 w

h
e
n

 s
u

c
h

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a
tio

n
s
 a

re
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a

ry
 to

 a
v
o

id
 

d
is

c
rim

in
a
tio

n
 o

n
 th

e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f d

is
a

b
ility

 u
n
le

s
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t c

a
n

 d
e
m

o
n
s
tra

te
 th

a
t m

a
k
in

g
 

th
e

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

tio
n

s
 w

o
u
ld

 fu
n
d

a
m

e
n
ta

lly
 a

lte
r th

e
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f th
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e

, p
ro

g
ra

m
, o

r 

3
7

 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

a
c
tiv

ity
 o

r re
s
u
lt in

 a
n

 u
n
d

u
e

 fin
a
n

c
ia

l a
n
d

 a
d
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e
 b

u
rd

e
n

. F
o
r th

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

s
 o

f th
is

 
s
e

c
tio

n
, th

e
 te

rm
 re

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d
a

tio
n

 s
h

a
ll b

e
 in

te
rp

re
te

d
 in

 a
 m

a
n
n

e
r c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

w
ith

 th
e te

rm
 “re

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 m
o

d
ific

a
tio

n
s
” a

s
 s

e
t fo

rth in
 th

e A
m

e
ric

a
n
s
 w

ith D
is

a
b
ilitie

s
 A

c
t 

title
 II re

g
u

la
tio

n
s
 a

t 2
8

 C
F

R
 §

3
5
.1

3
0

(b
)(7

), a
n
d

 n
o

t a
s
 it is

 d
e
fin

e
d

 o
r in

te
rp

re
te

d
 fo

r th
e

 
p

u
rp

o
s
e

s
 o

f e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t d

is
c
rim

in
a
tio

n
 u

n
d

e
r T

itle
 I o

f th
e

 A
D

A
 (4

2
 U

S
C

 1
2
1

1
1

-1
2
1

1
2

) a
n
d

 
its

 im
p

le
m

e
n
tin

g
 re

g
u

la
tio

n
s
 a

t 2
9

 C
F

R
 P

a
rt 1

6
3

0
. 

1
1
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t 1

) m
a

k
e

 in
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 a
b

o
u
t h

o
w

 to
 m

a
k
e

 
re

q
u

e
s
ts

 fo
r re

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 m
o

d
ific

a
tio

n
s
 re

a
d

ily
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 to
 th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 th

ro
u
g
h

 th
e

 s
a

m
e

 m
e

a
n

s
 it 

u
s
e
s
 to

 in
fo

rm
 th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

b
o

u
t its

 p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 p
ra

c
tic

e
s
 a

n
d

 2
) n

o
t re

q
u

ire
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 to

 u
s
e

 th
e

 
te

rm
 “re

a
s
o

n
a

b
le m

o
d
ific

a
tio

n
” w

h
e
n m

a
k
in

g a
 re

q
u
e

s
t? 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

1
1
.2

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t re

s
p
o

n
d

 to
 re

q
u

e
s
ts

 fo
r re

a
s
o
n

a
b

le
 

m
o

d
ific

a
tio

n
 in

 a
d
v
a

n
c
e

 o
f th

e
 n

e
e

d
 fo

r m
o

d
ifie

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 (w
h

e
re

 p
o

s
s
ib

le
) a

n
d

 a
t th

e
 tim

e
 o

f th
e

 
re

q
u

e
s
t?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

1
1
.3

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t (1

) fo
llo

w
 4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.1

6
9

(c
) w

h
e
n

 d
e

n
y
in

g
 

re
q
u

e
s
ts

 fo
r m

o
d
ific

a
tio

n
s
, a

n
d

 (2
) ta

k
e

 a
c
tio

n
 to

 e
n
s
u

re
 th

a
t in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
 re

c
e
iv

e
 

th
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 o

r b
e
n

e
fit p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 th

e
 a

g
e

n
c
y
 in

 in
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 w

h
e
re

 m
o

d
ific

a
tio

n
 re

q
u

e
s
ts

 a
re

 
d

e
n

ie
d
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

3
8

 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

1
2
. A

c
c
e
s

s
ib

le
 In

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.1

2
5

 A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

ility
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 

(b
) A

ll in
fo

rm
a
tio

n
 a

b
o

u
t th

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
, m

a
te

ria
ls

 n
e

c
e
s
s
a

ry
 to

 a
p
p

ly
 fo

r e
lig

ib
ility

, a
n
d

 n
o

tic
e

s
 

a
n
d

 d
e

te
rm

in
a
tio

n
s
 c

o
n
c
e

rn
in

g
 e

lig
ib

ility
 s

h
a
ll b

e
 m

a
d
e

 a
v
a

ila
b
le

 in
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 fo

rm
a

ts
, 

u
p
o

n
 re

q
u

e
s
t. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7
.1

2
5

 A
p

p
e

n
d
ix

 D
 A

D
A

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

ility
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 

T
o

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a
te

 th
e
m

, a
ll d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 c
o

n
c
e
rn

in
g

 e
lig

ib
ility

 m
u

s
t b

e
 m

a
d
e

 a
v
a

ila
b
le

 in
 o

n
e

 o
r 

m
o

re
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 fo

rm
a

ts
, o

n
 re

q
u

e
s
t. A

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 fo

rm
a
ts

 in
c
lu

d
e

 c
o

m
p

u
te

r d
is

k
s
, b

ra
ille

 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

, a
u
d

io
 c

a
s
s
e
tte

s
, a

n
d

 la
rg

e
 p

rin
t d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

. A
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t d

o
e

s
 n

o
t n

e
c
e

s
s
a
rily

 
n

e
e

d
 to

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 a
v
a

ila
b
le

 in
 th

e
 fo

rm
a
t a

 re
q
u

e
s
te

r p
re

fe
rs

, b
u
t it d

o
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 to
 b

e
 m

a
d
e

 
a

v
a
ila

b
le

 in
 a

 fo
rm

a
t th

e
 p

e
rs

o
n

 c
a

n
 u

s
e
. T

h
e
re

 is
 n

o
 u

s
e

 g
iv

in
g

 a
 c

o
m

p
u
te

r d
is

k
 to

 s
o

m
e

o
n

e
 

w
h

o
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t h

a
v
e

 a
 c

o
m

p
u
te

r, fo
r in

s
ta

n
c
e

, o
r a

 b
ra

ille
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t to

 a
 p

e
rs

o
n

 w
h

o
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

re
a
d

 b
ra

ille
. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7
.1

6
7

 O
th

e
r s

e
rv

ic
e

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 
(f) T

h
e

 e
n
tity

 s
h

a
ll m

a
k
e

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 to
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

 in
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
in

g
 tra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. T

h
is

 o
b
lig

a
tio

n
 in

c
lu

d
e

s
 m

a
k
in

g
 a

d
e

q
u
a

te
 

c
o

m
m

u
n
ic

a
tio

n
s
 c

a
p
a
c
ity

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

, th
ro

u
g

h
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 fo

rm
a

ts
 a

n
d

 te
c
h
n
o

lo
g
y
, to

 e
n
a

b
le

 
u
s
e

rs
 to

 o
b
ta

in
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 a

n
d

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

1
2
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t p

ro
v
id

e
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 in

 a
lte

rn
a
tiv

e
 fo

rm
a
ts

 u
p
o

n
 

re
q
u

e
s
t?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

1
2
.2

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t e

n
s
u
re

 th
a
t p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
tio

n
s
 a

n
d

 
m

a
te

ria
ls

 (e
.g

., w
e

b
s
ite

s
, a

u
d

io
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
tio

n
s
) a

re
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

 fo
r in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
 to

 
u

s
e

 th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

3
9

 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

1
3
. O

rig
in

-to
-D

e
s
tin

a
tio

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.3

 D
e

fin
itio

n
s
 

O
rig

in
-to

-d
e
s
tin

a
tio

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 m
e

a
n

s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 fro

m
 a

 p
a

s
s
e

n
g

e
r's

 o
rig

in
 to

 th
e

 
p

a
s
s
e

n
g

e
r's

 d
e
s
tin

a
tio

n
. A

 p
ro

v
id

e
r m

a
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
 A

D
A

 c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it in

 a
 c

u
rb

-to
-

c
u

rb
 o

r d
o
o
r-to

-d
o
o
r m

o
d
e

. W
h

e
n

 a
n

 A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n

s
it o

p
e

ra
to

r c
h

o
o

s
e
s
 c

u
rb

-to
-c

u
rb

 a
s
 its

 
p

rim
a

ry
 m

e
a
n

s
 o

f p
ro

v
id

in
g

 s
e

rv
ic

e
, it m

u
s
t p

ro
v
id

e
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

 to
 th

o
s
e

 p
a
s
s
e

n
g

e
rs

 w
h

o
 n

e
e

d
 

a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

 b
e
y
o

n
d

 th
e

 c
u

rb
 in

 o
rd

e
r to

 u
s
e

 th
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 u
n

le
s
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

 w
o

u
ld

 re
s
u
lt in

 a
 

fu
n
d

a
m

e
n
ta

l a
lte

ra
tio

n
 o

r d
ire

c
t th

re
a
t. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7

.1
2

1
 R

e
q
u

ire
m

e
n
t fo

r c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 c
o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 
(a

) E
x
c
e

p
t a

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 in
 p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h

 (c
) o

f th
is

 s
e

c
tio

n
, e

a
c
h

 p
u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

 o
p

e
ra

tin
g

 a
 fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 
s
y
s
te

m
 s

h
a
ll p

ro
v
id

e
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it o

r o
th

e
r s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
 th

a
t is

 
c
o

m
p

a
ra

b
le

 to
 th

e
 le

v
e
l o

f s
e
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 to
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
o
u

t d
is

a
b
ilitie

s
 w

h
o

 u
s
e

 th
e

 
fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 s
y
s
te

m
. 

(b
) T

o
 b

e
 d

e
e

m
e

d
 c

o
m

p
a

ra
b

le
 to

 fix
e

d
 ro

u
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e

, a
 c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

y
s
te

m
 s

h
a
ll 

m
e

e
t th

e
 re

q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 o
f §

3
7

.1
2

3
-3

7
.1

3
3

 o
f th

is
 s

u
b
p

a
rt. T

h
e

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
t to

 c
o
m

p
ly

 w
ith

 
§

3
7

.1
3

1
 m

a
y
 b

e
 m

o
d
ifie

d
 in

 a
c
c
o
rd

a
n

c
e

 w
ith

 th
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
s
 o

f th
is

 s
u

b
p

a
rt re

la
tin

g
 to

 u
n
d

u
e

 
fin

a
n

c
ia

l b
u
rd

e
n

. 
(c

) R
e

q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it d

o
 n

o
t a

p
p

ly
 to

 c
o
m

m
u

te
r b

u
s
, c

o
m

m
u

te
r ra

il, 
o

r in
te

rc
ity

 ra
il s

y
s
te

m
s
. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7
.1

2
9

 T
y
p
e

s
 o

f s
e
rv

ic
e

 
(a

) E
x
c
e

p
t a

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 in
 th

is
 s

e
c
tio

n
, c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 fo
r A

D
A

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

e
lig

ib
le

 p
e

rs
o

n
s
 s

h
a
ll b

e
 o

rig
in

-to
-d

e
s
tin

a
tio

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7
.1

3
1

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 c

rite
ria

 fo
r c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

(a
)(3

) N
o
tw

ith
s
ta

n
d

in
g

 a
n

y
 o

th
e
r p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f th

is
 p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h
, a

n
 e

n
tity

 is
 n

o
t re

q
u

ire
d

 to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 in
 a

n
 a

re
a

 o
u
ts

id
e

 th
e

 b
o
u

n
d

a
rie

s
 o

f th
e

 ju
ris

d
ic

tio
n
(s

) in
 w

h
ic

h
 it 

o
p
e

ra
te

s
, if th

e
 e

n
tity

 d
o
e

s
 n

o
t h

a
v
e

 le
g
a

l a
u
th

o
rity

 to
 o

p
e
ra

te
 in

 th
a
t a

re
a
. T

h
e

 e
n
tity

 s
h

a
ll 

ta
k
e

 a
ll p

ra
c
tic

a
b

le
 s

te
p
s
 to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 a

n
y
 p

a
rt o

f its
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a
. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7
.2

5
 U

n
iv

e
rs

ity
 tra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 

(a
) T

ra
n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 o

p
e

ra
te

d
 b

y
 p

riv
a

te
 in

s
titu

tio
n

s
 o

f h
ig

h
e

r e
d
u

c
a
tio

n
 a

re
 s

u
b
je

c
t to

 
th

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
s
 o

f th
is

 p
a
rt g

o
v
e

rn
in

g
 p

riv
a

te
 e

n
titie

s
 n

o
t p

rim
a

rily
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 in
 th

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

f 
tra

n
s
p

o
rtin

g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
(b

) T
ra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 o

p
e
ra

te
d

 b
y
 p

u
b

lic
 in

s
titu

tio
n
s
 o

f h
ig

h
e

r e
d
u

c
a
tio

n
 a

re
 s

u
b
je

c
t to

 th
e

 
p

ro
v
is

io
n
s
 o

f th
is

 p
a
rt g

o
v
e

rn
in

g
 p

u
b

lic
 e

n
titie

s
. If a

 p
u

b
lic

 in
s
titu

tio
n

 o
f h

ig
h

e
r e

d
u

c
a
tio

n
 

o
p
e

ra
te

s
 a

 fix
e

d
 ro

u
te

 s
y
s
te

m
, th

e
 re

q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 o
f th

is
 p

a
rt g

o
v
e

rn
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u

te
r b

u
s
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

p
p

ly
 to

 th
a
t s

y
s
te

m
. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 E

 R
e

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 m
o

d
ific

a
tio

n
 re

q
u

e
s
ts

 
P

riv
a

te
 P

ro
p
e

rty
: P

a
ra

tra
n

s
it p

a
s
s
e

n
g

e
rs

 m
a

y
 s

o
m

e
tim

e
s
 s

e
e
k
 to

 b
e

 p
ic

k
e

d
 u

p
 o

n
 p

riv
a
te

 
p

ro
p

e
rty

 (e
.g

., in
 a

 g
a
te

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ity

 o
r p

a
rk

in
g

 lo
t, m

o
b
ile

 h
o
m

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ity

, b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

r 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t fa

c
ility

 w
h

e
re

 v
e

h
ic

le
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 re

q
u

ire
s
 a

u
th

o
riz

e
d

 p
a
s
s
a
g

e
 th

ro
u
g

h
 a

 s
e

c
u
rity

 
b

a
rrie

r). E
v
e

n
 if th

e
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it o

p
e
ra

to
r d

o
e
s
 n

o
t g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 h

a
v
e

 a
 p

o
lic

y
 o

f p
ic

k
in

g
 u

p
 

p
a
s
s
e

n
g

e
rs

 o
n

 s
u

c
h

 p
riv

a
te

 p
ro

p
e

rty
, th

e
 p

a
ra

tra
n

s
it o

p
e

ra
to

r s
h

o
u

ld
 m

a
k
e

 e
v
e

ry
 re

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 
e

ffo
rt to

 g
a
in

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 to

 s
u

c
h

 a
n

 a
re

a
 (e

.g
., w

o
rk

 w
ith

 th
e

 p
a
s
s
e

n
g

e
r to

 g
e
t th

e
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 o

f th
e

 
p

ro
p

e
rty

 o
w

n
e
r to

 p
e
rm

it a
c
c
e
s
s
 fo

r th
e

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it v

e
h
ic

le
). T

h
e

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it o

p
e
ra

to
r is

 n
o
t 

re
q
u

ire
d to

 v
io

la
te th

e la
w

 o
r la

w
fu

l a
c
c
e
s
s re

s
tric

tio
n
s
 to m

e
e
t th

e p
a
s
s
e

n
g

e
r’s

 re
q
u

e
s
ts

. A
 

p
u
b

lic
 o

r p
riv

a
te

 e
n
tity

 th
a

t u
n
re

a
s
o

n
a

b
ly

 d
e
n

ie
s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 to

 a
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it v

e
h
ic

le
 m

a
y
 b

e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

4
0

 



 
 

 
 

 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

to
 a

 c
o

m
p

la
in

t to
 th

e
 U

.S
. D

e
p
a

rtm
e

n
t o

f J
u

s
tic

e
 o

r U
.S

. D
e

p
a
rtm

e
n
t o

f H
o
u

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 U
rb

a
n

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t fo

r d
is

c
rim

in
a
tin

g
 a

g
a

in
s
t s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 fo

r p
e
rs

o
n
s
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
. 

1
3
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t p

ro
v
id

e
 o

rig
in

-to
-d

e
s
tin

a
tio

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, e

ith
e
r w

ith
 

a
 b

a
s
e

 le
v
e

l o
f s

e
rv

ic
e

 th
a

t is
 d

o
o
r-to

-d
o
o
r, o

r c
u
rb

-to
-c

u
rb

 w
ith

 d
o

o
r-to

-d
o
o

r a
s
 n

e
e

d
e

d
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

1
3
.2

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: If th
e re

c
ip

ie
n
t’s

 b
a
s
e

 le
v
e

l o
f s

e
rv

ic
e is

 c
u
rb

-to
-c

u
rb

 w
ith

 d
o
o

r-to
-

d
o
o

r a
s
 n

e
e

d
e

d
, d

o
e

s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t h

a
v
e

 a
 m

e
th

o
d

 fo
r a

s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 w

h
e
th

e
r a

 rid
e
r re

q
u

ire
s
 d

o
o
r-

to
-d

o
o
r s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n
d

 e
n
s
u
rin

g
 th

a
t th

e
 rid

e
r re

c
e
iv

e
s
 d

o
o

r-to
-d

o
o

r s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

s
 n

e
e

d
e

d
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

1
3
.3

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: If tra
n
s
fe

rs
 to

 a
n
o

th
e

r v
e

h
ic

le
 a

re
 re

q
u

ire
d
, d

o
e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t 

e
n
s
u

re
 th

a
t rid

e
rs

 a
re

 a
b

le
 to

 tra
v
e
l fro

m
 a

n
y
 p

o
in

t w
ith

in
 its

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

 to
 a

n
y
 o

th
e
r p

o
in

t in
 its

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

 in
 a

 m
a

n
n

e
r c

o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 to
 fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 s
e

rv
ic

e
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

1
3
.4

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t m

a
k
e

 e
v
e

ry
 re

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 e
ffo

rt to
 g

a
in

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 to

 
p

riv
a
te

 p
ro

p
e

rty
 w

h
e
n

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it p

a
s
s
e

n
g

e
rs

 s
e

e
k
 to

 b
e

 p
ic

k
e

d
 u

p
 o

n
 p

riv
a

te
 p

ro
p
e

rty
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

4
1

 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

1
4
. S

e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a
 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.1

3
1

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 c

rite
ria

 fo
r c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

T
h
e

 fo
llo

w
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
rite

ria
 a

p
p

ly
 to

 c
o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it re

q
u

ire
d

 b
y
 §

3
7

.1
2

1
 o

f th
is

 
p

a
rt. 

(a
) S

e
rv

ic
e

 A
re

a
 

(1
) B

u
s
 

(i) T
h
e

 e
n
tity

 s
h

a
ll p

ro
v
id

e
 c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n

s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 o

rig
in

s
 a

n
d

 d
e

s
tin

a
tio

n
s
 

w
ith

in
 c

o
rrid

o
rs

 w
ith

 a
 w

id
th

 o
f th

re
e

-fo
u
rth

s
 o

f a
 m

ile
 o

n
 e

a
c
h

 s
id

e
 o

f e
a
c
h

 fix
e

d
 

ro
u
te

. T
h
e

 c
o

rrid
o
r s

h
a
ll in

c
lu

d
e

 a
n

 a
re

a
 w

ith
 a

 th
re

e
-fo

u
rth

s
 o

f a
 m

ile
 ra

d
iu

s
 a

t th
e

 
e

n
d

s
 o

f e
a
c
h

 fix
e

d
 ro

u
te

. 
(ii) W

ith
in

 th
e

 c
o

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a
, th

e
 e

n
tity

 a
ls

o
 s

h
a

ll p
ro

v
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 s

m
a

ll a
re

a
s
 n

o
t 

in
s
id

e
 a

n
y
 o

f th
e

 c
o
rrid

o
rs

 b
u
t w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 s

u
rro

u
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 c

o
rrid

o
rs

. 
(iii) O

u
ts

id
e

 th
e

 c
o
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a
, th

e
 e

n
tity

 m
a

y
 d

e
s
ig

n
a

te
 c

o
rrid

o
rs

 w
ith

 w
id

th
s
 fro

m
 

th
re

e
-fo

u
rth

s
 o

f a
 m

ile
 u

p
 to

 o
n
e

 a
n

d
 o

n
e

 h
a

lf m
ile

s
 o

n
 e

a
c
h

 s
id

e
 o

f a
 fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

, 
b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 lo

c
a
l c

irc
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e
s
. 

(iv
) F

o
r p

u
rp

o
s
e

s
 o

f th
is

 p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
, th

e
 c

o
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

 is
 th

a
t a

re
a

 in
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
rrid

o
rs

 
w

ith
 a

 w
id

th
 o

f th
re

e
-fo

u
rth

s
 o

f a
 m

ile
 o

n
 e

a
c
h

 s
id

e
 o

f e
a
c
h

 fix
e

d
 ro

u
te

 m
e
rg

e
 

to
g
e

th
e
r s

u
c
h

 th
a
t, w

ith
 fe

w
 a

n
d

 s
m

a
ll e

x
c
e
p

tio
n

s
, a

ll o
rig

in
s
 a

n
d

 d
e
s
tin

a
tio

n
s
 w

ith
in

 
th

e
 a

re
a

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 s
e

rv
e
d

. 
(2

) R
a

il 
(i) F

o
r ra

il s
y
s
te

m
s
, th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a
 s

h
a

ll c
o

n
s
is

t o
f a

 c
irc

le
 w

ith
 a

 ra
d
iu

s
 o

f th
re

e
-fo

u
rth

s
 

o
f a

 m
ile

 a
ro

u
n

d
 e

a
c
h

 s
ta

tio
n

. 
(ii) A

t e
n
d

 s
ta

tio
n

s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r s

ta
tio

n
s
 in

 o
u

tly
in

g
 a

re
a
s
, th

e
 e

n
tity

 m
a
y
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
te

 c
irc

le
s
 

w
ith

 ra
d
ii o

f u
p

 to
 o

n
e

 a
n
d

 o
n

e
 h

a
lf m

ile
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt o

f its
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a
, b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 lo

c
a
l 

c
irc

u
m

s
ta

n
c
e

s
. 

(3
) J

u
ris

d
ic

tio
n
a

l b
o
u

n
d

a
rie

s
. N

o
tw

ith
s
ta

n
d

in
g

 a
n
y
 o

th
e
r p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f th

is
 p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h
, a

n
 

e
n
tity

 is
 n

o
t re

q
u

ire
d

 to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 in
 a

n
 a

re
a

 o
u
ts

id
e

 th
e

 b
o
u

n
d

a
rie

s
 o

f 
th

e
 ju

ris
d
ic

tio
n
(s

) in
 w

h
ic

h
 it o

p
e
ra

te
s
, if th

e
 e

n
tity

 d
o
e

s
 n

o
t h

a
v
e

 le
g

a
l a

u
th

o
rity

 to
 

o
p
e

ra
te

 in
 th

a
t a

re
a
. T

h
e

 e
n
tity

 s
h

a
ll ta

k
e

 a
ll p

ra
c
tic

a
b
le

 s
te

p
s
 to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 to

 a
n

y
 p

a
rt o

f its
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a
. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7
.3

 D
e

fin
itio

n
s
 

C
o

m
m

u
te

r b
u
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 m
e

a
n

s
 fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 b
u

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, c
h

a
ra

c
te

riz
e

d
 b

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
re

d
o

m
in

a
n
tly

 
in

 o
n

e
 d

ire
c
tio

n
 d

u
rin

g
 p

e
a
k
 p

e
rio

d
s
, lim

ite
d

 s
to

p
s
, u

s
e

 o
f m

u
lti-rid

e
 tic

k
e
ts

, a
n
d

 ro
u
te

s
 o

f 
e

x
te

n
d

e
d

 le
n

g
th

, u
s
u
a

lly
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 th
e

 c
e

n
tra

l b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 d

is
tric

t a
n
d

 o
u
tly

in
g

 s
u

b
u

rb
s
. C

o
m

m
u

te
r 

b
u
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 m
a

y
 a

ls
o

 in
c
lu

d
e

 o
th

e
r s

e
rv

ic
e

, c
h

a
ra

c
te

riz
e
d

 b
y
 a

 lim
ite

d
 ro

u
te

 s
tru

c
tu

re
, lim

ite
d

 
s
to

p
s
, a

n
d

 a
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
te

d
 re

la
tio

n
s
h
ip

 to
 a

n
o
th

e
r m

o
d
e

 o
f tra

n
s
p
o

rta
tio

n
. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7
.3

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 D

 D
e

fin
itio

n
s
 

T
h
e

 d
e

fin
itio

n o
f “c

o
m

m
u
te

r b
u
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

” is
 im

p
o
rta

n
t b

e
c
a

u
s
e th

e A
D

A
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t re

q
u

ire 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it to

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 w
ith

 re
s
p

e
c
t to

 c
o

m
m

u
te

r b
u
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 o
p
e
ra

te
d

 b
y
 

p
u
b

lic
 e

n
titie

s
. T

h
e

 ra
tio

n
a

le
 th

a
t m

a
y
 b

e
 in

fe
rre

d
 fo

r th
e

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 e

x
e
m

p
tio

n
 fo

r th
is

 k
in

d
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

o
n
c
e

rn
s
 its

 ty
p

ic
a

l c
h

a
ra

c
te

ris
tic

s
 (e

.g
., n

o
 a

tte
m

p
t to

 c
o

m
p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
ly

 c
o

v
e
r a

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 
a

re
a

, lim
ite

d
 ro

u
te

 s
tru

c
tu

re
, lim

ite
d

 o
rig

in
s
 a

n
d

 d
e

s
tin

a
tio

n
s
, in

te
rfa

c
e

 w
ith

 a
n

o
th

e
r m

o
d
e

 o
f 

tra
n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n
, lim

ite
d

 p
u
rp

o
s
e

s
 o

f tra
v
e

l). 

4
2

 



 
 

 
 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7

.2
5

 U
n

iv
e

rs
ity

 tra
n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 

(a
) T

ra
n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 o

p
e

ra
te

d
 b

y
 p

riv
a

te
 in

s
titu

tio
n

s
 o

f h
ig

h
e

r e
d
u

c
a
tio

n
 a

re
 s

u
b
je

c
t to

 
th

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
s
 o

f [P
a

rt 3
7
] g

o
v
e
rn

in
g

 p
riv

a
te

 e
n
titie

s
 n

o
t p

rim
a

rily
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 in
 th

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

o
f tra

n
s
p

o
rtin

g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
(b

) T
ra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 o

p
e
ra

te
d

 b
y
 p

u
b

lic
 in

s
titu

tio
n
s
 o

f h
ig

h
e

r e
d
u

c
a
tio

n
 a

re
 s

u
b
je

c
t to

 th
e

 
p

ro
v
is

io
n
s
 o

f [P
a
rt 3

7
] g

o
v
e

rn
in

g
 p

u
b

lic
 e

n
titie

s
. If a

 p
u

b
lic

 in
s
titu

tio
n

 o
f h

ig
h

e
r e

d
u

c
a
tio

n
 

o
p
e

ra
te

s
 a

 fix
e

d
 ro

u
te

 s
y
s
te

m
, th

e
 re

q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 o
f [P

a
rt 3

7
] g

o
v
e
rn

in
g

 c
o
m

m
u
te

r b
u
s
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

p
p

ly
 to

 th
a
t s

y
s
te

m
. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7

.3
5

 S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n
ta

l s
e

rv
ic

e
 fo

r o
th

e
r tra

n
s
p
o

rta
tio

n
 m

o
d
e

s
 

(a
) T

ra
n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 b

u
s
 o

r o
th

e
r v

e
h
ic

le
 b

y
 a

n
 in

te
rc

ity
 c

o
m

m
u
te

r o
r ra

il 
o

p
e

ra
to

r, a
s
 a

n
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 o

f o
r s

u
p
p

le
m

e
n
t to

 its
 ra

il s
e

rv
ic

e
, a

n
d

 w
h

ic
h

 c
o

n
n

e
c
ts

 a
n

 
in

te
rc

ity
 ra

il s
ta

tio
n

 a
n

d
 lim

ite
d

 o
th

e
r p

o
in

ts
, is

 s
u

b
je

c
t to

 th
e

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n

ts
 o

f th
is

 p
a
rt fo

r 
fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 c
o

m
m

u
te

r b
u
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 o
p

e
ra

te
d

 b
y
 a

 p
u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

. 
(b

) D
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 b

u
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 c

o
m

m
u
te

r ra
il s

y
s
te

m
s
, w

ith
 th

ro
u

g
h

 tic
k
e

tin
g

 a
rra

n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 
w

h
ic

h
 is

 a
v
a

ila
b
le

 o
n

ly
 to

 u
s
e
rs

 o
f th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

te
r ra

il s
y
s
te

m
, is

 s
u

b
je

c
t to

 th
e

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 
o

f th
is

 p
a
rt fo

r fix
e

d
 ro

u
te

 c
o

m
m

u
te

r b
u
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 o
p

e
ra

te
d

 b
y
 a

 p
u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

. 

1
4
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a
 in

c
lu

d
e

 (1
) p

o
in

ts
 w

ith
in

 a
t le

a
s
t 

a
 3

/4
-m

ile
 ra

d
iu

s
 o

f fix
e

d
 b

u
s
 ro

u
te

s
, (2

) p
o
in

ts
 w

ith
in

 a
t le

a
s
t a

 3
/4

-m
ile

 ra
d

iu
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 e
a
c
h

 ra
il 

s
ta

tio
n

, a
n
d

 (3
) p

o
in

ts
 w

ith
in

 th
e

 c
o
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

1
4
.2

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t e

n
s
u
re

 th
a
t ro

u
te

s
 th

a
t a

re
 n

o
t c

o
v
e
re

d
 b

y
 A

D
A

 
p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 m
e

e
t th

e
 re

q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 o
f a

 c
o
m

m
u
te

r b
u
s
 o

r u
n
iv

e
rs

ity
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e
s
ig

n
a

tio
n

, 
a

n
d

 th
a
t ra

il s
ta

tio
n
s
 m

e
e

t th
e

 d
e
fin

itio
n

 o
f c

o
m

m
u

te
r ra

il?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

1
4
.3

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t p

ro
v
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 a

n
d

 fro
m

 p
o
in

ts
 lo

c
a
te

d
 in

 
s
e

rv
ic

e a
re

a
s
 th

a
t e

x
te

n
d

 b
e

y
o

n
d

 th
e re

c
ip

ie
n
t’s

 ju
ris

d
ic

tio
n
a

l b
o
u

n
d

a
rie

s
, u

n
le

s
s
 th

e
re

 is
 a

 le
g
a

l 
b

a
r?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

4
3

 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

1
5
. H

o
u

rs
 a

n
d

 D
a

y
s
 o

f S
e
rv

ic
e
 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.1

3
1

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 c

rite
ria

 fo
r c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

T
h
e

 fo
llo

w
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
rite

ria
 a

p
p

ly
 to

 c
o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it re

q
u

ire
d

 b
y
 §

3
7

.1
2

1
 o

f th
is

 
p

a
rt. 

(e
) H

o
u
rs

 a
n

d
 d

a
y
s
 o

f s
e
rv

ic
e

. T
h
e

 c
o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 s
h

a
ll b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 
th

ro
u

g
h
o

u
t th

e
 s

a
m

e
 h

o
u
rs

 a
n
d

 d
a
y
s
 a

s
 th

e
 e

n
tity

's
 fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e

. 

1
5
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t m

a
k
e

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
v
a

ila
b
le

 d
u

rin
g

 th
e

 
s
a

m
e

 h
o
u
rs

 a
n
d

 d
a

y
s
 a

s
 fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

4
4

 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

1
6
. N

e
x

t-D
a

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
, R

e
s
e
rv

a
tio

n
s

, a
n

d
 N

e
g

o
tia

tin
g

 P
ic

k
u

p
 T

im
e
s
 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.1

3
1

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 c

rite
ria

 fo
r c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

T
h
e

 fo
llo

w
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
rite

ria
 a

p
p

ly
 to

 c
o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it re

q
u

ire
d

 b
y
 §

3
7

.1
2

1
 o

f th
is

 
p

a
rt. 

(b
) R

e
s
p
o
n

s
e

 tim
e
. T

h
e

 e
n
tity

 s
h

a
ll s

c
h

e
d

u
le

 a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 a

n
y
 A

D
A

 
p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 p

e
rs

o
n

 a
t a

n
y
 re

q
u

e
s
te

d
 tim

e
 o

n
 a

 p
a
rtic

u
la

r d
a
y
 in

 re
s
p

o
n

s
e

 to
 a

 
re

q
u

e
s
t fo

r s
e
rv

ic
e

 m
a

d
e

 th
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 d

a
y
. R

e
s
e
rv

a
tio

n
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 ta

k
e
n

 b
y
 re

s
e
rv

a
tio

n
 

a
g
e

n
ts

 o
r b

y
 m

e
c
h
a

n
ic

a
l m

e
a
n

s
. 

(1
) T

h
e

 e
n
tity

 s
h

a
ll m

a
k
e

 re
s
e
rv

a
tio

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 d
u

rin
g

 a
t le

a
s
t a

ll n
o
rm

a
l b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

h
o
u

rs
 o

f th
e

 e
n
tity

's
 a

d
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e
 o

ffic
e

s
, a

s
 w

e
ll a

s
 d

u
rin

g
 tim

e
s
, c

o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 to
 

n
o
rm

a
l b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 h

o
u
rs

, o
n

 a
 d

a
y
 w

h
e
n

 th
e

 e
n
tity

's
 o

ffic
e

s
 a

re
 n

o
t o

p
e

n
 b

e
fo

re
 a

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 
d

a
y
. 

(2
) T

h
e

 e
n
tity

 m
a

y
 n

e
g

o
tia

te
 p

ic
k
u

p
 tim

e
s
 w

ith
 th

e
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l, b
u
t th

e
 e

n
tity

 s
h

a
ll n

o
t re

q
u

ire
 

a
n

 A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l to
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

 a
 trip

 to
 b

e
g

in
 m

o
re

 th
a
n

 o
n
e

 h
o

u
r 

b
e
fo

re
 o

r a
fte

r th
e

 in
d
iv

id
u
a

l's
 d

e
s
ire

d
 d

e
p

a
rtu

re
 tim

e
. 

(3
) T

h
e

 e
n
tity

 m
a

y
 u

s
e

 re
a

l-tim
e

 s
c
h

e
d

u
lin

g
 in

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

(4
) T

h
e

 e
n
tity

 m
a

y
 p

e
rm

it a
d
v
a

n
c
e

 re
s
e
rv

a
tio

n
s
 to

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 u
p

 to
 1

4
 d

a
y
s
 in

 a
d

v
a

n
c
e

 o
f a

n
 

A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l's
 d

e
s
ire

d
 trip

s
. 

W
h

e
n

 a
n

 e
n
tity

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
s
 to

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 
its

 re
s
e

rv
a
tio

n
s
 s

y
s
te

m
, it s

h
a
ll c

o
m

p
ly

 w
ith

 th
e

 p
u

b
lic

 p
a
rtic

ip
a
tio

n
 re

q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 
e

q
u

iv
a

le
n
t to

 th
o
s
e

 o
f §

3
7

.1
3

7
 (b

) a
n
d

 (c
). 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
1
.1

3
1

 A
p

p
e

n
d
ix

 D
 R

e
s
p
o

n
s
e

 tim
e

 
U

n
d
e

r th
is

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
, a

n
 e

n
tity

 m
u

s
t m

a
k
e

 its
 re

s
e
rv

a
tio

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 d
u

rin
g

 th
e

 h
o
u

rs
 its

 
a

d
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e
 o

ffic
e

s
 a

re
 o

p
e

n
. If th

o
s
e

 o
ffic

e
s
 a

re
 o

p
e

n
 9

 to
 5

, th
o
s
e

 a
re

 th
e

 h
o
u

rs
 d

u
rin

g
 

w
h

ic
h

 th
e

 re
s
e
rv

a
tio

n
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 m
u

s
t b

e
 o

p
e

n
, e

v
e

n
 if th

e
 e

n
tity

's
 tra

n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 o
p
e
ra

te
d

 6
 a

.m
. 

to
 m

id
n
ig

h
t. O

n
 d

a
y
s
 p

rio
r to

 a
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
a
y
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 th

e
 a

d
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e
 o

ffic
e

s
 a

re
 n

o
t o

p
e

n
 a

t 
a

ll (e
.g

., a
 S

u
n
d

a
y
 p

rio
r to

 a
 M

o
n
d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
a
y
), th

e
 re

s
e
rv

a
tio

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
o

u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 o

p
e

n
 9

 
to

 5
. N

o
te

 th
a
t th

e
 re

s
e
rv

a
tio

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 o
n

 a
n
y
 d

a
y
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t h

a
v
e

 to
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 d
ire

c
tly

 b
y
 a

 
“re

a
l p

e
rs

o
n
.” A

n a
n
s
w

e
rin

g m
a

c
h
in

e o
r o

th
e
r te

c
h

n
o

lo
g
y
 c

a
n s

u
ffic

e
. A

n
y c

a
lle

r re
a
c
h

in
g th

e 
re

s
e
rv

a
tio

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
u
rin

g
 th

e
 9

 to
 5

 p
e
rio

d
, in

 th
is

 e
x
a
m

p
le

, c
o

u
ld

 re
s
e
rv

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 fo
r a

n
y
 tim

e
 

d
u

rin
g

 th
e n

e
x
t 6 a

.m
. to 1

2 m
id

n
ig

h
t s

e
rv

ic
e d

a
y
. T

h
is

 is
 th

e d
iffe

re
n
c
e b

e
tw

e
e
n

 “n
e
x
t d

a
y 

s
c
h

e
d

u
lin

g
” a

n
d

 a s
y
s
te

m
 in

v
o
lv

in
g a 2

4
-h

o
u
r p

rio
r re

s
e
rv

a
tio

n
 re

q
u

ire
m

e
n

t, in
 w

h
ic

h
 a

 c
a

lle
r 

w
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 to
 re

s
e
rv

e
 a

 trip
 a

t 7
 a

.m
. to

d
a

y
 if h

e
 o

r s
h

e
 w

a
n
te

d
 to

 tra
v
e

l a
t 7

 a
.m

. to
m

o
rro

w
. 

T
h
e

 la
tte

r a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

 is
 n

o
t a

d
e

q
u

a
te

 u
n

d
e
r th

is
 ru

le
. 

1
6
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t p

ro
v
id

e
 n

e
x
t-d

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

1
6
.2

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t a

c
c
e

p
t re

s
e
rv

a
tio

n
s
 o

n
 a

ll d
a
y
s
 p

rio
r to

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 
d

a
y
s
, in

c
lu

d
in

g
 w

e
e
k
e

n
d
s
 a

n
d

 h
o

lid
a
y
s
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

4
5

 



 
 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

1
6
.3

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t a

c
c
e

p
t re

s
e
rv

a
tio

n
s
 d

u
rin

g
 re

g
u

la
r b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

h
o
u

rs
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e
fic

ie
n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

1
6
.4

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: If th
e

 re
c
ip

ie
n
t u

s
e
s
 v

o
ic

e
m

a
il to

 a
c
c
e
p

t trip
 re

q
u

e
s
ts

, d
o
e

s
 th

e
 

re
c
ip

ie
n
t p

ro
v
id

e
 th

e
 re

q
u

e
s
te

d
 trip

 in
 th

e
 s

a
m

e
 m

a
n
n

e
r a

s
 if th

e
 c

a
lle

r h
a

d
 s

p
o
k
e

n
 to

 a
 

re
s
e
rv

a
tio

n
is

t?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

1
6
.5

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t (1

) s
c
h

e
d

u
le

 trip
s
 a

t th
e

 re
q
u

e
s
te

d
 tim

e
, o

r (2
) 

if th
e
y
 m

u
s
t n

e
g

o
tia

te
, n

e
g
o

tia
te

 s
c
h

e
d

u
lin

g
 trip

s
 w

ith
in

 n
o

 m
o
re

 th
a
n

 o
n
e

 h
o
u

r b
e
fo

re
 o

r a
fte

r 
a
n
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l’s
 d

e
s
ire

d d
e

p
a

rtu
re

 tim
e

? 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

1
6
.6

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t re

fra
in

 fro
m

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 th

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 u
p

o
n

 p
ic

k
u

p
 

tim
e

 a
fte

r th
e

 re
s
e
rv

a
tio

n
 is

 m
a

d
e

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

1
6
.7

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: If th
e

 re
c
ip

ie
n
t c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 th

e
 p

ic
k
u

p
 tim

e
 in

 a
 m

a
n
n

e
r th

a
t re

s
u
lts

 in
 

a
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 in
 th

e
 p

ic
k
u

p
 w

in
d
o

w
, d

o
e

s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t re

n
e

g
o
tia

te
 w

ith
 th

e
 rid

e
r n

o
 la

te
r th

a
n

 o
n
e

 
d

a
y
 b

e
fo

re
 th

e
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 tra

v
e
l d

a
y
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

4
6

 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

1
7
. F

a
re

s

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.1

3
1

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 c

rite
ria

 fo
r c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

T
h
e

 fo
llo

w
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
rite

ria
 a

p
p

ly
 to

 c
o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it re

q
u

ire
d

 b
y
 §

3
7

.1
2

1
 o

f th
is

 
p

a
rt. 

(c
) F

a
re

s
. T

h
e

 fa
re

 fo
r a

 trip
 c

h
a

rg
e
d

 to
 a

n
 A

D
A

 p
a

ra
tra

n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 u

s
e

r o
f th

e
 c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 

p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 s
h

a
ll n

o
t e

x
c
e
e

d
 tw

ic
e

 th
e

 fa
re

 th
a
t w

o
u
ld

 b
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 to
 a

n
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l 
p

a
y
in

g
 fu

ll fa
re

 (i.e
., w

ith
o

u
t re

g
a

rd
 to

 d
is

c
o

u
n

ts
) fo

r a
 trip

 o
f s

im
ila

r le
n
g

th
, a

t a
 s

im
ila

r tim
e

 
o

f d
a
y
, o

n
 th

e
 e

n
tity

's
 fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 s
y
s
te

m
. 

(1
) In

 c
a

lc
u

la
tin

g
 th

e
 fu

ll fa
re

 th
a
t w

o
u
ld

 b
e

 p
a
id

 b
y
 a

n
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l u
s
in

g
 th

e
 fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 
s
y
s
te

m
, th

e
 e

n
tity

 m
a

y
 in

c
lu

d
e

 tra
n
s
fe

r a
n
d

 p
re

m
iu

m
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

 to
 a

 trip
 o

f 
s
im

ila
r le

n
g

th
, a

t a
 s

im
ila

r tim
e

 o
f d

a
y
, o

n
 th

e
 fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 s
y
s
te

m
. 

(2
) T

h
e

 fa
re

s
 fo

r in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n
y
in

g
 A

D
A

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
, w

h
o

 a
re

 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 u
n

d
e
r §

3
7
.1

2
3

 (f) o
f th

is
 p

a
rt, s

h
a

ll b
e

 th
e

 s
a

m
e

 a
s
 fo

r th
e

 A
D

A
 

p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 th

e
y
 a

re
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n

y
in

g
. 

(3
) A

 p
e
rs

o
n
a

l c
a

re
 a

tte
n
d

a
n

t s
h

a
ll n

o
t b

e
 c

h
a
rg

e
d

 fo
r c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

. 
(4

) T
h

e
 e

n
tity

 m
a

y
 c

h
a
rg

e
 a

 fa
re

 h
ig

h
e

r th
a
n

 o
th

e
rw

is
e

 p
e

rm
itte

d
 b

y
 th

is
 p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h

 to
 a

 
s
o

c
ia

l s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

g
e

n
c
y
 o

r o
th

e
r o

rg
a

n
iz

a
tio

n
 fo

r a
g
e

n
c
y
 trip

s
 (i.e

., trip
s
 g

u
a

ra
n
te

e
d

 to
 th

e
 

o
rg

a
n

iz
a

tio
n

). 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7
.1

3
1

 A
p

p
e

n
d
ix

 D
 F

a
re

s
 

T
o

 c
a

lc
u

la
te

 th
e

 p
ro

p
e

r p
a

ra
tra

n
s
it fa

re
, th

e
 e

n
tity

 w
o

u
ld

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

 th
e

 ro
u
te

(s
) th

a
t a

n
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a

l w
o

u
ld

 ta
k
e

 to
 g

e
t fro

m
 h

is
 o

r h
e
r o

rig
in

 to
 h

is
 o

r h
e
r d

e
s
tin

a
tio

n
 o

n
 th

e
 fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 
s
y
s
te

m
. A

t th
e

 tim
e

 o
f d

a
y
 th

e
 p

e
rs

o
n

 w
a

s
 tra

v
e
lin

g
, w

h
a
t is

 th
e

 fa
re

 fo
r th

a
t trip

 o
n

 th
o
s
e

 
ro

u
te

s
?

 A
p

p
lic

a
b
le

 c
h

a
rg

e
s
 lik

e
 tra

n
s
fe

r fe
e
s
 o

r p
re

m
iu

m
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

d
d

e
d

 to
 th

e
 

a
m

o
u

n
t, b

u
t d

is
c
o

u
n
ts

 (e
.g

., th
e

 h
a
lf-fa

re
 d

is
c
o

u
n
t fo

r o
ff-p

e
a

k
 fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 tra
v
e
l b

y
 e

ld
e
rly

 a
n
d

 
h

a
n

d
ic

a
p
p

e
d

 p
e

rs
o

n
s
) w

o
u
ld

 n
o

t b
e

 s
u

b
tra

c
te

d
. T

h
e

 tra
n
s
it p

ro
v
id

e
r c

o
u
ld

 c
h

a
rg

e
 u

p
 to

 tw
ic

e
 

th
e

 re
s
u
ltin

g
 a

m
o

u
n

t fo
r th

e
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it trip

 . . . T
h
e

 s
y
s
te

m
 o

p
e

ra
te

s
 th

e
 s

a
m

e
 re

g
a

rd
le

s
s
 o

f 
w

h
e
th

e
r th

e
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it trip

 is
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 in
 p

la
c
e

 o
f a

 b
u
s
 o

r a
 ra

il trip
 th

e
 u

s
e
r c

a
n
n
o

t 
m

a
k
e

 o
n

 th
e

 fix
e

d
 ro

u
te

 s
y
s
te

m
. W

h
e
re

 b
u

s
 a

n
d

 ra
il s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

re
 ru

n
 b

y
 th

e
 s

a
m

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
r (o

r 
w

h
e
re

 th
e

 s
a
m

e
 b

u
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
r ru

n
s
 p

a
ra

lle
l lo

c
a
l a

n
d

 e
x
p

re
s
s
 b

u
s
e

s
 a

lo
n
g

 th
e

 s
a

m
e

 ro
u
te

), th
e

 
c
o

m
p

a
ris

o
n

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 m
a
d

e
 to

 th
e

 m
o

d
e

 o
n

 w
h

ic
h

 a
 ty

p
ic

a
l fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 u
s
e
r w

o
u
ld

 m
a

k
e

 th
e

 
p

a
rtic

u
la

r trip
, b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

, le
n
g

th
, c

o
n
v
e

n
ie

n
c
e

, a
v
o
id

a
n

c
e

 o
f tra

n
s
fe

rs
, e

tc
. 

1
7
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t e

n
s
u
re

 th
a
t A

D
A

 c
o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

fa
re

s
 d

o
 n

o
t e

x
c
e

e
d

 tw
ic

e
 th

e
 fa

re
 fo

r a
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 trip
 o

n
 th

e
 fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 s
y
s
te

m
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

1
7
.2

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: If th
e

 re
c
ip

ie
n
t h

a
s
 fa

re
 fre

e
 (o

r re
d
u

c
e
d

) z
o

n
e

s
, d

o
e

s
 th

e
 

re
c
ip

ie
n
t e

n
s
u
re

 th
a
t p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it fa

re
s
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
a

ra
b
le

 to
 fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 fa
re

s
 in

 th
e

 fa
re

 fre
e

 z
o

n
e

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

4
7

 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

1
8
. T

rip
 P

u
rp

o
s
e
 R

e
s
tric

tio
n

s
 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.1

3
1

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 c

rite
ria

 fo
r c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

T
h
e

 fo
llo

w
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
rite

ria
 a

p
p

ly
 to

 c
o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it re

q
u

ire
d

 b
y
 §

3
7

.1
2

1
 o

f th
is

 
p

a
rt. 

(d
) T

rip
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

 re
s
tric

tio
n
s
. T

h
e

 e
n
tity

 s
h

a
ll n

o
t im

p
o
s
e

 re
s
tric

tio
n
s
 o

r p
rio

ritie
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 trip

 
p

u
rp

o
s
e

. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7

.1
3

3
 S

u
b
s
c
rip

tio
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

(c
) N

o
tw

ith
s
ta

n
d

in
g

 a
n
y
 o

th
e

r p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f th

is
 p

a
rt, th

e
 e

n
tity

 m
a

y
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 w

a
itin

g
 lis

ts
 o

r 
o

th
e

r c
a

p
a

c
ity

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
ts

 a
n
d

 trip
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

 re
s
tric

tio
n
s
 o

r p
rio

ritie
s
 fo

r p
a
rtic

ip
a
tio

n
 in

 th
e

 
s
u

b
s
c
rip

tio
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

n
ly

. 

1
8
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t re

fra
in

 fro
m

 c
o

lle
c
tin

g
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 o

n
 trip

 
p

u
rp

o
s
e

 o
th

e
r th

a
n

 fo
r s

u
b
s
c
rip

tio
n

 s
e
rv

ic
e

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

1
8
.2

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t re

fra
in

 fro
m

 im
p

o
s
in

g
 re

s
tric

tio
n
s
 o

r p
rio

ritie
s
 

b
a
s
e

d
 o

n
 th

e
 trip

 p
u
rp

o
s
e

 (o
th

e
r th

a
n

 fo
r s

u
b
s
c
rip

tio
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
)?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

4
8

 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

1
9
. T

rip
 N

u
m

b
e

r R
e
s
tric

tio
n

s
 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.1

3
1

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 c

rite
ria

 fo
r c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

(f) C
a

p
a

c
ity

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
ts

. T
h
e

 e
n

tity
 s

h
a
ll n

o
t lim

it th
e

 a
v
a
ila

b
ility

 o
f c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 to

 A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 b

y
 a

n
y
 o

f th
e

 fo
llo

w
in

g
: 

(1
) R

e
s
tric

tio
n
s
 o

n
 th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r o
f trip

s
 a

n
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l w
ill b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

. 
(2

) W
a

itin
g

 lis
ts

 fo
r a

c
c
e
s
s
 to

 th
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e

. 

1
9
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t re

fra
in

 fro
m

 re
s
tric

tin
g

 th
e

 n
u
m

b
e
r o

f trip
s
 a

n
 

e
lig

ib
le

 in
d

iv
id

u
a

l w
ill b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

4
9

 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

2
0
. U

n
tim

e
ly

 P
ic

k
u

p
s
 a

n
d

 D
ro

p
-O

ffs
 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.1

3
1

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 c

rite
ria

 fo
r c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

(f) C
a

p
a

c
ity

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
ts

. T
h
e

 e
n

tity
 s

h
a
ll n

o
t lim

it th
e

 a
v
a
ila

b
ility

 o
f c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 to

 A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 b

y
 a

n
y
 o

f th
e

 fo
llo

w
in

g
: 

(3
) A

n
y
 o

p
e

ra
tio

n
a

l p
a
tte

rn
 o

r p
ra

c
tic

e
 th

a
t s

ig
n
ific

a
n
tly

 lim
its

 th
e

 a
v
a
ila

b
ility

 o
f s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 

A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 p

e
rs

o
n
s
. 

(i) S
u

c
h

 p
a
tte

rn
s
 o

r p
ra

c
tic

e
s
 in

c
lu

d
e

, b
u
t a

re
 n

o
t lim

ite
d

 to
, th

e
 fo

llo
w

in
g
: 

(A
) S

u
b
s
ta

n
tia

l n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f s

ig
n
ific

a
n
tly

 u
n
tim

e
ly

 p
ic

k
u

p
s
 fo

r in
itia

l o
r re

tu
rn

 trip
s
; 

(B
) S

u
b
s
ta

n
tia

l n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f trip

 d
e

n
ia

ls
 o

r m
is

s
e

d
 trip

s
; 

(C
) S

u
b
s
ta

n
tia

l n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f trip

s
 w

ith
 e

x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 trip

 le
n

g
th

s
. 

(ii) O
p

e
ra

tio
n

a
l p

ro
b
le

m
s
 a

ttrib
u
ta

b
le

 to
 c

a
u
s
e

s
 b

e
y
o
n

d
 th

e
 c

o
n
tro

l o
f th

e
 e

n
tity

 
(in

c
lu

d
in

g
, b

u
t n

o
t lim

ite
d

 to
, w

e
a
th

e
r o

r tra
ffic

 c
o

n
d

itio
n
s
 a

ffe
c
tin

g
 a

ll v
e

h
ic

u
la

r tra
ffic

 
th

a
t w

e
re

 n
o
t a

n
tic

ip
a
te

d
 a

t th
e

 tim
e

 a
 trip

 w
a
s
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
) s

h
a
ll n

o
t b

e
 a

 b
a

s
is

 fo
r 

d
e
te

rm
in

in
g

 th
a
t s

u
c
h

 a
 p

a
tte

rn
 o

r p
ra

c
tic

e
 e

x
is

ts
. 

2
0
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t tra

c
k
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 v

e
rs

u
s
 a

c
tu

a
l p

ic
k
u

p
 tim

e
s
 

a
n
d

 a
d

ju
s
t s

e
rv

ic
e

 b
a
s
e

d
 o

n
 th

e
 tra

c
k
in

g
 d

a
ta

 a
s
 n

e
e

d
e

d
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

2
0
.2

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t tra

c
k
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 v

e
rs

u
s
 a

c
tu

a
l d

ro
p
-o

ff tim
e

s
 

a
n
d

 a
d

ju
s
t s

e
rv

ic
e

 b
a
s
e

d
 o

n
 tra

c
k
in

g
 d

a
ta

 a
s
 n

e
e
d

e
d

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

5
0

 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

2
1
. T

rip
 D

e
n

ia
ls

 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.1

3
1

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 c

rite
ria

 fo
r c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

(f) C
a

p
a

c
ity

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
ts

. T
h
e

 e
n

tity
 s

h
a
ll n

o
t lim

it th
e

 a
v
a
ila

b
ility

 o
f c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 to

 A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 b

y
 a

n
y
 o

f th
e

 fo
llo

w
in

g
: 

(1
) R

e
s
tric

tio
n
s
 o

n
 th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r o
f trip

s
 a

n
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l w
ill b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

; 
(2

) W
a

itin
g

 lis
ts

 fo
r a

c
c
e
s
s
 to

 th
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e

; 
(3

) A
n
y
 o

p
e
ra

tio
n

a
l p

a
tte

rn
 o

r p
ra

c
tic

e
 th

a
t s

ig
n
ific

a
n
tly

 lim
its

 th
e

 a
v
a
ila

b
ility

 o
f s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 

A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 p

e
rs

o
n
s
. 

(i) S
u

c
h

 p
a
tte

rn
s
 o

r p
ra

c
tic

e
s
 in

c
lu

d
e

, b
u
t a

re
 n

o
t lim

ite
d

 to
, th

e
 fo

llo
w

in
g
: 

(A
) S

u
b
s
ta

n
tia

l n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f s

ig
n
ific

a
n
tly

 u
n
tim

e
ly

 p
ic

k
u

p
s
 fo

r in
itia

l o
r re

tu
rn

 trip
s
; 

(B
) S

u
b
s
ta

n
tia

l n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f trip

 d
e

n
ia

ls
 o

r m
is

s
e

d
 trip

s
; 

(C
) S

u
b
s
ta

n
tia

l n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f trip

s
 w

ith
 e

x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 trip

 le
n

g
th

s
. 

(ii) O
p

e
ra

tio
n

a
l p

ro
b
le

m
s
 a

ttrib
u
ta

b
le

 to
 c

a
u
s
e

s
 b

e
y
o
n

d
 th

e
 c

o
n
tro

l o
f th

e
 e

n
tity

 
(in

c
lu

d
in

g
, b

u
t n

o
t lim

ite
d

 to
, w

e
a
th

e
r o

r tra
ffic

 c
o

n
d

itio
n
s
 a

ffe
c
tin

g
 a

ll v
e

h
ic

u
la

r tra
ffic

 
th

a
t w

e
re

 n
o
t a

n
tic

ip
a
te

d
 a

t th
e

 tim
e

 a
 trip

 w
a
s
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
) s

h
a
ll n

o
t b

e
 a

 b
a

s
is

 fo
r 

d
e
te

rm
in

in
g

 th
a
t s

u
c
h

 a
 p

a
tte

rn
 o

r p
ra

c
tic

e
 e

x
is

ts
. 

2
1
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t (1

) tra
c
k
 rid

e
s
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 o

u
ts

id
e

 th
e

 h
o
u
r 

b
e
fo

re
-o

r-a
fte

r th
e

 s
c
h

e
d
u

lin
g

 w
in

d
o

w
 a

s
 d

e
n

ia
ls

 re
g
a

rd
le

s
s
 o

f w
h

e
th

e
r th

e
 rid

e
r a

c
c
e
p
ts

 th
e

 
rid

e
, (2

) tra
c
k
 a

s
 a

 d
e
n

ia
l e

a
c
h

 trip
 th

a
t c

a
n
n

o
t b

e
 ta

k
e
n

 d
u

e
 to

 o
n
e

 d
e
n

ia
l (a

s
 in

, w
h

e
n

 o
n
e

 le
g

 
o

f a
 ro

u
n

d
trip

 c
a

n
n

o
t b

e
 re

s
e
rv

e
d

 a
n
d

 th
e

 rid
e
r d

e
c
lin

e
s
 b

o
th

 trip
s
), a

n
d

 (3
) a

d
ju

s
t s

e
rv

ic
e

 b
a

s
e

d
 

o
n

 tra
c
k
in

g
 d

a
ta

, a
s
 n

e
e
d

e
d

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

5
1

 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

2
2
. M

is
s
e
d

 T
rip

s
 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.1

3
1

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 c

rite
ria

 fo
r c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

(f) C
a

p
a

c
ity

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
ts

. T
h
e

 e
n

tity
 s

h
a
ll n

o
t lim

it th
e

 a
v
a
ila

b
ility

 o
f c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 to

 A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 b

y
 a

n
y
 o

f th
e

 fo
llo

w
in

g
: 

(1
) R

e
s
tric

tio
n
s
 o

n
 th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r o
f trip

s
 a

n
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l w
ill b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

; 
(2

) W
a

itin
g

 lis
ts

 fo
r a

c
c
e
s
s
 to

 th
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e

; 
(3

) A
n
y
 o

p
e
ra

tio
n

a
l p

a
tte

rn
 o

r p
ra

c
tic

e
 th

a
t s

ig
n
ific

a
n
tly

 lim
its

 th
e

 a
v
a
ila

b
ility

 o
f s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 

A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 p

e
rs

o
n
s
. 

(i) S
u

c
h

 p
a
tte

rn
s
 o

r p
ra

c
tic

e
s
 in

c
lu

d
e

, b
u
t a

re
 n

o
t lim

ite
d

 to
, th

e
 fo

llo
w

in
g
: 

(A
) S

u
b
s
ta

n
tia

l n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f s

ig
n
ific

a
n
tly

 u
n
tim

e
ly

 p
ic

k
u

p
s
 fo

r in
itia

l o
r re

tu
rn

 trip
s
; 

(B
) S

u
b
s
ta

n
tia

l n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f trip

 d
e

n
ia

ls
 o

r m
is

s
e

d
 trip

s
; 

(C
) S

u
b
s
ta

n
tia

l n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f trip

s
 w

ith
 e

x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 trip

 le
n

g
th

s
. 

(ii) O
p

e
ra

tio
n

a
l p

ro
b
le

m
s
 a

ttrib
u
ta

b
le

 to
 c

a
u
s
e

s
 b

e
y
o
n

d
 th

e
 c

o
n
tro

l o
f th

e
 e

n
tity

 
(in

c
lu

d
in

g
, b

u
t n

o
t lim

ite
d

 to
, w

e
a
th

e
r o

r tra
ffic

 c
o

n
d

itio
n
s
 a

ffe
c
tin

g
 a

ll v
e

h
ic

u
la

r tra
ffic

 
th

a
t w

e
re

 n
o
t a

n
tic

ip
a
te

d
 a

t th
e

 tim
e

 a
 trip

 w
a
s
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
) s

h
a
ll n

o
t b

e
 a

 b
a

s
is

 fo
r 

d
e
te

rm
in

in
g

 th
a
t s

u
c
h

 a
 p

a
tte

rn
 o

r p
ra

c
tic

e
 e

x
is

ts
. 

2
2
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t (1

) d
e
fin

e
 a

n
d

 tra
c
k
 m

is
s
e

d
 trip

s
 w

h
e

re
 th

e
 

re
c
ip

ie
n
t is

 a
t fa

u
lt, a

n
d

 (2
) a

d
ju

s
t s

e
rv

ic
e

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 tra

c
k
in

g
 d

a
ta

, a
s
 n

e
e

d
e

d
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

5
2

 



 
 

 
 

 
 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

2
3
. T

rip
 L

e
n

g
th

s
 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.1

3
1

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 c

rite
ria

 fo
r c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

(f) C
a

p
a

c
ity

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
ts

. T
h
e

 e
n

tity
 s

h
a
ll n

o
t lim

it th
e

 a
v
a
ila

b
ility

 o
f c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 to

 A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 b

y
 a

n
y
 o

f th
e

 fo
llo

w
in

g
: 

(1
) R

e
s
tric

tio
n
s
 o

n
 th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r o
f trip

s
 a

n
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l w
ill b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

; 
(2

) W
a

itin
g

 lis
ts

 fo
r a

c
c
e
s
s
 to

 th
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e

; 
(3

) A
n
y
 o

p
e
ra

tio
n

a
l p

a
tte

rn
 o

r p
ra

c
tic

e
 th

a
t s

ig
n
ific

a
n
tly

 lim
its

 th
e

 a
v
a
ila

b
ility

 o
f s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 

A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 p

e
rs

o
n
s
. 

(i) S
u

c
h

 p
a
tte

rn
s
 o

r p
ra

c
tic

e
s
 in

c
lu

d
e

, b
u
t a

re
 n

o
t lim

ite
d

 to
, th

e
 fo

llo
w

in
g
: 

(A
) S

u
b
s
ta

n
tia

l n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f s

ig
n
ific

a
n
tly

 u
n
tim

e
ly

 p
ic

k
u

p
s
 fo

r in
itia

l o
r re

tu
rn

 trip
s
; 

(B
) S

u
b
s
ta

n
tia

l n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f trip

 d
e

n
ia

ls
 o

r m
is

s
e

d
 trip

s
; 

(C
) S

u
b
s
ta

n
tia

l n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f trip

s
 w

ith
 e

x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 trip

 le
n

g
th

s
. 

(ii) O
p

e
ra

tio
n

a
l p

ro
b
le

m
s
 a

ttrib
u
ta

b
le

 to
 c

a
u
s
e

s
 b

e
y
o
n

d
 th

e
 c

o
n
tro

l o
f th

e
 e

n
tity

 
(in

c
lu

d
in

g
, b

u
t n

o
t lim

ite
d

 to
, w

e
a
th

e
r o

r tra
ffic

 c
o

n
d

itio
n
s
 a

ffe
c
tin

g
 a

ll v
e

h
ic

u
la

r tra
ffic

 
th

a
t w

e
re

 n
o
t a

n
tic

ip
a
te

d
 a

t th
e

 tim
e

 a
 trip

 w
a
s
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
) s

h
a
ll n

o
t b

e
 a

 b
a

s
is

 fo
r 

d
e
te

rm
in

in
g

 th
a
t s

u
c
h

 a
 p

a
tte

rn
 o

r p
ra

c
tic

e
 e

x
is

ts
. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 P

a
rt 3

7
.1

3
1

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 D

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 c

rite
ria

 fo
r c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

T
h
e

 th
ird

 e
x
a
m

p
le

 is
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
tia

l n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f trip

s
 w

ith
 e

x
c
e

s
s
iv

e
 trip

 le
n

g
th

s
. S

in
c
e

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

is
 a

 s
h

a
re

d
 rid

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it rid

e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 P
o

in
t A

 a
n
d

 P
o

in
t B

 w
ill u

s
u
a

lly
 ta

k
e

 lo
n
g

e
r, 

a
n
d

 in
v
o

lv
e

 m
o
re

 in
te

rm
e

d
ia

te
 s

to
p
s
, th

a
n

 a
 ta

x
i rid

e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 th
e

 s
a
m

e
 tw

o
 p

o
in

ts
. H

o
w

e
v
e
r, 

w
h

e
n

 th
e

 n
u
m

b
e
r o

f in
te

rm
e

d
ia

te
 s

to
p
s
 a

n
d

 th
e

 to
ta

l trip
 tim

e
 fo

r a
 g

iv
e

n
 p

a
s
s
e
n

g
e

r g
ro

w
s
 s

o
 

la
rg

e
 a

s
 to

 m
a

k
e

 u
s
e

 o
f th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 p

ro
h

ib
itiv

e
ly

 in
c
o
n

v
e
n

ie
n
t, th

e
n

 th
is

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
trig

g
e

re
d
. F

o
r e

x
a
m

p
le

, th
e

 IG
 re

p
o

rt re
fe

rre
d

 to
 a

b
o
v
e

 m
e

n
tio

n
e

d
 a

 s
itu

a
tio

n
 in

 w
h
ic

h
 9

 p
e
rc

e
n
t 

o
f rid

e
rs

 h
a
d

 o
n
e

 w
a

y
 trip

s
 a

v
e

ra
g
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 tw
o

 a
n

d
 fo

u
r h

o
u

rs
, w

ith
 a

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e

 o
f 1

6
 

in
te

rm
e

d
ia

te
 s

to
p
s
. S

u
c
h

 a
 s

itu
a
tio

n
 w

o
u
ld

 p
ro

b
a

b
ly

 trig
g
e

r th
is

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7
.1

2
9

 T
y
p
e

s
 o

f s
e
rv

ic
e

 
(a

) E
x
c
e

p
t a

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 in
 th

is
 s

e
c
tio

n
, c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 fo
r A

D
A

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

e
lig

ib
le

 p
e

rs
o

n
s
 s

h
a
ll b

e
 o

rig
in

-to
-d

e
s
tin

a
tio

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

. 
(b

) C
o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 fo
r A

D
A

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 p

e
rs

o
n
s
 d

e
s
c
rib

e
d

 in
 

§
3
7

.1
2

3
(e

)(2
) o

f th
is

 p
a
rt m

a
y
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 o

n
-c

a
ll b

u
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 o
r p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it fe

e
d

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 to

 a
n

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

, w
h

e
re

 s
u

c
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 e

n
a

b
le

s
 th

e
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l to
 u

s
e

 th
e

 
fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 b
u
s
 s

y
s
te

m
 fo

r h
is

 o
r h

e
r trip

. 
(c

) C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 fo
r A

D
A

 e
lig

ib
le

 p
e

rs
o

n
s
 d

e
s
c
rib

e
d

 in
 §

3
7

.1
2

3
(e

)(3
) o

f 
th

is
 p

a
rt a

ls
o

 m
a
y
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it fe

e
d
e

r s
e
rv

ic
e

 to
 a

n
d
/o

r fro
m

 a
n

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 

fix
e

d
 ro

u
te

. 

2
3
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s th

e re
c
ip

ie
n
t d

e
fin

e
 a

n
 “e

x
c
e
s
s
iv

e trip
 le

n
g

th
” in

 c
o
m

p
a
ris

o
n 

to
 th

e
 tim

e
 re

q
u

ire
d

 to
 m

a
k
e

 a
 s

im
ila

r trip
 u

s
in

g
 th

e
 fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 s
y
s
te

m
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

5
3

 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

2
3
.2

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t tra

c
k
 trip

 le
n

g
th

s
 a

n
d

 a
d
ju

s
t s

e
rv

ic
e

 b
a
s
e

d
 o

n
 

tra
c
k
in

g
 d

a
ta

, a
s
 n

e
e

d
e

d
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

2
3
.3

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t o

p
e
ra

te
 w

ith
o
u

t a
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
tia

l a
m

o
u

n
t o

f 
e

x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
ly

 lo
n
g

 trip
s
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

2
3
.4

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: If th
e

 re
c
ip

ie
n
t p

ro
v
id

e
s
 fe

e
d

e
r s

e
rv

ic
e

, d
o
e

s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t h

a
v
e

 a
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 fo

r d
e
te

rm
in

in
g

 w
h

e
th

e
r fe

e
d

e
r s

e
rv

ic
e

 is
 a

n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ria

te
 o

p
tio

n
 fo

r a
 rid

e
r?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

5
4

 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

2
4
. O

th
e
r C

a
p

a
c
ity

 C
o

n
s
tra

in
ts

 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.1

3
1

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 c

rite
ria

 fo
r c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

(f) C
a

p
a

c
ity

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
ts

. T
h
e

 e
n

tity
 s

h
a
ll n

o
t lim

it th
e

 a
v
a
ila

b
ility

 o
f c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 to

 A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 b

y
 a

n
y
 o

f th
e

 fo
llo

w
in

g
: 

(1
) R

e
s
tric

tio
n
s
 o

n
 th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r o
f trip

s
 a

n
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l w
ill b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

; 
(2

) W
a

itin
g

 lis
ts

 fo
r a

c
c
e
s
s
 to

 th
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e

; 
(3

) A
n
y
 o

p
e
ra

tio
n

a
l p

a
tte

rn
 o

r p
ra

c
tic

e
 th

a
t s

ig
n
ific

a
n
tly

 lim
its

 th
e

 a
v
a
ila

b
ility

 o
f s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 

A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 p

e
rs

o
n
s
. 

(i) S
u

c
h

 p
a
tte

rn
s
 o

r p
ra

c
tic

e
s
 in

c
lu

d
e

, b
u
t a

re
 n

o
t lim

ite
d

 to
, th

e
 fo

llo
w

in
g
: 

(A
) S

u
b
s
ta

n
tia

l n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f s

ig
n
ific

a
n
tly

 u
n
tim

e
ly

 p
ic

k
u

p
s
 fo

r in
itia

l o
r re

tu
rn

 trip
s
; 

(B
) S

u
b
s
ta

n
tia

l n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f trip

 d
e

n
ia

ls
 o

r m
is

s
e

d
 trip

s
; 

(C
) S

u
b
s
ta

n
tia

l n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f trip

s
 w

ith
 e

x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 trip

 le
n

g
th

s
. 

(ii) O
p

e
ra

tio
n

a
l p

ro
b
le

m
s
 a

ttrib
u
ta

b
le

 to
 c

a
u
s
e

s
 b

e
y
o
n

d
 th

e
 c

o
n
tro

l o
f th

e
 e

n
tity

 
(in

c
lu

d
in

g
, b

u
t n

o
t lim

ite
d

 to
, w

e
a
th

e
r o

r tra
ffic

 c
o

n
d

itio
n
s
 a

ffe
c
tin

g
 a

ll v
e

h
ic

u
la

r tra
ffic

 
th

a
t w

e
re

 n
o
t a

n
tic

ip
a
te

d
 a

t th
e

 tim
e

 a
 trip

 w
a
s
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
) s

h
a
ll n

o
t b

e
 a

 b
a

s
is

 fo
r 

d
e
te

rm
in

in
g

 th
a
t s

u
c
h

 a
 p

a
tte

rn
 o

r p
ra

c
tic

e
 e

x
is

ts
. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
1
.1

3
3

 S
u

b
s
c
rip

tio
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

(a
) [P

a
rt 3

7
] d

o
e

s
 n

o
t p

ro
h

ib
it th

e
 u

s
e

 o
f s

u
b
s
c
rip

tio
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 b

y
 p

u
b

lic
 e

n
titie

s
 a

s
 p

a
rt o

f a
 

c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

y
s
te

m
, s

u
b
je

c
t to

 th
e

 lim
ita

tio
n

s
 in

 th
is

 s
e

c
tio

n
. 

(b
) S

u
b
s
c
rip

tio
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 m

a
y
 n

o
t a

b
s
o

rb
 m

o
re

 th
a
n

 fifty
 p

e
rc

e
n
t o

f th
e

 n
u
m

b
e
r o

f trip
s
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 
a

t a
 g

iv
e

n
 tim

e
 o

f d
a
y
, u

n
le

s
s
 th

e
re

 is
 n

o
n
-s

u
b
s
c
rip

tio
n

 c
a

p
a

c
ity

. 
(c

) N
o

tw
ith

s
ta

n
d

in
g

 a
n
y
 o

th
e

r p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f [P

a
rt 3

7
], th

e
 e

n
tity

 m
a

y
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 w

a
itin

g
 lis

ts
 o

r 
o

th
e

r c
a

p
a

c
ity

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
ts

 a
n
d

 trip
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

 re
s
tric

tio
n
s
 o

r p
rio

ritie
s
 fo

r p
a
rtic

ip
a
tio

n
 in

 th
e

 
s
u

b
s
c
rip

tio
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

n
ly

. 

2
4
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t m

a
k
e

 c
le

a
r th

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
ility

 o
f c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 

p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n
d

 re
fra

in
 fro

m
 d

is
c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 fro

m
 a

p
p

ly
in

g
 fo

r o
r u

s
in

g
 

c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

2
4
.2

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t e

n
s
u
re

 th
a
t s

u
b
s
c
rip

tio
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

a
b
s
o

rb
 m

o
re

 th
a
n

 5
0

 p
e
rc

e
n
t o

f th
e

 n
u
m

b
e
r o

f trip
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t a

 g
iv

e
n

 tim
e

 o
f d

a
y
 if c

a
p
a

c
ity

 
c
o

n
s
tra

in
ts

 e
x
is

t?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

5
5

 



 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

2
4
.3

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t re

fra
in

 fro
m

 e
n
g

a
g

in
g

 in
 o

th
e
r a

c
tiv

itie
s
 th

a
t 

m
a

y
 le

a
d

 to
 o

p
e

ra
tio

n
a

l p
a
tte

rn
s
 o

r p
ra

c
tic

e
s
 th

a
t lim

it a
n
d
/o

r d
is

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 th
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

?
 (e

.g
., n

o
t a

d
v
e

rtis
in

g
 th

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
ility

 o
f p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it o

n
 th

e
 

a
g
e

n
c
y
’s

 w
e

b
s
ite

)? 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

5
6

 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

2
5
. P

la
n

n
in

g
 to

 A
v

o
id

 C
a
p

a
c
ity

 C
o

n
s
tra

in
ts

 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.1

3
1

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 c

rite
ria

 fo
r c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

(f) C
a

p
a

c
ity

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
ts

. T
h
e

 e
n

tity
 s

h
a
ll n

o
t lim

it th
e

 a
v
a
ila

b
ility

 o
f c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 to

 A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 b

y
 a

n
y
 o

f th
e

 fo
llo

w
in

g
: 

(1
) R

e
s
tric

tio
n
s
 o

n
 th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r o
f trip

s
 a

n
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l w
ill b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

; 
(2

) W
a

itin
g

 lis
ts

 fo
r a

c
c
e
s
s
 to

 th
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e

; 
(3

) A
n
y
 o

p
e
ra

tio
n

a
l p

a
tte

rn
 o

r p
ra

c
tic

e
 th

a
t s

ig
n
ific

a
n
tly

 lim
its

 th
e

 a
v
a
ila

b
ility

 o
f s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 

A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 p

e
rs

o
n
s
. 

(i) S
u

c
h

 p
a
tte

rn
s
 o

r p
ra

c
tic

e
s
 in

c
lu

d
e

, b
u
t a

re
 n

o
t lim

ite
d

 to
, th

e
 fo

llo
w

in
g
: 

(A
) S

u
b
s
ta

n
tia

l n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f s

ig
n
ific

a
n
tly

 u
n
tim

e
ly

 p
ic

k
u

p
s
 fo

r in
itia

l o
r re

tu
rn

 trip
s
; 

(B
) S

u
b
s
ta

n
tia

l n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f trip

 d
e

n
ia

ls
 o

r m
is

s
e

d
 trip

s
; 

(C
) S

u
b
s
ta

n
tia

l n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f trip

s
 w

ith
 e

x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 trip

 le
n

g
th

s
. 

(ii) O
p

e
ra

tio
n

a
l p

ro
b
le

m
s
 a

ttrib
u
ta

b
le

 to
 c

a
u
s
e

s
 b

e
y
o
n

d
 th

e
 c

o
n
tro

l o
f th

e
 e

n
tity

 
(in

c
lu

d
in

g
, b

u
t n

o
t lim

ite
d

 to
, w

e
a
th

e
r o

r tra
ffic

 c
o

n
d

itio
n
s
 a

ffe
c
tin

g
 a

ll v
e

h
ic

u
la

r tra
ffic

 
th

a
t w

e
re

 n
o
t a

n
tic

ip
a
te

d
 a

t th
e

 tim
e

 a
 trip

 w
a
s
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
) s

h
a
ll n

o
t b

e
 a

 b
a

s
is

 fo
r 

d
e
te

rm
in

in
g

 th
a
t s

u
c
h

 a
 p

a
tte

rn
 o

r p
ra

c
tic

e
 e

x
is

ts
. 

2
5
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t p

la
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
, a

llo
c
a
te

 re
s
o
u

rc
e

s
, a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 
o

p
e

ra
tio

n
s
 in

 o
rd

e
r to

 m
e
e

t 1
0
0

 p
e
rc

e
n
t o

f a
n

tic
ip

a
te

d
 d

e
m

a
n
d

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

5
7

 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

2
6
. P

a
ra

tra
n

s
it E

lig
ib

ility
 S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.1

2
3

 A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

ility
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 

(a
) P

u
b
lic

 e
n
titie

s
 re

q
u

ire
d

 b
y
 §

3
7
.1

2
1

 o
f th

is
 s

u
b
p

a
rt to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

h
a
ll p

ro
v
id

e
 th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 th

e
 A

D
A

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 d

e
s
c
rib

e
d

 in
 

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

 (e
) o

f th
is

 s
e

c
tio

n
. 

(d
) P

u
b
lic

 e
n
titie

s
 m

a
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
 c

o
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ry

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 p

e
rs

o
n

s
 o

th
e
r th

a
n

 A
D

A
 

p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
. H

o
w

e
v
e
r, o

n
ly

 th
e

 c
o

s
t o

f s
e
rv

ic
e

 to
 A

D
A

 p
a

ra
tra

n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 m

a
y
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 in

 a
 p

u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

's
 re

q
u

e
s
t fo

r a
n

 u
n

d
u
e

 fin
a
n

c
ia

l b
u
rd

e
n

 
w

a
iv

e
r u

n
d

e
r §

3
7

.1
5

1
-3

7
.1

5
5

 o
f th

is
 p

a
rt. 

(e
) T

h
e

 fo
llo

w
in

g
 in

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 a
re

 A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
: 

(1
) A

n
y
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l w
ith

 a
 d

is
a

b
ility

 w
h

o
 is

 u
n
a

b
le

, a
s
 th

e
 re

s
u
lt o

f a
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l o

r m
e

n
ta

l 
im

p
a
irm

e
n
t (in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 v
is

io
n

 im
p

a
irm

e
n
t), a

n
d

 w
ith

o
u

t th
e

 a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

 o
f a

n
o
th

e
r 

in
d
iv

id
u
a

l (e
x
c
e
p

t th
e

 o
p
e

ra
to

r o
f a

 w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir lift o

r o
th

e
r b

o
a
rd

in
g

 a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

 d
e

v
ic

e
), 

to
 b

o
a
rd

, rid
e
, o

r d
is

e
m

b
a

rk
 fro

m
 a

n
y
 v

e
h
ic

le
 o

n
 th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

h
ic

h
 is

 re
a
d

ily
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 

to
 a

n
d

 u
s
a
b

le
 b

y
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
 [is

 e
lig

ib
le

 fo
r A

D
A

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it]. 

(2
) A

n
y
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l w
ith

 a
 d

is
a

b
ility

 w
h

o
 n

e
e

d
s
 th

e
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

 o
f a

 w
h

e
e

lc
h
a

ir lift o
r o

th
e
r 

b
o
a

rd
in

g
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

 d
e

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 is
 a

b
le

, w
ith

 s
u

c
h

 a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
, to

 b
o
a

rd
, rid

e
 a

n
d

 
d

is
e

m
b

a
rk

 fro
m

 a
n
y
 v

e
h
ic

le
 w

h
ic

h
 is

 re
a
d

ily
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 to

 a
n

d
 u

s
a
b

le
 b

y
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 

d
is

a
b
ilitie

s
 if th

e
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l w
a

n
ts

 to
 tra

v
e
l o

n
 a

 ro
u

te
 o

n
 th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 d

u
rin

g
 th

e
 h

o
u

rs
 o

f 
o

p
e

ra
tio

n
 o

f th
e

 s
y
s
te

m
 a

t a
 tim

e
, o

r w
ith

in
 a

 re
a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 p
e

rio
d

 o
f s

u
c
h

 tim
e

, w
h

e
n

 s
u

c
h

 
a

 v
e

h
ic

le
 is

 n
o
t b

e
in

g
 u

s
e

d
 to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
a

te
d

 p
u
b

lic
 tra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 o
n

 th
e

 ro
u
te

 [is
 

e
lig

ib
le

 fo
r A

D
A

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it]. 

(i) A
n

 in
d
iv

id
u
a

l is
 e

lig
ib

le
 u

n
d

e
r th

is
 p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h

 w
ith

 re
s
p
e
c
t to

 tra
v
e
l o

n
 a

n
 o

th
e
rw

is
e

 
a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 ro

u
te

 o
n

 w
h

ic
h

 th
e

 b
o
a

rd
in

g
 o

r d
is

e
m

b
a

rk
in

g
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 w
h
ic

h
 th

e
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l 
w

o
u
ld

 u
s
e

 is
 o

n
e

 a
t w

h
ic

h
 b

o
a

rd
in

g
 o

r d
is

e
m

b
a
rk

in
g

 fro
m

 th
e

 v
e

h
ic

le
 is

 p
re

c
lu

d
e

d
 a

s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 in
 §

3
7
.1

6
7

(g
) o

f [P
a

rt 3
7
]. 

(ii) A
n

 in
d

iv
id

u
a

l u
s
in

g
 a

 c
o

m
m

o
n

 w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir is

 e
lig

ib
le

 u
n

d
e
r th

is
 p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h

 if th
e

 
in

d
iv

id
u
a

l’s
 w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
ir c

a
n
n

o
t b

e a
c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a
te

d o
n a

n e
x
is

tin
g v

e
h
ic

le
 (e

.g
., 

b
e
c
a

u
s
e

 th
e v

e
h
ic

le
’s

 lift d
o
e

s
 n

o
t m

e
e
t th

e s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 o

f P
a
rt 3

8 o
f th

is
 title

), e
v
e
n

 if 
th

a
t v

e
h
ic

le
 is

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 to

 o
th

e
r in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
 a

n
d

 th
e
ir m

o
b
ility

 
w

h
e
e

lc
h

a
irs

. 
(iii) W

ith
 re

s
p
e

c
t to

 ra
il s

y
s
te

m
s
, a

n
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l is
 e

lig
ib

le
 u

n
d

e
r th

is
 p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h

 if th
e

 
in

d
iv

id
u
a

l c
o

u
ld

 u
s
e

 a
n

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 ra

il s
y
s
te

m
, b

u
t—

 
(A

) T
h
e
re

 is
 n

o
t y

e
t o

n
e

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
r p

e
r tra

in
 o

n
 th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
; o

r 
(B

) K
e

y
 s

ta
tio

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 n
o
t y

e
t b

e
e

n
 m

a
d
e

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 

(3
) A

n
y
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l w
ith

 a
 d

is
a

b
ility

 w
h

o
 h

a
s
 a

 s
p

e
c
ific

 im
p

a
irm

e
n
t-re

la
te

d
 c

o
n
d

itio
n

 w
h

ic
h

 
p

re
v
e

n
ts

 s
u

c
h

 in
d
iv

id
u
a

l fro
m

 tra
v
e
lin

g
 to

 a
 b

o
a

rd
in

g
 lo

c
a
tio

n
 o

r fro
m

 a
 d

is
e

m
b

a
rk

in
g

 
lo

c
a
tio

n
 o

n
 s

u
c
h

 s
y
s
te

m
 [is

 e
lig

ib
le

 fo
r A

D
A

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it]. 

(i) O
n

ly
 a

 s
p

e
c
ific

 im
p

a
irm

e
n
t-re

la
te

d
 c

o
n
d

itio
n

 w
h

ic
h

 p
re

v
e
n
ts

 th
e

 in
d
iv

id
u
a

l fro
m

 
tra

v
e
lin

g
 to

 a
 b

o
a

rd
in

g
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 o
r fro

m
 a

 d
is

e
m

b
a
rk

in
g

 lo
c
a
tio

n
 is

 a
 b

a
s
is

 fo
r 

e
lig

ib
ility

 u
n
d

e
r th

is
 p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h

. A
 c

o
n
d

itio
n

 w
h

ic
h

 m
a

k
e
s
 tra

v
e
lin

g
 to

 b
o

a
rd

in
g

 
lo

c
a
tio

n
 o

r fro
m

 a
 d

is
e
m

b
a
rk

in
g

 lo
c
a
tio

n
 m

o
re

 d
iffic

u
lt fo

r a
 p

e
rs

o
n

 w
ith

 a
 s

p
e
c
ific

 
im

p
a
irm

e
n
t-re

la
te

d
 c

o
n
d

itio
n

 th
a
n

 fo
r a

n
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l w
h

o
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t h

a
v
e

 th
e

 c
o

n
d

itio
n
, 

b
u
t d

o
e

s
 n

o
t p

re
v
e

n
t th

e
 tra

v
e
l, is

 n
o
t a

 b
a
s
is

 fo
r e

lig
ib

ility
 u

n
d

e
r th

is
 p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h

. 
(ii) A

rc
h

ite
c
tu

ra
l b

a
rrie

rs
 n

o
t u

n
d

e
r th

e
 c

o
n
tro

l o
f th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 fix
e

d
 ro

u
te

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 e
n
v
iro

n
m

e
n
ta

l b
a
rrie

rs
 (e

.g
., d

is
ta

n
c
e
, te

rra
in

, w
e

a
th

e
r) d

o
 n

o
t, s

ta
n
d

in
g

 
a

lo
n
e

, fo
rm

 a
 b

a
s
is

 fo
r e

lig
ib

ility
 u

n
d

e
r th

is
 p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h

. T
h
e

 in
te

ra
c
tio

n
 o

f s
u

c
h

 

5
8

 



 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

b
a
rrie

rs w
ith

 a
n in

d
iv

id
u
a

l’s
 s

p
e
c
ific

 im
p

a
irm

e
n
t-re

la
te

d
 c

o
n
d

itio
n

 m
a

y
 fo

rm
 a

 b
a

s
is

 
fo

r e
lig

ib
ility

 u
n
d

e
r th

is
 p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h
, if th

e
 e

ffe
c
t is

 to
 p

re
v
e
n
t th

e
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l fro
m

 
tra

v
e
lin

g
 to

 a
 b

o
a

rd
in

g
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 o
r fro

m
 a

 d
is

e
m

b
a
rk

in
g

 lo
c
a
tio

n
. 

(f) In
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n
y
in

g
 a

n
 A

D
A

 p
a
ra

tra
n

s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l s
h

a
ll b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

s
 

fo
llo

w
s
: 

(1
) O

n
e

 o
th

e
r in

d
iv

id
u
a

l a
c
c
o
m

p
a
n

y
in

g
 th

e
 A

D
A

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l s
h

a
ll b

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e

—
 

(i) If th
e

 A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l is
 tra

v
e
lin

g
 w

ith
 a

 p
e
rs

o
n
a

l c
a

re
 a

tte
n
d

a
n
t, th

e
 

e
n
tity

 s
h

a
ll p

ro
v
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 o

n
e

 o
th

e
r in

d
iv

id
u
a

l in
 a

d
d

itio
n

 to
 th

e
 a

tte
n
d
a

n
t w

h
o

 is
 

a
c
c
o
m

p
a
n

y
in

g
 th

e
 e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l; 
(ii) A

 fa
m

ily
 m

e
m

b
e
r o

r frie
n
d

 is
 re

g
a
rd

e
d

 a
s
 a

 p
e
rs

o
n

 a
c
c
o
m

p
a
n

y
in

g
 th

e
 e

lig
ib

le
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a

l, a
n
d

 n
o

t a
s
 a

 p
e

rs
o

n
a

l c
a
re

 a
tte

n
d

a
n
t, u

n
le

s
s
 th

e
 fa

m
ily

 m
e
m

b
e
r o

r frie
n
d

 
re

g
is

te
re

d
 is

 a
c
tin

g
 in

 th
e

 c
a

p
a

c
ity

 o
f a

 p
e
rs

o
n
a

l c
a

re
 a

tte
n
d

a
n
t; 

(2
) A

d
d
itio

n
a

l in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n

y
in

g
 th

e
 A

D
A

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l s
h

a
ll b

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e

, p
ro

v
id

e
d

 th
a
t s

p
a
c
e

 is
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 fo
r th

e
m

 o
n

 th
e

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it v

e
h
ic

le
 

c
a

rry
in

g
 th

e
 A

D
A

 p
a
ra

tra
n

s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l a
n

d
 th

a
t tra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 o
f th

e
 a

d
d

itio
n
a

l 
in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ill n
o
t re

s
u
lt in

 a
 d

e
n

ia
l o

f s
e

rv
ic

e
 to

 A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
; 

(3
) In o

rd
e
r to

 b
e c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

s “a
c
c
o

m
p

a
n

y
in

g
” th

e e
lig

ib
le

 in
d

iv
id

u
a

l fo
r p

u
rp

o
s
e

s
 o

f th
is

 
p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h

 (f) th
e

 o
th

e
r in

d
iv

id
u
a

l(s
) s

h
a
ll h

a
v
e

 th
e

 s
a

m
e

 o
rig

in
 a

n
d

 d
e
s
tin

a
tio

n
 a

s
 th

e
 

e
lig

ib
le

 in
d

iv
id

u
a

l. 

2
6
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o th

e re
c
ip

ie
n
t’s p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

ility
 s

ta
n
d
a

rd
s
 re

fle
c
t th

e th
re

e 
e

lig
ib

ility
 c

a
te

g
o

rie
s
 d

e
fin

e
d

 in
 4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.1

2
3
(e

)(1
)-(3

)?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

5
9

 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

2
7
. P

a
ra

tra
n

s
it E

lig
ib

ility
 D

e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
 C

o
n

s
id

e
ra

tio
n

s
 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.1

2
3

 A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

ility
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 

(b
) If a

n
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l m
e

e
ts

 th
e

 e
lig

ib
ility

 c
rite

ria
 o

f th
is

 s
e

c
tio

n
 w

ith
 re

s
p

e
c
t to

 s
o

m
e

 trip
s
 b

u
t n

o
t 

o
th

e
rs

, th
e

 in
d
iv

id
u
a

l s
h

a
ll b

e
 A

D
A

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 o

n
ly

 fo
r th

o
s
e

 trip
s
 fo

r w
h

ic
h

 h
e

 o
r 

s
h

e
 m

e
e
ts

 th
e

 c
rite

ria
. 

(c
) In

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 m

a
y
 b

e
 A

D
A

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 o

n
 th

e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f a

 p
e
rm

a
n
e
n

t o
r te

m
p

o
ra

ry
 

d
is

a
b
ility

. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7
.1

2
5

 A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

ility
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 

(a
) T

h
e

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 s

h
a
ll s

tric
tly

 lim
it A

D
A

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

ility
 to

 in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 s

p
e
c
ifie

d
 in

 §
3

7
.1

2
3

 o
f 

[P
a

rt 3
7
]. 

2
7
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: W
h

e
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 A

D
A

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

ility
 d

e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
s
, d

o
e

s
 th

e
 

re
c
ip

ie
n
t c

o
n
s
id

e
r (1

) th
e a

p
p

lic
a

n
t’s

 a
b
ility

 to
 u

s
e fix

e
d ro

u
te

 in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
tly

, (2
) th

e a
p
p

lic
a

n
t’s

 
c
u

rre
n
t fu

n
c
tio

n
a

l a
b
ility

, (3
) th

e a
p
p

lic
a

n
t’s

 m
o

s
t lim

itin
g c

o
n
d

itio
n
s
, (4

) th
e m

o
b
ility

 d
e
v
ic

e
(s

) 
th

e
 a

p
p

lic
a

n
ts

 s
a

y
 th

e
y
 w

ill u
s
e

 w
h

e
n

 th
e
y
 tra

v
e
l, (5

) e
lig

ib
ility

 fo
r y

o
u
n

g
 c

h
ild

re
n

, (6
) re

s
id

e
n

c
e

 
a

n
d

 e
lig

ib
ility

 d
e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
s
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 fo

u
n
d

 w
ith

 D
O

T
 re

q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

T
h
e

H
a

n
d

i-V
a

n
 e

lig
ib

ility
 m

a
te

ria
ls

 w
e

re
 e

x
a

m
in

e
d

 d
u
rin

g
 th

e
 d

e
s
k
 re

v
ie

w
, p

o
lic

ie
s
 w

e
re

 
d

is
c
u

s
s
e
d

 w
ith

 M
T

M
 s

ta
ff w

h
o

 o
p
e
ra

te
 T

h
e

H
a

n
d

i-V
a

n
 E

lig
ib

ility
 C

e
n
te

r d
u
rin

g
 th

e
 s

ite
 v

is
it, a

n
d

 
s
e

v
e
ra

l e
lig

ib
ility

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 w
e

re
 o

b
s
e

rv
e

d
 d

u
rin

g
 th

e
 s

ite
 v

is
it. 

T
h
e

re
 is

 n
o

 m
in

im
u

m
 a

g
e

 fo
r a

p
p

ly
in

g
 fo

r T
h
e
H

a
n

d
i-V

a
n

 e
lig

ib
ility

. T
h
e

H
a
n

d
i-V

a
n

 E
lig

ib
ility

 
C

e
n
te

r e
v
a

lu
a
te

s
 e

a
c
h

 c
h

ild
 w

ith
 a

 d
is

a
b
ility

 to
g
e
th

e
r w

ith
 th

e
 p

a
re

n
t, c

a
re

g
iv

e
r, P

C
A

, o
r o

th
e
r 

a
d
u

lt w
h

o
 b

rin
g
s
 th

e
 c

h
ild

 in
 fo

r a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t a

s
 a

 te
a
m

, D
T

S
 (th

ro
u
g

h
 its

 e
lig

ib
ility

 c
o

n
ta

c
to

r 
M

T
M

) c
o

n
s
id

e
rs

 th
e

 a
d
u

lt a
s
 a

 m
o

b
ility

 a
id

. C
h

ild
re

n
 w

h
o

 q
u
a

lify
 fo

r s
e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

 g
ra

n
te

d
 

c
o

n
d

itio
n
a

l e
lig

ib
ility

, w
h

ic
h

 s
p

e
c
ifie

s
 th

a
t th

e
y
 m

u
s
t b

e
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n

ie
d

 b
y
 a

n
 a

d
u

lt. 

O
n

 th
e

 fix
e

d
 ro

u
te

 s
y
s
te

m
, D

T
S

 s
e
ts

 n
o

 m
in

im
u
m

 a
g
e

 fo
r a

 c
h

ild
 to

 rid
e

 in
d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

tly
 o

f a
n

 
a

d
u

lt.

C
o

rre
c

tiv
e

 A
c

tio
n

 a
n

d
 S

c
h

e
d

u
le

: W
ith

in
 9

0
 d

a
y
s
 o

f th
e

 is
s
u

a
n

c
e

 o
f th

e
 fin

a
l re

p
o

rt: 

1
. 

T
h
e

 re
c
ip

ie
n
t m

u
s
t s

u
b
m

it to
 T

C
R

 a
 re

v
is

e
d

 p
o
lic

y
 g

o
v
e

rn
in

g
 u

n
a
c
c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
d

 c
h

ild
re

n
 th

a
t is

 
c
o

n
s
is

te
n
t fo

r b
o
th

 fix
e

d
 ro

u
te

 a
n
d

 T
h

e
H

a
n
d

i-V
a

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. T

h
e

 re
c
ip

ie
n
t m

u
s
t n

o
t re

q
u

ire
 

p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it-e

lig
ib

le
 c

h
ild

re
n

 to
 b

e
 a

c
c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
d

 b
y
 a

n
 a

d
u

lt u
n
le

s
s
 c

h
ild

re
n

 o
f th

e
 s

a
m

e
 a

g
e

 
m

u
s
t b

e
 a

c
c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
d

 b
y
 a

n
 a

d
u

lt o
n

 th
e

 fix
e

d
 ro

u
te

 s
y
s
te

m
. 

2
. 

T
h
e

 re
c
ip

ie
n
t m

u
s
t s

u
b
m

it to
 T

C
R

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

tio
n

 th
a
t it h

a
s
 im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 th

e
 re

v
is

e
d

 
p

o
lic

ie
s
 g

o
v
e

rn
in

g
 tra

v
e
l b

y
 u

n
a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n

ie
d

 c
h

ild
re

n
. 

6
0

 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

2
7
.2

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: If th
e re

c
ip

ie
n
t’s

 e
lig

ib
ility

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 in

c
lu

d
e

s
 c

o
n
d

itio
n
a

l e
lig

ib
ility

, 
d

o
e

s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t p

ro
p

e
rly

 a
p
p

ly
 c

o
n
d

itio
n
a

l e
lig

ib
ility

 b
y
 (1

) id
e
n
tify

in
g

 th
e

 s
p

e
c
ific

 c
o

n
d

itio
n
s
 

u
n
d

e
r w

h
ic

h
 e

a
c
h

 a
p
p

lic
a

n
t is

 A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
, a

n
d

 (2
) c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
tin

g
 th

e
s
e

 c
o

n
d

itio
n
s
 

to
 th

e
 a

p
p

lic
a

n
t?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

2
7
.3

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: If th
e re

c
ip

ie
n
t’s

 e
lig

ib
ility

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 in

c
lu

d
e

s
 te

m
p

o
ra

ry
 e

lig
ib

ility
, 

d
o
e

s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t in

fo
rm

 th
e

 a
p
p

lic
a

n
t o

f th
e

 te
rm

s
 o

f th
e
ir e

lig
ib

ility
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

6
1

 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

2
8
. P

a
ra

tra
n

s
it E

lig
ib

ility
 D

e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
 P

ro
c
e
s
s
 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.1

2
5

 A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

ility
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 

E
a

c
h

 p
u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

 re
q

u
ire

d
 to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 c

o
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ry

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 b
y
 §

3
7

.1
2

1
 o

f th
is

 p
a
rt 

s
h

a
ll e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 p
ro

c
e
s
s fo

r d
e
te

rm
in

in
g A

D
A

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

ility
…

 
(b

) A
ll in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 a

b
o

u
t th

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
, m

a
te

ria
ls

 n
e

c
e
s
s
a

ry
 to

 a
p
p

ly
 fo

r e
lig

ib
ility

, a
n
d

 n
o

tic
e

s
 

a
n
d

 d
e

te
rm

in
a
tio

n
s
 c

o
n
c
e

rn
in

g
 e

lig
ib

ility
 s

h
a
ll b

e
 m

a
d
e

 a
v
a

ila
b
le

 in
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 fo

rm
a

ts
, 

u
p
o

n
 re

q
u

e
s
t. 

(c
) If, b

y
 a

 d
a
te

 2
1

 d
a
y
s
 fo

llo
w

in
g

 th
e

 s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f a
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

p
p

lic
a

tio
n
, th

e
 e

n
tity

 h
a
s
 n

o
t 

m
a

d
e

 a
 d

e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
 o

f e
lig

ib
ility

, th
e

 a
p
p

lic
a

n
t s

h
a
ll b

e
 tre

a
te

d
 a

s
 e

lig
ib

le
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

n
til a

n
d

 u
n

le
s
s
 th

e
 e

n
tity

 d
e
n

ie
s
 th

e
 a

p
p

lic
a

tio
n

. 
(d

) T
h

e
 e

n
tity

's
 d

e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

in
g

 e
lig

ib
ility

 s
h

a
ll b

e
 in

 w
ritin

g
. If th

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
 is

 th
a

t 
th

e
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l is
 in

e
lig

ib
le

, th
e

 d
e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
 s

h
a
ll s

ta
te

 th
e

 re
a
s
o

n
s
 fo

r th
e

 fin
d
in

g
... 

(e
) T

h
e

 p
u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

 s
h

a
ll p

ro
v
id

e
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ta

tio
n

 to
 e

a
c
h

 e
lig

ib
le

 in
d

iv
id

u
a

l s
ta

tin
g

 th
a
t h

e
 o

r 
s
h

e is
 ‘A

D
A

 P
a

ra
tra

n
s
it E

lig
ib

le
.’ T

h
e

 d
o

c
u
m

e
n
ta

tio
n s

h
a
ll in

c
lu

d
e

 th
e n

a
m

e
 o

f th
e e

lig
ib

le
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a

l, th
e

 n
a
m

e
 o

f th
e

 tra
n
s
it p

ro
v
id

e
r, th

e
 te

le
p
h

o
n

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r o

f th
e e

n
tity

’s
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

c
o

o
rd

in
a
to

r, a
n

 e
x
p
ira

tio
n

 d
a
te

 fo
r e

lig
ib

ility
, a

n
d

 a
n
y
 c

o
n
d

itio
n
s
 o

r lim
ita

tio
n
s
 o

n
 th

e
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a

l’s
 e

lig
ib

ility
 in

c
lu

d
in

g th
e u

s
e

 o
f a p

e
rs

o
n

a
l c

a
re

 a
tte

n
d

a
n

t. 
(f) 

T
h
e

 e
n
tity

 m
a

y
 re

q
u

ire
 re

c
e
rtific

a
tio

n
 o

f th
e

 e
lig

ib
ility

 o
f A

D
A

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 

a
t re

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 in
te

rv
a

ls
. 

(g
) T

h
e

 e
n
tity

 s
h

a
ll e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
 a

d
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e
 a

p
p

e
a

l p
ro

c
e

s
s
 th

ro
u
g

h
 w

h
ic

h
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

h
o

 
a

re
 d

e
n

ie
d

 e
lig

ib
ility

 c
a

n
 o

b
ta

in
 re

v
ie

w
 o

f th
e

 d
e
n

ia
l. 

(1
) T

h
e

 e
n
tity

 m
a

y
 re

q
u

ire
 th

a
t a

n
 a

p
p

e
a

l b
e

 file
d

 w
ith

in
 6

0
 d

a
y
s
 o

f th
e

 d
e
n
ia

l o
f a

n
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a

l's
 a

p
p

lic
a

tio
n

. 
(2

) T
h

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 s

h
a
ll in

c
lu

d
e

 a
n

 o
p
p

o
rtu

n
ity

 to
 b

e
 h

e
a

rd
 a

n
d

 to
 p

re
s
e

n
t in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 a

n
d

 
a

rg
u

m
e

n
ts

, s
e

p
a
ra

tio
n

 o
f fu

n
c
tio

n
s
 (i.e

., a
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 b
y
 a

 p
e
rs

o
n

 n
o
t in

v
o
lv

e
d

 w
ith

 th
e

 
in

itia
l d

e
c
is

io
n

 to
 d

e
n

y
 e

lig
ib

ility
), a

n
d

 w
ritte

n
 n

o
tific

a
tio

n
 o

f th
e

 d
e
c
is

io
n
, a

n
d

 th
e

 
re

a
s
o

n
s
 fo

r it. 
(3

) T
h

e
 e

n
tity

 is
 n

o
t re

q
u

ire
d

 to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 th

e
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l p
e
n

d
in

g
 th

e
 

d
e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
 o

n
 a

p
p

e
a

l. H
o

w
e

v
e
r, if th

e
 e

n
tity

 h
a
s
 n

o
t m

a
d
e

 a
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 w
ith

in
 3

0
 d

a
y
s
 

o
f th

e
 c

o
m

p
le

tio
n

 o
f th

e
 a

p
p

e
a

l p
ro

c
e

s
s
, th

e
 e

n
tity

 s
h

a
ll p

ro
v
id

e
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 fro
m

 
th

a
t tim

e
 u

n
til a

n
d

 u
n

le
s
s
 a

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 to
 d

e
n
y
 th

e
 a

p
p
e

a
l is

 is
s
u

e
d

. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7
.1

2
5

 A
p

p
e

n
d
ix

 D
 A

D
A

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

ility
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 

T
h
e

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 m

a
y
 n

o
t im

p
o
s
e

 u
n

re
a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 a
d
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e
 b

u
rd

e
n

s
 o

n
 a

p
p

lic
a

n
ts

, a
n
d
, s

in
c
e

 it 
is

 p
a
rt o

f th
e e

n
tity

’s
 n

o
n
d

is
c
rim

in
a
tio

n o
b
lig

a
tio

n
s
, m

a
y n

o
t in

v
o
lv

e
 “u

s
e
r fe

e
s
” o

r a
p
p

lic
a

tio
n

 
fe

e
s
 to

 th
e

 a
p
p

lic
a

n
t. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7
.1

3
7

 P
a

ra
tra

n
s
it p

la
n

 d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

(c
) O

n
g
o

in
g

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
t. T

h
e

 e
n
tity

 s
h

a
ll c

re
a
te

 a
n

 o
n

g
o
in

g
 m

e
c
h

a
n

is
m

 fo
r th

e
 p

a
rtic

ip
a
tio

n
 o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
 in

 th
e

 c
o

n
tin

u
e

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t a

n
d

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t o

f s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 to

 
p

e
rs

o
n
s
 w

ith
 d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
. T

h
is

 in
c
lu

d
e

s
, b

u
t is

 n
o

t lim
ite

d
 to

, th
e

 d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t o
f th

e
 in

itia
l 

p
la

n
, a

n
y
 re

q
u

e
s
t fo

r a
n

 u
n
d

u
e

 fin
a
n

c
ia

l b
u
rd

e
n

 w
a

iv
e

r, a
n
d

 e
a
c
h

 a
n
n

u
a

l s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
. 

P
o

lic
y
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e C

o
n
c
e
rn

in
g R

e
c
ip

ie
n
t’s

 R
e

s
p
o

n
s
ib

ilitie
s
 to

 L
im

ite
d E

n
g
lis

h
 P

ro
fic

ie
n
t (L

E
P

) 
P

e
rs

o
n

s
 

R
e

c
ip

ie
n
ts

 a
re

 re
q
u

ire
d

 to
 ta

k
e

 re
a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 s
te

p
s
 to

 e
n

s
u
re

 m
e

a
n

in
g
fu

l a
c
c
e

s
s
 to

 th
e
ir 

p
ro

g
ra

m
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
tiv

itie
s
 b

y
 L

E
P

 p
e
rs

o
n
s
. W

h
ile

 d
e
s
ig

n
e

d
 to

 b
e

 a
 fle

x
ib

le
 a

n
d

 fa
c
t-d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

6
2

 



 
 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

, th
e

 s
ta

rtin
g

 p
o
in

t is
 a

n
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

liz
e

d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t th

a
t b

a
la

n
c
e

s
 th

e
 fo

llo
w

in
g

 fo
u
r 

fa
c
to

rs
: 

(1
) T

h
e

 n
u
m

b
e
r o

r p
ro

p
o
rtio

n
 o

f L
E

P
 p

e
rs

o
n
s
 e

lig
ib

le
 to

 b
e

 s
e

rv
e

d
 o

r lik
e

ly
 to

 b
e

 e
n
c
o

u
n

te
re

d
 

b
y
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
, a

c
tiv

ity
, o

r s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

f th
e

 re
c
ip

ie
n
t o

r g
ra

n
te

e
; 

(2
) th

e
 fre

q
u

e
n

c
y
 w

ith
 w

h
ic

h
 L

E
P

 in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 c

o
m

e
 in

 c
o

n
ta

c
t w

ith
 th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
; 

(3
) th

e
 n

a
tu

re
 a

n
d

 im
p

o
rta

n
c
e

 o
f th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
, a

c
tiv

ity
, o

r s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t to

 
p

e
o

p
le

's
 liv

e
s
; a

n
d

 
(4

) th
e

 re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 to
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t a

n
d

 c
o
s
ts

. 

2
8
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t re

fra
in

 fro
m

 im
p

o
s
in

g
 u

n
re

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 b
u

rd
e
n

s
 

o
n

 a
p
p

lic
a

n
ts

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

2
8
.2

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s th

e re
c
ip

ie
n
t’s

 e
lig

ib
ility

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 e

x
c
lu

d
e

 in
a
p

p
ro

p
ria

te
 

fa
c
to

rs
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 in

c
o
m

e
, a

b
ility

 to
 d

riv
e

, v
e

h
ic

le
 o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

, a
c
c
e

s
s
 to

 o
th

e
r tra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n
, o

r th
e

 
re

s
u
lts

 o
f tra

v
e
l tra

in
in

g
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

2
8
.3

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t g

ra
n
t p

re
s
u
m

p
tiv

e
 e

lig
ib

ility
 fo

r a
p
p

lic
a

tio
n

s
 n

o
t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

d
 w

ith
in

 2
1

 d
a
y
s
 o

f re
c
e
ip

t o
f a

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

p
p

lic
a

tio
n

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

2
8
.4

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t (1

) p
ro

v
id

e
 th

e
 e

lig
ib

ility
 d

e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
 in

 
w

ritin
g
, a

n
d

 (2
) p

ro
v
id

e
 th

e
 s

p
e
c
ific

 re
a
s
o

n
s
 fo

r g
ra

n
tin

g
 le

s
s
 th

a
n

 u
n
c
o

n
d

itio
n
a

l e
lig

ib
ility

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

2
8
.5

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t h

a
v
e

 a
 m

e
th

o
d

 to
 m

o
n
ito

r th
e

 e
lig

ib
ility

 
d

e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 e
n
s
u

re
 th

a
t e

lig
ib

ility
 d

e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
s
 a

re
 c

o
rre

c
t?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

6
3

 



 
 

 
 

 
 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

2
8
.6

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t (1

) h
a
v
e

 a
n

 e
lig

ib
ility

 a
p
p

e
a

ls
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
, (2

) h
a
v
e

 
a

 d
e

a
d
lin

e
 fo

r filin
g

 a
n

 a
p

p
e

a
l th

a
t is

 a
t le

a
s
t 6

0
 d

a
y
s
, (3

) re
fra

in
 fro

m
 re

q
u
irin

g
 th

e
 a

p
p

lic
a

n
t to

 
s
u

b
m

it a
 w

ritte
n

 a
p
p

e
a

l p
rio

r to
 th

e
 a

p
p

e
a

l h
e
a

rin
g
, (4

) re
fra

in
 fro

m
 re

q
u

irin
g

 th
e

 a
p
p

lic
a

n
t to

 
s
ta

te
 th

e
 re

a
s
o

n
 fo

r th
e

 a
p

p
e

a
l p

rio
r to

 th
e

 a
p
p

e
a

l h
e
a

rin
g

, a
n
d

 (5
) p

ro
v
id

e
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 
w

ith
in

 3
0

 d
a
y
s
 o

f c
o

m
p

le
tin

g
 th

e
 a

p
p

e
a

l p
ro

c
e
s
s
 u

n
til a

n
d

 u
n

le
s
s
 a

 d
e
c
is

io
n

 to
 d

e
n

y
 th

e
 a

p
p

e
a
l 

is
 is

s
u

e
d

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

2
8
.7

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s th

e re
c
ip

ie
n
t’s

 a
p
p

e
a

ls
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 p

ro
v
id

e fo
r (1

) a
n 

o
p
p

o
rtu

n
ity

 to
 h

a
v
e

 a
n

 in
-p

e
rs

o
n

 h
e
a

rin
g

, (2
) s

e
p
a

ra
tio

n
 o

f fu
n
c
tio

n
s
, (3

) a
 d

e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
 w

ith
in

 
a

 re
a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 tim
e
fra

m
e

, a
n
d

 (4
) w

ritte
n

 n
o
tific

a
tio

n
 o

f th
e

 d
e
c
is

io
n

 a
n
d

 th
e

 re
a
s
o

n
 fo

r th
e

 
d

e
c
is

io
n
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

2
8
.8

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: If th
e

 re
c
ip

ie
n
t re

q
u

ire
s
 re

c
e
rtific

a
tio

n
 o

f th
e

 e
lig

ib
ility

 o
f A

D
A

 
p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
, is

 th
e

 re
c
e
rtific

a
tio

n
 re

q
u

ire
d

 a
t re

a
s
o
n

a
b

le
 in

te
rv

a
ls

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

6
4

 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

2
9
. S

e
rv

ic
e
 fo

r V
is

ito
rs

 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4

9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.1

2
7

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 fo
r v

is
ito

rs
 

(a
) E

a
c
h

 p
u

b
lic

 e
n
tity

 re
q
u

ire
d

 to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
n

d
e
r §

3
7

.1
2

1
 o

f 
th

is
 p

a
rt s

h
a
ll m

a
k
e

 th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 to
 v

is
ito

rs
 a

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 in
 th

is
 s

e
c
tio

n
. 

(b
) F

o
r p

u
rp

o
s
e

s
 o

f th
is

 s
e

c
tio

n
, a

 v
is

ito
r is

 a
n

 in
d
iv

id
u
a

l w
ith

 d
is

a
b
ilitie

s
 w

h
o

 d
o

e
s
 n

o
t re

s
id

e
 in

 
th

e
 ju

ris
d
ic

tio
n
(s

) s
e

rv
e

d
 b

y
 th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

 o
r o

th
e

r e
n
titie

s
 w

ith
 w

h
ic

h
 th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
te

d
 c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
ith

in
 a

 re
g
io

n
. 

(c
) 

E
a

c
h

 p
u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

 s
h
a

ll tre
a
t a

s
 e

lig
ib

le
 fo

r its
 c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
ll v

is
ito

rs
 

w
h

o
 p

re
s
e

n
t d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

tio
n

 th
a
t th

e
y
 a

re
 A

D
A

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

le
, u

n
d

e
r th

e
 c

rite
ria

 o
f 

§
3
7

.1
2

5
 o

f [P
a

rt 3
7
], in

 th
e

 ju
ris

d
ic

tio
n

 in
 w

h
ic

h
 th

e
y
 re

s
id

e
. 

(d
) W

ith
 re

s
p
e
c
t to

 v
is

ito
rs

 w
ith

 d
is

a
b
ilitie

s
 w

h
o

 d
o

 n
o
t p

re
s
e

n
t s

u
c
h

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

tio
n

 
[d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ta

tio
n

 o
f h

o
m

e
 ju

ris
d
ic

tio
n

 e
lig

ib
ility

], th
e

 p
u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

 m
a

y
 re

q
u

ire
 th

e
 

d
o
c
u

m
e

n
ta

tio
n

 o
f th

e
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l's
 p

la
c
e

 o
f re

s
id

e
n
c
e

 a
n

d
, if th

e
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l's
 d

is
a

b
ility

 is
 n

o
t 

a
p
p

a
re

n
t, o

f h
is

 o
r h

e
r d

is
a

b
ility

. 
T

h
e

 e
n
tity

 s
h

a
ll p

ro
v
id

e
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 

w
ith

 d
is

a
b
ilitie

s
 w

h
o

 q
u

a
lify

 a
s
 v

is
ito

rs
 u

n
d

e
r p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h

 (b
) o

f th
is

 s
e

c
tio

n
. T

h
e

 e
n

tity
 s

h
a
ll 

a
c
c
e
p

t a
 c

e
rtific

a
tio

n
 b

y
 s

u
c
h

 in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 th

a
t th

e
y
 a

re
 u

n
a

b
le

 to
 u

s
e

 fix
e

d
 ro

u
te

 tra
n
s
it. 

(e
) A

 p
u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

 s
h

a
ll m

a
k
e

 th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 to

 a
 v

is
ito

r re
q
u

ire
d

 b
y
 th

is
 s

e
c
tio

n
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 fo
r a

n
y
 

c
o

m
b

in
a
tio

n
 o

f 2
1

 d
a
y
s
 d

u
rin

g
 a

n
y
 3

6
5
-d

a
y
 p

e
rio

d
 b

e
g

in
n
in

g
 w

ith
 th

e
 v

is
ito

r's
 firs

t u
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 d
u
rin

g
 s

u
c
h

 3
6

5
-d

a
y
 p

e
rio

d
. In

 n
o

 c
a

s
e

 s
h

a
ll th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

 re
q
u

ire
 a

 v
is

ito
r to

 
a

p
p

ly
 fo

r o
r re

c
e

iv
e

 e
lig

ib
ility

 c
e

rtific
a
tio

n
 fro

m
 th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

 b
e
fo

re
 re

c
e
iv

in
g

 th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

re
q
u

ire
d

 b
y
 th

is
 s

e
c
tio

n
. 

4
9

 C
F

R
 §

3
7
.1

2
7

 A
p

p
e

n
d
ix

 D
 C

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 fo
r v

is
ito

rs
 

T
h
is

 s
e

c
tio

n
 re

q
u

ire
s
 e

a
c
h

 e
n

tity
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 c
o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

y
s
te

m
 to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
to

 v
is

ito
rs

 fro
m

 o
u
t o

f to
w

n
 o

n
 th

e s
a
m

e b
a
s
is

 a
s it is

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 to lo
c
a
l re

s
id

e
n
ts

. B
y
 “o

n th
e 

s
a

m
e

 b
a
s
is

,” w
e

 m
e

a
n

 u
n

d
e

r a
ll th

e s
a
m

e
 c

o
n

d
itio

n
s
, s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
rite

ria
, e

tc
., w

ith
o
u

t d
is

tin
c
tio

n
. 

F
o
r th

e
 p

e
rio

d
 o

f a
 v

is
it, th

e
 v

is
ito

r is
 tre

a
te

d
 e

x
a
c
tly

 lik
e

 a
n

 e
lig

ib
le

 lo
c
a

l u
s
e
r, w

ith
o
u

t a
n
y
 

h
ig

h
e

r p
rio

rity
 b

e
in

g
 g

iv
e
n

 to
 e

ith
e
r. 

2
9
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t p

ro
v
id

e
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 fo
r v

is
ito

rs
 o

n
 th

e
 

s
a

m
e

 b
a
s
is

 a
s
 it is

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 to
 lo

c
a
l re

s
id

e
n
ts

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e
fic

ie
n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

2
9
.2

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t (1

) a
c
c
e
p
t d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ta

tio
n

 o
f e

lig
ib

ility
 is

s
u

e
d

 
b

y
 th

e v
is

ito
r’s h

o
m

e ju
ris

d
ic

tio
n
, a

n
d

 (2
) a

c
c
e

p
t s

a
id

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ta

tio
n

 o
f e

lig
ib

ility
 d

ire
c
tly

 fro
m

 
th

e
 v

is
ito

r?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

6
5

 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

2
9
.3

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t p

ro
v
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 fo
r v

is
ito

rs
 w

ith
o
u

t e
lig

ib
ility

 in
 

a
n
o

th
e

r ju
ris

d
ic

tio
n

 b
a
s
e
d

 o
n

 a
p
p

a
re

n
t d

is
a

b
ilitie

s
 o

r o
n

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

tio
n

 o
f d

is
a

b
ility

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e
fic

ie
n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

2
9
.4

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t p

ro
v
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 fo
r v

is
ito

rs
 fo

r 2
1

 d
a
y
s
 w

ith
in

 a
 

3
6
5
-d

a
y
 p

e
rio

d
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

6
6

 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

3
0
. N

o
-S

h
o

w
 S

u
s
p

e
n

s
io

n
 P

o
lic

y
 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4
9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.1

2
5

 A
D

A
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

ility
: P

ro
c
e

s
s
 

(g
) T

h
e

 e
n
tity

 s
h

a
ll e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
 a

d
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e
 a

p
p

e
a

l p
ro

c
e

s
s
 th

ro
u
g

h
 w

h
ic

h
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

h
o

 
a

re
 d

e
n

ie
d

 e
lig

ib
ility

 c
a

n
 o

b
ta

in
 re

v
ie

w
 o

f th
e

 d
e
n

ia
l. 

(1
) T

h
e

 e
n
tity

 m
a

y
 re

q
u

ire
 th

a
t a

n
 a

p
p

e
a

l b
e

 file
d

 w
ith

in
 6

0
 d

a
y
s
 o

f th
e

 d
e
n
ia

l o
f a

n
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a

l’s
 a

p
p

lic
a

tio
n

. 
(2

) T
h

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 s

h
a
ll in

c
lu

d
e

 a
n

 o
p
p

o
rtu

n
ity

 to
 b

e
 h

e
a

rd
 a

n
d

 to
 p

re
s
e

n
t in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 a

n
d

 
a

rg
u

m
e

n
ts

, s
e

p
a
ra

tio
n

 o
f fu

n
c
tio

n
s
 (i.e

., a
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 b
y
 a

 p
e
rs

o
n

 n
o
t in

v
o
lv

e
d

 w
ith

 th
e

 
in

itia
l d

e
c
is

io
n

 to
 d

e
n

y
 e

lig
ib

ility
), a

n
d

 w
ritte

n
 n

o
tific

a
tio

n
 o

f th
e

 d
e
c
is

io
n
, a

n
d

 th
e

 
re

a
s
o

n
s
 fo

r it. 
(3

) T
h

e
 e

n
tity

 is
 n

o
t re

q
u

ire
d

 to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 th

e
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l p
e
n

d
in

g
 th

e
 

d
e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
 o

n
 a

p
p

e
a

l. H
o

w
e

v
e
r, if th

e
 e

n
tity

 h
a
s
 n

o
t m

a
d
e

 a
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 w
ith

in
 3

0
 d

a
y
s
 

o
f th

e
 c

o
m

p
le

tio
n

 o
f th

e
 a

p
p

e
a

l p
ro

c
e

s
s
, th

e
 e

n
tity

 s
h

a
ll p

ro
v
id

e
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 fro
m

 
th

a
t tim

e
 u

n
til a

n
d

 u
n

le
s
s
 a

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 to
 d

e
n
y
 th

e
 a

p
p
e

a
l is

 is
s
u

e
d

. 
(h

) T
h

e
 e

n
tity

 m
a

y
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
 a

d
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 to

 s
u

s
p

e
n
d

, fo
r a

 re
a

s
o
n

a
b

le
 p

e
rio

d
 o

f 
tim

e
, th

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 to
 A

D
A

 e
lig

ib
le

 in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 w

h
o

 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 p
a
tte

rn
 o

r p
ra

c
tic

e
 o

f m
is

s
in

g
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 trip

s
. 

(1
) T

rip
s
 m

is
s
e

d
 b

y
 th

e
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l fo
r re

a
s
o

n
s
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 h
is

 o
r h

e
r c

o
n
tro

l (in
c
lu

d
in

g
, b

u
t n

o
t 

lim
ite

d
 to

, trip
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 m

is
s
e

d
 d

u
e

 to
 o

p
e
ra

to
r e

rro
r) s

h
a
ll n

o
t b

e
 a

 b
a
s
is

 fo
r 

d
e
te

rm
in

in
g

 th
a
t s

u
c
h

 a
 p

a
tte

rn
 o

r p
ra

c
tic

e
 e

x
is

ts
. 

(2
) B

e
fo

re
 s

u
s
p
e

n
d

in
g

 s
e

rv
ic

e
, th

e
 e

n
tity

 s
h

a
ll ta

k
e

 th
e

 fo
llo

w
in

g
 s

te
p
s
: 

(i) 
N

o
tify

 th
e

 in
d
iv

id
u
a

l in
 w

ritin
g

 th
a
t th

e
 e

n
tity

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
s
 to

 s
u

s
p
e

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
, c

itin
g

 w
ith

 
s
p

e
c
ific

ity
 th

e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f th

e
 p

ro
p
o

s
e
d

 s
u

s
p
e

n
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 s
e

ttin
g

 fo
rth

 th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
s
a

n
c
tio

n
. 

(ii) P
ro

v
id

e
 th

e
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l a
n

 o
p
p

o
rtu

n
ity

 to
 b

e
 h

e
a
rd

 a
n

d
 to

 p
re

s
e

n
t in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 a

n
d

 
a

rg
u

m
e

n
ts

. 
(iii) P

ro
v
id

e
 th

e
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l w
ith

 w
ritte

n
 n

o
tific

a
tio

n
 o

f th
e

 d
e
c
is

io
n

 a
n
d

 th
e

 re
a
s
o

n
s
 fo

r it. 
(3

) T
h

e
 a

p
p

e
a

ls
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

 (g
) o

f th
is

 s
e

c
tio

n
 is

 a
v
a

ila
b
le

 to
 a

n
 in

d
iv

id
u
a

l o
n

 
w

h
o
m

 s
a

n
c
tio

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 im

p
o
s
e

d
 u

n
d

e
r th

is
 p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h
. T

h
e

 s
a

n
c
tio

n
 is

 s
ta

y
e

d
 

p
e
n

d
in

g
 th

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f th
e

 a
p
p

e
a

l. 
(i) 

In
 a

p
p

lic
a

tio
n

s
 fo

r A
D

A
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it e

lig
ib

ility
, th

e
 e

n
tity

 m
a

y
 re

q
u

ire
 th

e
 a

p
p

lic
a

n
t to

 
in

d
ic

a
te

 w
h

e
th

e
r o

r n
o
t h

e
 o

r s
h

e
 tra

v
e
ls

 w
ith

 a
 p

e
rs

o
n
a

l c
a

re
 a

tte
n
d

a
n
t. 

3
0
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: If th
e

 re
c
ip

ie
n
t h

a
s
 a

 n
o

-s
h

o
w

 s
u

s
p
e

n
s
io

n
 p

o
lic

y
, d

o
e
s
 th

e
 

re
c
ip

ie
n
t e

n
s
u
re

 th
a
t rid

e
rs

 a
re

 s
u
s
p

e
n

d
e

d
 o

n
ly

 in
 re

s
p
o

n
s
e

 to
 a

 p
a
tte

rn
 o

r p
ra

c
tic

e
 o

f m
is

s
in

g
 

s
c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 trip

s
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

3
0
.2

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: If th
e

 re
c
ip

ie
n
t s

u
s
p
e

n
d

s
 a

 rid
e
r fo

r a
 p

a
tte

rn
 o

r p
ra

c
tic

e
 o

f 
m

is
s
in

g
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 trip

s
, is

 th
e

 s
u

s
p
e

n
s
io

n
 fo

r a
 re

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 a
m

o
u
n
t o

f tim
e

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

6
7

 



 
 

  
 

 

C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

3
0
.3

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: If th
e re

c
ip

ie
n
t’s

 n
o

-s
h

o
w

 p
o
lic

y
 in

c
lu

d
e

s
 la

te
 c

a
n
c
e

lla
tio

n
s
, d

o
e

s
 

th
e

 re
c
ip

ie
n
t o

n
ly

 c
o

u
n

t la
te

 c
a

n
c
e

lla
tio

n
s
 a

s
 n

o
-s

h
o
w

s
 (1

) if th
e

 trip
 w

a
s
 c

a
n
c
e

lle
d

 le
s
s
 th

a
n

 
o

n
e

/tw
o

 h
o

u
rs

 p
rio

r to
 th

e
 p

ic
k
u

p
 tim

e
, a

n
d

 (2
) if th

e
 trip

 w
a
s
 c

a
n
c
e

lle
d

 d
u
e

 to
 re

a
s
o

n
s
 w

ith
in

 th
e

 
rid

e
r’s

 c
o

n
tro

l? 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

3
0
.4

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t re

fra
in

 fro
m

 c
o

u
n

tin
g

 n
o

-s
h

o
w

s
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 th
e

 
rid

e
r’s

 c
o

n
tro

l to
w

a
rd

s s
u
s
p

e
n

s
io

n
? 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

3
0
.5

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t (1

) n
o
tify

 th
e

 rid
e
r o

f th
e

 p
e

n
d

in
g

 s
u

s
p
e

n
s
io

n
 in

 
w

ritin
g

 a
n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 th

e
 s

p
e
c
ific

 b
a
s
is

 fo
r it, (2

) o
ffe

r th
e

 o
p
p

o
rtu

n
ity

 fo
r th

e
 rid

e
r to

 a
p
p

e
a

l, a
n
d

 
(3

) s
ta

y
 th

e
 s

u
s
p
e

n
s
io

n
 p

e
n

d
in

g
 th

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f th
e

 a
p
p

e
a

l?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

3
0
.6

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: D
o

e
s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t re

fra
in

 fro
m

 im
p

o
s
in

g
 a

 fin
a
n

c
ia

l p
e
n

a
lty

 fo
r n

o
-

s
h

o
w

s
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 

6
8

 



C 
U

n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

3
1
. M

o
n

ito
rin

g
 C

o
n

tra
c

te
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 D

ire
c

tiv
e
(s

): 
4
9
 C

F
R

 §
3

7
.2

3
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 u
n
d

e
r c

o
n
tra

c
t 

(a
) W

h
e

n
 a

 p
u

b
lic

 e
n
tity

 e
n
te

rs
 in

to
 a

 c
o

n
tra

c
tu

a
l o

r o
th

e
r a

rra
n
g

e
m

e
n
t (in

c
lu

d
in

g
, b

u
t n

o
t 

lim
ite

d
 to

, a
 g

ra
n
t, s

u
b
g
ra

n
t, o

r c
o

o
p

e
ra

tiv
e

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t) o

r re
la

tio
n

s
h
ip

 w
ith

 a
 p

riv
a

te
 e

n
tity

 
to

 o
p

e
ra

te
 fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 o
r d

e
m

a
n
d

 re
s
p
o

n
s
iv

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, th
e

 p
u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

 s
h

a
ll e

n
s
u

re
 th

a
t th

e
 

p
riv

a
te

 e
n
tity

 m
e

e
ts

 th
e

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n

ts
 o

f th
is

 p
a
rt th

a
t w

o
u
ld

 a
p

p
ly

 to
 th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

 if th
e

 
p

u
b

lic
 e

n
tity

 its
e

lf p
ro

v
id

e
d

 th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

(d
) A

 p
riv

a
te

 e
n
tity

 th
a
t p

ro
v
id

e
s
 fix

e
d

 ro
u
te

 o
r d

e
m

a
n
d

 re
s
p
o

n
s
iv

e
 tra

n
s
p
o

rta
tio

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
n

d
e
r 

c
o

n
tra

c
t o

r o
th

e
r a

rra
n
g

e
m

e
n
t (in

c
lu

d
in

g
, b

u
t n

o
t lim

ite
d

 to
, a

 g
ra

n
t, s

u
b
g

ra
n

t, o
r 

c
o

o
p

e
ra

tiv
e

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t) w

ith
 a

n
o

th
e
r p

riv
a

te
 e

n
tity

 s
h

a
ll b

e
 g

o
v
e
rn

e
d
, fo

r p
u

rp
o

s
e

s
 o

f th
e

 
tra

n
s
p

o
rta

tio
n

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 in
v
o

lv
e

d
, b

y
 th

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
s
 o

f th
is

 p
a
rt a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

 to
 th

e
 o

th
e
r e

n
tity

. 

3
1
.1

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: W
h

e
n

 e
n
te

rin
g

 in
to

 a
 c

o
n

tra
c
tu

a
l o

r o
th

e
r a

rra
n
g

e
m

e
n
t w

ith
 a

 
p

riv
a
te

 a
g
e

n
c
y
 to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

, d
o
e

s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t e

n
s
u
re

 th
a
t th

e
 p

riv
a

te
 a

g
e

n
c
y
 

a
d
h

e
re

s
 to

 p
a
ra

tra
n
s
it s

e
rv

ic
e

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

?
 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

3
1
.2

 In
d
ic

a
to

r o
f C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

: In
 th

e
 e

v
e

n
t th

a
t th

e
 p

riv
a
te

 a
g
e

n
c
y
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e

s
 o

r le
a
s
e

s
 n

e
w

, 
u

s
e
d

, o
r re

m
a

n
u
fa

c
tu

re
d

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
 fo

r u
s
e

 in
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, d
o
e

s
 th

e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t e

n
s
u

re
 th

a
t th

e
 p

riv
a
te

 
a

g
e

n
c
y
 a

c
q
u

ire
s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
 in

 a
ll s

itu
a
tio

n
s
 in

 w
h

ic
h

 th
e

 re
c
ip

ie
n
t its

e
lf w

o
u
ld

 b
e

 
re

q
u

ire
d

 to
 d

o
 s

o
?

 

F
in

d
in

g
: D

u
rin

g
 th

is
 re

v
ie

w
 a

 d
e

fic
ie

n
c
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t fo

u
n

d
 w

ith
 D

O
T

 re
q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r A

D
A

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it. 

6
9

 



 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

C 

U
n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

IX
. S

u
m

m
a
ry

 T
a
b

le
 o

f F
in

d
in

g
s
 

T
h

e
 ta

b
le

 b
e

lo
w

 o
u

tlin
e

s
 a

ll fin
d

in
g

s
 a

n
d
 th

e
 c

o
rre

c
tiv

e
 a

c
tio

n
(s

) a
n
d

 d
u
e

 d
a

te
, if a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

, b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 th

e
 s

p
e

c
ia

liz
e

d
 

re
v
ie

w
 b

y
 e

a
c
h

 re
v
ie

w
 a

re
a

 a
n

d
 in

d
ic

a
to

r o
f c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

. 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

N
o

 D
e
fic

ie
n

c
y
 

F
o

u
n

d
 

D
e
fic

ie
n

c
y
 

F
o

u
n

d
 

N
/A

 
C

o
rre

c
tiv

e
 A

c
tio

n
 

D
u

e
 D

a
te

 

1
.1

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
.2

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
.3

 
☐

 
☒

 
☐

 
T

h
e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t m

u
s
t s

u
b
m

it to
 T

C
R

 a
 p

o
lic

y
 e

n
a
b

lin
g
 th

e
 s

u
s
p
e
n
s
io

n
 

o
f fix

e
d
 ro

u
te

 rid
e
rs

 fo
r m

is
c
o
n
d
u
c
t a

n
d
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 th

a
t it h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
te

d
. 

1
2
0
 d

a
y
s
 

1
.4

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

2
.1

 
☐

 
☒

 
☐

 
T

h
e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t m

u
s
t s

u
b
m

it to
 T

C
R

 a
 re

v
is

e
d
 T

h
e
H

a
n
d

i V
a
n
 R

id
e
r’s 

G
u
id

e
 th

a
t id

e
n
tifie

s
 th

e
 s

p
e
c
ific

 m
is

c
o
n
d

u
c
t fo

r w
h
ic

h
 a

 rid
e
r m

a
y
 b

e
 

s
u
s
p
e
n
d
e

d
, in

c
lu

d
in

g
 o

n
ly

 b
e
h
a
v
io

r th
a
t is

 v
io

le
n
t, s

e
rio

u
s
ly

 
d
is

ru
p
tiv

e
, o

r ille
g

a
l, o

r re
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
 d

ire
c
t th

re
a
t to

 th
e

 h
e
a

lth
 o

r 
s
a
fe

ty
 o

f o
th

e
rs

. 

6
0
 d

a
y
s
 

2
.2

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

3
.1

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

3
.2

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

7
0
 



 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C 

U
n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

N
o

 D
e
fic

ie
n

c
y
 

F
o

u
n

d
 

D
e
fic

ie
n

c
y
 

F
o

u
n

d
 

N
/A

 
C

o
rre

c
tiv

e
 A

c
tio

n
 

D
u

e
 D

a
te

 

4
.1

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

5
.1

 
☐

 
☒

 
☐

 
T

h
e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t m

u
s
t s

u
b
m

it to
 T

C
R

 a
 p

la
n
 th

a
t p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 s
c
h
e
d
u

le
 o

f 
re

tro
fittin

g
 th

e
 2

0
2
4
 F

o
rd

 T
ra

n
s
it V

a
n
s
 w

ith
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t d

o
o
rw

a
y
 lig

h
ts

. 
6
0
 d

a
y
s
 

5
.2

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

5
.3

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

5
.4

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

5
.5

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

5
.6

 
☐

 
☒

 
☐

 
T

h
e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t m

u
s
t s

u
b
m

it to
 T

C
R

 a
 re

v
is

e
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 th
a
t s

e
ts

 fo
rth

 
h
o
w

 its
 s

ta
ff o

r its
 c

o
n
tra

c
to

r w
ill c

o
n

d
u
c
t fu

tu
re

 in
s
p
e
c
tio

n
s
 o

f 
v
e
h
ic

le
s
, p

a
rtic

u
la

rly
 fo

r th
e

ir c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

ith
 P

a
rt 3

8
. T

h
e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t 

m
u
s
t a

ls
o
 k

e
e

p
 re

c
o
rd

s
 o

f th
e
 v

e
rific

a
tio

n
 o

f c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 o

f v
e

h
ic

le
s
 

w
ith

 re
s
p

e
c
t to

 P
a
rt 3

8
 re

q
u

ire
m

e
n
ts

. 

6
0
 d

a
y
s
 

5
.7

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

6
.1

 
☐

 
☒

 
☐

 
T

h
e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t m

u
s
t s

u
b
m

it to
 T

C
R

 a
 re

v
is

e
d
 R

id
e
r’s

 G
u

id
e a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

m
a
te

ria
ls

 fo
r T

h
e
H

a
n
d

i-V
a
n

, in
c
lu

d
in

g
 e

lig
ib

ility
 m

a
te

ria
ls

 a
n
d
 

s
a
m

p
le

 e
lig

ib
ility

 d
e
te

rm
in

a
tio

n
 le

tte
rs

, th
a
t re

fle
c
t th

e
 a

c
tu

a
l w

e
ig

h
t 

a
n
d
 d

im
e
n
s
io

n
s
 o

f w
h
e

e
lc

h
a
irs

 th
a
t its

 fle
e

t c
a
n
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a

te
. 

6
0
 d

a
y
s
 

6
.2

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

7
1
 



 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

C 

U
n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

N
o

 D
e
fic

ie
n

c
y
 

F
o

u
n

d
 

D
e
fic

ie
n

c
y
 

F
o

u
n

d
 

N
/A

 
C

o
rre

c
tiv

e
 A

c
tio

n
 

D
u

e
 D

a
te

 

7
.1

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

7
.2

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

7
.3

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

7
.4

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

7
.5

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

7
.6

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

7
.7

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

7
.8

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

7
.9

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

7
.1

0
 

☒
 

☐
 

☐
 

8
.1

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

7
2
 



 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

C 

U
n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

N
o

 D
e
fic

ie
n

c
y
 

F
o

u
n

d
 

D
e
fic

ie
n

c
y
 

F
o

u
n

d
 

N
/A

 
C

o
rre

c
tiv

e
 A

c
tio

n
 

D
u

e
 D

a
te

 

8
.2

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

9
.1

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
0
.1

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
0
.2

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
0
.3

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
1
.1

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
1
.2

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
1
.3

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
2
.1

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
2
.2

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

7
3
 



 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

C 

U
n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

N
o

 D
e
fic

ie
n

c
y
 

F
o

u
n

d
 

D
e
fic

ie
n

c
y
 

F
o

u
n

d
 

N
/A

 
C

o
rre

c
tiv

e
 A

c
tio

n
 

D
u

e
 D

a
te

 

1
3
.1

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
3
.2

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
3
.3

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
3
.4

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
4
.1

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
4
.2

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
4
.3

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
5
.1

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
6
.1

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
6
.2

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
6
.3

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

7
4
 



 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

C 

U
n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

N
o

 D
e
fic

ie
n

c
y
 

F
o

u
n

d
 

D
e
fic

ie
n

c
y
 

F
o

u
n

d
 

N
/A

 
C

o
rre

c
tiv

e
 A

c
tio

n
 

D
u

e
 D

a
te

 

1
6
.4

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
6
.5

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
6
.6

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
6
.7

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
7
.1

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
7
.2

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
8
.1

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
8
.2

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

1
9
.1

 
☒

 
☐

 
☒

 

2
0
.1

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

7
5
 



 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

C 

U
n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

N
o

 D
e
fic

ie
n

c
y
 

F
o

u
n

d
 

D
e
fic

ie
n

c
y
 

F
o

u
n

d
 

N
/A

 
C

o
rre

c
tiv

e
 A

c
tio

n
 

D
u

e
 D

a
te

 

2
0
.2

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

2
1
.1

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

2
2
.1

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

2
3
.1

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

2
3
.2

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

2
3
.3

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

2
3
.4

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

2
4
.1

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

7
6
 



 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

C 

U
n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

N
o

 D
e
fic

ie
n

c
y
 

F
o

u
n

d
 

D
e
fic

ie
n

c
y
 

F
o

u
n

d
 

N
/A

 
C

o
rre

c
tiv

e
 A

c
tio

n
 

D
u

e
 D

a
te

 

2
4
.2

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

2
4
.3

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

2
5
.1

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

2
6
.1

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

2
7
.1

 
☐

 
☒

 
☐

 
1
.T

h
e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t m

u
s
t s

u
b
m

it to
 T

C
R

 a
 re

v
is

e
d
 p

o
lic

y
 g

o
v
e
rn

in
g
 

u
n
a
c
c
o
m

p
a
n

ie
d

 c
h
ild

re
n

 th
a
t is

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t fo

r b
o

th
 fix

e
d
 ro

u
te

 a
n

d
 

T
h
e
H

a
n

d
i-V

a
n

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. T

h
e
 re

c
ip

ie
n

t m
u
s
t n

o
t re

q
u

ire
 p

a
ra

tra
n
s
it-

e
lig

ib
le

 c
h
ild

re
n

 to
 b

e
 a

c
c
o

m
p
a
n

ie
d
 b

y
 a

n
 a

d
u
lt u

n
le

s
s
 c

h
ild

re
n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 a

g
e
 m

u
s
t b

e
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a

n
ie

d
 b

y
 a

n
 a

d
u

lt o
n
 th

e
 fix

e
d
 ro

u
te

 
s
y
s
te

m
. 

2
. T

h
e
 re

c
ip

ie
n
t m

u
s
t s

u
b
m

it to
 T

C
R

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

tio
n
 th

a
t it h

a
s
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
te

d
 th

e
 re

v
is

e
d
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 g

o
v
e
rn

in
g
 tra

v
e

l b
y
 

u
n
a
c
c
o
m

p
a
n

ie
d

 c
h
ild

re
n

. 

9
0
 d

a
y
s
 

2
7
.2

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

2
7
.3

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

2
8
.1

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

7
7
 



 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

C 

U
n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

N
o

 D
e
fic

ie
n

c
y
 

F
o

u
n

d
 

D
e
fic

ie
n

c
y
 

F
o

u
n

d
 

N
/A

 
C

o
rre

c
tiv

e
 A

c
tio

n
 

D
u

e
 D

a
te

 

2
8
.2

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

2
8
.3

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

2
8
.4

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

2
8
.5

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

2
8
.6

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

2
8
.7

 
☐

 
☐

 
☐

 

2
8
.8

 
☐

 
☐

 
☐

 

2
9
.1

 
☐

 
☐

 
☐

 

2
9
.2

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

2
9
.3

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

2
9
.4

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

7
8
 



 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

C 

U
n
ite

d
 S

ta
te

s
 D

e
p

a
rtm

e
n
t o

f T
ra

n
s
p
o
rta

tio
n
 

T
C

R
 A

D
A

 C
o

m
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

a
ra

tra
n
s
it 

F
e
d
e
ra

l T
ra

n
s
it A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

S
p
e
c
ia

liz
e
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 R

e
p
o
rt 

D
T

S
, O

c
to

b
e
r 2

0
2
5
 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

N
o

 D
e
fic

ie
n

c
y
 

F
o

u
n

d
 

D
e
fic

ie
n

c
y
 

F
o

u
n

d
 

N
/A

 
C

o
rre

c
tiv

e
 A

c
tio

n
 

D
u

e
 D

a
te

 

3
0
.1

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

3
0
.2

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

3
0
.3

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

3
0
.4

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

3
0
.5

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

3
0
.6

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

3
1
.1

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

3
1
.2

 
☒

 
☐

 
☐

 

7
9
 



± @%< D E
u

†r� ¨

234567�38�9:4:;<=�>:?:;<�@A56�6B<@�C4DA6<5�:6�EFGFHGIFIJ�EKEI�LM�PQR>STNU�VOWXYZ[\�RS\]STU�V̂S_�\̀ QS[a�bS\]�SV�Q_�Q�c\Z�dQU\e ©·̧̋ ¹̃ªº̨»¼�½#¹¾ %̨"& ³��� ���� ���������� �����̆ ��̌���̂�̇�̨̋ �°̃ !̃�# $�%̃  &˝̨$�()̨&�*̃+,̨ &-$�. /˜©̄°:0-<$D̋�Lª�0±²̨A�-@« 0̃1) ,�$-� ¬̃-̨$��ª« ®«&-+A�«́³��5�°̃:°AµÃ¶ 
hgoivf�nlghgwij�xjykilknl�ilmlz�qri{lrno|p}�{qr|�~st}u�•†tu‡…—–�h…ƒ…⁄–…‹›−�}‰‰„“”‘’„�u„‚„‘™„f�tf’›Ł„−�Œz�ŠŸŠŽ •†�u}r�{qršž€t•t}uł†ıt¤r¥{r†Ÿ�}¡t¥s��¦�{�t¢Š��‹r§•�Œ|łı¡r�¥†{ı}£•̈rŸœ�s} 

mailto:PQRSTU�VW&XYZ[\f�nlhwijx�jkilknl�ilmlz�i{lrno|}�{|�~st��RS\]�ST$U�V�()^S_�\`QS[a��bS\&]�S�V�Q*_�Q��c\+Z�d,�&QU\e-$�.����:�0�-<�$D���L��#�/�$0���A�%-�@�-"�&)���0-�$1����,���&-+A�������5���:�A�A�


govDELIVERY~ 

--· ----

/)(�#)& � � ���� !(( & >�0 #�& ((���$ �� 5� 01 /�# ��##������ .0 . ( #� �) 0 )/!� � � � (00 !) �( 6# )�� () //
( ! ) !/�3)�76# � (( 7& $ /#### // �� ( �� ((/ ($ � ... � # (� �� / 6! �& .�))00 ( �� //( )) ()/# & &&�7/) 0.� ) � !!(*�� & �� * 7!! !)

*$ ��0 ! !!& !(( / �� !� (((((( 0�G E)) ����� !( F �� ;F�( /// ��$ ( )!& �� #### �� 7�!! �7) *17�� ;#) /!!!! ���(0 (/ &/&( 7 77)/�� 9 ())))� ) ������ ) ���# �# � ) � #)0 ���#(((/�� )/(�) 7 / 7. ( � :!! )��� !0( 7� /&&* 1 (&& & ) 0)�� & )��!!! 0 �(/ ##����// (��� ���$)) !7 ( ) 7/7 & (�$ ,.. �&( 0 [[��//n t qn� i� �j
Š�� �� ��� �

/̆7̌̂)̇(̨̋/°�!̃/9!-�"7#:�;#<�%&*�'!�$�7(��.�#)�*)�+#-�9(�#3,#&5#��)-�)7�-7$�&3)�(.��!,�5/�/!#�303�$&)=.���-.�1-�2��)/3#!.)/!�4#5��.6!7!�*)�&(���-#7.�*7-!,���/�.!#�7&*(0#-)7*�#8(6-,&0!9#0!/�($.�#(�?330!4#5�-7@--=0!�4#5>�-)� "#$#%&�'$(;�̃&(�37-A&*!�#�(&630!>�.#(°17!9#5/-�7&*!9&/�/!�#**!*�,!)!B/�-1�#$/- C.�*#&05#*�6-)/05�1#7!�.33&)=;˜&�0#$).�1-0-9(�/!�($.!(1$�&)/7-*$.C-)�-1�6-,&0!�C.:C=�&)�D#)$#75�EFEG#)*�?.-$ °'#(:!*�"̃#&.$:#!%&C�')$=(H�#?�'0!̃#I�*9&)&/=�!/J#!63�̂-0!-�-6$1�#-�9(6#�#=7!/.)#.7&!*(&�).#�+#)�6-5�E*F!E7G);&�K̃!-�=1#!7/!�!.7->�/0!.!C(!-�)&63�$(&7)-=A�!#6!�3)#/(!*#6#337-/..7*;>L&�-7�.-�23#!./0�4!#(5�6!,#):/�(.�#)7-*9�9�#A#0!&0,090!#>�57(&*�7!7.(!�.&A#&)�=./-!-�(,!�(-/�3-#5�/&,07!-�1#=!�;!�6-,&0!�#33>23!)�4#56!)(0(-�6#:!�3,0&.7# &!#&!71-�"#$#%&8�6#)5�A(&/-7(;�̃-$7/(�.#)(&6305�#3�#.#7-7�3-)!�/-�7&*!;�M-7�7!=$0#7�7*!7(>�/!(5/!6�7!$.!(�0&#).�-.#(>�(3 *�$3�,-#7*&)=>#̃(#&)!**=�0=!#-&�$A9/7!)!#(.)7�7(&�*-#/03(#7!-7�.�&##-)C/$.-7)-/*#;$0̃��/..-!-&�/�7/1?&(!3>#��./-$!&($703!)-&�/)7!�5̆=)�&�#)",):#*0&$!)�#(-=%/>7&�!9'!*$7$(�&#.�3!7.*�-#-�A1$0#&-*)79!!/°(�,6-�/7#-&(*�7,!*!7�(�!,#N./3-)3�.&0!&-B!)/*/()�;*#!&).7/*!�.7/!0!50&�#7/�-,3�0#/!5�(!!�37A#)&5./�6!!.;#7)*/�.-#�7#*M#7!�.#+#P33$&T=0�&!!)�)!<(�&P*$&!7)!O=�(Q�!7F&;<*&!F*7�!(RO#<?0!9*#$50/.(�!Q3*E#�;M5F#�F/7�!R!�Q<�0F!-;*9$G!.(!/*�1�#M7#!7;!�4�Q7&S.;!F(F�#7!�(!/�#/O Ṽ &(�0#U!#(5/�40##()O.?*�6#$0/:�QG;�F7&F*&R�=<!̃*$!."!#*$�M##%7&�'�$QE;G#F(&!7/ )�!A!7>�9!/!75-$�#!�0-.#0�.-66$!7-7�#A&(+-&-7)!/J3050-�47#&=(O�?*�$&(0/0�QG*F>W;�(F#�R*<�+#!*$5.-!7*U�M!#77!:��QPE;G";"F9#:#6&�VL&/23 �456!)(>�5-$�.#(&6305�/#3�5-$7�.#7*�-7�3-!�#*&*!9&/�)-� -.#(>�3#(!(>-�.-).!7)#,-$/-A!73#5&)=;�̌#�6-*!)>�.-)A!&!)/>�#*�1#&5(!6�*!(=)!*�1-7�!A!75-)!;�L!�#7!�37-$*/-�#A!.-630!/!*/&(�3#(!*7-0-$/�&/�-$7�3#7/)!7(�#/+##,&;WV"#$#%&�'$(�#(�(-9)�/!�,!)!B/(�-1�#�3#(!*�#337-#.�/-�1#7!�6-*!7)&K#C-)>�6-A&)=�17-66-,+##.(!#&0,(!�,;C�0V.!̃:>�CN.()�7=-&�!/0)--/�$?>�/#'&)̃(�#�,)7&-**$�!)/7-�°6-97&�!7-)!*�2/053#�!1)-7/�4!7#!.56!)*-0)-/=(5�#&;�)̌/*0!&A�#(�,/--#$7(/�6##�05&:!#&;)7L!>=W�3(#$�#&,*7!0�&'.37/&7-#$)�*X(#&/-�6-=�3#&>7�!Y̨!2�9#/&/"̃#$!�%&!�/9-(*5!(0/&!A!6�7�&#(�93--970*°.!0*#�,(5>�1+#$$7#!°7&8!(#D*5�(75&*/�36�0#/Z-#7/6>�9&#0�).�--)3C!)$>�!6-/-*�=$7-#79>#9)&*/.�-))!C9)�1$!/05$7!(;W!A-0A&=1#7!�3#56!)�(5(/!6�(!*5�/7#)(&/�#=!.&!(�#)*-3!#-(�9-70*9&*!;�<*!7.#).-)C)$!�/-�6#)#=!�!&7�# -$)/(>0-#*�1$)*(>�#)*3.:�$3�(6#7/.#7*(�#/�/!�"#$#%&�'$(�-N.!>�-7(&6305�/#3�/!&7�.-)/#./0!(�.#7*�-7�6-,, &0!�9#0!/�/-[�7&*!;mn}mghn�|injvkq�ll~mn��nl|�onop{�}•nl|nm�qn�jjol�hn�qvrt•|n�kq�ronmn�lxs�j~tlkon�vuqt•qirj��m\]lhn�vy|}�lt̂vkj_ẁlvzk�|ta†n|mb�iqxcj�hd�j̀iookmej�dqkfrmn�mv�nxtw‡jlkk~nvj|qiv‹��|j−l�…h�nyrllo�lk•ljlz‰tq{��xtqj|�ksvnq}il—mgq–onƒ⁄vlq|k�ljtm‹›j� 
„ ‚ ‚ ‚“”‘�’ ™™ff

’
“fŁ�ŒŠ“Ÿ�’Ž™“‘�

’
ı�ł”Ž”œŠš�ž”Œ”œŠ� 

¸ ¿¹º»¼»½�¾ ¢£¡¬ „�·„¡„€¦§̈§©ª�«�¤�¢®̄ �°„±¤²³¢±́�¥̈£®�µ�¤¶ª² ÀÁÂÃÄÅÆ�ÀÇÈÂÅÆÉ�ÊÇÇËÂÌ�ÍÎÄÎÌÏÌÐÎÉ�ÑÌÈÒ 

https://9#5/-�7&*!9&/�/!�#**!*�,!)!B/�-1�#$/-C.�*#&05#*�6-)/05�1#7!�.33
mailto:6-,&0!9#0!/�($.�#(�?330!4#5�-7@--=0!�4#5>�-)�"#$#%&�'$(;��&(�37-A&*!�#�(&630!>�.#(�17


A"'"'"''"'°'? 
INFORMATION 

GPO 

Federal Register/Vol. 90, No. 94/Friday, May 16, 2025/Notices 21113 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

National Highway Traffic Safety 
Administration 

[Docket No. NHTSA-2024-0070) 

Agency Information Collection 
Activities; Submission to the Office of 
Management and Budget for Review 
and Approval; Request for Comment; 
Crash Avoidance Warning System 
Human-Machine Interface Research 

AGENCY: National Highway Traffic 
Safety Administration (NHTSA), 
Department of Transportation (DOT). 
ACTION: Notice and request for 
comments on a request for approval of 
a new information collection. 

SUMMARY: In compliance with the 
Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995 
(PRA), this notice announces that the 
Information Collection Request (ICR) 
summarized below will be submitted to 
the Office of Management and Budget 
(0MB) for review and approval. The ICR 
describes the nature of the information 
collection titled "Crash Avoidance 
Warning System Human-Machine 
Interface Research" and its expected 
burden. This ICR is to request approval 
to conduct 6 new voluntary information 
collections as part of a one-time 
research study of drivers' interactions 
with crash avoidance technology with 
different human-machine interface 
(HMI) characteristics. This research will 
inform NHTSA's vehicle safety efforts 
and decisions regarding rulemaking 
activities. A Federal Register Notice 
with a 60-day comment period soliciting 
comments on the following information 
collection was published on November 
7, 2024. Two comments were received 
during the comment period: one in full 
support of the collection, the other 
acknowledging the exclusion of 
motorcycles and requesting future 
studies include non-4-wheeled vehicles. 
This notice includes a discussion of the 
comments and responses. No changes to 
the study nor burden calculations are 
necessary as a result of the comments. 
DATES: Comments must be submitted on 
or before June 16, 2025. 
ADDRESSES: Written comments and 
recommendations for the proposed 
information collection, including 
suggestions for reducing burden, should 
be submitted to the Office of 
Management and Budget at 
www.reginfo.gov/public/do/PRAMain. 
To find this particular information 
collection, select "Currently under 
Review-Open for Public Comment" or 
use the search function. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: For 
additional information or access to 

background documents, contact 
Alexandria Rossi-Alvarez, Ph.D., Office 
of Vehicle Safety Research, Applied 
Crash Avoidance Research Division 
NSR-120, Vehicle Research & Test 
Center, 10820 State Route 347, East 
Liberty, OH 43319; a.rossi-alvarez@ 
dot.gov; 937-666-3322 . 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: Under the 
PRA (44 U.S.C. 3501 et seq.), a Federal 
agency must receive approval from 
0MB before it collects certain 
information from the public, and a 
person is not required to respond to a 
collection of information by a Federal 
agency unless the collection displays a 
valid 0MB control number. In 
compliance with these requirements, 
this notice announces that the following 
information collection request will be 
submitted to 0MB. 

Title: Crash Avoidance Warning 
System Human-Machine Interface 
Research. 

0MB Control Number: New. 
Form Number: NHTSA Form 2006: 

Interest Response Form; NHTSA Form 
2007: Candidate Screening Questions; 
NHTSA Form 2008: Appointment 
Scheduling; NHTSA Form 2009: 
Participant Informed Consent Form; and 
NHTSA Form 2010: Post-Drive 
Questionnaire. 

Type ofRequest: New information 
collection. 

Type ofReview Requested: Regular. 
Length ofApproval Requested: Three 

years from date of approval. 
Summary of the Collection of 

Information : NHTSA is seeking 
approval for this new ICR to conduct 6 
new voluntary information collections 
as part of a one-time research program 
examining drivers' interactions with 
crash avoidance technology with 
different HMI characteristics. This 
research will inform NHTSA's vehicle 
safety efforts and decisions regarding 
rulemaking activities. 

Crash avoidance warning systems aid 
vehicle drivers in avoiding crashes by 
presenting alerts and warnings to inform 
drivers of situations in which the 
system has determined, via sensor 
information, that a crash is possible or 
imminent, depending on the situation. 
These systems communicate the 
occurrence of such conditions to drivers 
via sensory modalities, such as visual or 
auditory signals or vibration of the seat 
or steering wheel. This research seeks to 
improve NHTSA's understanding of 
how crash avoidance warning system 
HMI characteristics affect system 
effectiveness and potential safety 
impacts. 

The objective of this research is to 
examine driver behavior while using 

crash avoidance warning systems and to 
assess effects of human-machine 
interface characteristics on drivers ' 
behavior and driver response in crash­
imminent scenarios. The research will 
involve driver behavior observation 
while driving on a test track, public 
roads, or in a simulated environment 
(i.e., driving simulator). Data collection 
may also involve stationary laboratory 
measurements relating to crash 
avoidance warning signal 
characteristics, such as stationary 
laboratory measurements of individuals' 
visual angles when gazing at in-vehicle 
visual signals (e .g., instrument panel 
symbols) and displays. Test vehicles 
will be equipped, as needed, with 
instrumentation for recording driver eye 
glance behavior, vehicle control inputs 
(steering wheel, accelerator pedal, and 
brake pedal inputs), vehicle position 
and speed, and turn signal status. 
During dynamic testing, sensors will 
determine and record the distances 
between the test vehicle and 
surrounding vehicles , as appropriate. 

Description of the Need for the 
Information and Proposed Use of the 
Information: As driver assistance 
technologies advance, they have the 
potential to dramatically reduce the 
number of motor vehicle crashes and 
injuries, as well as the associated 
economic costs. The safety and 
effectiveness of the crash avoidance 
warning systems depend on drivers 
understanding the capabilities and 
constraints of the systems, and the 
meaning of visual and auditory alerts or 
warnings provided. 

Drivers successfully perceiving and 
understanding crash avoidance 
warnings is important for crash 
avoidance system effectiveness and 
crash mitigation. In particular, drivers 
must comprehend the situation and 
respond quickly when a crash 
avoidance warning system indicates an 
imminent collision is likely. This 
research aims to assess the effects of 
crash avoidance warning system HMI 
characteristics on driver behavior, on 
driver response in crash-imminent 
scenarios, and on crash avoidance 
success. The research will compare 
various crash avoidance warning system 
HMI characteristics and examine 
participants' responses to the alerts and/ 
or warnings. 

60-Day Notice: A Federal Register 
notice with a 60-day comment period 
soliciting public comments on the 
following information collection was 
published on November 7, 2024 (89 FR 
88342). NHTSA received two comments 
during the public comment period for 
the 60-day notice. Neither comment 
challenged the burden calculations. 



21114 Federal Register/Vol. 90, No. 94/Friday, May 16, 2025 /Notices 

The National Association of Mutual 
Insurance Companies (NAMIC) 
commented, "NAMIC strongly supports 
this effort by NHTSA. There is no 
question that the proposed collection of 
information is necessary for the proper 
performance of the functions of the 
agency, and that the information will 
have practical utility. We believe that 
the results of the information collection 
will help NHTSA better understand and 
ensure vehicle safety.'' Response: 
NHTSA appreciates the review, 
consideration, and support of the 
research. No changes to the collection 
were necessary as a result of the NAMIC 
comment. 

Zero Motorcycles, Inc. noted that the 
current information collection does not 
consider crash avoidance systems on 
motorcycles or "non-4+ wheeled" 
vehicles. They stated that motorcycles 
offer these types of systems and that 
including them in a future study would 
be beneficial. Response: The scope of 
the current research effort is focused on 
light passenger vehicles. NHTSA 
continues to stay abreast of advancing 
motorcycle crash avoidance 
technologies and has other current 
research projects examining the 
performance of such technologies. 

Affected Public: Research participants 
will be volunteers from the Columbus, 
OH area who are licensed drivers aged 
25-65 years (inclusive), drive at least 
11,000 miles annually, are in good 
health, and do not require assistive 
devices to safely operate a vehicle and 
drive continuously for a period ofup to 
2 hours. 

Estimated Number ofRespondents: 
Candidate participant recruitment 
information will be collected in an 
incremental fashion to permit the 
determination of which individuals 
meet the criteria for research 
participation. All interested candidates 
(estimate: 250 annually) will complete 
the Interest Response Form. A subset of 
individuals (estimate: 125 annually) 
meeting the criteria for the Interest 
Response Form will be asked to 
complete Candidate Screening 
Questions. Those who complete and are 
eligible based on the Candidate 
Screening Questions will be contacted 
for Appointment Scheduling to be study 
participants, with a goal of 67 
participants annually. These same 67 
participants will also complete the 
Experimental Data Collection and the 
Post-Drive Questionnaire. 

Frequency: Once. 

This research will be conducted once 
in phases corresponding to the different 
crash avoidance warning system types 
to be examined (i.e., forward, lateral, 
and rear crash avoidance). 

Estimated Number ofResponses: 643 
responses. 

Estimated Annual Burden Hours: 239 
hours. 

The annual estimated burden for the 
information collection is 239 hours. 
This is the aggregate of the estimated 
annual burden for 6 information 
collections that would be part of the 
one-time study. The 6 information 
collections include: (1) Interest 
Response Form to be administered to up 
to 250 potential research respondents; 
(2) Candidate Screening Questions to be 
administered to up to 125 research 
participants; (3) Appointment 
Scheduling to be administered to up to 
67 research participants; (4) Participant 
Informed Consent Form to be 
administered to up to 67 research 
participants; (5) Experimental Data 
Collection; and (6) Post-Drive 
Questionnaire to be administered to up 
to 67 research participants. 

The study will begin with a screening 
process to identify eligible participants. 
As stated above, the research team 
intends to identify 250 eligible 
participants to account for potential 
attrition to ensure that the target sample 
of 67 participants is achieved. 
Participant recruitment will be 
accomplished via online, print 
advertisements, and as needed, mailings 
to registered Ohio vehicle owners. 
Individuals interested in participation 
will respond to the recruitment 
advertisement by visiting a secure 
website containing a brief study 
description. The study description 
includes a web link that interested 
candidate participants can follow to 
begin the screening process. NHTSA 
estimates that the Interest Response 
Form takes, on average, 5 minutes to 
complete. Therefore, NHTSA estimates 
the annual burden for Interest Response 
Form to be 21 hours (5 minutes x 250 
respondents). 

Individuals whose responses meet 
participation requirements will be 
selected to take the Candidate Screening 
Questions. The research team intends to 
identify 125 eligible participants to 
account for potential attrition to ensure 
that the target sample of 67 participants 
is achieved. Candidate participants are 
emailed a link to the electronically 
presented question set hosted on a 
secure website. NHTSA estimates that 

the Candidate Screening Questions 
takes, on average, 7 minutes to 
complete. Therefore, NHTSA estimates 
the annual burden for Candidate 
Screening Questions to be 15 hours (7 
minutes x 125 respondents). 

Upon review of response data for the 
Candidate Screening Questions, 
candidates meeting the criteria will be 
contacted to schedule the study 
participation appointment. The research 
team intends to identify 67 eligible 
candidates. NHTSA estimates that the 
Appointment Scheduling takes, on 
average, 2 minutes to complete. 
Therefore, NHTSA estimates the annual 
burden for Appointment Scheduling to 
be 2 hours (2 minutes x 67 respondents). 

Each respondent will begin with a 
consenting process, which is completed 
on-site at the testing facility at the 
beginning of the study session. This 
consenting process includes an 
overview of the study and an 
explanation of the Informed Consent 
Form. This consenting process is 
expected to take 35 minutes. Therefore, 
NHTSA estimates the total burden for 
obtaining informed consent to be 39 
hours (35 minutes x 67 respondents). 

Following consent, the participant 
will receive instructions on the study 
protocol. For driving data collection, the 
participant will be shown the vehicle, 
seated in the driver seat, and an eye­
tracking system calibration will be 
performed. Driving will then commence 
while data are recorded to document 
vehicle performance and driver 
behavior. For stationary measurements, 
the individual would be seated in a 
stationary vehicle and asked to look at 
and/or listen to different crash 
avoidance warnings and provide verbal 
feedback as appropriate. This 
Experimental Data Collection will be 
conducted once and take approximately 
130 minutes. Therefore, NHTSA 
estimates that the total burden for the 
Experimental Data Collection to be 145 
hours (130 minutes x 67 respondents). 

At the end, participants will complete 
a Post-Drive Questionnaire, estimated to 
take approximately 15 minutes. The 
total burden for the Post-Drive 
Questionnaire is estimated to be 17 
hours (15 minutes x 67 respondents). 
The total annual burden for the entire 
study is estimated to be 239 hours. 

The estimated annual burden time is 
summarized in Table 1 below. The 
number of respondents and time to 
complete each question set are 
estimated as provided. 



Federal Register/Vol. 90, No. 94/Friday, May 16, 2025 /Notices 21115 

TABLE 1-ANNUAL BURDEN ESTIMATES 

Annual 
Information collection number of Frequency 

respondents of response 

Interest Response Form ................................................................ 250 1 
Candidate Screening Questions .................................................... 125 1 
Appointment Scheduling ................................................................ 67 1 
Participant Informed Consent Form ............................................... 67 1 
Experimental Data Collection ........................................................ 67 1 
Post-Drive Questionnaire ............................................................... 67 1 

Total Annual Burden ............................................................... ...................... ........................ 

Estimated Total Annual Burden Cost: 
$0. 

There is no cost to respondents for 
this information collection. The costs 
associated with travel are minimal and 
expected to be offset by the 
compensation that will be provided to 
the research participants. 

Public Comments Invited: You are 
asked to comment on any aspects of this 
information collection, including (a) 
whether the proposed collection of 
information is necessary for the proper 
performance of the functions of the 
agency, including whether the 
information will have practical utility; 
(b) the accuracy of the agency's estimate 
of the burden of the proposed collection 
of information, including the validity of 
the methodology and assumptions used; 
(c) ways to enhance the quality, utility 
and clarity of the information to be 
collected; and (d) ways to minimize the 
burden of the collection of information 
on respondents, including the use of 
appropriate automated, electronic, 
mechanical, or other technological 
collection techniques or other forms of 
information technology, e.g., permitting 
electronic submission of responses. 

Authority: The Paperwork Reduction 
Act of 1995; 44 U.S.C. chapter 35, as 
amended; 49 CFR 1.49; and DOT Order 
1351.29A. 

Cem Hatipoglu, 
Associate Administrator, Vehicle Safety 
Research. 
[FR Doc. 2025--08804 Filed 5-15-25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 4910-5&-P 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

National Highway Traffic Safety 
Administration 

[Docket Nos. NHTSA-2024-0043, NHTSA-
2024-0044, and NHTSA-2024-0063; 
Notice 1] 

Mercedes-Benz AG, Mercedes-Benz 
USA, LLC, and Daimler Vans USA, 
LLC, Receipt of Petitions for Decision 
of Inconsequential Noncompliance 

AGENCY: National Highway Traffic 
Safety Administration (NHTSA), 
Department of Transportation (DOT). 
ACTION: Receipt of petitions. 

SUMMARY: Mercedes-Benz AG, 
Mercedes-Benz USA, LLC, and Daimler 
Vans USA, LLC (collectively, 
"Mercedes-Benz") have determined that 
certain model year (MY) 2001-2025 
Mercedes-Benz and Daimler Vans motor 
vehicles do not fully comply with 
Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standard 
(FMVSS) No. 110, Tire Selection and 
Rims and Motor Home/Recreation 
Vehicle Trailer Load Canying Capacity 
Information for Motor Vehicles With a 
GVWR of4,536 kilograms (10,000 
pounds) or Less, or FMVSS No. 120, 
Tire Selection and Rims and Motor 
Home/Recreation Vehicle Trailer Load 
Canying Capacity Information for Motor 
Vehicles With a GVWR ofMore Than 
4,536 kilograms (10,000 pounds). 
Mercedes-Benz USA, LLC, and Daimler 
Vans, USA, LLC, filed noncompliance 
reports dated May 25, 2024, and June 
24, 2024. Mercedes-Benz subsequently 
petitioned NHTSA (the "Agency") on 
June 14, 2024, and on July 12, 2024, for 
a decision that the subject 
noncompliances are inconsequential as 
they relate to motor vehicle safety. This 
document announces receipt of 
Mercedes-Benz's petitions. 
DATES: Send comments on or before 
June 16, 2025. 
ADDRESSES: Interested persons are 
invited to submit written data, views, 
and arguments on this petition. 

Time per Annual 
Annual estimated responseresponses (min) burden hours 

(rounded) 

250 5 21 
125 7 15 
67 2 2 
67 35 39 
67 130 145 
67 15 17 

643 .................... 239 

Comments must refer to the docket and 
notice numbers cited in the title of this 
notice and may be submitted by any of 
the following methods: 

• Mail: Send comments by mail 
addressed to the U.S. Department of 
Transportation, Docket Operations, M-
30, West Building Ground Floor, Room 
W12-140, 1200 New Jersey Avenue SE, 
Washington, DC 20590. 

• Hand Delivery: Deliver comments 
by hand to the U.S. Department of 
Transportation, Docket Operations, M-
30, West Building Ground Floor, Room 
W12-140, 1200 New Jersey Avenue SE, 
Washington, DC 20590. The Docket 
Section is open on weekdays from 10 
a.m. to 5 p.m. except for Federal 
Holidays. 

• Electronically: Submit comments 
electronically by logging onto the 
Federal Docket Management System 
(FDMS) website at https:/1 
www.regulations.gov/. Follow the online 
instructions for submitting comments. 

• Comments may also be faxed to 
(202) 493-2251. 

Comments must be written in the 
English language, and be no greater than 
15 pages in length, although there is no 
limit to the length of necessary 
attachments to the comments. If 
comments are submitted in hard copy 
form, please ensure that two copies are 
provided. If you wish to receive 
confirmation that comments you have 
submitted by mail were received, please 
enclose a stamped, self-addressed 
postcard with the comments. Note that 
all comments received will be posted 
without change to https:/1 
www.regulations.gov, including any 
personal information provided. 

All comments and supporting 
materials received before the close of 
business on the closing date indicated 
above will be filed in the docket and 
will be considered. All comments and 
supporting materials received after the 
closing date will also be filed and will 
be considered to the fullest extent 
possible. 



A"'"'"''"'°'? 
INFORMATION 

GPO 

Federal Register/Vol. 90, No. 154/Wednesday, August 13, 2025/Notices 39025 

of the Act 72 with respect to the Cboe 
rules that the Exchange proposes to 
incorporate by reference in MIAX Rule 
1805B, subject to the conditions 
specified in this Order. 

For the Commission, by the Division of 
Trading and Markets, pursuant to delegated 
authority.73 

J. Matthew DeLesDernier, 
Deputy Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025-15322 Filed 8-12-25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 8011--01-P 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Federal Aviation Administration 

[Docket No. FAA-2025-0653) 

Agency Information Collection 
Activities: Requests for Comments; 
Clearance of a Renewed Approval of 
Information Collection: Infrastructure 
Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) 
Competitive Grant Project Information 

AGENCY: Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA), DOT. 
ACTION: Notice and request for 
comments. 

SUMMARY: In accordance with the 
Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, FAA 
invites public comments about our 
intention to request the Office of 
Management and Budget (0MB) 
approval to renew an information 
collection. The Federal Register Notice 
with a 60-day comment period soliciting 
comments on the following collection of 
information was published on May 23, 
2025. The collection involves soliciting 
project information for the 
Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act 
(IIJA) Airport Terminal, Tower and 
Airport Infrastructure Grant Funding 
Reallocation Programs. The information 
to be collected will be used to determine 
projects to be awarded IIJA competitive 
grants. 
DATES: Written comments should be 
submitted by September 12, 2025. 
ADDRESSES: Written comments and 
recommendations for the proposed 
information collection should be sent 
within 30 days of publication of this 
notice to www.reginfo.gov/public/do/ 
PRAMain. Find this particular 
information collection by selecting 
"Currently under 30-day Review-Open 
for Public Comments" or by using the 
search function . 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Jesse Carriger, Office of Airport 

72 15 U.S.C. 78s(b). 
73 17 CFR 200.30-3(a)(12) and 17 CFR 

200.30(a)(76). 

Planning and Programming, by email at: 
iijaairports@faa.gov; phone: (202) 674-
2806. 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 
Public Comments Invited: You are 

asked to comment on any aspect of this 
information collection, including (a) 
Whether the proposed collection of 
information is necessary for FAA's 
performance; (b) the accuracy of the 
estimated burden; (c) ways for FAA to 
enhance the quality, utility and clarity 
of the information collection; and (d) 
ways that the burden could be 
minimized without reducing the quality 
of the collected information. 

0MB Control Number: 2120-0806. 
Title: Infrastructure Investment and 

Jobs Act (IIJA) Competitive Grant Project 
Information. 

Form Numbers: 5100-144. 
Type ofReview: Renewal of an 

information collection. 
Background: The Federal Register 

Notice with a 60-day comment period 
soliciting comments on the following 
collection of information was published 
on May 23, 2025 (90 FR 22151). The 
FAA uses this collection to solicit the 
information necessary to evaluate and 
select airport projects for funding under 
the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs 
Act (IIJA), signed on November 15, 
2021. The IIJA provides about 
$1,020,000,000 annually, for five years, 
to award competitive grants for airport 
terminal and tower development. Of 
this amount, about $1,000,000,000 
annually, for five years, is for the 
Airport Terminal Program; $20,000,000 
annually, for five years, is for an 
Airport-owned Contract Tower Program. 
Additionally, the IIJA directs funds that 
are unobligated at the end of the fourth 
fiscal year after first made available 
under the Airport Infrastructure Grant 
(AIG) program to be converted to a new 
competitive funding program for the 
fifth and final fiscal year of availability. 
Of the amounts converted, the first 
$100,000,000 is set aside to augment the 
IIJA's Airport-owned Contract Tower 
Program grant program. Funds 
exceeding $100,000,000 are then 
awarded through the new competitive 
grant program, called the Airport 
Infrastructure Grant Funding 
Reallocation Program (AFR). The 
information collected is based on grant 
considerations and priorities outlined in 
the IIJA. Project consideration areas 
include increasing terminal capacity 
and passenger access; replacing aging 
infrastructure; achieving compliance 
with the Americans with Disabilities 
Act (42 U.S.C. 12101, et seq.); improving 
airport access for historically 
disadvantaged populations; improving 

energy efficiency; improving airfield 
safety through terminal relocation; 
encouraging actual and potential 
competition; impact on the National 
Airspace System; reducing emissions; 
reducing noise impact to the 
surrounding community; reducing 
dependence on the electrical grid; and 
providing general benefits to the 
surrounding community. The 
information FAA is collecting will 
include general airport information, a 
project overview, and narratives on 
project consideration areas as outlined 
in the IIJA. Airport owners and 
managers who want to pursue funding 
and obtain benefits from the IIJA 
Programs will submit information via 
FAA Form 5100-144 to compete for 
grants. Approximately 3,075 airports are 
eligible to compete for this funding, but, 
based on previous-year submissions, the 
FAA expects only a small subset of 
eligible airports to submit project 
information through this competitive 
grant process. 

Respondents: Approximately 655 
airports. 

Frequency: Annually. 
Estimated Average Burden per 

Response: 6 hours. 
Estimated Total Annual Burden: 

3,930 hours for all respondents. 
Issued in Washington, DC, on August 11, 

2025. 

Jesse Carriger, 
Acting Director, Office ofAirport Planning 
and Programming. 
[FR Doc. 2025-15333 Filed 8-12-25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 4910-13-P 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Federal Highway Administration 

[Docket No.: FHWA-2025-0010) 

RIN 2125-ZA30 

National Electric Vehicle Infrastructure 
Formula Program Guidance 

AGENCY: Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA), U.S. 
Department of Transportation (DOT). 
ACTION: Notice; Request for comments. 

SUMMARY: This notice announces the 
availability of FHWA's revised National 
Electric Vehicle Infrastructure (NEVI) 
Formula Program Interim Final 
Guidance. This Interim Final Guidance 
updates the existing NEVI Formula 
Program Guidance to align with clear 
and express statutory language in order 
to streamline and provide flexibility for 
implementation of the program. This 
Interim Final Guidance is effective 
immediately while FHWA seeks 



39026 Federal Register/Vol. 90, No. 154/Wednesday, August 13, 2025/Notices 

comment on what further changes may 
be appropriate. 
DATES: This Interim Final Guidance 
document is effective on August 13, 
2025. Comments must be received on or 
before August 27, 2025. Late-filed 
comments will be considered to the 
extent practicable. 
ADDRESSES: To ensure that you do not 
duplicate your docket submissions, 
please submit comments by only one of 
the following means: 

• Federal eRulemaking Portal: 
www.regulations.gov. This website 
allows the public to enter comments on 
any Federal Register notice issued by 
any agency. Follow the online 
instructions for submitting comments. 

• Mail: U.S. Department of 
Transportation, Docket Operations, M-
30, West Building Ground Floor, Room 
W12-140, 1200 New Jersey Avenue SE, 
Washington, DC 20590-0001. 

• Hand Delivery: U.S. Department of 
Transportation, Docket Operations, 
West Building Ground Floor, Room 
W12-140, 1200 New Jersey Avenue SE, 
Washington, DC 20590 between 9 a.m. 
and 5 p.m., ET, Monday through Friday, 
except Federal holidays. The telephone 
number is (202) 366-9329. 

• Instructions: You should identify 
the agency name and the docket number 
at the beginning of your comments. Late 
comments will be considered to the 
extent practicable. Note that all 
comments received will be posted 
without change to www.regulations.gov, 
including any personal information 
provided. 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Mr. 
Gary Jensen, Office of Natural 
Environment, (202) 763--4330, 
gary.jensen@dot.gov, or Ms. Dawn 
Horan, Office of Chief Counsel, (202) 
366-9615, Dawn.m.Horan@dot.gov. 
Office hours are from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 
p.m., ET, Monday through Friday, 
except Federal holidays. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

Electronic Access 
A copy of the Guidance is available 

for download and public inspection 
through www.regulations.gov using the 
docket number listed above. Electronic 
retrieval assistance and guidelines are 
also available at www.regulations.gov. 
An electronic copy of this document 
also may be downloaded from the Office 
of the Federal Register's website at: 
www.FederalRegister.gov and the U.S. 
Government Publishing Office's website 
at: www.Govinfo.gov. 

Background 
The Infrastructure Investment and 

Jobs Act (IIJA), Public Law 117-58, 

established the NEVI Formula Program. 
The Program was authorized under 
paragraph (2) under the Highway 
Infrastructure Program heading in title 
VIII of division J of the IIJA. 

The Program provides $5 billion of 
funding to States to deploy electric 
vehicle (EV) charging infrastructure and 
establish an interconnected network to 
facilitate data collection, access, and 
reliability. Initially, funding under the 
Program is directed to infrastructure 
acquired or installed along designated 
electric vehicle (EV) Alternative Fuel 
Corridors (AFCs). When the State 
determines and the Secretary certifies 
that AFCs in a State are fully built out, 
funding may be used for EV charging 
infrastructure on any public road or in 
other publicly accessible locations. 

Since the passage of the IIJA, FHWA 
has issued a number of guidance 
documents to implement the NEVI 
Formula, including but not limited to: 
• December 11, 2024, Build Out 

Certification-NEVI Formula Program 
Guidance 

• June 11, 2024, NEVI Formula Program 
Guidance 

• February 27, 2024, Method for 
Submitting Electric Vehicle Charger 
Data under 23 CFR 680.112 

• State EV Deployment Plan Exception 
Requests 

• State Plan/State Plan Update for EV 
Infrastructure Deployment Template 
Consistent with President Trump's 

commitment to ending unlawful, 
unnecessary, and onerous requirements, 
FHWA is reviewing its existing 
regulations and guidance documents for 
alignment with law and Administration 
priorities. This Interim Final Guidance 
aligns with Executive Order 14154 
"Unleashing American Energy," to 
eliminate previous mandates for EV 
charging infrastructure and potential 
burdens. In addition, per the January 29, 
2025, memorandum from the Secretary 
of Transportation on the 
Implementation of Executive Orders 
Addressing Energy, Climate Change, 
Diversity, and Gender, this Guidance 
rescinds previous guidance and policy 
that is not required by clear and express 
statutory language. FHWA believes that 
this Interim Final Guidance provides 
flexibility to the States for 
implementation of the program. 

Summary of Changes 

FHWA made several changes to the 
previously released NEVI guidance 
document dated June 11, 2024. Changes 
include, but are not limited to: 

• Minimizing the content required in 
State plans to statutory and regulatory 
requirements. 

• Simplifying the plan approval 
process. 

• Aligning community engagement 
requirements with regulatory 
requirements and reducing the 
consultation requirements to advance 
projects. 

• Providing States with the flexibility 
to determine the appropriate distance 
between stations along alternative fuel 
corridors to allow for reasonable travel. 

• Minimizing requirements for States 
to consider electric grid integration, 
renewable energy, and alignment with 
electric distribution interconnection 
processes, except where required by 
regulation. 

• Encouraging selection of charging 
locations where the charging station 
owners are also the site host to 
accelerate project delivery. 

• Eliminating requirements for States 
to address consumer protections, 
emergency evacuation plans, 
environmental siting, resilience and 
terrain considerations. 

• Providing States with more 
flexibility in determining when their 
system is built out allowing NEVI funds 
to be used on public roads statewide. 

Request for Comments 

Although the Interim Final Guidance 
is effective immediately, FHWA invites 
comments on this Guidance, which is 
available in the docket for this notice. 
FHWA will consider substantive 
comments received on the Interim Final 
Guidance and will consider whether 
any further changes are needed based on 
comments received. 

Authority: Public Law 117-58, title 
VIII of division J. 
Gloria M. Shepherd, 
Executive Director, Federal Highway 
Administration. 
[FR Doc. 2025-15370 Filed B-12-25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 4910-22-P 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

National Highway Traffic Safety 
Administration 

[Docket No. NHTSA-2025-0025] 

Agency Information Collection 
Activities; Submission to the Office of 
Management and Budget for Review 
and Approval; Request for Comment; 
Investigation-Based Crash Data 
Studies 

AGENCY: National Highway Traffic 
Safety Administration (NHTSA), 
Department of Transportation (DOT). 
ACTION: Notice and request for 
comments on an extension with 



UBER SUED BY DOJ 

Friday, September 12, 2025 

The federal government Thursday hauled Uber Technologies Inc. into a 
federal court in San Francisco, accusing the transportation company of 
discriminating against riders with disabilities, including by allegedly refusing 
service to individuals traveling with service animals or using stowable 
wheelchairs. 

The government claims in a new complaint that Uber violates the 
Americans with Disabilities Act by also charging cleaning fees related to 
service animals, as well as cancellation fees to riders whose hailed drivers 
refused to drive them. 

Uber has also allegedly refused to modify policies, practices or procedures 
as necessary despite its drivers refusing "reasonable requests such as 
letting passengers with mobility impairments sit in the front seat when 
necessary," the government asserts. 

"Despite the importance of its services to people with disabilities, Uber 
denies people with disabilities full and equal enjoyment of its services in 
several critical ways," the government argues. 

Among the relief the government is seeking is a judgment declaring Uber's 
alleged actions to be in violation of Title III of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability by 
public accommodations and in commercial facilities. 

It also seeks monetary damages to anyone aggrieved by Uber's alleged 
actions, a civil penalty against the San Francisco-based company and an 
order for the company to modify its policies and practices. 

Uber, the government notes, is the largest ride-hailing company in the 
United States and one that has partnered with roughly two dozen local 
governments to provide publicly funded paratransit services for passengers 
with disabilities. 

It says many people with disabilities rely on Uber's services, including for 
traveling to work, medical appointments and religious services. 



Yet Uber "denies service to hundreds, and potentially even thousands, of 
individuals with disabilities who travel with service animals, who use 
wheelchairs or other mobility devices, or whose appearance or involuntary 
behavior because of their disabilities may offend, annoy, or inconvenience 
drivers," the government contends. 

The government says Uber receives thousands of complaints every year, 
accusing it of disability-based discrimination. 

The complaint cites several individuals who are blind or have other 
disabilities and who rely on guide and service dogs or other assistance. 

One San Francisco resident was said in the complaint to typically add 30 
minutes to his expected travel time in case he gets denied a ride because 
of his dog. In one instance described in the complaint, an Uber driver had 
acknowledged the individual during pickup and looked directly at him and 
his guide dog. The driver, however, drove away "seconds later," according 
to the complaint. 

In Las Vegas, an Uber driver allegedly rolled her window down when 
picking up an individual with a neurological condition that substantially 
limited his gait and speech and said she couldn't take him because she 
thought something might happen to him during the ride, according to the 
complaint. 

The government says that as the driver began to drive away, the would-be 
passenger "tried his best to hurry after her, begging her multiple times to 
stop and not to leave." 

"The driver left anyway," the government adds. 

Another rider, a 7-year-old amputee in New York, was also denied a ride 
after a driver claimed he could not fit the child's wheelchair in his SUV, 
according to the government's suit. It says the child and his mother later 
saw the driver pick up another group and store a "large double wagon 
without issue." 

The government says Uber is aware of disability-based discrimination 
throughout its transportation services but has failed to do anything about it. 



 

"Uber does not adequately train its drivers and customer service 
representatives about their ADA obligations; monitor its drivers to prevent 
discrimination; or provide meaningful relief to people it has discriminated 
against," the government asserts. 

Uber had launched a voluntary self-identification feature that lets drivers 
know that a rider will be traveling with a service animal, according to the 
government's complaint. 

"Notwithstanding this measure, Uber has continued to discriminate against 
riders who use service animals," it says. 

Uber had previously agreed to a $2.2 million settlement in 2022 to resolve 
the government's claims that wait time fees the company imposed 
discriminated against disabled passengers who take more time to board a 
vehicle. 

Uber told Law360 Thursday that the company has a "clear zero-tolerance 
policy for confirmed service denials, and we fundamentally disagree with 
the [U.S. Department of Justice's] allegations." 

A service animal and assistive device policy on its website states that Uber 
prohibits drivers who use the Uber Drive App from denying service due to a 
rider's service animal or due to a rider with a disability who can't get into a 
vehicle on their own and requires assistance with stowing assistive 
devices. It says riders with service animals are also not required to pay 
cleaning fees for hair or shedding. 

"Riders who use guide dogs or other assistive devices deserve a safe, 
respectful, and welcoming experience on Uber — full stop," Uber told 
Law360. 

The company also said all of its drivers are required to acknowledge and 
agree to its service animal policy and all applicable accessibility laws 
before using the driver app. 

It said it also regularly reminds drivers of their obligations. 



"When we confirm a violation, we take decisive action, including permanent 
account deactivation," Uber said, adding that it also has a 24/7 service 
animal denial hotline. 

The government is represented by Craig H. Missakian, Michael A. Keough, 
Harmeet K. Dhillon, R. Jonas A. Geissler, Kevin J. Kijewski, Jane E. 
Andersen and Katherine Dutcher of the U.S. Department of Justice. 

Counsel information for Uber was not immediately available. 

The case is U.S. v. Uber Technologies Inc., case number 3:25-cv-07731, in 
the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California. 

--Additional reporting by Bonnie Eslinger. Editing by Kristen Becker. 



  

    
    

          

               
                   

              

         
 

   

            
               
        

                
 

                   
     

      
          

         
          

        
       

    

       

  

Section 1: About You 

2025 Honolulu Charter Amendment Proposal 
– Public Submission Form 
Mahalo for participating in the 2025 Honolulu Charter Commission review process. 

This form is intended for community members and organizations to submit proposed amendments to the 
Honolulu City Charter. You must have a Google account to access this form. Please use the PDF version of 
this form available on our website and submit your proposal via email to cclcharter@honolulu.gov 

For more information about the Charter Amendment process, visit: 
http://www.honolulucitycouncil.org/charter-commission. 

Proposal Submission Period 

The Honolulu Charter Commission is accepting Charter amendment proposals from August 4 to 
November 7, 2025. All proposals must be received by 5:00 PM HST on Friday, November 7, 2025 to be 
considered for inclusion on the 2026 general elections ballot. 

We encourage early submissions so the Commission has sufficient time to review and follow up as 
needed. 

If you’re unsure whether your issue belongs in the Charter, you’re still welcome to submit or reach out with 
questions. cclcharter@honolulu.gov | (808) 768-5197 

Pursuant to Hawaiʻi Revised Statutes (HRS) 
Chapter 92 (Public Agency Meetings and Records) and Chapter 92F (Uniform 
Information Practices Act), all proposals submitted to the Charter Commission 
are considered public records. Subject to HRS § 92F-13, submissions may be 
posted online, included in meeting materials, and otherwise made available for 
public inspection. By submitting this form, you acknowledge that your 
submission will be publicly accessible. 

Name of Individual or Organization Submitting Proposal * 

Mike Wallerstein 

J. Ching
Proposal Number: 011



   

  

  

        

 

   

                   

                 

               

               

             

           

    

        

      

           

   

 

@ 

0 

0 

0 

0 

Resident of O'ahu 

Business owner 

Nonprofit representative 

Member of a community group or advocacy organization 

Other: 

Section 2: Your Proposal 

I'm a Palolo resident who walks in the neighborhood every day. Main roads have sidewalks but there are lots 

of streets that don't. I believe every resident should have access to safe and accessible walking routes, 
especially our keiki (children) and kūpuna (elderly). Many sidewalks across Oʻahu are narrow, uneven, or 
missing altogether. This creates safety risks for children walking to school, kūpuna seeking exercise, and 

people with disabilities. Without safe and continuous sidewalks, Honolulu residents are discouraged from 

walking, which increases car dependency and limits access to outdoor spaces. 

Tell Us About Yourself or Your Organization (Optional) 

What is your connection to this issue or to the O’ahu community? 

What Issue or Concern Are You Trying to Address? 

Please describe the specific challenge, gap, or problem that you believe should be addressed 

through a Charter amendment. 

* 



              

             

              

           

         

      

   

     

      

           

   

      

       

                

                 

         

     

       

              

             

               

      

The Department of Transportation Services (DTS) is responsible for planning and maintaining the City’s 

transportation system. The Charter already includes a policy for a “pedestrian- and bicycle-friendly city” 
(Section 6-1706). However, the Charter does not explicitly require the expansion and improvement of 
sidewalks, leaving this critical aspect of public safety and accessibility under-prioritized. 

What section of the Charter does your proposal relate to (if known)? 

The City Charter can be found through this link. 

Current Charter Language (if relevant): 

Paste an excerpt or describe briefly. 

• Charter Section(s) Affected (if known): 
Article VI, Chapter 17, Section 6-1706 (“Pedestrian and Bicycle Friendly City”). 

Proposed Change: * 

Describe the change you are proposing. 

Amend Section 6-1706 to add the following: 
“The City and County of Honolulu shall prioritize the expansion, repair, and improvement of sidewalks and 

crosswalks across Oʻahu to ensure that children, kūpuna, and residents of all abilities can safely enjoy the 

outdoors, access essential services, and travel within their communities.” 

Rationale and Intended Impact: * 

Explain what you hope this amendment will accomplish. 

This amendment ensures that sidewalk and crosswalk improvements are treated as a core city 

responsibility. It promotes public safety, accessibility for persons with disabilities, and supports healthy, 
active lifestyles. It also aligns Honolulu with best practices for sustainable, walkable cities, reducing reliance 

on automobiles and supporting climate goals. 



      

      

     

     

      

    

  

      

    

 

  
          

  

   

         

       

/' 

/' 

/' 

m 
D 
m 
D 
D 
m 
D 

m 

-------

.1, Add file 

., 

Clarifies or improves accountability or transparency 

Aligns with legal or constitutional requirements 

Improves delivery of public services 

Requires structural or governance-level change 

Cannot be achieved through ordinary legislation 

Anticipates a future need 

Cost savings 

Other: Aligns with climate goals, equity 

Section 3: Supporting Materials (Optional) 

Wallerstein_Supp… 

Section 4: Contact Information 
This will be used only to follow up if needed. 

Charter Alignment Checklist (Optional) 

Check all that apply. 

Upload any documents or materials that help support your proposal (Optional): 

Word doc, PDF, and images are acceptable files. 



  

 

 

 

   
                  

                 
                

          

 

 

  

 

   

/' 

/' 

Google 

Mike Wallerstein 

mike.wallerstein@gmail.com 

617-378-8457 

96816 

Next Steps & Guidance 
The Charter Commission will review submissions and may invite you to share more about your idea at a 
public meeting. If you're unsure whether your issue belongs in the Charter review process, you can still 
submit this form, or contact us with questions. Please check our website regularly for information on 
community meetings and other updates. Mahalo nui for your submission! 

Name 

E-Mail 

Phone (optional) 

Zip Code 

This content is neither created nor endorsed by Google. 

 Forms


	Packet Index.pdf
	Transportation Committee Packet (11.17.25).pdf
	Packet Index.pdf
	TransCommMtgAgenda 11.17.25.pdf
	DraftTransporationCommMtgMinutes 9.8.25 (final).pdf
	DCAB Response.2025.09.25.pdf
	2025-18980  KS, KP, BM, ED(Airlines_Wheelchairs)v2.pdf
	Bill 54 (2025) CD1.pdf
	Audit of Skyline.pdf
	DTS Respsones (Skyline bathrooms).pdf
	ADA Complementary Paratransit Specialized Review - Draft Report - CCOH - 24 Oct. 2025_Clean.pdf
	NR 10-06-25 (The Kaua‘i Bus launches Open Payments with Masabi).pdf
	NHSTA 2024-0070(Crash Avoidance)v2.pdf
	FHWA 2025-0010 (EV Formula Grant)v2.pdf
	UBER SUED BY DOJ.pdf
	P011_M. Wallerstein.pdf




